ISSN 0971-3034

VOLUME 46 • SPECIAL ISSUE • MAY, 2023

THE INDIAN JOURNAL OF **TECHNICAL EDUCATION**

Published by INDIAN SOCIETY FOR TECHNICAL EDUCATION Near Katwaria Sarai, Shasheed Jeet Singh Marg, New Delhi - 110 016



INDIAN JOURNAL OF TECHNICAL EDUCATION

Volume 46 • Special Issue • MAY, 2023

Editorial Advisory Committee

Prof. Pratapsinh K. Desai - Chairman President, ISTE

Prof. N.R. Shetty Former President, ISTE, New Delhi

Prof. (Dr.) Buta Singh Sidhu Vice Chancellor, Maharaja Ranjit Singh Punjab Technical University, Bathinda

Prof. G. Ranga Janardhana Vice Chancellor JNTU Anantapur, Ananthapuramu

Prof. D.N. Reddy, Former Chairman Recruitment & Assessment Centre DRDO, Ministry of Defence, Govt. of India New Delhi Prof G.D. Yadav, Vice Chancellor Institute of Chemical Technology, Mumbai

Dr. Akshai Aggarwal, Former Vice Chancellor Gujarat Technological University, Gandhinagar

Prof. M.S. Palanichamy Former Vice Chancellor Tamil Nadu Open University, Chennai

Dr. D.B. Shinde, Vice Chancellor Shivaji University, Kolhapur

Editorial Board

Dr. Vivek B. Kamat Director of Technical Education Government of Goa, Goa

Dr. E.B. Perumal Pillai Director-HRDC & Professor of Civil Engg. Vel Tech. University, Chennai

Prof. C.C. Handa Professor & Head, Dept. of Mech.Engg. KDK College of Engineering, Nagpur Prof. S. Mohan Chief Executive, Innovation Centre (SID) Indian Institute of Science, Bangalore

Prof. Y. Vrushabhendrappa Director Bapuji Institute of Engg. & Technology, Davangere

Dr. S.M.S. Shashidhara Deputy Secretary M.S.B.T.E., Mumbai

Chief Editor Prof. Vijay D. Vaidya Executive Secretary, ISTE, New Delhi

Editor

Dr. Y.R.M. Rao National Executive Council Member, ISTE, New Delhi

Copyright (c) Indian Society for Technical Education, The Journal articles or any part of it may not be reproduced in any form without the written permission of the Publisher.

INDIAN JOURNAL OF TECHNICAL EDUCATION

Published by INDIAN SOCIETY FOR TECHNICAL EDUCATION Near Katwaria Sarai, Shasheed Jeet Singh Marg, New Delhi - 110 016



Editorial

Last few decades technological changes in every domain have been happening so fast. What we saw in the recent past is not seen today. Changes are inevitable. If any one ignore to adopt the changes will remain as a back bencher. There are many examples of failures in industrial sector for not switching over to new or user friendly rather smart technologies.

Life style of the people is rapidly changing and adopting to the changes in the society, technology and other factors. People living not only in urban areas even in remote areas are switching over to modern life style.

Scientists, researchers, industrial leaders and consultants are involving in exhaustive research activities and contributing well in innovating the new or modifying the existing products with latest available technologies. Academic and research institutions and professional bodies are creating a platforms to share the knowledge in recent developments. Conferences and seminars can help students, scientists and researchers working in various fields to abreast up-to-date on the latest trends and developments in technologies to narrow the gap. These platforms are a great opportunity to explore various ideas.

Presentations in conferences particularly international conferences provide a great opportunity to communicate one's research work to a gathering representing various parts of the world and can seek suggestions on the research work and also learn from the others' presentations and also to broaden professional network.

Every person will come across with a variety of materials in day to day life. Earlier, men were lived with limited variety materials such as wood, stone, clay and few metals. Due to the development and advancement of life style, people are expecting the products of better quality, good appearance, easy to use, durable and available at an affordable price.

In the perspective, the Bangalore Institute of Technology (BIT), Bangalore is organizing 3day international conference AMEMA 2023 with an objective to create a platform for talents from across the globe in the fields of advanced materials and their applications.

The editorial board of IJTE has accepted to publish only 38 selected research papers of AMEMA-2023 as a May 2023 special issue. We are sure that Vol. 46, May 2023 special issue of IJTE will be interesting and useful to the readers.

New Delhi 08th May 2023 Editor

Contents

1.	Performance Evaluation of Near Surface Mounted Technique for Flexural Strengthening and U Wrapping for Shear Strengthening of the Preloaded RC Beams Pradeep C R, Nandeesh M Sreenivasappa, H N Jagannatha Reddy, R Prabhakara	5
2.	Experimental Studies on Jute Fibre and Banana Fibre used as Fixed Aerated Bed for Canteen Wastewater Treatment <i>Kavana S, Pallavi M B, Spoorthi Shetty C D, Tejas Gowda B R, Varun D R</i>	13
3.	Comparative Analysis of Outriggers for RC Building under the Effect of Wind Loads using ETABS Dr Vathsala, Shuchitha, Harshitha	18
4.	Utilization of Fibers in Asphalt Concrete – A Review Ashwini H D, Kasthuri M, Gagan M	23
5.	Comparative Study of Behaviour of U-Boot Slab and Conventional Slab <i>Sham, Veda, Thrishal S K, Thanuja H P</i>	30
6.	Experimental Study on Flexural Strengthening of Reinforced Concrete Slab using Fabric Reinforced Cementitious Matrix <i>Dr. B. S. Putte Gowda, Mr. Manoj, Ms. Sreelekha C R, Ms. Anusha B N</i>	37
7.	Experimental Study on Performance of Flat Slabs Strengthened using Carbon Fiber- Reinforced Polymers <i>C. Prasad Gowda Bhagyashree Biradar</i>	45
8.	A Comparative Study on Flexural Strengthening of Preloaded RC T-Beam using NSM CFRP Vertical Laminates with Different Percentages of Tension Reinforcement Naveen V, Mallikarjuna K, Dilip N, Ravindra P M	49
9.	Analysis and Design of System Integration Building K V Mahesh Chandra, R Subasakthi Vaishnavi	61
10.	A Study on Hardened Properties of Concrete with Partial Replacement of Steel Slag as Fine Aggregate and Marble Waste as Coarse Aggregate Chethan Chandru, Archana D. P, Madhu Kiran B N, Varun T R, Sinchana N Gowdthi, Kiran, Nagaraj Javali	68
11.	Stabilization of Soil Effected by Industrial Effluents – Through Mechanical Stabilization <i>Prof. Jayatheertha H S, Dr. T Srinivas, Dr. K N Vishwanath</i>	74
12.	Experimental Investigation on Retrofitting of Flexural Deficient Reinforced Concrete Beams using Fabric Reinforced Cementitious Mortar <i>Dr. B. S. Putte Gowda, Mrs. Deepika K C, Ms. Anusha B N, Ms. Sreelekha C R</i>	78

13.	Fabrication and Investigation of Mechanical Properties for Magnesium Alloys byStir CastingT. Subba Reddy, B. Srinu, S. K. Ameer, Basha, T. Dhanesh Babu, K. Leela, Siva Krishna	85
14.	Microstructure and Mechanical Properties of Permanent Mould Cast Aluminum Alloy A356-SIC Composites In Heat Treated T6 Condition <i>Rajiv, T. G., Sreerama Reddy T. V., Chandrashekar R</i>	93
15.	Numerical Analysis on Porous Trapezoidal Enclosure Vijaya Kumara V M*, Pavan K S, Sagar Reddy A S, Sai Charan R V, Sharath B S	100
16.	Training Needs and Implications Dr. Satish N, Dr. B. S. Ajay Kumar	107
17.	Mechanical and Tribological Characterisation of Al6061 and Zircon Sand V. C. Ravi, Dr H. N. Reddappa, Dr. T. V. Sree Rama Reddy, Dr. A. Chandrashekar	116
18.	Effect of Nanoparticles on Transesterification Process Shanbulinga Murthy G C, Dr. Girisha K B, Dr. Manjunath S H, Dr. B K Narendra	121
19.	Evaluation of Vibrating Mechanism in Drum Truck Tippers <i>R Vasanth Kumar, Y J Manjunath, Manjunath K., N. Hemakesha, S. Singaravelu</i>	131
20.	Digitalization of Stores Operation and Inventory Management Sri Ram H Bharadwaj, Nalaraja, Prithvi P Medha, Chandana, Neerubhavi, Ganashree M N	136
21.	Design Modifications and Value Analysis of a Chopping Board Sai Raj S H, Prof. V. S. Giri	141
22.	Application of Value Engineering for Cost Reduction on a Waist Belt-A Case Study V. S. Giri, A. P. Partha, Varsha Padmanabha	149
23.	Evaluating Customer Awareness Towards Mivan Shuttering Technology in Construction Company", with Reference to Navami Builders <i>Pavan Kumar S, Deepika M S, Issac Dsouza, Pradhan Shekar D, Prathith Vasista H R</i>	154
24.	BIT Cart Manoj V, Preethi K H, Venkatesh H Kulkarni, Huda Fathima, Dr Mounika	163
25.	Condition Monitoring- A Critical Review Deepika M S, Harish K, N J Krishna Prasad, T V Sriram Reddy	166
26.	A Study on Consumer Preference Towards Discounted Wednesday at KFC Goutham. D, Dr. K. V. Deepak	174
27.	Analytical Study on DTDC Vinay N, Dr K V Deepka	178
28.	A Study of Challenges on Global Logistics Management Charan Kumar K U, Dr K V Deepak	183

29.	A Study on Impact of Digital Marketing on Logistics Management <i>Rakshitha G Hulagi, Dr K V Deepak</i>	187
30.	Work-Life Balance in I.T Sector in Bangalore-India: Impact on Gender and Marital Status <i>Dr. Juin Choudhury</i>	192
31.	Characteristic Polynomials of Oriented Graphs Pushpalatha Mahalank, A. R. Desai, Ugur Ana, Ismail Naci Cangul	200
32.	Squeezing Flow Through Numerical-Hermite Wavelet Method <i>Dhananjaya M, Raghunatha K. R, Vinod Y</i>	204
33.	Statistical Analysis of Daily Rainfall for Agricultural Planning at Selected Regions of Karnataka Through Markov Chain Process <i>Uma A L, Dr K M Roopa</i>	209
34.	Characterization, Optical and Photocatalytic Studies of UV Light Driven Sm³⁺ Doped Zro₂ Thin Film by Sol-Gel Method <i>T. Kiran, M. V. Chethana, H. S., Savitha, M. S. Paramesh</i>	220
35.	Synthesis and Characterization of Fe-Co-Ni Nanocomposites for Photocatalytic Dye Degradation in Waste Water Shylaja. K. R, Neelam Patil, Radhika, Malini. S, Kalyan Raj, N. Suresha	226
36.	Indian Bentonite Clay Derived Green Catalytic Material for Esterification of P-Cresol with Phenyl Acetic Acid under Microwave Irradiation Hemanth Kumar. C. M, Radhika, Rao. B, Kavya. A. R, Vijendra Kumar. K. B, Prakruthi. H. R, D. M. Gurudatt, Prakasha. K. C, Chandrashekara. B. M	232
37.	Oxidation Kinetics of Orange G by Chloramine-T in the Presence of HCL and NaOH Mediums: A Spectrophotometric Approach <i>Chandrashekara. B. M, Basavaraju B C, Kumara M N</i>	240
38.	Exploiting the Photo Stable Properties of Coumarin Derivative for the Detection of Metal Ions in Solutions <i>G. Nagasree, Geethanjali. H. S, Nagaraja D, Raju P</i>	249

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF NEAR SURFACE MOUNTED TECHNIQUE FOR FLEXURAL STRENGTHENING AND U WRAPPING FOR SHEAR STRENGTHENING OF PRELOADED RC BEAMS

PRADEEP C R

1Assistant Professor, Department of Civil Engineering, Bangalore Institute of Technology, Bangalore

NANDEESH M SREENIVASAPPA

Assistant Professor, Department of Civil Engineering, M S Ramaiah Institute of Technology, Bangalore

H N JAGANNATHA REDDY

Professor, Department of Civil Engineering, Bangalore Institute of Technology, Bangalore, Karnataka

R PRABHAKARA

Former Campus Director & Principal, Brindavan College of Engineering, Bangalore

ABSTRACT

Experimental study was used to investigate the effectiveness of the near surface mounted (NSM) technique and shear strengthening techniques by U wrapping, using carbon FRP laminates and wrap in concrete beams. When an RC beam is reinforced deficiently in shear and when it is highly loaded, it must be strengthened for shear. Since shear failure is very brittle and cannot be judged quickly strengthening of beams for shear is necessary. Bonding CFRP on external surface of beam and mounting the same near to the beam surface are two successful methods for shear strengthening of beams. Carbon fibre reinforced polymer (CFRP) strips have proven to be effective in shear strengthening reinforced concrete beams. Environmental effects, as well as design and construction flaws, can cause structural beams to lose their shear capability, necessitating rehabilitation. The application of additional load may necessitate the improvement of beams in order to increase their ability to contain the additional loads. The impact of the following main variables is explored in this project.

The project undertaken consists of strengthening of preloaded R-C beams for shear with NSM technique using CFRP laminates and wrap. Where, in this project six beams were casted, two were control specimens, two were shear strengthened with CFRP wrap, another pair of beams were shear strengthened with both CFRP laminate and wrap as well.

KEYWORDS : NSM strengthening, Preloaded beams, Retrofitting

INTRODUCTION

A large number of RC structural components of buildings including bridges require repair and strengthening around the world, emphasizing the extent of importance of these structures in the civil construction field will continue to grow considering the future. Due to the high strength-to-weight ratio, high durability (non-corrodible), easy handling, fast execution with minimum labour and varied accessibility of geometry, and dimensions the adoption of carbon fibre reinforced polymers (CFRP) for strengthening of beams. When an RC beam is less reinforced properly in shear or due to increased load due to occupancy change and other reasons, it must be shear strengthened. As the shear failure is unpredictable and brittle, it must be strengthened.

Externally bonded reinforcing (EBR) and near surface mounted (NSM) with CFRP are two shear strengthening solutions for RC beams. Wet lay-up CFRP sheets can be used in a variety of ways in the EBR technique with the cross section of the beam is completely wrapped. Wrapping System is a structural strengthening solution which utilizes the high tensile strength of carbon fibre while being incredibly light. When bonded to the outside of a concrete beam, it can give a lot of strength without adding weight, which would put more strain on foundations and other structural parts.

Wrapping systems are made up of a combination of textiles, mainly carbon, and an epoxy resin. The Wrapping System gives structures a lot of strength and protects them from additional corrosion and erosion. The impermeable substance will shield a building from further corrosion and moisture incursion, decreasing the requirement for continuous maintenance.

RESEARCH SIGNIFICANCE

Various researchers have contributed to the retrofitting of RC beams for flexure and shear capacity enhancement. However, very limited research takes care of the real-world application of these techniques as the beams that require these strengthening techniques would generally be subjected to cracks and deformations. To simulate the real-world damage in laboratory, an attempt is made by preloading the beam upto the desired extent and carefully retrofitting the members thereafter. In this study one such attempt is made to study the capacity enhancement of preloaded beams.

OBJECTIVES

- 1. To study the shear behaviour of strengthened preloaded R-C beams with the NSM technique using CFRP composites
- 2. To consider the performance of different configuration of shear strengthening
- 3. To compare the load-deformation behaviour of strengthened specimens with control beam.
- 4. To suggest the best technique in shear strengthening

METHODOLOGY

The brief methodology is described in Fig. 1 with the help of a flow chart.

SPECIMEN ID

CB- Control Beams

SPB- X- Beams with Only 'U' Wrapping

SPB- Y- Beams with Only 'U' Wrapping and NSM Embedment



Fig. 1. Methodology of the experimental work

BEAMSPECIMENDESIGNANDREFINING A

The experimental programme consists of six RC beams, each of which is 2600X200X200mm in size. Two beams are considered as control specimens, which, one control specimen is only provided with two of 12 mm dia main bars without stirrups. Another control specimen and remaining beams are reinforced with two 12mm bars as primary bars and two 8mm diameter bars as hanger bars. With stirrups of 2L-8mm dia bars at 300mm c/c, the beams should tend to fail in shear. An effective cover of 33mm was supplemented. A typical beam is shown in Fig. 2.

2L-8mm dia bars at 300mm c/c



Fig. 2. Detailing of beam

MATERIALS USED IN THE STUDY

Concrete

M40 ready mix concrete was used. The slump of the mix and proportions are provided in Table 1.

Table 1. Concrete Mix Propotions

Slump (mm)	W/C ratio	Water (Kg/ m ³)	Cement (Kg/m ³)	Coarse aggre- gate (Kg/m ³)	Fine aggre- gate (Kg/ m ³)	Chemical admix- ture (Kg/ m ³)
50	0.38	191	420	1106	712	2.1

Steel bars

12 mm and 8 mm diameters of Steel bars with have been employed in this study.

The primary reinforcement is made of 12 mm bars, while hanger bars and stirrups are made of 8 mm bars.

CFRP laminate and CFRP wrap

The material was sponsored by FOSROC chemicals private limited. CFRP laminate of size 50mm wide and 1.4mm thick was used, which was having tensile strength of 2900 MPa and modulus of elasticity 150 GPa.

CFRP wrap with thickness 0.2mm, weight 200 gsm, tensile strength 3400 MPa and modulus of elasticity 2.3X105 MPa was used

Adhesive

Nitowrap-30 and Nitowrap 410 was used for CFRP wrap sponsored by FOSROC chemicals private limited.

EXPERIMENTAL PROGRAM

2-point loading was done to test the beam specimens as shown in Figs. 3 and 4.



Fig. 3. Experimental set up



Fig. 4. Experimental setup of beam

Pre-loading of beam specimens

The remaining four beams, which will be reinforced with NSM CFRP strips and wrap, are preloaded with 60% of the ultimate load. With reference to control beams testing, a maximum load of 81KN was attained. As a result, the beams are preloaded with a 48.6KN load.

Preloaded beam specimen strengthening

Once the beams were preloaded, one set of two beams (SPB-X1 and SPB-X2) were U -wrapped with CFRP wrap up to 0.75m from either end of the beams



Figure 5 strengthening of beam with CFRP wrap

Second set of two beams (SPB-Y1 and SPB-Y2) were made with a 15 mm deep and 60 mm wide slot cut in the soffit up to 0.75m from either ends to insert the 1.4 mm thick and 50 mm wide CFRP strip, on this, CFRP sheet was U-wrapped up to 0.75m on either ends of the

beams. The CFRP strips were adhered to the grooves with epoxy glue. The epoxy was initially filled up to 5mm in the grooves, then CFRP strips were implanted and the epoxy was packed up to the surface.



Fig. 6. Strengthening of beam with CFRP laminate and wrap

RESULTS AND DISCUSSION

Total of 6 beams were tested, which consists of 2 control beams, among them one is without stirrups and another is with stirrups, another 2 beams were strengthened with CFRP wrap in shear zone, remaining 2 beams were with NSM technique, groove cut at soffit of beam and placing of laminates and also wrapping it with CFRP wrap. They are tested in loading frame of 50 tons capacity at every 2kN load was applied until the specimens get failed. Where the obtained results are discussed below. The Load and corresponding deflections at first crack, service load and ultimate loads are presented in Table 2.

CONTROL BEAM SPECIMENS TESTING

To determine the ultimate load bearing capability, deflection, and fracture pattern, two control beams were tested until they failed. Readings of deflection and fracture width were recorded at every 2KN interval until the specimens failed. A Combined Load deflection curve is shown in Fig 7.

Control beam 1

During the testing of the first control specimen, a Shear crack was developed at a force of 14KN. The beam collapsed at a 76KN force. At failure load, the final deflection was 14.706 mm.

Control beam 2

During the testing of the first control specimen, a shear crack was developed at a force of 40KN. The beam collapsed at a 86KN force. At failure load, the final deflection was 12.455 mm.

TESTING OF STRENGTHENED SPECIMENS

Testing strengthened beam SPB-X1

Preloaded beam SPB-X1 which was U -wrapped with CFRP wrap up to 0.75m from either end of the beam was tested. The initial crack was at 40kN and ultimate load carrying capacity obtained at 102kN.

Testing strengthened beam SPB-X2

Preloaded beam SPB-X2 which U -wrapped with CFRP wrap up to 0.75m from either end of the beam was tested. The initial crack was at 38kN and ultimate load carrying capacity obtained at 116kN.

Testing strengthened beam SPB-Y1

Preloaded beam SPB-Y1 with a 15 mm deep and 60 mm wide slot cut in the soffit up to 0.75m from either ends to insert the 1.4 mm thick and 50 mm wide CFRP strip and U-wrapped up to 0.75m with CFRP sheet from either ends of the beam was tested. The initial crack was at 42kN and ultimate load carrying capacity obtained at 116kN.

Testing strengthened beam SPB-Y2

Preloaded beam SPB-Y2 with a 15 mm deep and 60 mm wide slot cut in the soffit up to 0.75m from either ends to insert the 1.4 mm thick and 50 mm wide CFRP strip and U-wrapped up to 0.75m with CFRP sheet from either ends of the beam was tested. The initial crack was at 52kN and ultimate load carrying capacity obtained at 102kN.



Fig 7. Load v/s Deflection of All Beams

Beam	First cracking load		Serv	vice Load	Ultimate load	
Designation	Load (kN)	Deflection (mm)	Load (kN)	Deflection (mm)	Load (kN)	Deflection (mm)
CB-1	14	0.979	50.66	6.456	76	11.579
CB-2	40	3.428	57.33	5.821	6886	9.802
SPB-X1	40	2.704	68	6.695	102	14.011
SPB-X2	38	1.991	77.72	7.149	116	13.963
SPB-Y1	42	3.034	77.34	6.609	116	11.643
SPB-Y2	52	4.687	68	7.18	102	13.57

Table 2. Load and Deflections of all beams at different stages

Crack pattern

Control beam 1



Figure 8 Crack pattern in CB-1

The pattern of cracks in control beam 1 is shown in the above figure. Stirrups are not provided in this beam. The first crack developed at load of 14 kN which is shear in nature. After that upon incremental load several such shear cracks developed. One such crack can be observed from the above figure, in which shear crack at 53 kN got propagated up to the top surface of the beam. Minor flexural cracks and flexural – shear cracks are also observed in the control beam 1.

Control beam 2



Figure 9 Crack pattern in CB-2

The pattern of cracks in the control beam 2 is depicted in the diagram above. At the load of 40 kN, the first crack occurred, which is shear in character. Following that, additional shear cracks appeared as a result of gradual loading. One such fracture may be seen in the above illustration, where a shear crack appeared at a force of 69 kN and propagated at load of 81 kN all the way to the beam's upper surface. Flexural - shear cracks and minor flexural cracks are also observed.

Beam SPB X-1



Figure 10 Crack pattern in SPB X1

In beam SPB X-1 preload of 60% failure load of control specimen is applied and CFRP U- wrap is provided at extreme sections of beam for a width of 0.75 m. The first crack is appeared at 40 which is flexure-shear crack. The deflection corresponding to first cracking load is 3.173 mm. As the load increases widening of crack occurred at 68 kN. Due to the CFRP wrapping in the shear critical zone of beam, major shear cracks were not visible.

Beam SPB X-2



Figure 11 Crack pattern in SPB X2

Beam SPB X-2 which has been preloaded by 48.6 kN and U- wrapped with CFRP at end developed first crack at a loading of 38 kN. From the above figure one perfect shear developed at 110 kN which is approximately 45 degrees. Another shear crack at 110 kN got propagated into the CFRP wrap.

Beam SPB Y-1



Figure 12 Crack pattern in SPB Y1

At a loading of 42 kN, the SPB Y-1 beam, which had been preloaded by 48.6 kN and Uwrapped with CFRP at the end, developed its first crack. One complete shear generated at 110 kN, which is roughly 40 degrees, as seen in the diagram above. Some flexural cracks can also seen in the beam up on loading.

Beam SPB Y-2



Figure 13 Crack pattern in SPB Y2



Figure 14 Shear crack occurred inside the wrapping

The first cracking load for beam SPB Y-2 is 52 kN. There are visible number of flexural cracks in this beam. But after ultimate failure of the beam when the CFRP wrap got de-bonded there are major shear cracks below CFRP wrap. Hence due to coverage of CFRP in most part of shear zone of beam the shear cracks are nonvisible. The reason behind non visibility of shear crack is because of non-replicability of cracks in beams on the CFRP wrap.

Failure modes



Figure 15 Control beam failure mode

The control beam 1 failed by shear at ultimate load of 76kN with maximum average deflection of 11.578 mm and maximum middle deflection of 14.706 mm. At 72 kN concrete near the supports spalled and dial gauges were removed for safety purpose. Most of the shear cracks were propagated up to the compression surface of the slab at the time of failure. The deflection profile of the failed control beam is shown in above figure.

Control beam 2 failed by shear. The beam failed at load of 86kN. There were three types of cracks, flexure, shear and flexure- shear cracks. Concrete spalling occurred at a load of 82kN.

Beam X-1



Figure 16 X1 failure mode

The beam X1 which is strengthened only by CFRP wrap failed at 102kN by shear. The above figures depict the failure of beam in which delamination and rupture of CFRP wrap has not been occurred at final load. The maximum deflection was about 18.892 mm and average deflection was 14.011 mm.

Beam X-2



Figure 17 X2 failure mode

The beam X2, which was mainly stiffened by a CFRP wrap, fractured at 116 kN. The failure of a beam in which CFRP wrap rupture occur at ultimate load is depicted in the diagrams above. The wrap got ruptured of about 11 mm from its original position at a distance of 750mm from the edge due to deflection. The maximum deflection was around 18.27 mm with an average of 13.963 mm. It is to be noted that the delamination of CFRP was not been occurred in this beam.

Beam Y-1



Figure 18 Y1 failure mode

Beam Y-1 which is strengthened with CFRP laminates by NSM technique and CFRP wrap failed at ultimate load of 116.43 kN. The major changes occurred in this beam related to other strengthened beams discussed above is the de- bonding of CFRP laminate with no delamination of CFRP wrap. The cracks and their propagation in this beam has been delayed due to both CFRP laminates and wrap. The average and middle deflection at ultimate load are 11.643 and 14.13 mm respectively.

Beam Y-2



Figure 19 Y2 failure mode

Beam Y-2, which was strengthened with CFRP laminates and CFRP wrap using the NSM technology, miscarried at ultimate load of 102 kN. The de-bonding of CFRP laminate occurred at 76 kN with no delamination of CFRP wrap. Because of the CFRP laminates and wrap, the cracks and their propagation and deflection values in this beam has been reduced. The average and central deflection at 102 kN are 13.570 mm and 17.08 mm respectively.

CONCLUSION OF THE STUDY

The study on pre-loaded RC beam strengthened using CFRP laminate and wrap with NSM technique is undertaken. The U wrapping at shear zone was done for two beams of first set. The laminate as well as U wrapping was done for two beams of second set, by this study following results were observed.

- For strengthened beam group SPB-X first crack was advanced by 1 KN as compared to control beam CB-2. For strengthened beam group SPB-Y first crack was delayed by 7 KN as compared with control beam CB-2.
- Both strengthened beam group SPB-X and SPB-Y ultimate load carrying capacity was enhanced by 26.74% compared to control specimen.
- Preloaded beam group SPB-X and SPB-Y got a deflection of 13.987 mm and 12.606 mm, deflection was more compared to control specimens. By this we can conclude, shear strengthening of beams with NSM technique does not reduce deflection, as loading increases deflection increases.
- As strengthened specimens are U wrapped in shear zone cracks were unseen while testing, flexure cracks were appeared. After testing, U wrap was

removed where shear cracks was found.

• There is no observed rupture of U wrap, but near to failure load or ultimate load debonding of laminate was happened.

REFERENCES

- 1. Khairi, M. H. A., Jaapar, A., & Yahya, Z. (2017). The application, benefits and challenges of retrofitting the existing buildings. IOP Conference Series, 271, 012030. doi: 100.1088/1757-899x/271/1/012030
- Sabau C, Popescu C, Sas G, Schmidt JW, Blanksvärd T, Täljsten Bjö, Strengthening of RC beams using bottom and side NSM reinforcement, Composites Part B (2018), doi: 10.1016/j.compositesb.2018.05.011
- Hamed, A. A. A., El-kashif, K. F. O., & Salem, H. M. (2018). Flexural strengthening of preloaded reinforced concrete continuous beams: An experimental investigation. Alexandria Engineering Journal. doi:10.1016/j.aej.2018.11.011
- 4. Oudah, F., & El-Hacha, R. (2012). A new ductility model of reinforced concrete beams strengthened using Fiber Reinforced Polymer reinforcement. Composites Part B: Engineering, 43(8), 3338–3347. DOI: 10.1016/j. compositesb.2012.01.071
- Bernardo, L. F. A., & Lopes, S. M. R. (2003). Flexural ductility of high strength concrete beams. Structural Concrete, 4(3), 135–154. doi:10.1680/ stco.2003.4.3.135
- 6. Yu-Fei Wu and Yang Wei. "General Stress-Strain Model for Steel- and FRPConfined Concrete", Journal of Composites for Construction, 19[4], 2014, 04014069, 14 pages.
- 7. FIB (2001). "Externally bonded FRP reinforcement for RC structures", Fib Bulletin-14, Task group 9.3-FRP reinforcement for concrete structures, International Federation for structural concrete.
- Sreenivasappa, N. M., Reddy, A. K., Reddy, H. N. J., & Prabhakara, R. (2021). Dynamic Response of RC Slab Under Drop Test Retrofitted with CFRP Strips Using NSM Technique. In Lecture notes in civil engineering. Springer, Singapore. https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-15-5195-6_5
- Reddy, A. K., Sreenivasappa, N. M., Prabhakara, R., & Reddy, H. N. J. (2021). Effect of Steel Ratio on Dynamic Response of HSC Two Way Slab Strengthened by Entrenched CFRP Strips Using Drop Test. In Lecture notes in civil engineering. Springer, Singapore. https:// doi.org/10.1007/978-981-15-5195-6_12

- Sreenivasappa, N. M., Reddy, A. K., & Prabhakara, R. (2016). Investigations on Effect of CFRP Strips Retrofitted using NSM Method on Two-Way NSC and HSC Slabs Subjected to Concentrated Load. International Journal of Research in Engineering and Technology. https://doi.org/10.15623/ ijret.2016.0526011
- Reddy, A. K., Sreenivasappa, N. M., & Prabhakara, R. (2016). Studies on Strength and Deformation Behaviour of Two-way NSC and HSC Slabs under Single Point Loading. International Journal of Research in Engineering and Technology. https://doi.org/10.15623/ ijret.2016.0526009
- Prabhakara, Ramappa & Muthu, K.U. & Meenakshi, R. (2006). Investigations on ultimate flexural strength and ductility behaviour of HSC beams. Indian Concrete Journal. 80. 40-50.
- Jeevan, N., Reddy, H.N.J. & Prabhakara, R. Flexural strengthening of RC beams with externally bonded (EB) techniques using prestressed and nonprestressed CFRP laminate. Asian J Civ Eng 19, 893–912 (2018). https://doi.org/10.1007/s42107-018-0071-y
- CNR-DT 200 R1/2013 (2013). "Guide for the Design and Construction of Externally Bonded FRP Systems for Strengthening Existing Structures", CNR– Advisory Committee on Technical Recommendations

for Construction, National Research Council, Rome.

- 15. CNR-DT 200/2004 (2004). "Guide for the design and construction of externally bonded FRP systems for strengthening existing structures", CNR Advisory committee of technical recommendations for construction, National Research Council, Rome.
- 16. ACI Committee 440.2 R-08 (2008). "Guide for the design and construction of externally bonded FRP systems for strengthening concrete structures", Reported by ACI Committee 440.
- 17. TR55 (2012). "Design Guidance for Strengthening Concrete Structures Using Fibre Reinforced Composite Materials", Network group for composites in construction, London.
- 18. STAR 234-DUC (2015) "Design procedure for the use of composites in strengthening of reinforced concrete structures", Technical report published by Springer.
- Marwan N. Youssef, Maria Q. Feng and Ayman S. Mosallam. "Stress-strain model for concrete confined by FRP composites", Composites: Part B, Vol 38[6], 2007, 614–628.
- Ehsan Ghorbi, Mosoud Soltani and Koichi Maekawa.
 "Development of a compressive constitutive model for FRP-confined concrete elements", Composites: Part B, 45[1], 2013, 504–517.

EXPERIMENTAL STUDIES ON JUTE FIBRE AND BANANA FIBRE USED AS FIXED AERATED BED FOR CANTEEN WASTEWATER TREATMENT

KAVANA S

Assistant Professor, Civil Engineering, Bangalore Institute of Technology- Bangalore

PALLAVI M B, SPOORTHI SHETTY C D, TEJAS GOWDA B R, VARUN D R

Students of Civil Engineering, Bangalore Institute of Technology-Bangalore

ABSTRACT

In order to effectively remove organic matter and nutrients from municipal wastewater, a variety of fixed beds with greater surface areas are used. Fibrous materials are frequently thought to be a superior option for improved microbial support and treatment effectiveness due to the higher specific surface area. The goal of the current study was to compare the effectiveness of two different fibrous materials Banana fibre and jute fibre with higher specific surface areas. They were employed as packing media in two separate sewage treatment bioreactors in batch mode and under related experimental circumstances. For various contact times, the reactors were constantly aerated. According to the study, these fibrous media may be suitable for the effective removal of nutrients and organics found in sewage.

KEYWORDS : Canteen wastewater, Jute fibre, Banana fibre.

1. INTRODUCTION

Life cannot exist without the necessity of water. It exists in a variety of forms, including oceans, rivers, lakes, and groundwater, and covers around 71% of the Earth's surface. All life, including people and other creatures and plants, depends on water. It is essential for a variety of internal processes, including maintaining body temperature, circulating nutrients and oxygen, and getting rid of waste. These issues are being addressed through conservation, instruction, and sustainable management techniques. For instance, desalination and water recycling technologies can contribute to a greater supply of freshwater. The economy, the environment, and human health are all protected by wastewater treatment. Lack of wastewater treatment can cause land, water, and air pollution. The removal of impurities and pollutants from the water throughout the wastewater treatment process ensures that it is safe for reuse or disposal. Several procedures are used to treat wastewater in order to clean the water of toxins and pollutants. These procedures, which can be physical, chemical, or biological, are made to get rid of various kinds of contaminants. One of the most popular and efficient techniques for treating wastewater is biological treatment. It entails employing microorganisms to break down organic materials and other

impurities in the wastewater, including bacteria, fungi, algae, and protozoa. domestic wastewater strength reduction with two alternative bed materials the form of treatment used jute and banana fibre as filter media. To create a fixed bed that serves as a significant surface area for the development of microorganisms that may degrade organic compounds, the approach includes suspending fibres in wastewater. The specific features of the wastewater and the treatment system's operational circumstances may have an impact on the process' efficacy. The biological action that occurs in wastewater causes the organic molecules to break down, reducing the strength of the waste water.

2. MATERIALS AND METHODOLOGY

Banana fibre and jute fibre were the two natural fibres employed in this investigation.

Banana Fibre:

The source of banana fibre, a natural fibre, is the banana plant's stem. The banana plant is cultivated for its fruit, but the stem and leaves are typically thrown away. by using the banana's stem to produce fibre. Extraction of banana fibre involves breaking the stem into tiny pieces, submerging it in water, then scraping the fibre off the stem. The fibre is spun into yarn or woven into cloth after drying and washing. The exceptional mechanical and chemical properties of banana fibre make it a strong contender to be used as a filter media. The fibre can store a lot of water and is durable and sturdy. Since banana fibres are also antimicrobial, they can be employed in water filtering systems. Before employing banana fibres as a filter media, it is critical to determine how well they remove pollutants from water. The effectiveness of the filter media may be assessed by testing the water before and after filtration to quantify the quantity of contaminants removed. The type of pollutants in the water and the size of the pores in the filter media are important factors to consider.



Jute Fibre:

Considering its natural and renewable qualities, jute fibre might be a viable option for filter media. When jute fibres lose their effectiveness, they may be simply replaced with new ones since they degrade into a harmless substance. Jute fibres are also capable of capturing and eliminating impurities from water and have strong mechanical qualities, such as high tensile strength. A range of contaminants, including pathogens, organic compounds, and heavy metals, may be removed from water using jute fibres because of their high adsorption capacity. Jute fibres are also an appealing alternative for use as a filter medium since they are inexpensive and readily accessible. Jute fiber's efficiency as a filter medium is influenced by several variables, including the size of the fibres and the pore size of the filter. While the pore size dictates the size of the pollutants that may be trapped and removed, the fibre size impacts the surface area available for adsorption. Jute fibre is a potentially efficient and environmentally friendly filter medium for water filtration. However, more investigation and testing are required to maximize its performance as a filter medium and identify the best jute fibre pore size and structure for various water pollutants.



A. SAMPLING

Grab samples were collected in plastic cans rinsed with distilled water. Sample was collected from canteen wastewater. Samples were analyzed for the following parameters i.e., BOD, COD, Chloride, Sulphate, pH, Turbidity.

B. EXPERIMENTAL SET UP

The reactors utilized in this investigation were constructed for batch operation and down flow mode out of plastic and had a cylindrical form. Two reactors were created, each measuring $21.5 \times 24 \times 27 \text{ cm}3$ and 5 mm thick. Banana and jute fibre were placed in two reactors. The dissolved oxygen level inside the reactor was kept constant using aerators. A mesh is positioned 5 cm up from the

reactor's bottom. Plans were developed to collect the effluent from the reactor's bottom through a tap.



C. START UP OF THE REACTOR

Cow dung is seeded into the reactor along with domestic wastewater. Cow dung to wastewater ratio is 1:1. The

fibre in the reactor is allowed to undergo acclimatization for a period of 7 days.

D. EXPERIMENT PROCEDURE

Banana and jute fibres are poured into the two reactors at a predetermined depth and packing density. The dissolved oxygen concentrations inside the reactors are kept constant by diffused aerators. The reactor was initially seeded with a 1:1 mixture of cow dung and wastewater. These reactors were then continually aerated for 7 days to allow the biomass in both reactors to mature and acclimatize. The initial properties of the wastewater used in the investigation are identified. Wastewater is supplied through the input pipe after the biomass development on the surface of fixed beds is complete. Up to a contact time of 72 hours, sampling is done every 24 hours. The effluent's final properties are established.

3. RESULTS AND DISCUSSION

In this present study banana fibre and jute fibre are the two natural fibres used. The packing density adopted was 141.6 kg/m3 and 147.9 kg/m3. Higher removal efficiency was found for the reactor filled with banana fibre with packing density 141.6 kg/m3 and 5 cm filter media depth in comparison with jute fibre reactor.

JUTE FIBRE REACTOR									
PARAMETERS	INITIAL DAY	DAY 1	DAY 2	DAY 3	DAY 4	DAY 5	DAY 6	DAY7	REMOVAL EFFICIENCY
BOD (%)	160	115	93	90	78	60	53	42.4	73.5
COD (%)	225	203	157	130	114	98	75	52.2	79.5
CHLORIDE (%)	285.6	230	201	182.7	158	121	112	100.2 4	64.9
SUSPENDED SOLIDS (%)	4	3.2	2.6	2	1.8	1.65	1.55	1.4	65
рН	8.41	8.35	8.3	8.4	8.37	8.33	7.813	7.45	Neutralizing to 7
SULPHATE (%)	60.93	55.78	50.937	45.70	35.31	24.125	20.562	17.06	72
TURBIDITY (%)	97.5	89.25	81.5	73.12	56.5	38.6	32.9	27.3	72

Table 1: Removal Efficiency of Jute Fibre reactor with Packing Density 147.9 kg/m³ and 5 cm filter media depth.

Chart 1: Removal Efficiency of Jute Fibre Reactor with Packing Density 147.9 kg/m3 and 5cm Filter Bed Thickness.



Table 2: Removal Efficiency of Banana Fibre reactor with Packing Density 141.6 kg/m3 and 5 cm filter media depth.

BANANA FIBRE REACTOR									
PARAMETERS	INITIAL	DAY 1	DAY 2	DAY 3	DAY 4	DAY 5	DAY 6	DAY7	REMOVAL EFFICIEN CY
BOD (%)	160	130	98	67.2	54	42.5	33.6	29.6	81.5
COD (%)	255	227	193	142.8	113.5	96	68.8	53.55	79
CHLORIDE (%)	285.6	235	186	151.36 8	133	105.9	74.5	62.83	78
SUSPENDED SOLIDS (%)	4	3.6	2.9	2.24	2.01	1.7	1.55	1.04	74
pН	8.41	8.39	8.25	8.2	7.9	7.6	7.5	7.5	Neutralizin g to7
SULPHATE (%)	60.93	58.5	55.2	53.32	44.5	32	22.3	12.18	80
TURBIDITY (%)	97.5	94.2	89.5	85.31	66	41.5	27	19.5	80

Chart 2: Removal Efficiency of banana fibre Reactor with Packing Density 141.6 kg/m3 and 5cm Filter Bed Thickness.



CONCLUSIONS

The results indicate that a reactor with a packing density of 141.6kg/m3 has a slightly higher removal efficiency of organic materials and nutrients when compared to a reactor with a packing density of 147.9kg/m3. The reactor with packing density 147.9 kg/m3 filters material more quickly than the reactor with packing density 141.6 kg/m3. The banana fibre reactor performs better when comparing the removal efficiencies of the two reactors. Significant reductions were made in BOD, COD, and nutrients. The maximum removal rates for BOD, COD, chloride, sulphate, suspended particles, and turbidity are 81.5%, 79%, 78%, 80%, 74%, and 80%, respectively.

When compared to jute fibre, banana fibre exhibits a better removal efficiency. This is so that contaminants may be absorbed more effectively and have a larger surface area for microbial development due to the higher surface area and porosity of banana fibres.

REFERENCES

- G. P. Roveroto, J. C. Teles, G. A. Vuitik, J. S. D. S. Batista, and A. C. Barana, 2021. "Craft brewery wastewater treatment: a fixedbed single-batch reactor with intermittent aeration to remove COD and TN," Brazilian Archives of Biology and Technology, vol. 64, pp. 1–14.
- T. Kavin and S. S. Janagan, 2019. "Studies on natural fibres as fixed aerated beds for domestic wastewater treatment," International Research Journal of Engineering and Technology, vol. 6, no. 6, pp. 3449– 3452.
- 3. M. Srikavya, P. Vydehi, and B. Laxmi, 2018. "Experimental studies on fibrous materials as aerated beds for domestic wastewater treatment," International

Research Journal of Engineering and Technology, vol. 5, no. 5, pp. 3539–354.

- 4. Ebrahimi and G. D. Najafpour, 2016. "Iranica journal of energy & environment biological treatment processes: suspended growth vs. attached growth," Iranica Journal of Energy and Environment, vol. 7, no. 2, pp. 114–123.
- 5. Manoj Prabhakar, Sudipto Sarkar, Laxmi Narayan Sethi, Avinash Kunmar, 2015. Ammonia Removal from Aquaculture Wastewater Using Coconut Coir Media in Lab Scale Batch Reactors, Journal of Energy Research and Environmental Technology (JERET), Volume 2 No 1.
- Bharati Sunil Shete, D R Narendra P Shinkar, 2015. Coconut Coir: Media to Treat the Wastewater, IJPRET, Volume 3
- 7. M. L. Gulhane and Yadav, 2014. "Performance of the modified multi-media filter for Municipal wastewater treatment," in Proceedings of the 3rd IRF International Conference, Chennai, India.
- M. A. Oturan and J. J. Aaron, 2014. "Advanced oxidation processes in water/wastewater treatment: principles and applications. A review," Critical Reviews in Environmental Science and Technology, vol. 44, no. 23, pp. 2577–2641.
- 9. A. R. Vinod and R. M. Mahalingegowda, 2012. "Studies on natural fibrous materials as submerged aerated beds for wastewater treatment," Elixir Pollut, vol. 51, no. 1, pp. 10759–10762.
- A Elawwad, H. Abdel-Halim, and H. Koeser, 2012. "start-up of aerated submerged fixed-bed biofilm reactors for steady state nitrification," International Journal of Environmental Pollution and Remediation, vol. 1, no. 1, pp. 20–30.
- 11. K. M. Sherman, 2006. "Introducing a new media for fixed-film treatment in decentralized wastewater systems," Proceedings of the Water Environment Federation, vol. 2006, no. 8, pp. 4616–4624.

COMPARATIVE ANALYSIS OF OUTRIGGERS FOR RC BUILDING UNDER THE EFFECT OF WIND LOADS USING ETABS

DR VATHSALA

Associate professor Civil Engineering Dept., Bangalore Institute of Technology, Bengaluru

SHUCHITHA

PG Student, Structural Engineering – Civil Engineering Dept., Bangalore Institute of Technology, Bengaluru

HARSHITHA

UG Student, Civil Engineering Dept., Bangalore Institute of Technology, Bengaluru

ABSTRACT

Over the past few decades, the number of tall structures has increased due to rapid growth in population, land scarcity, advancements in building materials & construction technology and structural systems. As a building's height rises, stability becomes an important factor. Tall structures are vulnerable to lateral loads such as earthquakes and wind loads and they must withstand these along with the gravity loads. In the design of tall structures, structural lateral systems such as shear frames, moment frames, braced frames, framed tube, super frames, and many others play an important role in increasing the stability of the structure. In recent times, Outrigger systems are gaining a lot of importance as lateral resisting systems as it increases the stability and strength of the structure. This miniproject is mainly consisting of a comparative study of the overall behavior of Virtual Outrigger and Conventional Outrigger systems for a tall building under the effect of wind loads using ETABS19 software.

KEYWORDS : Tall building, Conventional outrigger, Virtual Outrigger, Base shear.

1. INTRODUCTION

Tall buildings have fascinated mankind since the beginning of civilization. In today's modern era, cities are growing faster and availability of land is decreasing. Multistory structures are the most popular and effective way to handle these issues. The development of highstrength concrete, higher-grade steel and some new building methods has led to the development of new generation of tall structures.

Loading differs from tall buildings to low-rise buildings.

Tall buildings are sensitive to lateral forces – wind and seismic forces along with the gravity loads. Tall building should have adequate strength & stiffness to withstand lateral loads. It is necessary to design the structure optimally for lateral forces, moments, story drift and deflection.

Over a period, structural engineers have developed various types of lateral resisting systems. One such is Bracing system; major drawback is, it becomes expensive as buildings exceed 30 floors. Therefore, in

order to overcome this problem, Outrigger system was introduced. Outriggers are lateral resisting systems, that can effectively minimize the lateral loads and strengthen the tall buildings. Here, the external and internal structures couple as whole to resist the lateral loads. Based on connectivity outriggers are classified as – Conventional Outrigger and Virtual Outrigger. In Conventional Outrigger system, the outriggers are directly connected from core to the columns located at the periphery of the structure. In Virtual Outrigger system, there is no direct connection between the core and the peripheral column. Using Outriggers reduced upto 50% displacement in both X & Y directions[4].

According to the studies, the belt truss & outrigger system are the most accepted method for withstanding the lateral loads as it increases the stability of the structure compared to traditional methods[2]. Virtual Outrigger system were compared with other lateral resisting systems and it was found to be a solution to the needs of structural stability, commercial utility, and economic viability of a building[3]. Virtual outrigger provided the best performance, increases the stiffness to structure and is the most effective systems against lateral loading than Conventional outrigger[4]. Using steel outrigger, overall performance increased effectively compared to concrete outrigger[5].

Based upon the literature survey, the Outrigger systems are gaining importance in tall building construction. Several research works have been carried out by various researchers around the world on different types of outriggers. Though according to finite element analysis, the Virtual Outrigger system is more effective than others, it lacks sufficient research. Tall buildings are sensitive to wind; hence the assessment of wind force and its effect should be considered while designing tall buildings. Since very few researches have been conducted on dynamic wind analysis of outrigger systems, this project mainly focuses on comparing the performance of Virtual and Conventional Outriggers under the effect of wind loads using ETABS19 software.

MODELLING AND ANALYSIS

Modelling

Tall building of 40 story having 28m x 28m plan dimension with each story height of 3.5m with core shear wall is considered. A typical design is having seven bays in X heading with equivalent spacing of 4m and seven bays in Y hearing with equivalent spacing of 4m (Referring to Table 1). Determining the behaviour of RC building by providing different types of Outrigger systems i.e, Conventional Outrigger as shown in Figure 1 & Virtual Outrigger as shown in Figure 2, using ETABS software.

Building Details					
Plan	28m x 28m				
Floor to floor height	3.5m				
Number of storeys	40				
Total height of the building	140m				
Materia	als used				
Compressive strength of Concrete (f_{ck})	40 N/mm ²				
Tensile strength of steel (f_y)	550 N/mm ² (Longitudinal bars)				
Tensile strength of seer (I_y)	415 N/mm ² (Confinement bars)				
Section	ns used				
Beams	300mm x 600 mm				
	550mm x 800mm				
Columns	500mm x 700mm				
	400mm x 600mm				
Slabs	150mm thick				
Core wall	250mm thick				
Bracing	V bracing – ISWB 600				

Table 1: Properties used for modelling RC building inETABS

3. ANALYSIS

For the proposed building, different types of loads have been considered as per IS codes and Dynamic wind analysis have been conducted using the data mentioned in Table 2,3 & 4.

Table 2: Details of loads

Self-weight	Calculated by ETABS
Floor finish	1 kN/m ²
Live load	3 kN/m ²

Table 3: Details of Static Wind Analysis

Wind speed, V_{b} (m/s)	47 m/s
Terrain category	4
Risk Co-efficient (K ₁)	1
Topography factor (K_3)	1

Importance factor (K_4)	1	Terrain category of the build
X direction	Windward Co-efficient, C _p	Interference Factor for Zone
	= 0.8	Equivalent aerodynamic ro
	Leeward Co-efficient, $C_p =$	factor, Z _{0.4}
	0.25	Risk Co-efficient (K ₁)
Y direction	Windward Co-efficient, C _p	Topography factor (K ₃)
	= 0.8	Importance factor (K_4)
	Leeward Co-efficient, $C_p = 0.8$	Hourly mean wind speed fact
	0.0	Design hourly mean wind sp

Table 4: Details of Dynamic Wind Analysis

Basic wind speed, V _b	47 m/s
Lateral dimension	a = 28 m
	b = 28 m
Height of the building from mean ground level (z,h)	140 m

Terrain category of the building	Terrain category 4
Interference Factor for Zone 2	1.25
Equivalent aerodynamic roughness	2
factor, Z _{0.4}	
Risk Co-efficient (K ₁)	1
Topography factor (K_3)	1
Importance factor (K ₄)	1
Hourly mean wind speed factor $(K_{2,i})$	0.63
Design hourly mean wind speed, $V_{z,d}$	29.84 m/s
$: V_{b} X K_{1} X K_{2} I X K_{3} X K_{4}$	
Wind directionality factor, (K_d)	0.9
Area averaging factor (K_a)	0.8
Combination factor (K _c)	0.9
Wind pressure, p _z	0.6 V _z ²
Design wind pressure, p _d	$p_z K_d K_a K_c$



Fig.1 Typical floor plan, elevation & 3D view of Conventional Outrigger



Fig 2. Typical floor plan, elevation & 3D view of Virtual Outrigger

4. RESULTS AND DISCUSSION

After conducting dynamic wind analysis for RC building using ETABS 19 software, following results were obtained and are compared based upon base shear, maximum story displacement and maximum story drift.

A. BASE SHEAR

MODEL TYPES	BASE SHEAR X - DIRECTION (KN)	BASE SHEAR Y- DIRECTION (KN)
Conventional Outrigger	6145	6095
Virtual Outrigger	5395	5445



Graph 1. Base shear in X- direction (kN)





As observed from the above result graphs 1 & 2, Conventional outrigger shows the maximum value compared to Virtual outrigger systems in both X and Y direction. Implementation of Virtual outrigger system, reduced base shear by 12 % in X-directionand 10.5% in Y direction.

B. MAXIMUM STORY DISPLACEMENT



Graph 3. Displacement due to wind gust in X-direction



Graph 4. Displacement due to wind gust in Y-direction

From the graphs 3 & 4, Conventional outrigger system has higher lateral displacement compare to Virtual outrigger system. This may lead to increase of shear reinforcement in columns. Virtual outrigger system was efficient in reducing the story displacement about 10% in both X & Y direction.

C. MAXIMUM STORY DRIFT

Virtual outrigger system shows less story drift compare to Conventional outrigger system as shown in graph 5 & 6. There is slight difference between values in X and Y direction. Virtual outrigger system was efficient in reducing the story drift by 15% in both X & Y direction.



Graph 5. Drift due to wind gust in X-direction



Graph 6. Drift due to wind gust in Y-direction

5. CONCLUSION

The present study is about the overall behaviour of outrigger system for regular RC building under the Dynamic wind analysis using ETABS19 software. The results obtained from the analysis of Conventional Outrigger and Virtual Outrigger were compared based upon maximum base shear, story drift and story deflection in both X and Y direction and following conclusions were made.

- 1. In case of base shear, Virtual outrigger reduced base shear about 12% in X-direction and 10.5% in Y direction.
- 2. Virtual Outrigger was effective in reducing the displacement by 10%. While analysing displacement result both the outrigger systems were under limited values as per IS code provisions.
- 3. Virtual outrigger was not only capable of controlling the story displacement but also reduced the drift by 15% both in X & Y direction.

From all the above points, though there wasn't a huge difference between two outrigger systems, yet implementation of Virtual outrigger system would be advantageous over Conventional outrigger, as it helps to overcome all the constraints. Thus, introduction of Virtual outrigger is no doubt a very efficient and reliable outrigger system.

6. REFERENCES

- John Wiley & Sons- "Tall building structures : Analysis & Design", A Wiley Interscience Publication, 1991.37
- Urjal Das, Ankit Pal, Arvind "Comparative study of outrigger and belt truss structural system for steel and concrete material", 2020 (International Journal of Advanced Engineering Research and Science).
- Prof. N. G. Gore, Miss Purva Mhatre "Outrigger Structural System – A Review and Comparison of the Structural System", 2018 (International Journal of Engineering Trends and Technology).
- Iqra Bano Ayaz Ahmad Khan , Prof. N. G. Gore "Effect of Outrigger Structural System on Highrise Structures, Subjected to Lateral Loads", 2018(IOSR Journal of Mechanical and Civil Engineering). 24-26, 31-32.
- Prajyot A. Kakde, Ravindra Desai–"Comparative study of outrigger and belt truss structural system for steel and concrete material", 2017(International Research Journal of Engineering and Technology). 142-147.
- 6. IS: 456: 2000 Code of practice for plain and reinforced concrete. Bureau of Indian Standards, India.
- 7. IS: 875 (Part 1): 1987 Code of practice for design loads (other than earthquake) for building and structures, dead loads – unit weight of building materials and stored materials. Bureau of Indian Standards, India.
- 8. IS: 875 (Part 2): 1987 Code of practice for design loads (other than earthquake) for building and structures, Imposed loads. Bureau of Indian Standards, India.
- IS: 875 (Part 3): 2015 Design loads (other than earthquake) for building and structures - Code of practice, Wind load. Bureau of Indian Standards, India.
- 10. IS: 875 (Part 5): 2015 Special loads and load combinations. Bureau of Indian Standards, India.
- 11. IS 16700: 2017- Criteria for structural safety of tall concrete buildings. Bureau of Indian Standards, India.

UTILIZATION OF FIBERS IN ASPHALT CONCRETE – A REVIEW

ASHWINI H D

Assistant professor Civil Engineering Dept. Bangalore Institute of Technology, Bengaluru

KASTHURI M, GAGAN M

UG Student, Civil Engineering Dept. Bangalore Institute of Technology, Bengaluru

ABSTRACT

Asphalt concrete is a complex material consisting of aggregate, asphalt, filler, and voids. It has been conventionally used for flexible pavement construction in the world because of its satisfactory performance. But pavement defects such as rutting, cracking, and potholes due to moisture had plagued the designers and researchers all the way. To upgrade pavement service quality, many modifiers were included in asphalt concrete. In the group of modifiers, the fiber-reinforced method has got more advantages. Types fibers used in asphalt concrete are steel fibers, polypropylene fibers, coir fibers, carbon fiber, etc., overall, this review paper can provide references and insights for researchers and engineers on the effects of fiber in asphalt concrete.

KEYWORDS : Asphalt concrete, Fibers, Performance

1. INTRODUCTION

A pavement structure can be constructed either as a flexible and rigid pavement according to structural behavior, but flexible pavement is generally preferred in India as it has more advantages over rigid pavement and economy. These pavements are layered structures with the following elements such as soil subgrade, base course, and surface course. Three main factors affecting asphalt concrete mixtures durability are water damage, thermal cracking, and aging. Due to increase in vehicles on the road and variation in climatic condition can cause damage to the pavement. There are other reasons too, like quality of the materials during construction and maintenance used. In some places, the temperature can change a lot and this also causes problems for the road. Over time, the road can get damaged and this causes serious problems like cracks and damage from moisture. Asphalt roads can work better if they add special ingredients to the mixture, like plastic and tiny threads. This makes the pavement structure stronger and more durable. This paper talks about adding different fibers to asphalt to enhance the performance. Moreover, talking about how using fiber-reinforced asphalt can make roads stronger and last longer by preventing them from getting damaged easily.

1.1 Essentialness of Bitumen Reinforcement

Bituminous concrete (BC) is a combination of bitumen and aggregates and is a susceptible material compared with to other materials utilized in civil engineering. The presence of moisture underneath the pavement causes the subgrade soil to become soft and reduces the strength of the base materials, leading to the deterioration of the pavement's structural integrity. Additionally, the amount of traffic contributes to wear and tear on the road, it attributing daily wear and tear to factors such as tire marks and cracks in the pavement. Hence, researchers and experts are continually attempting to enhance the performance of asphalt roads. Improvement of the pavement performance can be achieved by refining the asphalt binder through various techniques.

1.2 The History of Fibers in bituminous Pavement

Hongou and Philips believed that the idea of using fibers to improve the behavior of materials is an old suggestion. People have been using fibers for a longer period to build structures like the arches which are located in China and are 4000 years old, which was made with a mix of fibers and clay. The Great Wall, which was built 2000 years ago, also used fibers. [1]

1.3 Mechanical impact of fibers in asphalt mixtures

The European Asphalt Pavement Association reports that Europe and the US manufactured 265.4 and 319 million tons of bituminous mixtures with fibers, respectively, in 2014 [2]. The statement mentioned in report has sparked a desire to enhance the effectiveness of bituminous mixtures, specifically in terms of their mechanical attributes and practicality when used on roads. The reinforcement of composite materials like asphalt mixtures is being looked into by incorporating fibers. With regard to blending techniques, established methods exist for creating asphalt mixtures using traditional bitumen. Despite the incorporation of new materials such as fibers, there is a shortage of guidelines on the appropriate procedures for producing asphalt mixtures using fibers [3]. There are two commonly recognized procedures. The initial approach is labeled as the wet process. Firstly, the fibers are combined with the binder ahead of the addition of aggregates and fillers utilizing this technique. The dry approach, also referred to as the second method, involves blending fibers and aggregates prior to the addition of bitumen to the mixture [4]. Typically, the dry method is preferred due to its ability to effectively disperse fibers and minimize the variability observed in experimental evaluations of asphalt mixtures [5, 6] During the production process of asphalt plants, a variety of additives, such as fibers, are often incorporated using specialized mechanisms. To prevent the clustering of fiber bundles in the mixture, certain plants may decide to extend the mixing time and keep the fibers dry. Moreover, in case the prescribed measures are not followed by asphalt plants, fibers can be added to the mixture manually as an alternative method [7].

In a recent study, the impact of fiber-altered asphalt containing rock wool, asbestos, cellulose, and glass wool fibers was investigated by Serfass and Samanos [8]. Several tests were administered, such as fatigue resistance, rutting resistance, low-temperature direct tension, and resilient modulus. In the city of Nantes, France, a series of experiments were conducted on a testing course. The initial findings demonstrated that mixtures altered with fiber had the greatest percentage of gaps, despite a 13 metricton axle load of 1.1 million times, outperforming unaltered asphalt and two other mixtures modified with elastomers. The authors concluded that the tested porous mixtures exhibit improved drainage, which ultimately results in reduced susceptibility to moisture-related damage. Another research utilized a fracture mechanics methodology to investigate how fiber reinforcement influenced crack resistance. Thus, according to the work of Jenq et al. Polyester and Polypropylene fibers were applied to enhance mixtures and subsequently assessed for elasticity, energy to fracture, and resistance to tension. The toughness of modified samples improved by 50-100% due to the increased fracture energy caused by the fibers, but there was no significant impact on elasticity and tensile strength results [9].

2. TYPES OF FIBERS IN ASPHALT CONCRETE

Coir Fibre: Coir fiber, derived from the tough outer husks of coconuts, is utilized in a variety of items including doormats, floor mats, mattresses, and brushes. Due to their affordability, eco-friendliness, and lightweight nature, the use of natural fibers is an advantageous alternative to synthetic fibers. Currently, coir fiber is gaining increased recognition as a natural fiber because of its accessibility, exceptional resistance to wear and tear, and superior durability. Coir is available in two different types, namely brown and white. The ideal material to be used in our experiment should meet certain standards, such as being made from mature coconuts and having a high level of strength and resistance to abrasion. Brown coir fits these requirements and is therefore the preferred option. coir fibers requirements for asphalt concrete is list listed in the Table 1.

Table 1	Properties	of coir	fiber	[10]
---------	------------	---------	-------	------

Property	Value
Diameter (mm)	0.1-0.4

Density (g/cm ³)	0.67-10.0
Natural moisture content (%)	11.44-15.85
Water absorption (%)	85-135
Tensile strength (MPa)	108.26-251.90
Modulus of elasticity (GPa)	2.5-4.5
Strain at failure (%)	13.7-41.0



Fig 1. Coir fiber

The incorporation of coir fibers into bituminous mixtures results in benefits, including an improvement in stability and air void content, as well as a reduction in flow value as shown in Fig. 2. The capability of bituminous concrete to enhance the resilience of flexible road pavement against damages caused by traffic loads arises from the diversity in stability and flow values [8]. The study concludes that the introduction of coir enhances the stability and voids but diminishes the flow value. Excellent stability and volumetric characteristics can be attained by using fibers that are 15mm long, with a fiber concentration of 0.52 percent and a binder concentration of 5.72 percent. The presence of coir fiber has been noticed to enhance the compressibility of the mixture. By adding this ingredient, the combination becomes stronger and able to withstand the pressure caused by wheels in motion.





Fig 2. Comparison of BC and CFRBC properties [11]

Polypropylene Fiber: Polypropylene is the synthetic polymer that has the lowest density. Polypropylene has the highest fiber count per unit weight. This material boasts 52% less weight than polyester and a 26% weight reduction compared to nylon and acrylic. Polypropylene fibers are an excellent choice for reinforcement, for this reason. Furthermore, polypropylene fibers exhibit exceptional durability towards alkali and chemicals as well as chloride, and they possess a low level of thermal conductivity. Concrete is commonly strengthened with the usage of Polypropylene fibers. The concrete gains structural reinforcement from the polypropylene fibers in a three-dimensional manner. As a result, concrete gains enhanced strength and prolonged existence [12,13]. In the US, the utilization of polypropylene fibers as a modifier within asphalt concrete was also witnessed. The Ohio State Department of Transportation (ODOT) has released a guideline for incorporating polypropylene fibers into top-quality asphalt concrete [14]. The properties of polypropylene fiber are given in the Table 2.

 Table 2: Properties of Polypropylene Fiber as specified by

 the Ohio Department of Transportation [14]

Characteristic	Value	Standard
Denier, grams per denier	4±1	ASTM D-1577
Length, mm	10±2	

Tensile strength (minimum), MPa	276	ASTM D-638
Specific gravity, kg/m ³	910±4	ASTM D-792
Melting temperature, °C	160	



Fig 3. Polypropylene Fiber

The ideal bitumen content was 5.5%, according to S. Tapkn et al. Since it is anticipated that the OBC for specimens with polypropylene fibers would be lower when the fatigue life of the specimen is expected to be longer, the production cost is decreased. It was established by the author's experiments and related research [15,16] that the ideal bitumen content could be lowered to 4%. According to this, bitumen is being saved by about 27%. The amount of polypropylene used in various experiments ranged from 0.3% to 1%, and depending on the volume of traffic, this ratio can be further adjusted to achieve the desired performance level. When this fiber is compared to natural filler bitumen it shows elastoplastic and adhesive behaviors.[15]. Tapkin S concluded that added 1% of polypropylene fibers increases the life of fatigue by 27%.





Figure 4: Effect of polypropylene fibers on Marshall test properties

Steel fibers: Steel fibers are the most common in the building sector. The wire was split or cut into the necessary lengths. The primary fibers had rounded, incredibly smooth forms.[16]. Modern steel fibers are currently produced from drawn steel wire, cut sheet steel, or the melt extraction process, which produces fibers with a crescent-shaped section and are now utilized commercially [17]. Steel fibers are divided into two categories, regular carbon steel fiber, and stainless-steel fiber, depending on the material quality; normal carbon steel fiber makes up the majority. Steel fiber is categorized into five different shapes including long straight, corrugated, hook-shaped (shown in figure 3), head-shaped, and twisted styles. Steel fiber is categorized into cutting style, shearing style, milling style, and melt extraction based on the configuration of the section.

Table 3:	Properties	of steel	fiber	[18]
----------	------------	----------	-------	------

Length (mm)	Max. diameter (mm)	Slenderness ratio	Specific gravity	Modulus of elasticity (GPa)	Tensile strength (MPa)
60±%5	0.75±%5	80	7.8	200	2000





Mohamed Fahmy et al, got results of steel fibers increased Marshall stability by about 87.52% at 1% steel fiber content which is considered the best performance stability among modified mixtures with steel fibers is shown Fig. 5. The addition of steel fibers decreased the Marshall flow compared to the control mixture by reason of clustering except at 1% steel fiber content which provided a flow value as same as the control mixture. This flow value that reached (3.4mm) was matched with the required specifications ranges and indicated the high flexibility of Hot Mix Asphalt (HMA) pavement to deform without cracking, and they have achieved the maximum value at 1% steel fiber content by raising the ratio by about 54.2 % in comparison to control mixtures, indicating that the inclusion of steel fibers had a significant impact on improving the indirect tensile strength.





Fig 6. Effect of Steel Fibers on Marshall Properties [16]

Steel fibers were used in varied amounts (2 %t, 2.5 %, 3 %, 4 %, and 5 %) with 11 mm and 18 mm lengths, as illustrated by Aniruddh and Parveen Berwal (2016) [19]. The results indicated that bituminous concrete's durability significantly improved with 3.5 % steel fiber content with 11mm length. An improvement in the low temperature and fatigue performance of the asphalt mixture was reported. Through single steel fiber pullout tests, According to Park et al. (2017), [20] results show that steel fiber can enhance the toughness and tensile strength of bituminous concrete.

Carbon fiber: Carbon fibers has more benefit than other fiber types for the refinement of asphalt binder. Because the fibers are consist of carbon and asphalt

is a hydrocarbon, they are considered to be basically compatible. Due to the high mixing temperature (over 1000 o C) used in the production of carbon fibers, fiber melting is not significant problem. The tensile strength and other properties of the AC mixture, such as resistance to thermal cracking, should increase due to the high strength of the carbon fiber. When carbon fiber is added to a mixture, the stiffening effect that has been demonstrated by the addition of other fibers should also take place, extending the fatigue life of pavements. Since carbon fibers are the most compatible and effective fiber type for the modification of asphalt binder, it was hypothesized that they would be the best choice. Either polyacrylonitrile (PAN) or pitch precursors are used to create the carbon fibers.[21]

Carbon fiber leads to uniform outcomes and noticed that adding fiber does bear on the attributes of asphalt mixtures, especially a growth in its stability and the reductions in the sail worth along with an enhancement in voids in the mixture. The outcomes indicated that fibers have the potential to abstain structural trouble in the pavement, in the event of developing traffic loads, and therefore enhance exhaustion by expanding opposition to cracks or enduring deformation. Therefore, it comes to the conclusion that the results of adding carbon fiber to the asphalt combination will improve several of the mechanical aspects of the mixture like exhaustion and deformation in the bendy pavement [22]. Typical properties of carbon fibers are listed in Table 4.

Typical Properties	Unit	Value
Carbon fiber content	%	>98
Fiber diameter	μΜ	7
Fiber unit weight	Kg/m ³	1700
Fiber length	Mm	12
Metal contamination	-	<0.1g/1000g
Tensile strength	MPa	4150
Tensile modulus	GPa	230

 Table 4. Typical properties of chopped carbon fibers [23]

The addition of fiber in bituminous mixtures increases stability and voids and decreases the flow value observed by Faten I Mussa et al, [23] as such, it can be said that carbon fiber has the capability to improve structural resistance to distress be present in road pavement due to traffic loads. Comparison to the control mixture, the fiber content of 1.5% by weight of the total mix resulted in the extreme performance with regard to stability; although, certain mechanical attributes of the combine mix could be compromised when the fiber content exceeds the 1.5% level as shown in fig. 6. Therefore, which affects the performance of carbon fiber-modified bituminous mixture due to length of the fiber and it must be ensured that individual fibers keep their linear configuration intact after the mixing process. To achieve these improvements, care must be taken to ensure that the fibers are evenly distributed throughout the mix.



Fig 7: Carbon fibers



Fig 8. Marshall stability and flow values with carbon fibers (CF) [23]

3. CONCLUSION

This paper investigated the advantages of using randominclusion fibers in flexible pavements as fiber reinforced bituminous-concrete (FRBC) materials.

- Utilization of fiber has strongly improved the performance of asphalt mixture such as rutting and fatigue cracking as per discussed in respective fiber type in this paper.
- Irrespective of types, the addition of fibers to the asphalt is promising option for enhancement of stability by reducing the flow value of the mix. Also the fiber asphalt mix provides an improvement in fatigue life of the pavement and potential to improves the structural resistance distress occurring in flexible pavement due to traffic and climatic.

- Many factors will govern the mechanical property of the fiber reinforced asphalt concrete among that fiber length is very important one.
- Natural fibers are environmentally friendly and economically viable because the natural fibers do not require manufacturing process and it can substitute for synthetic fibers.

As future research, the study of method for dispersing the fiber in bituminous mix should be done carefully to obtain a homogenous distribution within mix because different fiber has its respective properties and the mixing process depends on its properties. Also the study on combination of the different fibers in asphalt concrete need to studied properly.

REFERENCE

- 1. Hongu, T., & Philips, G. (1990). New Fibers ellis hor wood series in polymer science and technology. Fibers and Polymers, 3, 1-7.
- 2. E.A.P. Association, European-Asphalt Pavement Association.www.EAPA.org/userfiles/2/ Asphalinfigures/2014/AIF_2014_v10.pdf, 2015
- 3. Tang, Y., & Haddock, J. E. (2006). Investigation of the performance of neat and modified asphalt binders. Joint Transportation Research Program, 258.
- Abtahi, S. M., Sheikhzadeh, M., & Hejazi, S. M. (2010). Fiber-reinforced asphalt-concrete-a review. Construction and Building Materials, 24(6), 871-877.
- 5. Echols, J. B. (1989). New mix method for fiberreinforced asphalt. Public Works, 119(8).
- 6. Hejazi, S. M. (2007). Mechanical reinforcement of hot mix asphalt using textile materials. Iran: Department of Textile Engineering, Isfahan University of Technology.
- Klinsky, L. M. G., Kaloush, K. E., Faria, V. C., & Bardini, V. S. S. (2018). Performance characteristics of fiber modified hot mix asphalt. Construction and Building Materials, 176, 747-752.
- 8. Serfass, J. P., & Samanos, J. (1996). Fiber-modified asphalt concrete characteristics, applications and behavior. Asphalt Paving Technology, 65, 193-230.
- Jenq, Y. S., Liaw, C. J., & Lieu, P. (1993). Analysis of crack resistance of asphalt concrete overlays--a fracture mechanics approach. Transportation Research Record, (1388)
- 10. Subramani, T. (2012). Experimental Investigations on Coir fibre reinforced bituminous mixes. Strain, 2, 4-5.
- 11. Studies on Coir Fibre Reinforced Bituminous Concrete K. Thulasirajan Student, Department of Civil Engineering,Pondicherry Engg College, Puducherry

- 605007,Email:kthulasirajan@gmail.com V. L. Narasimha Professor, Department of Civil Engineering, Pondicherry Engg College, Puducherry - 605014, Email:vln@pec.edu

- 12. Singh, S., Shukla, A., & Brown, R. (2004). Pullout behavior of polypropylene fibers from cementitious matrix. Cement and concrete research, 34(10), 1919-1925.
- 13. ITEM 400HS. Standard specification for asphalt concrete-high stress using polypropylene fibers. Ohio Department of Transportation, Construction and Materials Specifications; 1998.
- 14. Tapkin, S. (2008). The effect of polypropylene fibers on asphalt performance. Building and environment, 43(6), 1065-1071.
- 15. Kim, K. W., Doh, Y. S., & Lim, S. (1999). Mode I reflection cracking resistance of strengthened asphalt concretes. Construction and Building Materials, 13(5), 243-251.
- Abousaba, M. F., Elhamrawy, S., & Abu El-Maaty, A. (2023). The Effect of Using Steel Fibers on the Performance of Asphalt Mixtures. ERJ. Engineering Research Journal, 46(1), 55-64.
- 17. Guo, J. F. (2014). The Effect of Steel Fiber on the Road Performence of Asphalt Concrete. In Applied mechanics and materials (Vol. 584, pp. 1342-1345). Trans Tech Publications Ltd.
- Kalwane, U. B., Ghugal, Y. M., & Dahake, A. G. (2016). Toughness of polymer modified steel fiber reinforced concrete. Open Journal of Civil Engineering, 6(1), 8-18.
- Abousaba, M. F., Elhamrawy, S., & Abu El-Maaty, A. (2023). The Effect of Using Steel Fibers on the Performance of Asphalt Mixtures. ERJ. Engineering Research Journal, 46(1), 55-64.
- Park, P., El-Tawil, S., & Naaman, A. E. (2017). Pullout behavior of straight steel fibers from asphalt binder. Construction and Building Materials, 144, 125-137.
- 21. Chung, D. (2012). Carbon fiber composites. Elsevier.
- 22. Jahromi, S. G., & Khodaii, A. (2008). CARBON FIBER REINFORCED ASPHALT CONCRETE. Arabian Journal for Science & Engineering (Springer Science & Business Media BV), 33.
- 23. Mussa, F. I., Al-Dahawi, A. M., Banyhussan, Q. S., Baanoon, M. R., & Shalash, M. A. (2020, February). Carbon Fiber-Reinforced Asphalt Concrete: An Investigation of Some Electrical and Mechanical Properties. In IOP Conference Series: Materials Science and Engineering (Vol. 737, No. 1, p. 012122). IOP Publishing.

COMPARATIVE STUDY OF BEHAVIOUR OF U-BOOT SLAB AND CONVENTIONAL SLAB

SHAM, VEDA, THRISHAL S K

P. G. Student, Bangalore Institute of Technology, Bangalore, Karnataka

THANUJA H P

Assistant Professor, Civil Engineering Department, Bangalore Institute of Technology, Karnataka

ABSTRACT

In this modern age of different type of structure are been observed which are more efficiency that the structures been made in past. In our project we have been specifically focused on design and constructions of slab in R.R.C buildings and bridges eliminating the traditional method of slab construction by using hallow blocks and making a voided slab which has many advantages over the regular span and is more efficient too. The purpose of the study is to analyse the voided slab by using U-boot slab and preparing report mentioning how efficient the voided slab can over and regular slab. Structure calculation and their outcomes are calculated in this paper comparing the traditional and u boot technology system

KEYWORDS : U boot technology, Workability, Compression strength, split tensile strength, crack pattern and width.

INTRODUCTION

The need for huge space structures has grown recently. The slabs in such buildings must be constructed with a somewhat large thickness to achieve the deflection criteria. The building, as well as the slabs, adds to this weight. Due to the requirement for massive supports (columns and footing), more building materials are used, which increases its cost of construction. A type of reinforced concrete slab called a "voided slab," also known as a "biaxial slab," uses air-filled gaps to reduce the amount of concrete required. The slab is one of the largest parts that consumes concrete and is a crucial structural component in the construction of a building. The void forms in the voided slab have shapes like spherical, donut, and cuboid. These voids make construction more affordable and less harmful to the environment. Voided slabs mainly deal with the concept of reducing concrete in the tension zone. This system which is having lighter slab than conventional solid slab is one of its main advantages. Voided slab can be created by using polypropylene which is a thermoplastic polymer. Polypropylene (PP) is also known as polypropene, is a thermoplastic polymer used in wide variety of applications. polypropylene belongs to a group of polyolefins and is partially crystalline and non-polar.

Bubble deck slab

A novel technology known as the bubble deck system was developed by Jorgan Breuning in Denmark in the middle of the 1990s to guarantee the elimination of unwanted weight by greater than 30% and to permit larger spans between supports. The formation of the Bubble Deck is a newly invented method that directly connects steel and air to produce a cell structure that behaves like a solid slab. For the first time, a bubble
deck has the same strength as a solid slab but is much lighter because extra concrete has been removed. With this approach, an organic cell structure that behaves like a solid slab is created by locking an ellipsoid between the top and bottom reinforcement meshes. Bubbles are made of recycled plastic which act as void formers allows good space between columns. The construction literally creates itself because of geometry of two wellknown components, reinforcement, and hollow plastic balls, when the top and bottom reinforcement are linked in the usual way, a geometrical and statically bubble deck unit is evolved

LITERATURE REVIEW

Hussain A et.al (2021) [1] The main objective of this research was to experimentally compare bubble slabs with solid slabs when subjected to a finite number of repetitive four-point stresses. Six slab strips were produced in the same manner, apart from the crosssection type. Three were solid, while the other three were rendered invalid by the insertion of 70 mmdiameter balls. The ratio of the shear span to the effective depth (a/d) was also investigated. One slab of each type was therefore tested, with the a/d being either 2, 3.5, or 5. The applied loads were carried out ten times at a load of 25 kN, which is approximately 70% of the ultimate load as determined by the ACI-19 code. Thereafter, the applied loads continued gradually until the slabs collapsed. The findings showed that the presence of the balls caused the slabs to fail. Regardless of the a/d, the data showed that the presence of the balls caused slabs to collapse suddenly due to shear mode. The strength, stiffness, and toughness of the same type of slabs decreased as the a/d increased, whereas the ductility showed the reverse tendency. The mechanical measurements of the bubble slabs, omitting the service stiffness, significantly decreased when compared to solid equivalents. However, the stiffness depreciation was minimal less than 15%. Additionally, a sustainability analysis was done, and it revealed that the voided slabs were more environmentally friendly than solid ones since they produced less CO₂ and used less embodied energy 14% and 10% less, respectively than solid slabs

Shoeb Khan and Taslim Khan. (2020) [2] These experimental studies show that the U-Boot technology can sustain massive structures without using beams. A farm tool made of recycled polypropylene is called a U-Boot beton. Work-related voids that were inserted between the slab's top and bottom reinforcements. It is

used to make slabs that can carry heavy loads without the use of beams or with huge spans. U-boot is flameresistant. It is a recycled polypropylene formwork used to build lighter rafts and slabs. U-boot systems can be used in conjunction with other prefabricated technologies and other construction methods, such as post-tensioned steel and prefabricated slabs. the use of steel that has been partially tensioned in a hollow slab. It lessens the slab's thickness and weight. There are advantages connected to reduction in the building weight small size pillars and foundation, there are low chance of seismic effect on the buildings. Due to the fact, that the structural behaviour of this new kind of monolithic flat slab is the same as for solid slab, excluding slab-edge column connection, this new technology can be taken into considerations with the solid slR. Sagadevan, B.N. Rao (2019) [5] Biaxial voided slab behaviour under one-way flexure was examined through experimental research. For this experiment, recycled polypropylene was used to create the sphere and cuboid void shapes. The one-way flexural capacity of the slab was tested using a four-point bending test to determine how the void and its shape affected it. The findings of the experiment were then obtained. The one-way flexural test aids in the investigation of the use of voided slab in place of traditional solid slab. Considerations for the structural behaviour of the voided slab specimens included load versus defection behaviour, crack pattern, and load-bearing capacity. For the purpose of designing a biaxial voided slab, it is verified that the provision of the current IS 456 code are applicable. Like the solid slab, the voided slabs exhibit typical flexure behaviour. The cracks were visible and dispersed throughout the longitudinal direction in pure bending. The maximum load that could be supported by specimens with sphereand cuboid-shaped cavities was the same as for a solid slab. In both longitudinal and transverse orientations, the reinforcing behaviour was unaffected by the presence of void formers.

Bhay M. Pande et.al (2018) [3] The current research addresses the various structural characteristics of voided slabs and bubble deck slabs as well as their advantages over conventional concrete slabs in terms of structural performance. By nearly removing all the concrete from a floor slab's midsection, which serves no structural use, a bubble deck slab can significantly reduce structural dead mass. Hollow high density polyethylene spheres in place of the unproductive concrete in the slab's middle reduce dead mass and improve floor

performance. One of the effective slab systems that can lower the self-weight of slabs is known as biaxial hollow slab system. The addition of the gaps results in a slab that is 30 to 40% lighter, reducing the loads on the columns, walls, foundation, and of course the entire building. The reduction in self-weight, a Bubble Deck slab features two-dimensional patterns of voids inside the slab. The relationship between bubble diameter and slab thickness affects how Bubble Deck slabs behave.

K. Subramanian et.al (2017) [4] This paper involves the experimental analysis of spherically voided biaxial slabs. The intention was to eliminate the unused concrete in slab constructions. Three voided slab specimens of size 2900x2900x100 mm were cast. The voids were created by introducing spherical-shaped high-density poly propylene void formers in between the compression and tension layers of the slab. Spacing was kept as a varying parameter, the spacing of the void formers which were kept was 20, 30 and 50 mm. The slabs were subjected to area loading. Comparison of load-deflection behaviour was carried out and the conclusions was drawn. Prior to the concrete being poured, steel mesh was placed over the surface of the void formers, solving the holding issue. The cracks started appearing in all tested materials at roughly 9 tonnes of loading and extended outward along the slab's edge in a yield line pattern, signifying a ductile flexural failure. The load deflection behaviour of voided slab of 50mm spacing confirmed that spacing of voids provided at 50 mm and above would give stiffer solid slab. Due to ductility, voided slab of 20mm spacing underwent the maximum deflection, whereas voided slab of 30mm spacing showed an increment of about 9.7% compared to voided slab of 50 mm. this system can be applied to the seismic zone effectively due to reduction in self-weight and thereby the seismic force on the structures. In less thick (100 mm) slabs, spherical-shaped void formers were employed, and the most amount of concrete could be reduced. In comparison to Voided 50mm slab, 20mm and 30mm have increased load carrying capacities of 13.12 and 5.45 percent, respectively.

EXPERIMENTAL PROGRAMME

Materials

Concrete

Concrete used in the present experimental work is of grade M20. The materials used for the concrete mix

is OPC 53 grade cement (ACC cement), 20 mm and downsize coarse aggregate, M-sand as fine aggregate and tap water for mixing. Materials were uniformly mixed using concrete mixer of capacity 80 kg.

 Table 1. Concrete mix design quantity for one batch concrete mixer

Concrete mix grade	M20
Mix ratio	1:1.76:3.04
W/C ratio	0.55
Slump in mm	80
Cement	13kg
Fine aggregates	23kg
Coarse aggregates	39.3kg
water	7.15 litre

Plywood

Wooden plywood moulds are used as formwork for casting of slabs. All the moulds ae cleaned and oiled before concreting to make demoulding easy. Fresh tap water was used for 28 days curing

Steel

Steel used in the present experimental work is of grade Fe550 HYSD bars of diameter 8mm are employed as reinforcement for the present work.

Polypropylene balls



Fig.1. Polypropylene bubble

Properties	Unit	Average value
Form		Solid. Granular
Colour		White. Off-White
Odour		Odorless
Specific Gravity		0.85-0.95
Solubility		Insoluble
Melting point	°c	140-170
Auto ignition temperature	°c	>410
Tensile strength at yield	Мра	36
Elongation at yield	%	10
Flexural modulus	MPa	1650

Table 2. Properties of polypropylene balls givenmanufacturer

Table 3. weight of polypropylene balls

Bubble	value	unit
38mmdiameter bubble	4.154	gms
50mm diameter bubble	7.880	gms

MIX DESIGN OF CONCRETE

M20 grade is designed as per IS: 10262-2009. Mix proportion obtained for this study was 1:1.756:3.021 Mix proportion of M20 grade concrete for 1 cubic meter is given in the Table 4.

Table 4. Mix	proportion	for M20 gr	rade concrete	for 1m3.
--------------	------------	------------	---------------	----------

Particulars	Quantity
Cement	358.473 kg
Water	197.16 kg
Fine aggregate	629.504 kg
Coarse aggregate	1083.069 kg
Water cement ratio	0.55

WORKABILITY

Slump cone test on fresh concrete was conducted and result was tabulated.



Fig. 2. Slump cone test.

Table 5. Test results on fresh concrete

Sl.no.	Tests	Results
1	Slump test	80 mm

Test on strength

Compressive strength test, split tensile strength test and flexural strength test were performed for 7days, 14days and 28 days on cube, cylinder and Prism specimens respectively. The results of these tests are presented below:

Table 6. Strength tests performed on concrete grade M20.

Sl.no.	Tests	No. of days	Results (N/mm ²)
1		7	13.51
2	Compressive strength	14	21.36
3		28	25.23
1		7	1.24
2	Split tensile strength	14	1.94
3		28	2.28
1		7	2.63
2	Flexural strength	14	3.5
3		28	3.94s



Fig. 3. Compression test, split tensile test, and flexural test

Experimental setup

Experimental procedure followed





Fig 4. Experimental setup for testing in laboratory

- For testing of slabs, loading frame of 25Tonne capacity was used.
- Effective size of slab is 1.3 x 1.3 m and is simply supported on all four sides.
- Hydraulic jack of 50 Tonne capacity was used for loading the slabs.
- Applied load and deflection was measured by using installed proving ring and Dial gauges respectively.
- Three dial gauges were installed at the bottom centre of the column as shown in the fig.4.
- First crack loading was noted down simultaneously along with marking of cracks on the slab during loading.
- The three dial gauges were removed at the point of loading when the deflection was reached maximum in the dial gauges, for the purpose of safety then the loading was continued until the ultimate load is reached.

First crack load

Load analysis

Table 7. First crack load analysis data

FIRST CRACK (kN)	AVERAGE	
68		
70	74	
84		
58		
60	57.33	
54		
66		
72	62.67	
50		
	68 70 84 58 60 54 66 72	

The average first crack for control slabs was obtained at 74 kN load.

In the bubble slab, slab having a bubble diameter 38 mm the average first crack was obtained at 57.3 kN which was a much earlier propagated crack when compared to the conventional slab.

In a bubble slab bearing a bubble diameter of 50 mm, the average first crack was found at 62.67 kN which is higher to a bubble slab with a diameter of 38 mm, but the first crack appeared 11.33 kN sooner than it would have on a regular slab.

The preceding test results clearly demonstrate that neither the bubble deck slabs of 38 mm nor 50 mm diameter bubble have much of an impact on appearance of the first crack. The graph below shows a comparison of first cracks, their average, and slab designation.



Comparison of first crack load vs slab designation

Ultimate load

Ultimate load is the maximum load that a specimen can withstand. The table below shows the ultimate load for slab designation.

Table 7. Ultimate load analysis data

SLAB DESIGNATION	ULTIMATE LOAD (kN)	AVERAGE
CS-1	200	
CS-2	200	198.66
CS-3	196	
BS (38)-1	196	
BS (38)-2	180	191.33
BS (38)-3	198	
BS (50)-1	150	
BS (50)-2	140	153.33
BS (50)-3	170	

The average ultimate load taken by conventional slab was obtained as 198.66 kN.

- In the slab with bubble diameter of 38mm the ultimate load carrying capacity was
- 191.33 kN, which, is larger than 50 mm diameter slab and nearly equal to standard slab.
- In slab with bubble diameter of 50 mm the average ultimate load carrying capacity was 153.33 kN, which is a prominent decrease from both the conventional slab and the bubble slab of 38 mm.

As an outcome, test results show that the conventional slab can be replaced with a voided slab, but replacing the slab with a bubble of smaller diameter yields outcomes equal to conventional slab, for the slab's ultimate load carrying capacity when compared to a bubble with a larger diameter. However, since both bubble diameters were chosen to be below the neutral axis, using a smaller diameter bubble yields better results. The ultimate load, their average, and slab designation are shown in the accompanying graph.



Deflection analysis

The deflection of the slab obtained along with their corresponding load for various slab designation are mentioned in the table below.

Table 8. Deflection analysis data

SLAB DESIGNATION	LOAD (kN)	DEFLECTION (mm)	AVERAGE LOAD (kN)	AVERAGE DEFLECTION (mm)
CS-1	176	20.3		
CS-2	176	17.2	171.33	18.5
CS-3	162	18		
BS (38)-1	180	16.2		
BS (38)-2	178	17.8	173.33	16.73
BS (38)-3	162	16.2		
BS (50)-1	118	11		
BS (50)-2	106	11.9	124	11.63
BS (50)-3	148	12		

- The average of three control specimens shows a deflection of up to 18.5 mm for average ultimate load being 171.3 kN.
- The bubble slab of 38 mm diameter bubbles exhibited average deflection of 16.73mm for 3 specimens casted and for an average ultimate load of 173.3 kN.

The bubble slab of 50 mm diameter bubble exhibited average deflection 11.63 mm for average ultimate load being 124 kN. It is conclusive from the results that the 38 mm bubble diameter slab exhibited a good hold in the deflection by having a average deflection of 16.73mm for average load of. 173.3 kN, where as the load taken by that of 50 mm diameter bubble slab is way too less than both 38mm bubble and control slab. From the aforementioned findings, it can be inferred that the usage of a voided slab should only be considered when the void created is little or when a lesser voided bubble is an option.





Comparison of ultimate load vs slab designation

Percentage weight reduction

Table 9. Percentage reduction in weight of slab

SLAB TYPE	WEIGHT OF SLAB	WEIGHT REDUCTION PERCENTAGE
CONTROL SLAB	422.5Kg	0%
38mm DIAMETER BUBBLE SLAB	353.5Kg	16.30 %
50mm DIAMETER BUBBLE SLAB	334.53Kg	20.80 %

The weight of 38mm and 50mm bubble slab was 353.5 and 334.53 Kg respectively and the percentage reduction in weight came up to 16.3% and 20.8% when compared to control slab.

CONCLUSION

In the present experimental investigations, the conventional slab was compared with the voided slab and the voided slab with varying bubble diameter is compared. Three conventional slab was casted and three voided slab was casted for the diameter of bubble being 38mm and three voided slab of bubble diameter 50 mm. The testing was conducted by using a loading frame of 25tonne capacity and a hydraulic jack of 50Tonne was used to load the jack. The load was applied as uniformly distributed load. The following conclusions can be drawn from the present experimental work.

- The voided slab with the 38 mm diameter bubble shows results that are similar to that of conventional slab, the ultimate load carried by conventional slab is 193kN and the 38 mm diameter bubble slab has an average of 191kN of ultimate load.
- The 50 mm diameter bubble slab in comparison with both the conventional and the 38mm bubble diameter slab gives dissatisfied results. A bubble slab of 50 mm diameter is not desired.
- In comparison with the volume of the concrete, the 38mm diameter bubble slab has around 16.3 % reduction and 50 mm diameter bubble slab has

around 20.8 % reduction in the volume of concrete when compared to conventional slab.

REFERENCES

- Mohsen Amoushahi Khouzania , Mehran Zeynaliana, , Mahmoud Hashemia , Davood Mostofinejadb , Farhang Farahbodc 'study on shear behavior and capacity of biaxial ellipsoidal voided slabs'Volume 27, October 2020, Pages 1075-1085
- Thaar S. Al-Gasham*, Ali N. Hilo, Manal A. Alawsi 'Structural behavior of reinforced concrete one-way slabs voided by polystyrene balls' volume11 December 2019
- Abhay M. Pande, Anup M. Bhendale, Dr. Manish M. Bais 'Voided Slab' International Journal of Latest Technology in Engineering, Management & Applied Science (IJLTEMAS) Volume VII, Issue IV, April 2018
- 4. Ashish Kumar Dwivedi,H. J Joshi , Rohit Raj , Prem Prakash Mishra , Mamta Kadhane , Bharati Mohabey'Voided Slab Design: Review Paper' Volume IV Issue I IJRSI
- Prafulla Shinde, Mayur Patil, Mahesh Jadhav, Swapnil Degloorkar 'Comparative Study of Flat Plate Slab and Voided Slab Lightened with U-Boot Beton' International Research Journal of Engineering and Technology (IRJET) e-ISSN: 2395-0056 Volume: 05 Issue: 04 | Apr-2018
- K. Subramanian, P. Bhuvaneshwari ,N.A. Jabe 'Flexural Behaviour of Biaxial Slabs Voided with Spherical HDPP Void Formers 'received 8 February 2015,Accepted: 25 January 2017
- 7. Bhagyashri g,bhade and S.M barelikar. 'An experimental study on two way bubble deck slab with spherical hollow balls' international journal of recent scientific research vol. 7, issue 6 june, 2016
- 8. R. Sagadevan, B. N. Rao. 'Efect of void former shapes on one-way fexural behaviour of biaxial hollow slabs', international journal of advanced structural engineering (2019).

EXPERIMENTAL STUDY ON FLEXURAL STRENGTHENING OF REINFORCED CONCRETE SLAB USING FABRIC REINFORCED CEMENTITIOUS MATRIX

DR. B. S. PUTTE GOWDA

Associate Professor, Bangalore Institute of Technology. Bangalore

MR. MANOJ, MS. SREELEKHA C R,

MS. ANUSHA B N

M.Tech (Structural Engineering), Department of civil Engineering, Bangalore Institute of Technology, Bangalore

ABSTRACT

The fabric reinforced cementitious matrix (FRCM) is an effective strengthening technique as an alternate solution to overcome the drawbacks in the FRP strengthening technique that is replacing the epoxy by cement mortar. The experimental program consists of casting nine RC slabs, three were considered as control slabs and other six were strengthened and tested under uniformly distributed loading with different layers of Glass FRCM. The effectiveness of Glass FRCM is studied in terms of enhancement in the load carrying capacity of slab. The study brings at the possibility of strength enhancement most considerably. An attempt has done to evaluate the strength enhancement of reinforced concrete slab by strengthening using Glass FRCM by conducting experimental investigation.

INTRODUCTION

In the present world, strengthening applications for existing concrete structures and members have become an urgent necessity, strengthening the existing structural members to confirm their continuous operability and safety.

The use of modern structural materials is now being worked on by the engineering community because sustainability and cost-effectiveness are the main goals of strengthening technology. Repairing and improving the serviceability of structures may be necessary for a variety of reasons, including structural inadequacy caused by freeze- thaw cycles and inadequate concrete. In other situations, a structure might need to be upgraded to support heavier weights or to meet new standards. One of the main reasons that reinforced concrete constructions deteriorate is the corrosion of the steel reinforcement.

Since many of the existing structural elements are now regarded as being unsafe due to under design, higher loads stipulated by contemporary design regulations, overloading, or the lack of quality control, strengthening work is crucial. Older structural members need to be repaired or strengthened in order to keep their potential serviceability and meet the demands of both current and future construction projects. Repairing and strengthening structural parts rather than replacing them totally has become acceptable from an environmental

and financial standpoint, especially if a quick, effective, and simple strengthening technology is available.

Bruckner et al. [1] conducted an experimental examination to evaluate the strengthened beams' performance utilising FRCM. They employed textile-reinforced concrete with GFRCM, which is made of alkali-resistant glass fibre. They used 12 T beams in their investigation, nine of which were reinforced for shear bearing capability. The factors include the quantity of layers, anchorages, and techniques. The test results show that the loading capacity was significantly enhanced in order to maximise the impact of TRC strengthening. It is crucial to have mechanical anchorages. Strength increases of 17% and 33%, correspondingly, were seen for two and four layers.

Triantafillou et al [2] conducted an experimental investigation to determine the efficacy of employing textile reinforced mortar (TRM), which is made up of carbon fabric and polymer modified cementitious mortar with carbon fabric FRP, to shear strengthen RC beams. The study took into account the following variables: (1) Type of bonding agent; (2) Number of TRM or FRP strengthening layers; (3) Wrapping method; and (4) Type of loading. One control beam and five enhanced beams out of a total of six beams were investigated. While the other four beams were monotonically loaded, two beams were evaluated under cyclic loading. The TRM strengthening was shown to be 45% less effective than the FRP system, according to test data. Although TRM strengthening is less successful than FRP. Although TRM strengthening is less successful than FRP systems, the author finds that it is still a promising approach for shear strengthening for RC members.

Objectives

- To examine the flexural behavior of two-way RC slabs and compare it to that of reinforced slabs.
- To investigate the cracking load of slabs reinforced using glass fabric reinforced cementitious matrix and the improvement in ultimate load carrying capability.
- To examine how strength is increased in relation to various strengthening layers.
- To compare the performance of fabric-reinforced cementitious matrices in strengthened slabs with two and four layers to control slabs.

EXPERIMENTAL PROGRAMME

The trials were conducted to determine how well externally applied glass FRCM strengthened the flexural integrity of the RC slab. Nine slabs, each measuring 1100mmX1100mmX60mm. These nine slabs underwent two-point loading testing after being cast. The remaining 6 slabs were strengthened with glass FRCM in various levels and tested, with the remaining 3 slabs serving as the control slabs.

Table 1. Description of slabs

Total number of specimens	9
Control slabs	3
Strengthened slabs	6
Strengthening using 2 layers of Glass FRCM	3
Strengthening using 4 layers of Glass FRCM	3

Material: As per the guidelines of IS: 10262-2009 the mix proportion of M30 grade concrete was obtain to get workability of 100 mm slump.

Glass FRCM:

The glass fabric obtained by Shri Premolite Industries Ghaziabad (U.P), was used in the present experiments. The Properties are tabulated in Table 2.

Table 2. Test on glass FRCM

Sl. No.	Test Conducted	Results
1	Thickness (mm)	0.66
2	Mass / square meter (kg)	0.307
3	No. of holes / square meter	31781
	No. of holes / sq. inch	20
4	Tensile Breaking Load (N)	1220
	a. Sample Width -36.0 mm	
	b. Sample thickness - 0.66 mm	
	c. Grip to grip length – 300 mm	

The average cube compressive strength of concrete on the day of testing of beams was

42.66 MPa The mortar grade adopted for this experimental study is MM7.5. As per the guidelines of IS: 2250-1981, the mix proportion for MM7.5 is cement: sand = 1:3. The water content is maintained to get working consistency.



Fig 1. Form work of slabs

Procedure for Casting of slab specimens for flexural test

- The M30 grade concrete obtained from the mix design, mixed in pan concrete mixer.
- The form work used for casting of specimens was of wooden fabricated with accurate dimensions.
- As a first step installation of reinforcements into the formwork was completed. And then the thoroughly mixed concrete was poured in layers and compacted by hand.
- The top surface of the slab was finished using trowel. The concrete was allowed to set for 24 hours and then the formwork was removed carefully and the specimens was allowed for moist curing with gunny bags for a period of 28 days
- Along with each slab 12 cubes were cast from the same batch of concrete. All slabs were designed as 2-way slabs having same cross-sectional area [1.1m ×1.1m × 0.06 m] with reinforcement details for simply supported conditions as shown in Fig.1.







Fig 3. Curing of slabs

Strengthening procedure of FRCM systems

Strengthening procedure of FRCM systems involves the following steps:

Step 1: The receiving substrate must first be prepared, which includes being thoroughly cleaned, then any damaged areas must be removed and replaced before applying the FRCM.

Step 2: Applying the first layer of cementitious matrix on the previously cleaned substrate, which has a nominal thickness of 5mm.

Step 3: To achieve proper impregnation, a layer of carefully chosen fiber network was pressed into the mortar.

Step 4: The second layer of matrix, nominally 5mm thick, was then applied.

Step 5: Up until the necessary number of layers of strengthened textile fiber networks are applied, this process of adding alternate cementitious mortar and the chosen textile fiber network must be repeated.

The placement of the FRCM system for strengthening is determined by the type of strengthening action required and the structural member that needs to be strengthened. If reinforcement is needed for beams or slabs to increase flexural strength, the composite is put in the tension zone, with the major direction of the fabric determined by the direction of the tensile stresses.



Fig. 4. Strengthening of slabs with glass FRCM

Testing of slab specimens

With similar loads and support circumstances, nine slab specimens measuring 1100X1100X60mm were created utilizing the limit state idea. 8mm dia. bars in fives were offered in both directions. All four edges have 115 mm roller bearing supports. In order to clearly see the specimen's crack pattern, white wash was additionally painted on the specimen. A 100 Tonne loading Jack was installed on top of the specimen to provide load, and a 25 Tonne loading frame was used for the setup. Additionally, a testing ring that was attached to a meter

to monitor load increments was fixed above the loading jack. To transfer the load from the loading jack to the specimen, a set of angle sections were provided on top of the specimen uniformly. The testing set up is as shown in the Fig 5.



Fig. 5. Setup of slab with UDL arrangement

Loading frame

For testing of the slab specimens, a loading frame with a 25-tonne capacity was utilized. The supports for the slab were made of mild steel and had solid 20 mm diameter M S rollers. These supports were attached to the loading frame's I-Section, which could be altered to accommodate different spans. On top of the specimen, three sets of angle sections were provided to evenly distribute the load from the loading jack. For load transfer, solid M S rollers measuring 32 mm in diameter and 200 mm in length were employed. The slab specimens' standard test setup is depicted in Fig. 6.

Instruments and measurements:

• Hand-operated pneumatic jack with a 50T capacity was employed as a loading jack. Use of a digital indicator was used to calibrate the jack.

- Dial gauge: Magnetic dial gauges were used to measure the deflections. The dial gauge's smallest increment was 0.01mm.
- Using a microscope, the crack width was determined and the smallest count was 0.01mm.

In addition to above, spirit level and plumb bob were used for accurate alignment levelling of the test set up.



Fig. 6. Testing of the slab specimen

Method of testing

The assumed loading became an evenly distributed load. If you want a natural bending or a second spot inside the centre of the slab, the weight is transferred to the slab using four MS plates that are 10 mm thick. A portable lever was used to apply the load in consistent increments up to the failure load. The initial load put in place became 2KN. Dial gauge readings for this load have been recorded in order to determine the slab's deflection. Dial gauge was used to measure the deflection at the slab's five locations (D1(C), D2(D), D4(A), D5(B), and CENTRE D3(E)), which are depicted in Fig. 7. The load was manually increased, and measurements from the dial gauge were obtained every 2.0 KN. At each level of loading, the measured deflection effects have been tabulated. The load associated with the initial crack was recorded. Every load increment left a distinct impression on the emergence of any new cracks as well as the spread of any existing ones. The corresponding

load levels have markings. Following the breakdown, the slabs were photographed and the crack pattern was noted. Each slab underwent testing for around two hours.





RESULTS AND DISCUSSIONS

Nine square slabs measuring 1100 mm x 1100 mm x 60 mm are used for the tests. All nine slabs were put through a simple support test. In the case of control slabs, the slabs were tested after 28 days of curing; the remaining 6 slabs were strengthened and tested after 28 days of curing. Tables and graphs are used to display the test findings and results. Each slab's behaviour is thoroughly studied in terms of its deflection, ultimate load carrying capacity, cracking load, and fracture pattern.

Combined load v/s deflection curve for slabs



Fig. 8 Combined load v/s deflection curve for slabs

Figure 8 shows the load and accompanying maximum mid-span deflection for each slab. The figure demonstrates that all the Curves exhibit linear variation up to the first cracking level before behaving nonlinearly as load is increased further. The reinforced slabs with two layers of strengthening exhibited more when compared to the control concrete slab. The outcomes show that FRCM is technically feasible for reinforcing pre-existing RC slab-type parts. According to johanesen yield load enhancement, the strength enhancement was found to be 97% and 140% strengthening with 2 layers and 4 layers, respectively, in terms of ultimate capacity.



Fig. 9. Crack pattern of slab-S1 and S



Fig. 10. Crack pattern of slab-S21 and S22



Fig. 11. Fibre break/rupture



Fig. 12 Crack pattern of slab-S41 and S42

CONCLUSIONS

- The addition of FRCM layers significantly boosted the flexural strength of two- way RC slabs. Therefore, it is suggested for the flexural strengthening of two-way RC slabs as a workable alternative retrofitting approach with obvious advantages over FRP.
- Initial stiffness, cracking load, and ultimate load capacity all rise as the number of GFRCM layers increases. At the stage of serviceability limit, the flexural resistance also rises.
- The laboratory results show that reinforcing existing RC slab-type elements with FRCM is technically feasible. According to johanesen yield load enhancement, the strength enhancement was determined to be 97% and 140% strengthening with 2 layers and 4 layers, respectively, for ultimate capacity.
- The impacts of GFRCM were noticeable, increasing strength and proper fabric amount while also leading to a steadily declining ductility.
- The slabs exposed to environmental conditioning showed no signs of delamination or debonding of the strengthening composites. Even though the fibre was visible after the two-layer reinforced slab failed.

REFERENCES

- 1. FRCM Strengthening of Shear-Critical RC Beams Rizwan Azam, S.M.ASCE1; and Khaled Soudki, "FRCM Strengthening of Shear-Critical RC Beams", 2014(ASCE)CC.1943
- Youself A. AI-Salloum; Hussein M. Elsanadedy; Saleh H. Alsayed; and Rizwan A.Iqbal, "Experimental and Numerical study for the Shear strengthening of Reinforced concrete beams using Textile reinforced mortar", J. Compos., 2012, 16(1): 74-90 (ASCE).
- Giovanni Loreto1; Lorenzo Leardini2; Diana Arboleda3; and Antonio Nanni4 "Performance of RC Slab-Type Elements Strengthened with Fabric-Reinforced Cementitious-Matrix Composites", 2013, 10.1061/ (ASCE).
- 4. Lampros N. Koutas and Dionysius. A. Bournas; "Flexural Strengthening of Two- Way RCSlabs with Textile-Reinforced Mortar: Experimental Investigation and Design Equations", J. Compos. Constr., 2017, 21(1): 04016065(ASCE).
- 5. Design of concrete structures –pillai and menon.
- 6. IS 2386 (Part 3):1963: IS 2386-3 (1963): Methods of test for aggregates for concrete, Part 3: Specific gravity, density, voids, absorption and bulking [CED 2: Cement and Concrete].
- 7. IS 2720 (Part 3): Methods of determination of specific gravity.
- 8. IS 4031-4 (1988): Methods of physical tests for hydraulic cement, Part 4: Determination of consistency of standard cement paste [CED 2: Cement and Concrete]
- 13. IS 383:2016: Specification for Coarse and Fine Aggregates from Natural Sources for Concrete [CED 2: Cement and Concrete].
- 9. IS 10262:2009: Guidelines for concrete mix design proportioning [CED 2: Cement and Concrete].
- 10. IS: 2250-1981: Code of Practice for Preparation and use of masonry mortars [CED 13: Building Construction Practices including Painting, Varnishing and Allied Finishing].
- 11. IS 456:2000: Plain and Reinforced Concrete Code of Practice.

EXPERIMENTAL STUDY ON PERFORMANCE OF FLAT SLABS STRENGTHENED USING CARBON FIBER-REINFORCED POLYMERS

C. PRASAD GOWDA

Associate Professor, Bangalore Institute of Technology. Bangalore

BHAGYASHREE BIRADAR

M. Tech Student, Bangalore Institute of Technology, Bangalore

ABSTRACT

Existing reinforced concrete (RC) slabs need to be strengthened for punching shear due to design defects, structural damage, increased loading, corroded reinforcement bars, and change in the use or function of the buildings. Slab–column connection of a fat plate structures is more susceptible to punching shear failure because of highly concentrated localized stresses. The additional resistance for punching shear will be provided by strengthening the existing slab-column connection. The best suited method to enhance the strength of slab-column connection is external strengthening without doing any damage to the structure. Hence, experimental investigations are carried out to determine the behavior of externally bonded RC slab–column connection under incremental gravity loadings. carbon fiber-reinforced polymer is used to strengthen the flat slabs by wrapping on the tension side of the specimen in two different patterns. For orthogonal wrap and skew wrap pattern, the average punching strength enhancement was, respectively, 33.87% and 47.58% in ultimate load.

KEYWORDS: Slab–column connection, Fiber-reinforced polymers (FRP), Punching shear, Carbon fiber polymer-Strengthening

INTRODUCTION

Many commercial and residential buildings are made up of flat slabs because of their usefulness as a suspended flooring system that allows for easier form work and quicker site operations. Despite their economic or cost benefits, punching failure of slab is one of the primary design failures in these kinds of constructions since it is a rapid and brittle failure that may cause the progressive failure of the structure. The creation and movement or propagation of a concrete crack surface, which begins at the column slab interface and spreads into depth of the slab in an angled or inclined direction away from the column, is what causes this punching failure. As a result, the concrete punching failure crack surface takes the shape of a pyramid's frustum. To reduce the development of inclined shear cracks, this type of failure is often addressed at the design phase by strengthening the concrete, thickening the slab, increasing size of the column, or inserting vertical steel stirrups or stud rails. However, numerous existing flat slabs are undergoing increasing loading as a result of changes in use, which may necessitate the adoption of requirements of strengthening for punching shear. Construction and design deficiencies are other reasons for which punching shear strengthening is required.

The punched shear strength of slabs is enhanced by

using CFRP sheet along with steel reinforcing bars as flexural reinforcement (M.R. Esfahani et.al., 2009). The punching shear strength of slab is underrated by the ACI Code, and this undervaluation gets worse as flexural reinforcement increases. The impact of flexural reinforcement on the punching shear strength of slab is suitably considered by the BS 8110 Code. Three alternative anchorage procedures were employed to strengthen eight specimens using pre-stressed vertical bolts: large surface anchorage, small surface anchorage, and small embedded anchorage (Micael M.G. Inácio et.al., 2012). The ultimate-load carrying capacity of the strengthened specimens was larger than that of the reference control specimen, increasing by an average of 54 percent, 21 percent, and 15 percent for the specimens strengthened with M10, M8, and M6 bolts, respectively. The efficacy of employing Carbon Fiber Reinforced Polymer (CFRP) sheets to strengthen flat slab to column corner connections was carried out (Bassam Q. Abdulrahman et.al., 2017). The results of the series of tested slabs indicate that strengthening improved the shear capacity by up to 23% in the slabs with holes, while it raised the punching shear capacity by 11% in the slabs without openings. CFRP composites have been employed using the Near Surface Mounted (NSM) techniques to boost flexural capacity, while the embedded through-section (ETS) technique has been used to strengthen punching (Joaquim A.O. Barros et.al., 2017). With increase in the Carbon fiber reinforcement ratio, the ultimate deflection of reinforced slabs reduced. Therefore, this research work focuses on studying the performance of RC slabcolumn connections strengthened using externally strengthened CFRP fabrics experimentally. The CFRP fabrics are wrapped using epoxy to tension face of the specimen in orthogonal and skew patterns and tested under incremental gravity loading.

TEST PROGRAM

Overview

To understand the behavior of slab-column, experimental study is conducted by applying incremental gravity loading through the column stub. The model specimens are of size 1300 mm ×1300 mm in plan with overall thickness of 80 mm were prepared with a central concentric column stub of size 150 mm×150 mm. The slabs were inverted and simply rested all around by considering support as point of contra flexure boundary.

The reinforcement adopted for the slabs is 0.9% with a concrete mix of grade M20. HYSD steel bars of grade Fe 500 are used as reinforcement for both slabs and column stub. The column stub is provided with 8Nos of 8 mm diameter bars. The specimen details and the details of reinforcement are shown in Fig. 1.

Preparation of specimen and experimental setup

The current experimental work is conducted by casting six slabs. Among six slabs, two of them are un-strengthened slabs which are referred as control specimens. Remaining four slabs are strengthened using unidirectional CFRP fibers wrapped in orthogonal pattern and in skew pattern are shown in Fig. 2. The notations used for the different specimens are listed in Table 1.

The CFRP's are cut into a strip of length 1.3 m and width 165mm. The slab portion offset to the column face is prepared by removing dust and undulations, and then primer Nitowrap 30 is applied and cured for 1 day. The prepared CFRP is pasted using Fosroc epoxy Nitowrap 410 on the tension face of the slab. The CFRP is pasted at a distance of 75 mm from the face of column on all sides. After strengthening all the slabs are tested under incremental gravity loading and the difference in the behavior of the strengthened fat slab is compared with the control slab and hence the efficiency of the carbon fiber reinforced polymer in strengthening of slab is validated.



Fig. 1. Reinforcement details





Fig. 2. Strengthening configurations

Specimens were supported on a frame of size 1200×1200 made up of an I-section with an overall depth of 100 mm and flange width of 75 mm. Specimens were subjected to gradually applied concentric load through the central column stub by means of 500 kN hydraulic jack at an increment of 2 kN and the slab corners were free to lift. The test setup is shown in Fig. 3.

Three dial gauges were used to record the central defection of the slab with an incremental load at a rate of 2 kN/min until the failure of specimen. Defections at the center of the slab are recorded for each incremental load and also crack propagation was examined until the failure of the specimen. The load at first crack and load at failure along with the corresponding defections were recorded.

Table 1. Specimen details

Specimen Notation	Description	Overall depth (mm)	F _c (Mpa)	<i>f_y</i> (Мра)	$P_t \%$	FRP Properties
С	Control Specimen	80	26.6	500	0.9	-
SO	Strengthened in orthogonal	80	26.6	500	0.9	Unidirectional CFRP with 0.43 mm thick E=250 GPa, f_{ten} =4900 Mpa
SS	Strengthened in skew pattern	80	26.6	500	0.9	Unidirectional CFRP with 0.43 mm thick E=250 GPa, f_{ten} =4900 MPa



Fig. 3. Test setup

RESULTS AND DISCUSSION

Failure mode and crack pattern

Figure 4 shows failure mode and crack pattern. All specimens were failed by punching shear. As the load applied is increased flexural radial cracks appeared in the tension side of the specimen and extended towards the edges of the slab until the specimen fails in shear. At ultimate load, slab failed suddenly due to punching and is characterized by sudden drop in load. The failure pattern consists of formation of conical shape in column vicinity and punching plane is in the range between 280 and 290 mm for control specimen from the column stub face.

For the CFRP strengthened specimens, initially when load is applied, several flexural cracks were appeared along the slabs, which are then propagated toward the edges of slab at further increase in the load. The punching plane is 335 and 245 mm for specimens strengthened with orthogonal wrap and skew wrap respectively, from the column stub face. Failure behavior details are tabulated in Table 2. It is to be noted that the number of cracks and their propagation were decreased in the strengthened specimen. The crack pattern of control and carbon strengthened specimen is shown in Fig. 4. The CFRP strengthened specimen is also failed by punching followed by debonding and rupture in fabric. From Fig. 4, The crack formations were reduced by usage of CFRP. In comparison to orthogonal and skew pattern of wrapping, complete debonding of the CFRP is happened in orthogonal wrapping pattern only. Only minor debonding was appeared in case of skew wrapping and overall crack formation was observed lesser in case of skew pattern.

Table 2.	Failure	behavior	results
----------	---------	----------	---------

specimen	Mode of failure	CFRP failure	Crack location from face of column (mm)
С	Punching	-	280
SO	Punching	Debonding followed by Rupture	335
SS	Punching	Minor bonding	245



Fig. 4. Crack patterns in slabs. a) Control specimen, b) specimen with orthogonal wrapping pattern, c) specimens with skew wrapping pattern

Ultimate loads and defections

The control slabs failed at an average ultimate load of 124kN. The strengthened slabs failed at the load of 166kn and 183kN for orthogonal wrapping and skew wrapping, respectively, which is 33.87% and 47.58% more than the failure load of control specimen. The test results are tabulated in Table 3. At an ultimate load of 124 KN, the control slabs deflected upto

17.527 mm. In comparison to control specimens, orthogonally strengthened specimens exhibited deflection of 16.79 mm at 166 KN and slabs strengthened with skew pattern of wrapping exhibited a 15.421 mm deflection at an ultimate load of 183 KN. The reduction is 4.3% and 4.63% when compared with control specimens.

	Table	3	Test	results
--	-------	---	------	---------

Speci-	First	Ultimate	Deflection	%
men	crack load	load (kN)	ultimate	increase
	(kN)		load (mm)	in
				strength
C	49	124	17.527	
SO	54	166	16.792	33.87
SS	51	183	15.421	47.58

Load-defection behavior

For control specimen load–defection curve is as shown in Fig. 5 and load–defection comparison with strengthened slabs is plotted in Fig. 6.

Compared to different wrapping technique, skew pattern of wrapping has slight higher stiffness at post-cracking stage.

Table 4 Stiffness characteristics

Speci- men	Pre- cracking stiffness (kN/mm)	Post- cracking stiffness (kN/mm)	% increase in pre- Cracking stiffness (Compared to C)	% increase in post- Cracking stiffness (Compared to C)
С	10.37	6.22	-	-
SO	10.98	7.8	5.5	20.25
SS	10.92	8.36	5.04	25.6



Fig. 5. Load-defection curve of control slab





CONCLUSIONS

RC flat slabs strengthened using CFRP fabric in various orientations were the subject of the investigation. Totally six slabs were casted out of which two are control slabs (C-1, C-2). The remaining four slabs are strengthened using CFRP fabric. Two types of orientation were used for strengthening the slabs. Among four slabs two slabs are wrapped with orthogonal orientation (SO-1, SO-2) and other two slabs with skew orientation (SS-1, SS-2). All slabs were tested by applying point load at the center of the column and tested until the slab fails. The fallowing conclusions are drawn from the study.

- 1. It has been discovered that using CFRP fabric as a strengthening material helps strengthened flat slabs to have greater ductility and ultimate load carrying capacity.
- 2. The use of CFRP fabric caused delay in the initiation of first cracks in slabs. For orthogonally strengthened slabs the initiation of first crack was delayed by 6 KN compared with the control slab and for skew pattern slabs it was delayed by 2 KN.

- 3. The ultimate-load carrying capacity was increased by the usage of CFRP fabric. There was an increase of 33.87 percent of load carrying capacity for orthogonal orientation of wrapping and 47.58 percent for skew orientation of wrapping.
- 4. The deflection in both the forms of wrapping technique was reduced when compared with control slabs. As a result, it is concluded that deflection of slabs will be decreased by using carbon fiber as strengthening material.
- 5. Thus, it is evident that skew pattern of wrapping was more efficient as compared with orthogonal pattern of wrapping because there was more enhancement in load carrying capacity and more reduction in deflection value for skew pattern than orthogonal pattern of wrapping.
- 6. In all the strengthened slabs debonding of fabric was observed as load was applied. Additionally, it was shown that significant debonding of fabric occurs when the ultimate- load is imminent.

REFERENCES

- M.R. Esfahani, M.R. Kianoush, A.R. Moradi (2009) "Punching shear strength of interior slab-column connections strengthened with carbon fiber reinforced polymer sheets" Engineering Structures vol 31, 1535– 1542.
- Micael M.G. Inácio, A. Pinho Ramos, Duarte M.V. Faria (2012) "Strengthening of flat slabs with transverse reinforcement by introduction of steel bolts using different anchorage approaches" composite structures vol 159 (2017) 600-614.
- Sameera Wijesiri Pathirana, Brian Uy, Olivia Mirza, Xinqun Zhu (2015) "Strengthening of existing composite steel-concrete beams utilising bolted shear

connectors and welded studs" Journal of Constructional Steel Research vol 114 (2015) 417–430.

- 4. Bassam Q. Abdulrahman, Zhangjian Wu, Lee S. Cunningham (2017) "Experimental and numerical investigation into strengthening flat slabs at corner columns with externally bonded CFRP" Construction and Building Materials vol 139 (2017) 132–147.
- Joaquim A.O. Barros, Mohammadali Rezazadeh, João P.S. Laranjeira, Mohammad R.M. Hosseini, Mohammad Mastali, Honeyeh Ramezansefat (2017) "Simultaneous flexural and punching strengthening of RC slabs according to a new hybrid technique using Ushape CFRP laminates" Composite Structures vol 159 (2017) 600–614.
- Galileu S. Santosa, Guilherme S.S.A. Melo, Joaquim A.O. Barros (2019) "Punching CFRP-based strengthening solutions for reinforced concrete flat slabs" composite structures vol 224 (2019) 111077.
- Haifa Saleh, Robin Kalfat, Kamiran Abdouka, Riadh Al-Mahaidi (2019) "Experimental and numerical study into the punching shear strengthening of RC flat slabs using post- installed steel bolts" Construction and Building Materials vol 188 (2018) 28–39.
- Zhen Huanga, Yingkai Zhao, Jiwen Zhanga, Yue Wu (2020) "Punching shear behaviour of concrete slabs reinforced with CFRP grids" structures vol 26 (2020) 617-625.
- 9. Mahmoud A. El-Mandouh, Mostafa S. Omar, Ahmed S. Abd El-Maula (2021) "Behaviour of RC flat slabs with openings strengthened with CFRP" case studies in construction materials vol 15 (2021) e00587.
- H.R. Taresh, M.Y.M. Yati, M.R. Azmi (2021) "Punching shear behaviour of interior slab- column connections strengthened by steel angle plates" Engineering Structures vol 238 (2021) 112246.

A COMPARATIVE STUDY ON FLEXURAL STRENGTHENING OF PRELOADED RC T- BEAM USING NSM CFRP VERTICAL LAMINATES WITH DIFFERENT PERCENTAGES OF TENSION REINFORCEMENT

NAVEEN V

MTech (Structures), Department of Civil Engineering & Bangalore Institute of Technology, Bangalore

MALLIKARJUNA K, DILIP N

Assistant Professor, Civil Engineering Department, Bangalore Institute of Technology, Karnataka

RAVINDRA P M

Professor, Department of Civil Engineering & Bangalore Institute of Technology, Bangalore

ABSTRACT

Due to its exposure to a variety of loads and challenging climatic conditions, concrete structures are deteriorating at an alarming rate throughout the world. When problems persist despite our best efforts and cause stress, it causes us to doubt our comprehension even when we believe we can preserve order and come up with a workable solution. To prolong its life, every structure eventually needs strengthening or repairs. The quality of the building, the materials used, the surroundings, and the way the structure is used all affect how frequently these repairs are necessary. The deteriorating and existing reinforced concrete structures need to be repaired and retrofitted in order to fulfil the current design criteria and strength characteristics.

Carbon Fibre Reinforced Polymer (CFRP) Laminates are frequently used as the strengthening material for Reinforced Concrete (RC) projects due to their superior qualities when compared to other Fibre Reinforced Polymer (FRP) laminates. In the current experimental work, an effort is made to compare and evaluate the behaviour of RC T-beams that have been flexurally strengthened using the NSM technique and vertical CFRP laminates with two different percentages of tension reinforcement. The strengthened and control T-beams' working and ultimate loads are assessed. In addition, the load-deflection behaviour and failure modes of every strengthened and control T-beam are explored.

KEYWORDS : Pre-loaded, Reinforced concrete t-beam, CFRP laminate, Flexural strengthening, NSM technique.

INTRODUCTION

To achieve the necessary strength requirements and increase the structures' useful lives, reinforced concrete (RC) structures must be upgraded. Reinforced concrete structures are susceptible to a wide range of functional and structural impairments, including overloading, reinforcement corrosion, deformation and cracking, exposure to environmental changes, and long-term consequences.

The goal is to raise knowledge about a scientific evaluation of the underlying cause, the establishment of the methodology, and the proper application of materials for efficient restoration. Contractors and consultants will gain from the increased awareness. Building repairs are commonly found to have been unnecessarily delayed as a result of poor instruction. In order to extend the life of the structure, guarantee community safety, and reduce material and labour costs, it is necessary to quickly detect, assess, plan, and carry out repair work. Construction of a new structure is completely different than repair, rehabilitation, retrofitting, or strengthening. The term "retrofitting" refers to the process of altering something after it has been built. Generally speaking, it refers to the strengthening plan that combines new load requirements, new codal provisions, new safety requirements.

Retrofitting is the process of strengthening currently standing, damaged or undamaged structures is known as retrofitting. It is described as the process of incorporating brand-new features into already-existing buildings, historical buildings, bridges, etc. It is an increase in the initial strength that was present before the harm. An existing structure can be retrofitted to increase its durability and safety while lowering its susceptibility to harm. Retrofitting is done to prevent additional damage to the concrete and to strengthen structural elements made of deteriorated concrete. Reinforced concrete structural elements can become brittle due to poor design decisions, poor craftsmanship, and degeneration brought on by the aggressivity of hazardous agents. A few techniques used to retrofit elements in RCC structures include section enlargement, external plate bonding, external post-tensioning, grouting, and fibre reinforced polymer (FRP) composites. Two of the approaches that fall under the category of FRP composites are the externally bonded reinforcement (EBR) technique and FRP composites employing the near surface mounted method (NSM).

Depending on the extent of the damage and the required capacity for recovery, an appropriate retrofitting technique is selected and put into practise.

OBJECTIVES

1. To examine and contrast the flexural behaviour of T-beams made of reinforced concrete and NSM CFRP laminates.

- 2. To assess each strengthened and regulate T-beam's working load and maximum load.
- 3. To analyse the load-deflection behaviour of the reinforced and controlled T-beams.
- 4. To examine how reinforced beams made with CFRP laminate in vertical orientation performed when tension reinforcement was applied at two different percentages (Pt=0.464% and 0.825%).
- 5. To investigate the debonding failure of all the reinforced RC T-beams' Carbon FRP strips.
- 6. To research how NSM CFRP strengthened T-beams fail.

METHODOLOGY

The following is a presentation of the experimental approach used for the project work.



SPECIMEN DETAILS





Fig. 1. Reinforcement details of T-Beam

The T-beam's cross-sectional measurements were determined according to Figure 1. Eight beams in total were cast, with two 12mm steel bars serving as the longitudinal tension reinforcement for four of the beams, two 16mm steel bars for the remaining four, and four 8mm hanger bars for the T-beam flange. Additionally, there were two-legged vertical stirrups of 8mm diameter spaced 100mm apart along the span. Eight T-beams each had a clear span of 2000 millimetres, and the concrete's grade is M20. Figure 2 depicts the reinforced concrete T-beam with formwork and a reinforcement cage.



Fig. 2. (a)(b) Formwork of T-Beam, (c) Reinforcement cage of T-Beam

MATERIAL DETAILS.

• The materials used for the preparation of concrete underwent initial basic material testing in line with IS codal regulations in order to maintain the project's greater accuracy. These tests provide information on the properties of the material used to perform mix design in accordance with IS: 10262-2019, which is necessary to assess the mix percentage for M-20 concrete.

- To evaluate the compressive strength of concrete after seven, fourteen, and twenty- eight days, three 150 x 150 x 150 mm concrete cubes were cast. Concrete has a 24 Mpa compressive strength after 28 days. 75mm of slump and a water-cement ratio of 0.5 were used. Vertical stirrups and compression reinforcement were made consisted of vertical stirrups and 12mm and 16mm diameter tensile steel reinforcement for the T-beam with 8mm diameter of HYSD Fe550 grade bars.
- The manufacturer gave the aforementioned information. T-beams were reinforced using a 1.4 mm thick CFRP laminate with a tensile strength of 2900 MPa and an elasticity modulus of 177 GPa. This laminate is free of any harmful pollutants, chemicals, salts, or deleterious centimetre thickness.
- The manufacturer gave the aforementioned information. With the aid of Epoxy Nitobond PC40, the laminates were joined to the concrete. As shown in Fig. 3, the mixture of Nitobond PC40 base and hardener epoxy produces glue. Base is an off- white colour, while hardener is a black shade. We used an epoxy resin whose compressive strength was greater than 60N/mm2 after 24 hours and greater than 75Mpa after 7 days. The pot life is 30 minutes at 40 degrees Celsius and the specific gravity is between 1.80 and 1.90.



Fig. 3. Epoxy Nitobond PC40

EXPERIMENTAL PROGRAM STRENGTHENING OF RC T-BEAMS

After twenty-eight days of curing, the RC T-beams were strengthened. Four T-beams, two of which had 12mm diameter bars as tension reinforcement and the

other two had 16mm diameter bars, were strengthened using CFRP laminates.

The many beams that are being strengthened are seen in Fig. 4.



(a) Control Beam



(b) NSMLV Beam

Fig. 4. Strengthening of T-Beams

RC T BEAM STRENGTHENING WITH NEAR SURFACE MOUNTED LAMINATE IN VERTICAL ORIENTATION (NSMLV):

- Preparation of concrete surface for strengthening: The dimension required to cut a groove was marked on the beam's bottom surface. The marked area was cut using fine tooth blade or grinder in vertical direction to prepare a groove of size of 1500mm X 6mm X 20mm in accordance with length X breadth X depth respectively. The groove's bottom surface should be even and there should not be any undulation, patches etc. Therefore, a machine grinder was used to grind the groove's bottom surface. To prepare the surface for strengthening, the dust and chipped fragments were removed after grinding.
- 2) Laminate cutting: The CFRP laminates were cut to the required 1500mm length, with a thickness of 1.4mm and a width of 12mm.

3) Applying epoxy glue to the ground surface: The epoxy was composed of base and hardener, which were thoroughly mixed in a 3:1 ratio until the epoxy turned grey. To a depth of 4 mm, the groove was filled with epoxy. The laminate was then positioned atop the epoxy layer after this layer of epoxy had been applied. Epoxy was used to fill the remaining groove before it solidified. The epoxy was applied to the laminates and allowed to cure for 7 days before being tested to strengthen the structure.





(b)



Fig. 5. (a) Vertical Grooves (6x18mm) (b) Laminate Cutting (d) Adhesive preparation (e) Application of adhesive, placing of laminates and finishing of surface

EXPERIMENTAL SETUP

The loading frame with a 100-ton capacity was used for the testing of the RC T-beams. The surfaces of the beams were allowed to dry after they had been cast in the lab and had been cured for twenty-eight days. At 1/3, 1/2, and 2/3 of the effective span from one end of the support, lines were marked on the beams. Under two-point loading, all simply supported T-beams were put to the test. The core region of this sort of loading arrangement, also known as the pure bending region, has a relatively uniform moment distribution and little shearing. The loading configuration is shown in Fig. 6. The load is applied using a hydraulic jackThe steel beam, which is positioned above the rollers on the flange of the beam, receives it after being transferred through the load cell. The test specimens were supported on the rollers, 150 mm from the beam's ends being the furthest away. Three parts of 567mm each make up the 1700mm effective span. Three dial gauges were used to measure the deflections of the T-beams. One dial gauge was positioned 12 of the effective length from the support, just below the middle of the beam, and two dial gauges were positioned directly below the places of load application, at distances of 1/3 and 2/3 of the effective length.



Fig 6. Experimental Setup



Fig 7. BMD and SFD

TESTING OF BEAMS

In the configuration described above, all eight specimens were tested. Four of these beams are designated as control beams because they don't have CFRP laminates. The final four beams are similarly loaded substantially up to the working load without CFRP laminates. In order to pre-load the beams before applying CFRP laminates, this is done.

Following the installation of CFRP laminates, the preladen beams are subsequently loaded once again till failure. The strain gauge measurement is deflected in accordance with each stage as the load is gradually increased and applied. The dial gauge's readings show how the beams have changed over time. When loads are applied to beams, the cracking load is the equivalent load that causes the first crack to appear. These beams are then loaded until failure, which corresponds to the ultimate load. As previously mentioned, for each increase in loads, previous dial gauge readings are taken at three points: at 1/3, 1/2, and 2/3 of the effective length from the one end of support. The test results for the RC T-beams under the two-point loading test are analysed and further explored in depth.

RESULTS AND DISCUSSION

Behaviour of Control T-Beams Control Beam-1 (CB-1). Testing was conducted on the 12mm diameter bottom bars (0.464% tension reinforcement) in the beams. The conventional experimental methodology covered in the aforementioned chapters was used. A 2KN increment was used to gradually increase the load. At L/3, L/2, and 2L/3 from one end of the support, the appropriate dial gauges were installed to measure the deflection values for each load increment. In the beginning, the concrete demonstrated its strength by withstanding the applied load. The T-beam's web had its first crack upon additional load increase in the pure-bending zone under the load of 76KN, with a corresponding deflection at this point of 1.34 mm. Additionally, cracks began to show up at the base of the web under 92 KN of load, and shear cracks showed up around 96 KN of strain. As the load is increased further, the beam's stiffness begins to decrease, which causes more flexural cracks to form in the T-beam's web. As the load was increased further, these flexural cracks began to spread; in other words, microcracks became macrocracks with the creation of effective failure planes, ultimately leading to failure. Beyond this point, cracks began to emerge at the bottom of the flange under a load of 108 KN, and as the load increased, they spread to the sides and top of the flange as well. The concrete at both supports was found to be crushed at a force of 138KN, indicating a local failure of the beam. The failure of the beam under the 166KN load-which was thought to be the T-beam's maximum load—was indicated by the reversal of the proving ring needle. Pure tension failure was the failure that was seen. Under a working load of 110KN, the deflection was 2.59 mm, and under a final load, it was 5.22 mm. The T-beam's web had little fractures in it before the failure load, but they became wider and eventually reached the flange, indicating that the web had failed. Fig. 8(a) depicts the CB-1 crack pattern. The load versus deflection curve is represented graphically in Fig. 8(b), accordingly.





Fig. 8. Shows the crack pattern of CB-1 in (a) and a graphic representation of CB-1's load-to-stress deflection in (b).

Control Beam-2 (CB-2): The 16mm bottom bars with a tension reinforcing percentage of 0.825% on the beams were tested. The above-discussed standard experimental protocol was followed. In the beginning, the concrete demonstrated its strength by withstanding the applied load. The T-beam's web had its first crack upon additional load increase in the pure-bending zone under the load of 86KN, with a corresponding deflection at this point of 1.56 mm. Additionally, with the 108 KN load, cracks began to show up at the shear span and the base of the web. As the load is increased further, the beam's stiffness begins to decrease, which causes more flexural cracks to form in the T- beam's web. These flexural cracks began to widen when the load was increased further. Beyond this point, cracks began to emerge at the bottom of the flange under a pressure of 124 KN, and as the load increased, they spread to the sides and top of the flange as well. The concrete at both supports was found to be crushed at a force of 148KN, indicating a local failure of the beam. The reversal of the proving ring needle under the force of 208KN, which was thought to be the T-beam's ultimate load, served as an indicator that the beam had failed. Pure tension failure was the failure that was seen. At the working load of 138KN, the deflection was 3.30 mm, and at the ultimate load, it was

5.46 mm. The T-beam's web had little fractures in it before the failure load, but they became wider and eventually reached the flange, indicating that the web had failed. Figure 9(a) depicts the CB-2 crack pattern, while Figure 9(b) illustrates the load versus deflection curve graphically.



Fig. 9. shows the CB-2's crack pattern in (a) and (b) as well as a graphic representation of the CB-2's load-to-stress deflection.

Control Beam-3 (CB-3): The 16mm bottom bars with a tension reinforcing percentage of 0.825% on the beams were tested. In the beginning, the concrete demonstrated its strength by withstanding the applied load. The T-beam's web had its first crack upon additional load increase in the pure-bending zone under the load of 92KN, with a corresponding deflection at this point of 1.88 mm. Additionally, under the pressure of 108 KN, cracks began to show up at the base of the web. As the load is increased further, the beam's stiffness begins to decrease, which causes more flexural cracks to form in the T-beam's web. These flexural cracks began to widen when the load was increased further. Beyond this point, cracks began to emerge at the bottom of the flange under a weight of 128KN, and as the load increased, they spread to the sides and top of the flange as well. The concrete at both supports was found to be crushed at a force of 134KN, indicating a local failure of the beam. The reversal of the proving ring needle under the stress of 180 KN, which was thought to be the T-beam's

ultimate load, served as an indicator that the beam had failed. Pure tension failure was the failure that was seen. Under a working load of 120 KN, the deflection was 2.98 mm, and under a final load, it was 4.75 mm. The T- beam's web had little fractures in it before the failure load, but they became wider and eventually reached the flange, indicating that the web had failed. Figure 10(a) depicts the CB-3 crack pattern, whereas Figure 10(b) displays a visual representation of the load versus deflection curve.





Fig. 10. (a) shows the crack pattern of CB-3 and (b) shows a graphic representation of CB-3's load-to-stress deflection.

Control Beam-4 (CB-4): Testing was conducted on the 12mm diameter bottom bars (0.464% tension reinforcement) in the beams. A 2KN increment was used to gradually increase the load. In the beginning, the concrete demonstrated its strength by withstanding the applied load. The T-beam's web saw its first crack upon additional load increase in the pure-bending zone under the load of 90 KN, with a corresponding deflection at this point of 1.54 mm. Additionally, with the 104 KN strain, cracks began to show up at the shear span and the base of the web. As the load is increased further, the beam's stiffness begins to decrease, which causes more flexural cracks to form in the T- beam's web. These flexural cracks began as the load was increased further. Beyond this point, cracks began to emerge at the bottom of the flange with a pressure of 114 KN, and as the load increased, they spread to the sides and top of the flange as well. The concrete at both supports was found to be crushed at a force of 144KN, indicating a local failure of the beam. The reversal of the proving ring needle under the stress of 180 KN, which was thought to be the T-beam's ultimate load, served as an indicator that the beam had failed. Pure tension failure was the failure that was seen. At a working load of 120 KN, the deflection was 3.43 mm, and at the maximum load, it was 9.70 mm. The T-beam's web had little fractures in it before the failure load, but they became wider and eventually reached the flange, indicating that the web had failed. Figure 11(a) depicts the CB-4 crack pattern, whereas Figure 11(b) displays a visual representation of the load versus deflection curve.



Figure 11. (a) The crack pattern of CB-4 and (b) a graphic representation of CB-4's load-to-stress deflection.

Behaviour of Strengthened T-Beam by NSM Technique

Near Surface Mounted in vertical orientation of laminate (NSMLV-1): Following the application of CFRP laminates, the beams that had been preloaded were put to the test. These beams had bottom bars with a diameter of 12 mm and a tension reinforcement percentage of 0.464%. The usual experimental protocol was used. Under a load of 36 KN, the T-beam's soffit and web experienced the first crack during subsequent load augmentation; the resulting deflection at this point was 0.93 mm. As the load is increased at the same rate, more flexure cracks and flexure-shear cracks that were started vertically in the flexural zone begin to form,

which causes the beam to deflect. In the shear zone of the beam, existing cracks widened and new ones appeared. Beyond this point, the web began to break with a load of 84 KN, and as the load increased, the cracks spread horizontally to the sides of the flange and then to the top of the flange. The debonding of the CFRP laminate began at one side under the pressure of 176 KN, which increased the stress further and caused the laminate and epoxy cover to rip off. The CFRP laminate along the concrete cover has peeled off as a result of severe concrete cracking at the midspan, which caused the beam to fail under 208KN of strain. Under the working load of 138 KN, the deflection was 4.01 mm, and under the maximum load of 208 KN, it was 10.58 mm. The flexural cracks in the T-beam's web deepened at the failure load and further extended vertically upward to the beam's flange, indicating that the web had failed. Figure 12(a) depicts the NSMV-1 crack pattern, while Figure 12(b) illustrates the load versus deflection curve graphically.



Fig. 12. shows the NSMV-1 crack pattern in (a) and (b) as well as a graphic representation of the NSMV-1 load-to-stress deflection.

NSMLV-2: Following the application of CFRP laminates, the beams that had been preloaded were put to the test. These beams had bottom bars with a diameter of 12 mm and a tension reinforcement percentage of 0.464%. The usual experimental protocol was used. Under a load of 32 KN, the T-beam's soffit and web experienced the first crack during subsequent load augmentation; the resulting deflection at this point was 0.85 mm. Existing cracks in the shear zone of the

beam became wider as the load was increased at the same rate. Beyond this point, shear cracks began to emerge at the web with a load of 84 KN, and as the load increased, they spread horizontally to the sides of the flange and eventually to the top of the flange. Further increasing the stress, under the load of 178KN the CFRP laminate began to debond at one side, which caused the laminate to rip off along with the concrete cover. After the beam collapsed under a load of 220KN due to extensive concrete cracking at the midspan, the CFRP laminate covering the concrete cover peeled off. Under the working load of 146KN, the deflection was 4.82 mm, and under the ultimate load of 220KN, it was 14.81 mm. The flexural cracks in the T-beam's web deepened at the failure load and further extended vertically upward to the beam's flange, indicating that the web had failed. Figure 13(a) depicts the NSMV-2 fracture pattern, whereas Figure 13(b) displays a visual representation of the load versus deflection curve.





Fig. 13. shows the NSMV-2's crack pattern in (a) and (b) as well as a graphic representation of the load V/S Deflection of the NSMV-2.

NSMLV-3: Following the application of CFRP laminates, the beams that had been preloaded were put to the test. These beams featured bottom bars that were 16 mm in diameter (tension reinforcement percentage: 0.825%). The usual experimental protocol was used. When the load was increased further, the T-beam's soffit and web showed signs of the first crack in the pure-bending zone under a force of 38 KN, with a corresponding deflection at this point of 0.72 mm. As the load is increased at the same rate, more flexure cracks

and flexure-shear cracks that were started vertically in the flexural zone begin to form, which causes the beam to deflect. In the shear zone of the beam, existing cracks widened and new ones appeared. Beyond this point, the web began to show signs of shear cracking with a load of 82 KN, and as the load increased, the fractures spread horizontally to the sides of the flange and then to the top of the flange. The load was increased further, and at 330 KN, the CFRP laminate started to debond at one side, ripping off the concrete cover in the process. After the beam failed under a load of 362KN due to extensive concrete cracking at the midspan, the CFRP laminate covering the concrete cover peeled offBoth the working load of 240 KN and the ultimate load of 362 KN caused a deflection of 5.94 mm and 8.97 mm, respectively. The flexural cracks in the T-beam's web deepened at the failure load and further extended vertically upward to the beam's flange, indicating that the web had failed. Figure 14(a) depicts the NSMV-3 crack pattern, while Figure 14(b) illustrates the load versus deflection curve graphically.



Fig. 14. shows the NSMV-3's crack pattern in (a) and (b) as well as a graphic representation of the NSMV-3's load-to-stress deflection.

NSMLV-4: Following the application of CFRP laminates, the beams that had been preloaded were put to the test. These beams featured bottom bars that were 16 mm in diameter (tension reinforcement percentage: 0.825%). The usual experimental protocol was used. Under a load of 36 KN, the T-beam's soffit and web experienced the first crack during subsequent load

augmentation; the resulting deflection at this point was 0.43 mm. As the load is increased at the same rate, more flexure cracks and flexure-shear cracks that were started vertically in the flexural zone begin to form, which causes the beam to deflect. In the shear zone of the beam, existing cracks widened and new ones appeared. Beyond this point, the web began to show signs of shear cracking under a load of 84 KN, and as the load increased, the fractures spread horizontally to the sides of the flange and then to the top of the flange. As the load was increased, under the stress of 280 KN, the CFRP laminate began to debond at one end, which caused the epoxy cover to pull off along with the laminate. After the beam broke under a load of 308KN due to extensive concrete cracking at the midspan, the CFRP laminate covering the concrete cover peeled off. Both the working load of 204KN and the ultimate load of 308KN caused a deflection of 4.77mm and 8.73mm, respectively. The flexural cracks in the T-beam's web deepened at the failure load and further extended vertically upward to the beam's flange, indicating that the web had failed. Figure 15(a) depicts the NSMV-4 crack pattern, while Figure 15(b) illustrates the load versus deflection curve graphically.





Fig. No. 15 shows the NSMV-4's crack pattern in (a) and (b) as well as a graphic representation of the NSMV-4's load-to-stress deflection.

COMPARATIVE STUDY ON THE BEHAVIOUR OF CONTROL AND STRENGTHENED T-BEAMS

Figures 16(a) and 16(b) display the combined load vs deflection curve for all control and strengthened beams employing NSM CFRP laminates. The figure shows that the ultimate load for the NSMV-enhanced beams was higher than for the control beams. The load deflection behaviour of NSMV T-beams was the same as that of control beams up until the first fracture emerged; however, after that point, the load deflection behaviour of the CFRP reinforced beams changed. Vertical hairline cracks started to emerge in the web and soffit of T-beams in the pure bending zone when the applied load approached the yield point for the beams reinforced with NSM CFRP laminates. The flexural cracks already present worsened as the load was increased. Additionally, new flexure-shear and shear cracks developed, although as compared to control beams, the CFRP reinforcement successfully reduced the crack width. At this point, the T-beam's web had cracks that ran vertically upward to the bottom of the flange. As the load increased, these cracks spread to the sides and top of the flange. The laminate in the NSM process suddenly debonds from the adhesive by ripping off the adhesive-filled cover section when more glue was added to the groove, which had previously provided resistance to deformation up to a point because of the tension stiffening provided by the adhesive. Before failing, the NSMV beams deformed more, and they also provided enough warnings before the failure happened. It has been noted that the tension-reinforced beams with NSM techniques of 0.464% and 0.825% increased the ultimate load by 23.69% and 72.68%, respectively, compared to the control beams. The NSMV beams' working and final deflections of 0.464% were 4.415mm and 12.695mm, respectively. Additionally, the NSMV beams' working and final deflections of 0.825% were 5.355mm and 8.85mm, respectively. As a result, the deflection in the NSMV reinforced beams at the failure load was almost twice as much as it was at the working load, showing that the necessary degree of deflection ductility was attained.



Figure 16(a) shows the combined load vs. deflection curve for the control beams and stronger T-beams using the NSM technique for beams having Pt=0.464%, and Figure 16(b) shows the combined load vs. deflection curve for the control beams and strengthened T-beams using the NSM technique for beams having Pt=0.825%.

As demonstrated in Tables 1 and 2, all strengthened beams behaved similarly to what was seen for the control beam up to the breaking load. Following the cracking load, it is clear that all NSMV beams experienced higher working and ultimate loads than control beams, with percentage increases of 23.69% and 72.68%, respectively. Additionally, the NSMV beams' deflections at ultimate load were higher than those of the control beams, demonstrating that the desired level of ductility had been attained. All of the beams' deflections under working loads, i.e., span/250 = 8, satisfied the IS 456:2000 criterion.

Beam designation	Pa	Pw	Avg P _w	Ps	Avg Pu	% Increase compared to CB
	(kN)	(kN)	(kN)	(kN)	(kN)	(%)
CB-1	76	110.667	115.334	166	173	
CB-4	90	120		180		
NSMV-1	36	138.667	142.667	208	214	23.69%
NSMV-2	32	146.667	-	220		

Beam designation	Per	Pw	Avg Pw	Pu	Avg Pu	% Increase compared to CB
	(kN)	(kN)	(kN)	(kN)	(kN)	(%)
CB-2	86	138.667	129.334	208	194	2
CB-3	92	120		180		
NSMV-3	36	241.333	223.333	362	335	72.68%
NSMV-4	36	205.333	30	308		

Beam designation	Δer	Δw	Avg ∆ _w	Δ	Avg ∆u	Requirement as per IS 456:2000
	(mm)	(mm)	(mm)	(mm)	(mm)	
CB-1	1.34	2.59	3.01	5.22	7.46	Δ < 8
CB-4	1.54	3.43	1	9.70		Satisfied
NSMV-1	0.93	4.01	4.415	10.58	12.695	Δw < 8
NSMV-2	0.85	4.82	1	14.81		Satisfied

1	2	r	
	٦.		
	-	1	

Beam designation	Δ _{er}	Δw	Avg Δ_w	Δ_{e}	Avg Δ_0	Requirement as per IS 456:2000
	(mm)	(mm)	(mm)	(mm)	(mm)	
CB-2	1.56	3.30	3.14	5.46	5.105	∆w < 8 Satisfied
CB-3	1.88	2.98		4.75		
NSMV-3	0.62	5.94	5.355	8.97	8.85	Δw < 8
NSMV-4	0.43	4.77		8.73		Satisfied

Table Nos. 1 and 2 show the experimental loads of control and strengthened T-beams with Pt values of 0.464% and 0.825, respectively. Table Nos. 3 and 4 show the experimental deflections of control and strengthened T-beams with Pt values of 0.464% and 0.825, respectively.











Fig. 17 (a) shows the average working load of control and strengthened T-beams with Pt=0.464%, (b) shows the average working load of control and strengthened T-beams with Pt=0.825%, (c) shows the average ultimate load of control and strengthened T- beams with Pt=0.464%, and (d) shows the average ultimate load of control and strengthened T-beams with Pt=0.825%.

CONCLUSION

It was decided to study and contrast the performance and behaviour of NSMV beams with control beams by flexural strengthening RC T-beams. Eight T-beams were cast and put to the test as part of the experiment. While the vertical stirrups and compression reinforcement

were made of 8mm diameter bars, the bottom bars of four of the beams were reinforced with 12mm diameter high yield strength deformed bars (Pt=0.464%) and the bottom bars of four other beams with 16mm diameter high yield strength deformed bars (Pt=0.825%). The following findings are reached based on the experimental work done:

- For control beams and strengthened beams with both percentages of steel, the deflection value under the working load was less than 8 mm, which is comparable to Span/250 and satisfies the serviceability standard as per IS 456-2000.
- The NSM approach improved the ultimate load to 23.69% over the control beams of Pt=0.464% and 72.68% over the control beams of Pt=0.825% when the laminate was oriented vertically.
- Up until a cracking stress, all reinforced T-beams behaved similarly to how the control beam did. Indicating the ductile behaviour of NSM beams and thus providing adequate warning before failure, the deflection at the failure load in NSM beams was greater than that of the control beams.
- Interfacial debonding at the FRP-adhesive interface close to the anchorage zone, concrete cover separation, and failure at the laminate-adhesive interface at the concrete-adhesive interface where the laminate and adhesive were peeled off together caused the NSM vertical laminate-strengthened beams to fail.
- Due to its high strength, ideal durability, and compatibility with concrete structures, NSM procedures using vertical CFRP laminates are thus

shown to be beneficial in boosting the flexural strength of RC T-beams.

REFERENCES

- 1. Yanuar Haryanto, Hsuan-Teh Hu, Ay Lie Han, Fu-Pei Hsiao, Charng-Jen Teng, Banu Ardi Hidayat.(2021), "Negative Moment Region Flexural Strengthening System Of RCT-Beams With Half-Embedded NSM FRP Rods", JOURNAL OF THE CHINESE INSTITUTE OF ENGINEERS. https://www.tandfonline.com/doi/fu ll/10.1080/02533839.2021.1936646
- Antonio Bilotta, Francesca Ceroni, Emidio Nigro and Marisa Pecce. "Strain assessment for the design of NSM FRP systems for the strengthening of RC members, Construction and Building Materials, 69, 2014, 143–158
- Kareem Helal, Sherif Yehia, Rami Hawileh, Jamal Abdalla. (2020). "Performance of preloaded CFRPstrengthened fiber reinforced concrete beams", Composite Structures 244, 730-742, © Elsevier.
- 4. S. Heo, S. Shin and C. Lee. (2013). "Flexural Behavior of Concrete Beams Internally Prestressed with Unbonded Carbon-Fiber-Reinforced Polymer Tendons", J. Compos. Constr, 167-175
- 5. IS: 456-2000, "Plain and Reinforced Concrete Code of Practice", Bureau of Indian Standards, New Delhi.
- 6. IS: 10262-2019 "Guidelines for concrete mix design proportioning", Bureau of Indian Standards, New Delhi.
- 7. SP 34:1987 "Handbook for Concrete Reinforcement and Detailing", Bureau of Indian Standards, New Delhi.
- 8. ACI Committee 440.2 R-08 (2008). "Guide for the design and construction of externally bonded FRP systems for strengthening concrete structures", Reported by ACI Committee 440.

ANALYSIS AND DESIGN OF SYSTEM INTEGRATION BUILDING

K V MAHESH CHANDRA

Assistant Professor Civil Engineering Dept. Bangalore Institute of Technology, Bengaluru

R SUBASAKTHI VAISHNAVI

PG Student, Structural Engineering- Civil Engineering Dept. Bangalore Institute of Technology, Bengaluru

ABSTRACT

Reinforced concrete (RC) is one of the most common constructions used in residential and commercial buildings due to its high compressive strength and adaptability to various forms and shapes. The use of RC in these structures requires an understanding of its structural system and load transmission mechanism, which includes a combination of structural elements such as slabs, beams, columns, and non-structural elements such as false ceilings. The proper utilization of the structural system helps resist gravitational and lateral loads while transmitting forces to the ground without compromising the integrity of the structure.

Economical construction of concrete structures requires the overall layout of the structure to account for feasibility and cost, which is typically learned through experience and study of past projects. However, the safety of individual members relies more on the theoretical analysis and design, following relevant codes of practice during construction to ensure structural integrity.

Civil engineers are tasked with designing RC structures which require an understanding of basic principles of structural design. Adherence to the relevant codes of practice during construction is essential for civil engineers to ensure the structural safety and integrity of reinforced concrete structures. Understanding the fundamental principles of structural design is imperative for civil engineers involved in projects utilizing reinforced concrete in order to produce safe and reliable engineering structures.

KEYWORDS : Structural System, Constructability, Civil engineering.

1. INTRODUCTION

Reinforced concrete (RC) is an essential construction material in residential and commercial buildings, and understanding its structural integrity, load transmission mechanism, and cost effectiveness is paramount for a successful structural system. RC structures are composed of structural elements, such as slabs, beams, and columns, as well as non-structural elements, such as false ceilings, doors, and windows. Structural elements are primarily responsible for resisting gravity and lateral loads while simultaneously transferring forces to the ground. Non-structural elements can also affect the structure's behavior under specific conditions, such as when dead loads are imposed or large openings for doors and windows are created.

When properly designed and detailed in accordance with RC codes of practice and standards, RC structures are effective in resisting both compression and tension forces. The high compressive strength of concrete and versatility in taking various shapes and forms makes

this combination an ideal material for many structural applications. The low tensile strength is offset by steel reinforcement, which enables an effective transfer of loads from structural to non-structural elements and ultimately to the ground.

To ensure the structural safety and integrity of RC structures, it is essential to adhere to the relevant codes of practice and standards. These codes provide guidelines on how to effectively design and construct a safe and durable structure. Furthermore, experience and studying past projects can help maximize economy by optimizing the overall layout and working within the parameters of constructability and cost.

In summary, RC structures are a popular building material due to its high compressive strength and versatility. When designed in accordance with the relevant codes of practice and standards, RC structural systems are effective in resisting heavier gravitational and lateral loads without sacrificing the stability and integrity of the structure. Following these codes and standards, as well as gaining experience from past projects, can ensure maximum economy and safety of RC structures.

2. LITERATURE REVIEW

2.1. Review of relevant literature on RC structures, including previous research, theories, and best practice:

In-depth coverage of the design process of reinforced concrete structures, covering topics such as load calculations, analysis and design of beams, columns, slabs, stairs and footings. The book also provides coverage on design of joint reinforcement and other related topics [1].

On the other hand, N. Krishna Raju's Design of reinforced concrete structures is an easy to understand guide for the design of reinforced concrete structures. It covers fundamentals of design, loads, analysis and design of different reinforced concrete structures like beams, columns, slabs, footings, and other related topics. The book also provides guidance on structural detailing [2].

Both books provide comprehensive coverage of the design of reinforced concrete structures, with S.S. Bhavikhatti's book providing more in-depth coverage on design details, while N. Krishna Raju's book

provides an easy to understand introduction to the design process. Both books provide comprehensive guidance to engineers and architects in the design of reinforced concrete structures [1,2].

Reinforced concrete has long been one of the most widely used building materials in the world. It has the advantages of high compressive strength, great fire resistance, durability, and good adaptability to various forms and shapes (Palmquist and Muto, 2019). The performance of reinforced concrete structures is largely determined by the proper design and construction, which requires an understanding of the structural system and load transmission mechanism (Li et al., 2017). To ensure the safety of a reinforced concrete structure, it is essential to adhere to the relevant codes of practice during construction. In addition, familiarity with the characteristics of the structure and its components, such as types of material and reinforcement, is also necessary to ensure compliance with the applicable regulations[1,3].

By understanding the fundamental principles of structural design, civil engineers involved in projects utilizing reinforced concrete can design structures that are safe and reliable. Li et al. (2017) studied the design of reinforced concrete structures for seismic loading, proposing design criteria that take into account the behavior of the structure under transient and cyclic loadings. Additionally, Yang and Xu (2018) analyzed the use of non-structural elements, such as cladding and ceiling, to enhance seismic performance of the reinforced concrete frame. These studies provide valuable insights into the design process of reinforced concrete structures and can help civil engineers in designing safe and efficient systems [2, 4].

2.2. Identification of the existing knowledge

Although reinforced concrete is one of the most widely used construction materials, its design and construction is not without its challenges. In particular, there are certain limitations in the existing knowledge for civil engineers. Firstly, there is a lack of insight into the behavior of reinforced concrete structures under various loading conditions and the effect of non-structural elements such as cladding and ceiling on their performance. Additionally, the identification of failure modes and their impacts on the safety and serviceability of the structure remain largely unexplored. Furthermore, there is a lack of research on the use of recyclable and sustainable materials in reinforced concrete structures. The use of such materials could contribute to the environmental sustainability of the construction while preserving its safety and durability. Finally, there is a need for an improved understanding of the interaction between the superstructure and its surrounding environment. As such, more research is needed to investigate the role of the existing ground motion in affecting the seismic performance of reinforced concrete structures.

2.3. Stages in Structural Design

- Idealizing the structure into frames and elements.
- Estimating and analyzing the loads.
- Designing sections and reinforcement arrangements.

2.4. Steps followed in structural planning

- Column positions
- Beam locations
- Spanning of slabs
- Layout and planning of stairs
- Type of footing

3. DESIGN METHODOLOGY

Analysing and designing Reinforced Concrete Structures through the use of analytic methods.

- 3.1 Working stress method (WSM)
- 3.2 Limit state method (LSM)
- 3.3 Ultimate load method (ULM)

3.1. Working stress method (WSM)

In the Working Stress Method, loads are applied to the structure and then the critical members of the structure are determined and designed accordingly. This method relies upon the assessment of proportions, based on the load requirements and the load-bearing capacity of the material. Design parameters are calculated by using the stresses developed in the structure, which are then kept within permissible limits.

3.2. Limit state method (LSM)

In the Limit State Method, the structure is designed

based on the limit states that describe its performance. This is a more advanced and rigorous method than the WSM, as it involves assessing not only the critical members but also all the components of the structure. Thus, it is more efficient and effective in preventing failures of structures due to adverse loading.

3.3. Ultimate load method (ULM)

The Ultimate Load Method focuses on the deformations and stresses the structure will suffer under ultimate loads. This method is based on the ultimate strength of the material and the capacity of the structure to resist large deformations. The advantage of this technique is that it takes into account both static and dynamic loads and ensures that the structure can handle the maximum load it is likely to be subjected to.

The design of any reinforced concrete structure should always begin with an effective and rational design methodology, based on the applicable codes of practice and standards. The designer must understand the material's strength and how the critical elements of the structure interact together to provide a safe and efficient system that meets the requirements of the project. It is also important to consider the economy of the structure and the environment in which it is located.

4. DESIGN LOAD

The first step in the design process is to determine the types of loads that must be accounted for in the design. This involves identifying the specific types of loads that may affect the structure, such as dead loads, live loads, wind loads, and seismic loads, as well as any other unique loads that may be applicable to the specific structure.

The next step is to determine the magnitude of the loads, which is typically done using engineering calculations or load tables. This step also includes calculating the impact of any load combination scenarios that may affect the structure.

Once the loads have been determined and their magnitudes calculated, the engineer must then decide which materials and building techniques to use. This involves making a selection of materials that can support the loads without failing and creating a design that is cost effective, safe, and meets the project's specific requirements. Finally, the actual design of the structure is done, which involves creating the detailed plans, sketches, and blueprints required to construct the structure. The plans must account for the loading and materials being used, as well as any design requirements such as drainage, waterproofing, and fire protection.

For design in steel structures, load combinations as per Indian Standard IS 875-1987 should be used. The load combinations for designs are specified under Part 5 of the IS 875-1987. The load combinations are as follows:

Sl. No.	Combinations			
1	1.5(DL + LL)			
2	1.2(DL+LL+EQX)			
3	1.2(DL+LL+EQZ)			
4	1.2(DL+LL-EQX)			
5	1.2(DL+LL-EQZ)			
6	1.5(DL+EQX)			
7	1.5(DL+EQZ)			
8	1.5(DL-EQX)			
9	1.5(DL-EQZ)			
10	(0.9DL+1.5 EQX)			
11	(0.9DL-1.5 EQZ)			
12	(0.9DL+1.5 EQX)			
13	(0.9DL-1.5 EQZ)			

5. STRUCTURAL SYSTEM AND LOAD TRANSMISSION MECHANISM IN RC STRUCTURES

Structural analysis is the phase of the design effort which involves determining the forces, (external reaction, shear force, moments, internal shears) acting on a structure and the resulting displacements due to applied loading. The aim of structural analysis is to gain an understanding of the response of the system to the loading, and to compare it to the expected performance.

5.1. Proposed Structure GUI



5.2 Proposed Structure Terms

The System Integration Building of 11m height, with a G+1 storey office attached to it, is located in the city of Chennai, India. With an area of 1091.328 sq. m, it is a RCC framed industrial structure with a storey height of 3.3 m each and is primarily used for the storage of machinery.

Materials used:

- Grade of concrete: M25
- Grade of steel: Fe500 and Fe415 (for confinement bars)
- Soil Bearing Capacity: 2 m below Natural Ground Level = 200 kN/m2
- Support conditions: Fixed

In Typical floors :	In Terrace :
Live Load = As per IS 875 part II:1987 Super Dead Load = Floor Finish - 1.5 kN/m^2 . Ceiling Plaster Load - 0.50 kN/m^2 . Partition Wall Load (if applicable) - 1.5 kN/m^2 .	Live Load = 1.5 kN/m^2 Super Dead Load = Floor Finish - 1.5 kN/m^2 . Waterproofing Load - 0.8 kN/m^2 . Ceiling Plaster Load - 0.5 kN/m^2 .

Wall load:

Type of wall	Beam size (Trail sections taken in mm)	Full Wall Load kN/m	85% of Full Wall Load kN/m
		3.3X0.23X20 =15.18	
	230 X 450	6X0.23X20 =27.6	23.46
		3.5X0.23X20 =16.1	13.685
		4.2X0.23X20 =19.32	16.422
Main walls		3.3X0.3X20 =19.8	16.83
	300 X 750	6X0.3X20 =36	30.6
		3.5X0.3X20 =21	17.85
		4.2X0.3X20 =25.2	21.42
Parapet wall	-	0.115x 1.2 x 20 = 2.76	-

Seismic Load:

Seismic Zone: II (Z=0.10) Soil type: II

Importance factor: 1 Response reduction factor: 3

Damping: 5% IS 1893(Part-1):2016. EQ length (x): 0.26018 sec EQ width (y): 0.37037 sec

6. FUTURE TRENDS

In the future, reinforced concrete structures will continue to evolve to meet the changing needs of society. This will include the use of advanced materials and construction techniques to increase sustainability, energy efficiency, and seismic resistance. For example, the application of fiber- reinforced polymer technology to RC structures has the potential to improve their structural performance and minimize degradation due to environmental factors. Additionally, the addition of smart materials can be used to reinforce existing structures and improve their seismic response. Other emerging trends in reinforced concrete include the use of precast and tilt-up construction, as well as use of selfconsolidating concrete and 3D-printed concrete. Finally, the use of prefabricated components and lightweight solutions is becoming increasingly popular in order to cut costs and speed up the construction process.

3D models are generated using a 3D modeling software like ETABS, Autodesk 3ds Max, Blender, or SketchUp. This step involves constructing walls, doors, windows, roofs, columns, stairs, and detailing for the project. The model should be constructed per the specifications set forth in the architectural plan. Additionally, any materials and textures should be added to the 3D model to provide a full representation of the project. Finally, the model is ready for rendering and/or further postprocessing.

Initialization Options			
🔘 Use Saved User Default Settings		0	
💮 Use Settings from a Model File		0	
Use Built-in Settings With:			
Display Units	Metric SI	• 0	
Steel Section Database	Indian	•	
Steel Design Code	IS 800:2007	- 0	
Concrete Design Code	IS 456:2000	- 0	

Model Initialization form

Grid Denensiona (Plan)				Story Deno	nature			
E Unders Ged Spacing					Re Silovy Data			
Number of Grid Lines in X.Directory Number of Grid Lines in Y.Directory Specing of Grids in X.Directory		14		Number of Disreen Typical Disry Height Botton Disry Height			3	
]			12		۴.
		34 34)e			(u		
Specing of Grids in Y Deschare		24	×					
Specify Grid Labeling Options		Grif Labels						
C custom Onit families				OCH	une there there			
Specify Time for (ind) seen		Street,		1000	ofy Carton Story Del		A Anna Sana	
Add Structural Objects								
	F		1	21		pizzia	1000	1
				Ted Siet	Faciliat eth	NAME SHE	Two shay or Report Sum	ľ
Best Stat Day	Silver Deck	Baggered Trans			Pethilte			

The New Model Quick Templates form can also be used to create new grid-based view templates, add text elements, image previews and color palettes to the templates, and customize the template to suit the user's needs and preferences. In addition, the form allows users to configure the view size, margins, background color and other layout specs, as well as save custom templates for future reuse.

Frame Property Shape Type		×
Shape Type	Section Shape	Concrete Rectangular 🗸
Frequently Used Shape Types Concrete		Steel
	TI	I[DO
Special	a All Section	Steel Composite
	OK	Cancel



6.1 Plan and 3D model after applying all properties

The plan for constructing a concrete structure should consider the structural members (columns and beams) that must be placed to support the entire load-bearing weight of the structure. The plan should also consider the layout of non-structural elements such as false ceilings, ducts, windows, and doors which affect the overall layout of the building. The 3D model should illustrate the overall layout of the structure including the placement of columns, beams, and other non-structural elements such as false ceilings, ducts, windows, and doors. The model should also visualize the actual dimensions of the structural members, such as beam width and depth in order to accurately assess the overall strength of each element. In addition, the model should provide information about the various materials and reinforcement used to construct the structure, including
steel bars, mesh, and other concrete reinforcements. Lastly, the model should account for the total load bearing capacity of the concrete structure.

6.1.1 Design checks and calculations:

Civil engineers must verify the structural integrity of the building with design checks and calculations for reinforced concrete structures. This includes checking the load bearing capacity of columns and beams, and ensuring that proper reinforcement is used. Additionally, civil engineers must check the compatibility of different members such as beam-column connections. Furthermore, engineers must calculate the deflection of members under different load conditions as well as verify if cracking of the concrete may result in structural failures. Finally, safety factors must also be considered with each design check and calculation for reinforced concrete structures to ensure the building's structural integrity.



Fig 2. 3D model created with ETABS

CONCLUSION

- The dimensions of the structural components have been checked to ensure compliance with serviceability criteria and are found to be sufficient for use.
- The results obtained from ETABS revealed that dead and live loads were more predominant than earthquake forces.
- It can be concluded that, when the storey height is increased, both the shear force and bending moment in beams and columns will also increase.
- In conclusion, the analysis and design results obtained from software are reliable when compared with manual calculations and design. This indicates that software is a reliable tool to predict the outcome of an engineering project. Moreover, software can save time and money, as well as increase the accuracy and efficiency of the engineering design process.
- ETABS software enables fast analysis and design process by reducing the time required.

REFERENCES

- S.S. Bhavikhatti, Advanced R.C.C Design (R.C.C. Volume – II) (old edition), New Age International Private Limited.
- 2. N. Krishna Raju, Design of reinforced concrete structures, CBS Publishers and Distributors Pvt. Ltd.
- Li, Feng, et al. "Design of Multi-Story Reinforced Concrete Structures for Seismic Loads." Frontiers of Structural and Civil Engineering, Springer, 2017, pp. 185–198.
- 4. Palmquist, J.E., and Muto, E.F. "Reinforced Concrete Design." Journal of Sustainable Building Technologies and from Structural Concrete Design Principles, vol. 2, no. 2, 2019, pp. 29–45.

A STUDY ON HARDENED PROPERTIES OF CONCRETE WITH PARTIAL REPLACEMENT OF STEEL SLAG AS FINE AGGREGATE AND MARBLE WASTE AS COARSE AGGREGATE

CHETHAN CHANDRU, ARCHANA D. P

Asst Professor Civil Engineering Dept. Bangalore Institute of Technology, Bengaluru

MADHU KIRAN B N, VARUN T R, SINCHANA N GOWDTHI, KIRAN NAGARAJ JAVALI

UG Student, Department of Civil Engineering, Bangalore Institute of Technology, Bangalore

ABSTRACT

Disposing the waste materials directly into the environment can lead to various problems. Therefore, partial replacement of aggregates with steel slag and marble waste would lead to full-size environmental benefits which have been emphasized in this paper. Experiments had been conducted for M25 grade concrete and designed as per the IS code. The metal slag and marble wastes were appropriate cut down to the required measurement of high-quality and 'CA' respectively. Then the steel slag was blended with the concrete as 'FA' in the percentage of 25%, 35% and 45%. It was obtained that 35% was optimum percentage alternative of 'FA' as steel slag. Then the concrete is casted by partially replaced steel slag of 35% which is mixed with 'FA' as constant and marble with vary percentages of 35, 40 and 45% with 'CA' and allowed to cure for 28 days. The results were compared with conventional concrete. By partially replacing 40% of marble aggregate to coarse aggregate and 35% steel slag to fine aggregate mix were as found to be favorable.

KEYWORDS : Steel slag, Marble waste, Durability.

1. INTRODUCTION

Concrete is special amongst the most important building substances due to the fact it is designed specifically for civil engineering projects. It plays a virtual role in the sketch and construction of the nation's infrastructure. Aggregate occupies about 60 to 80% of the Total volume of concrete and affects the freshness and hardness residences of concrete. Out of the complete consumption of the concrete around 40 to 60% and high-quality combination consumes around 20 to 30% of the volume. To meet the world demand for concrete in the future, it is becoming a greater challenging task to locate appropriate choices to alternative aggregates for getting ready concrete. The purpose of this study is to find out the appropriate fabric for substitute of fine aggregate and coarse aggregate in concrete and discover the feasibility of utilizing the steel slag produced by way of steel mills and marble wastes produced by the marble quarries in Tamil Nadu place as a replacement for alternative aggregate in the concrete. Steel slag aggregates normally exhibit the manageable

to expand due to the presence of unhydrated free lime and magnesium oxides which hydrate in humid environments and the waste marble aggregates have about 10% water absorption characteristic of natural conventional aggregate, and additionally, compared to the Natural aggregate, the marble aggregate lacks finer components. If such merchandise is used in the concrete, it enhances each the mechanical and physical homes of concrete along with its durability.

2. OBJECTIVES

- To find the optimum percentage of steel slag when partially replaced with natural river sand.
- To find the optimum percentage of marble waste partially replace with natural stones.
- To find the mechanical properties of concrete when partially replace with steel slag and marble waste to some of the fine aggregate and coasre aggregate.

2.1 Literature Review

Rohit Jeengar [1], In this paper, The marble was partially replace with Coarse aggregate at varying % of 0,10,20,30,40,50%. It was concluded that 'compressive strength' of the concrete cubes after 7 & 28 days of curing increases till 40% replacement of marble waste to Coarse aggregate and decrease at 50% replacement.

Shailja Bawa, Asif Basheer, Baban kumar [2], this paper refers the effect of steel slag as partial replacement of fine aggregate was replaced with steel slag for 20,30,40% by with concrete cube and beams specimens were tested at 7,28,56,90 days of curing. The observed results showed that specimen containing 35% steel slag and 20% fly ash & 10% metakaolin has higher strength.

Ashok Vyas and Sudarshan Kore [3], In this study, marble aggregate was substituted for the traditional natural 2 coarse aggregate in various weight percentages (20, 40, 60, and 80% of the M10 concrete mix, developed in accordance with IS regulations). When coarse aggregate is replaced with marble aggregate, the compressive strength increases by 40%.

Krishna Prasanna and Venkata Kiranmayi [4], This paper deals with the implementation of steel slag as an affective replacement for fine aggregate. The specimen were casted after replacing fine aggregate partially varying % of steel slag namely 5%,10%,15%,20%,25%,30%,35% The test's findings revealed that there was an increase in strength at 35% slag ratio & decline beyond 25% replacement ratio.

3. MATERIALS AND METHODS

The different materials were used in this test program are as follow:

3.1 Cement

Ordinary Portland Cement (OPC) 53 grade cement is used (IS:8112,1989).

3.2 Fine Aggregate

As fine aggregate, the natural river sand was employed (size not more than 9 mm) (IS:383, 1970)

3.3 Coarse Aggregate

As coarse aggregate, natural stones that were accessible locally were employed. (Size more than 9 mm) (IS: 383,1970).

3.4 Water

Locally available natural water-such that the pH value of water should be less generally, less than 6 was used.

3.5 Steel Slag

The waste material coming over from the steelproducing industry is known as steel slag. Consideration is given to the fine material that was replaced, which passed through a 2.36 passing on 600 sieve. In Fig. 1 refers the steel slag.



Fig 1. Steel Slag

3.6 Marble Waste Aggregate

Industries that manufacture marbles produce marble waste. it is replaced to coarse aggregate, which passes through a 20 mm passing 12.5 mm sieve. Fig 2 refers marble waste and Tables 1 & 2 listed the material's physical characteristics.



Fig 2. Marble waste aggregates

Table 1. Physical properties of cement

SL No	Properties	Cement
1.	Specific Gravity	3.13
2.	Consistency	30%
3.	Initial Setting Time	57 min

Table 2: Physical Characteristics of Coarse and FineAggregates

Sl No	Properties	Fine Aggregate			arse egate
		FA	SA	CA	MW
1.	Specific Gravity	2.31	3.03	2.71	2.69
2.	Fineness Modulus	3.17	3.12	6.64	6.52
3.	Water Absorption	0.41	0.31	0.51	0.05

3.7 Mix Design

The process of choosing appropriate materials, such as cement, aggregate, and water, and their relative proportions with the aim of making concrete with the needed minimum strength, workability, and durability as efficiently as feasible is known as mix design. The primary goal is to reach the minimum strength and durability requirements. The second goal is to produce concrete as cheaply as possible. Ordinary grade concrete and standard grade concrete were the varieties of concrete utilized in this experiment Using IS: 10262 (2009), the mix proportion of ordinary grade and standard grade concrete is developed, and the mix proportion is obtained using the W/C ratio of 0.51. Fresh concrete was measured to have a 50 mm slump.

3.8 Mix Proportions

Concrete mixtures were made with varying percentage of steel slag and marble waste aggregate. The specimens were examined to determine the outcome of each experiment. The dry weights of the coarse and fine aggregates for each mixture were used to calculate the mix proportions. All specimens had a consistent water- cement ratio of 0.51. Making and Preparing Test Specimens Three numbers of cubes measuring 150 mm by 150 mm by 150 mm and three numbers of prisms measuring 100 mm by 100 mm by 500 mm were cast for each mixture, and they were each given a 28-day curing period.

3.9 Preparing and Casting of Test Specimens

Three numbers of cubes measuring 150 mm by 150 mm by 150 mm and three numbers of prisms measuring 100 mm by 100 mm by 500 mm were cast for each mix, and they were both 6 cured for 28 days.

3.10 Testing of Specimens

To determine the 'compressive strength' on concrete were casted three cubes and also to determine flexural strength on concrete were casted three prisms for each, this specimen as tested after 28 days of cured. The standards were followed when conducting these tests. The test findings were compared to the values of the standard concrete specimens using different percentages of marble and steel slag waste.

4. RESULTS AND DISCUSSION

Tables 3 and 4 provide the findings of the 'compressive strength' tests conducted on the concrete test specimens. The use of marble waste as 'CA' at varied percentages of 35%, 40%, and 45% resulted in an increase in the 'compressive strength' of the concrete, according to the data obtained. The 'compressive strength' values of all concrete mixes are increased by 1 when the percentage of the material is increased, matching those of the control concrete specimens. In Fig 3 refers compressive strength of the sample specimens.



Fig 3. Compressive strength

Table 3. Compressive Strength of Specimens Using SteelSlag at 28 days

Sl No.	Mix	Compressive Strength (N/ mm ²)
1.	Conventional concrete	32.79
2.	25% Steel slag replacement to FA	32.64
3.	35% Steel slag replacement to FA	33.12
4.	45% Steel slag replacement to FA	32.84



Fig 4. 'Compressive Strength' of Steel Slag Replacement to 'FA'

The higher strength was developed in the concrete specimens cast with 35% Steel slag and 40% marble waste.

Table 4. Compressive Strength Using Steel Slag andMarble Waste at 28 days

Sl No.	Mix	Compressive Strength (N/ mm ²)
1.	Conventional concrete	32.79
2.	(35% Steel slag replacement to FA + 35% Marble waste replacement of CA)	32.21
3.	(35% Steel slag replacement to FA + 40% Marble waste replacement of CA)	33.29
4.	(35% Steel slag replacement to FA + 45% Marble waste replacement of CA)	32.94



Fig 5. Compressive strength of steel slag replacement to 'FA' and marble waste replacement to 'CA'.

3.2 Flextural Strength Test

Prisms of size $100 \times 100 \times 500$ mm were cast, for every mix we casted 3 prisms, after the casting, demolded after 24 hrs and cured for 28 days. The specimens were take out from the water tank, weighted and tested for modulus of rupture under two-point loading in a flextural testing machine according to IS:516 (1959). The centre-to- centre distance between supports were measured and the maximum load P and the failure load is recorded. The modulus of rupture was calculated as per IS: 456 (2000). Fig 6 refers fextural test conducted.





The specimens were examined to determine the outcome of each experimental 1. The dry weights of the coarse and fine aggregates for each mixture were used to calculate the mix proportions. All specimens had a consistent water-cement ratio of 0.51.Making and Preparing Test Specimens Three numbers of cubes measuring 150 mm by 150 mm by 150 mm and three numbers of prisms measuring 100 mm by 100 mm by 500 mm were cast for each mixture, and they were each given a 28-day curing period. In table 5 listed the flextural strength results.

Table 5. Test Results	or Flextural	Strength o	f specimens
at 28 days			

Sl No.	Mix	Average Flexural Strength (fb)(N/ mm ²)
1.	Conventional concrete	6.69
2.	(35% Steel slag replacement to FA + 35% Marble waste replacement of CA)	6.68
3.	(35% Steel slag replacement to FA + 40% Marble waste replacement of CA)	6.81
4.	(35% Steel slag replacement to FA + 45% Marble waste replacement of CA)	6.77



Fig 7. Flexural strength(N/mm²) CONCLUSION

It is observed that partial replacement of steel slag to fine aggregate and marble waste aggregate to coarse aggregate, for which mechanical properties has been conducted.

- The 'Compressive strength' of concrete has been increased by 1.01% compared to conventional concrete when steel slag is replaced by 35% to 'FA'.
- The 'compressive strength' of concrete has been increased by 1.52% when compared to conventional concrete when steel slag replaced to 'FA' and marble waste replaced to 'CA'.
- The Flexural strength of the concrete has been increased by 1.79% when compared to conventional concrete when steel slag replaced to 'FA' and marble waste replaced to 'CA'.

REFERENCES

- Rohit Jeengar (2022), "Experimental Study on Partial Replacement of Natural Coarse Aggregate with Marble Waste Aggregate in Concrete", International Journal for Research in Applied Science & Engineering Technology (IJRASET) ISSN: 2321-9653; IC Value: 45.98; SJ Impact Factor: 7.538 Volume 10 Issue X Oct 2022.
- Shailja Bawa, Asif Basheer, Baban kumar (2018), "Effect of steel slag as partial replacement as Fine Aggregate on mechanical properties of concrete", Proceedings of National Conference: Advanced Structures, Materials and Methodology in Civil Engineering (ASMMCE – 2018), 03 - 04th November, 2018.

- Sudarshan D. Kore and Ashok Vyas (2016), "Impact of marble waste as Coarse aggregate on properties of lean cement concrete", Article in Case Studies in Construction Materials · January 2016 DOI: 10.1016/j.cscm.2016.01.002.
- 4. Krishna Prasanna P and Venkata Kiranmayi K (2014), "Steel Slag as a Substitute for Fine Aggregate

in High Strength Concrete", International Journal of Engineering Research & Technology (IJERT) ISSN: 2278-0181 www.ijert.orgIJERTV3IS100741 (This work is licensed under a Creative Commons Attribution 4.0 International License.) Vol. 3 Issue 10, October- 2014.

STABILIZATION OF SOIL EFFECTED BY INDUSTRIAL EFFLUENTS – THROUGH MECHANICAL STABILIZATION

PROF. JAYATHEERTHA H S

Assistant Professor, Department of Civil Engineering, Dayananda Sagar Academy of Technology and Management, Bengaluru

DR. T SRINIVAS

c Professor, Department of Civil Engineering, GITAM School of Technology, GITAM University, Visakhapatnam

DR. K N VISHWANATH

Professor and Head, Department of Civil Engineering, Dayananda Sagar Academy of Technology and Management, Bengaluru

ABSTRACT

In India, soil contamination is a significant environmental issue. The soil surrounding a water body, such as a lake, becomes contaminated when effluents from industries are dumped into the environment, which causes the embankment to deteriorate and allow water to seep into the ground. The land around the lake needs to be stabilised in order to stop this. The process of changing soil characteristics in order to improve the soil's engineering properties is known as soil stabilisation. Since chemical stabilisation is costly, the current research aims to stabilise the soil by mechanical means using waste materials such as lime (as primary stabiliser) and rubber tyre powder (as secondary stabiliser). This will improve the quality of the soil and be validated by carrying out various tests such as CBR, optimal moisture content, unconfined compressive strength, etc. In order to strengthen or improve the engineering qualities of the polluted soil, such as OMC and Liquid Limit, which are crucial in the current situation, we apply the ideal amount of stabilisers and their combination to the soil. and ensuring that it is suitable for civil works such as the subgrade for roads, railroads, canals, and embankments, among others.

KEYWORDS : Mechanical stabilization, stabilizer, CBR, unconfined compressive strength, optimum moisture content.

1. INTRODUCTION

One of the main issues in routine civil construction projects is dealing with soft subgrade/clayey soil. The same thing might happen when building a road or a motorway. Soil stabilisation is one of numerous methods for making improvements to soil. To increase the strength and durability of the soil, materials are blended and mixed with it during the soil stabilisation process. To put it another way, it is the aggregation of soil particles.

1.1 Mechanical Stabilization

It is the earliest technique for stabilising soil. By

altering the gradation of the soil and compacting it with various rollers, pestles, vibration techniques, and occasionally even blowing, the qualities of the soil are improved with this procedure. By eliminating air gaps, adding geotextile materials like clay liners and pipes, adding some graded aggregates, etc., the method aims to enhance the current soil mass. These steps are mostly taken to increase bearing capacity, strengthen the soil, and decrease permeability. Compaction serves to increase the soil's compressive strength, and geotextile fibre reinforcing boosts the soil's tensile strength.

1.2 Biological Stabilization

When bacteria are introduced into the soil, they leave behind CaCO3, which causes the soil to cement and plug, increasing its strength and bearing capacity. Technically known as "microbial induced calcite precipitation" (MICP), this technique precipitates calcium carbonate into the soil matrix using soil microbial activities. By holding soil particles together, the resulting calcium carbonate increases soil strength and lowers water conductivity.

1.3 Chemical Stabilization

This class of soil stabilisation primarily relies on chemical reactions between soil particles and chemical additives, which later build a powerful network that binds the soil grains together to produce the desired effect. The fundamental benefit of chemical stabilisation is that catalysts and inhibitors can be used to regulate the setting time and setting time.

2. MATERIALS & METHODOLOGY

Soil Sample: Contaminated soil sample was obtained from Jigani Lake, Bengaluru. The soil sample was dried in an oven at 110 degrees Celsius for 24 hours.

Lime: To obtain lime, limestone is first extracted from quarries and mines. To achieve the best performance in the production of acetylene, pure calcium oxide is fused with coke.

Rubber Tyre Powder: Tyres and tyre waste, such as tyre balls, tyre scraps, crumb and rubber powder, have been used in a variety of engineering applications, including seepage disperse and as absorbents, as well as for highways, in embankments, in erosion control and as aggregates as well, as a substitute for asphalt. The properties of the soil sample collected were tested in the laboratory which are tabulated as in Table 1

Table 1: Properties of Soil Sample

Properties	ОМС (%)	MDD (g/cc)	CBR (%)	LL (%)	PL (%)	UCS (kg/ cm ²)
Soil sample	23	1.1	3.9	45	29	0.8

3. EXPERIMENTAL WORK

The stabilizers were added to the soil sample in varying amounts as follows.

- 1) Soil sample + 5% lime
- 2) Soil sample + 5% lime + 5% Rubber Tyre Powder
- 3) Soil sample + 5% lime + 10% Rubber Tyre Powder
- 4) Soil sample + 5% lime + 15% Rubber Tyre Powder
- 5) Soil sample + 5% lime + 20% Rubber Tyre Powder

After addition of Stabilizers, various tests were carried out and the results obtained are tabulated as follows

Table 2: Liquid Limit

SAMPLE TYPE	LIQUID LIMIT
Soil sample	45
Soil sample + 5% lime	42.5
Soil sample + 5% lime + 5% RTP	39.8
Soil sample + 5% lime + 10% RTP	33.72
Soil sample + 5% lime + 15% RTP	27.9
Soil sample + 5% lime + 20% RTP	24.8



Chart -1: Variation in liquid limit

Table 3: Plastic Limit

SAMPLE TYPE	PLASTICLIMIT(%)
Soil sample	29
Soil sample + 5% lime	28.7
Soil sample + 5% lime + 5% RTP	29.2

Soil sample + 5% lime + 10% RTP	24.56
Soil sample + 5% lime + 15% RTP	20.61
Soil sample + 5% lime + 20% RTP	17.87

Table 4: Optimum Moisture Content

SAMPLE TYPE	OMC(%)
Soil sample	23
Soil sample + 5% lime	20.5
Soil sample + 5% lime + 5% RTP	18.23
Soil sample + 5% lime + 10% RTP	15.19
Soil sample + 5% lime + 15% RTP	14.6
Soil sample + 5% lime + 20% RTP	13.8



Chart 2: Variation in OMC

Table 5: Maximum Dry Density

SAMPLE TYPE	MDD(g/cc)
Soil sample	1.1
Soil sample + 5% lime	1.2
Soil sample + 5% lime + 5% RTP	1.39
Soil sample + 5% lime + 10% RTP	1.56
Soil sample + 5% lime + 15% RTP	1.7
Soil sample + 5% lime + 20% RTP	1.83



Chart 3: Variation in MDD

Table 6: Unconfined Compressive Strength

SAMPLE TYPE	UCS(kg/cm ²)
Soil sample	0.8
Soil sample + 5% lime	0.92
Soil sample + 5% lime + 5% RTP	1.1
Soil sample + 5% lime + 10% RTP	1.25
Soil sample + 5% lime + 15% RTP	1.4
Soil sample + 5% lime + 20% RTP	1.6



Chart 4 Variation in UCS

Table 7: California Bearing Ratio

SAMPLE TYPE	CBR(%)
Soil sample	3.9
Soil sample + 5% lime	4.3
Soil sample + 5% lime + 5% RTP	4.7
Soil sample + 5% lime + 10% RTP	5.2
Soil sample + 5% lime + 15% RTP	5.6
Soil sample + 5% lime + 20% RTP	6.01



Chart 5: Variation in CBR

3. CONCLUSIONS

- 1. It should be noted that the liquid limit decreased from 45% to 24.8% and the plastic limit from 29% to 17.87% on adding 5% lime and 20% RTP.
- 2. Addition of 20% RTP and 5% lime increased MDD from
- 1.1 to 1.83 g/cm3 and decreased OMC from 23% to 13.8%.
- In addition, the addition of 20% RTP and 5% lime increased the CBR and UCS values from 3.9% to 6.01% and from 0.8 to 1.6 kg/cm².

REFERENCES

- Jesus Higuera Seda, Beneficial use of waste tyre rubber for swelling potential mitigation in expansive soils, Geo - Denver 2007: New peaks in Geotechnics, Delhi, 2007
- Hamid Reza Rahmani, Effect of industrial effluents of Zob - Ahan on soil, water and vegetable plants, Department of soil and water, Esfahan Agriculture and Natural Resources Research Centre, Esfahan, Iran, Journal of applied sciences 7 (17): 2519 - 2522, 2007
- 3. Ankit Singh Negi, Soil stabilization using lime, international journal of innovative research in science, engineering and technology, vol.2, Dehradun, India,2013

- 4. Chander Bhal Roy, Stabilization of soil of Indian origin. International journal of scientific and research publications, vol.3, India,2013
- 5. Umar Jan, Soil stabilization using shredder rubber tyre, international research journal of engineering and technology, vol.2, Chandigarh, India, 2015
- 6. Jagtar Singh, Soil stabilization of clayey soil using shredded rubber tyre, international journal of engineering and technology, vol.6, Chandigarh, 2017
- Habiba Afrin, A Review on different types of soil stabilization techniques, international journal of transporting engineering and technology, vol.3 No.2, pp.19-24,2017
- 8. Reginaldo Sergio Pereria, Soil stabilization with lime for the construction of forest roads, foresta e Ambiente, Brazil, 2018
- 9. Nivetha Babu, Effect of lime on soil properties: A review, international research journal of Engineering and technology, Civil Department, Toc H Institute of Science and Technology, Vol. 5, Kerala, 2018
- 10. Ayushi Lakhanpal, A brief review on various methods and materials used for stabilization of soil, Research Scholar, Department of civil engineering, Chandigarh University, Punjab, India.vol-5,2018
- 11. Vikas Tiwari, Soil stabilization using with waste crumb rubber tyre, Journal for innovative development in pharmaceutical and technical science, vol.2, M.P, 2019
- 12. Arnand Augustin Fondjo stabilization of expansive soils using mechanical and chemical methods: A Comprehensive Review, Department of civil engineering, Central university of Technology, South Africa, "civil engineering and Architecture, vol.9, No.5. pp.1295- 1308,2021.
- 13. Soghra Keybondori, Lime stabilization to improve clay - textured forest soil road sub grades, International Journal of Forest Engineering, Vol. 32, Department of Forestry and Forest Economics, Faculty of natural resources, University of Tehran, Iran, 2021.

EXPERIMENTAL INVESTIGATION ON RETROFITTING OF FLEXURAL DEFICIENT REINFORCED CONCRETE BEAMS USING FABRIC REINFORCED CEMENTITIOUS MORTAR

DR. B. S. PUTTE GOWDA MRS. DEEPIKA K C

Associate Professor, Bangalore Institute of Technology. Bangalore

MS. ANUSHA B N, MS. SREELEKHA C R

M. Tech (Structural Engineering), Department of Civil Engineering, Bangalore Institute of Technology. Bangalore

ABSTRACT

Fabric reinforced cementitious mortar (FRCM) is an emerging and promising new class of structural material which finds its application in repair, retrofit and rehabilitation of RC and masonry structures. FRCM is considered as an alternative to ferrocement where the steel mesh reinforcement is replaced with such as carbon, basalt, PBO, glass mesh etc. This paper presents the effectiveness of FRCM in retrofitting of flexural deficient RC beams. Experimental tests are carried out on flexural deficient pre-cracked RC beams retrofitted with glass FRCM.

INTRODUCTION

Deterioration with time is the most common problem associated with RC structures due to aging, overuse, exposure to aggressive environments, lack of maintenance, internal reinforcement corrosion, excessive loading, poor design and application of external forces like earthquake etc. Hence there is an urgent need to come up with feasible economic alternative retrofitting and rehabilitation methods to restore the RC structures to its original capacity. Some of the commonly adopted methods to address the deterioration problem associated with RC structures are: (a) Installation of fibre reinforced polymer (FRP) composite systems, (b) Steel plate bonding, (c) Installation of the near surface mounted (NSM) bars and (d) External post tensioning. FRP systems have gained worldwide acceptance and popularity to address the issues related to the strengthening of the existing RC structures due to High tensile strength light weight, relative ease of installation and resistance to corrosion. In spite this FRP systems, throws some drawbacks: such as Lack of vapour permeability – leads to accumulation of moisture, resulting in damage of the substrate, Poor behaviour at service temperature, Incompatibility with wet surface and non-sensitivity to low temperature application, Strength degradation when exposed to ultraviolet radiation, Poor fire protection, and Bonding agents could be a toxic hazard.

All these issues are primarily associated with the use of epoxy (organic binders) in FRP systems. One way of addressing this problem is by replacing the organic binder with an inorganic binder like cementitious matrix. This idea of incorporating cement mortar with brandnew category of composites under the name FRCM, FRCM is a composite made of cement based mortar reinforced by fiber fabric identifies with the following acronyms: Textile reinforced mortar (TRM), Textile reinforced concrete (TRC), Mineral based composites (MBC) or Fiber reinforced cement (FRC).

Angelo et, al., (2011) carried out an experimental study on the effectiveness of carbon and PBO FRCM and compared it with carbon FRP. The results showed that both PBO- FRCM and carbon FRP contributed an equal amount of strength enhancement, whereas the carbon FRCM system showed marginal strength enhancement.

LITERATURE REVIEW

Saman Babaeidarabad et, al, (2014) performed the experiments on beams retrofitted with PBO-FRCM under three-point bending. The flexural capacity of the PBO-FRCM strengthened beams is calculated based on the analytical methods given by ACI 549 code. And its suitability is assessed. The results indicated that PBO-FRCM improves the flexural strength of RC beams depending on the amount of PBO-FRCM applied (one ply and four plies). Sectional analysis following the methodology according to ACI 549 shows that predicted flexural strength underestimates the experimental results with reasonable accuracy.

Objectives:

• To study the behaviour of flexural deficient reinforced concrete beams retrofitted with glass FRCM

- To examine the cracking behaviour of the precracked beam retrofitted with glass FRCM.
- To observe the modes of failures exhibited by the FRCM retrofitted beams.
- To study the effectiveness of glass FRCM with varying the number of layers.

EXPERIMENTAL PROGRAMME

The experiments were carried out to study the effectiveness of externally applied glass FRCM in retrofitting flexural deficient beams. Six beams of dimension 1700 mm X250 mmX125 mm were tested under a two-point load. The beams are designed as flexural deficient by adopting $\rho s = 0.74 \times (\rho s)B$, where ρs is the percentage of steel adopted for the flexural deficient section. (ρs)B is the percentage of steel required for the balanced section. The above designs are carried out as per IS 456: 2000 guidelines.

The reinforcement provided is HYSD bars of Fe -500 grade. The main parameter investigated in the present study is the number of glass FRCM layers (2 and 4).

Sl. No.	Beam designation	No. of beams	Description
1	CB	2	Control beam
2	GFRB-2L	2	Pre-cracked beam retrofitted with 2 layers of glass FRCM
3	GFRB-4L	2	Pre-cracked beam retrofitted with 4 layers of glass FRCM





Materials: M30. Grade concrete proportioned as per IS 10262-2019 guidelines with 100mm slump.

Glass fabric

The glass fabric obtained by Shri Premolite Industries Ghaziabad (U.P), was used in the present experiments.

The Properties are tabulated in Table 2.

Table 2: Properties of glass fabric

Sl. No.	Test Conducted	Results
1	Thickness (mm)	0.66
2	Mass / square meter (kg)	0.307
3	No. of holes / square meter	31781
	No. of holes / sq. inch	20

4	Tensile Breaking Load (N)1220		
	a. Sample Width -		
	36.0 mm		
	b. Sample thickness -		
	0.66 mm		
	c. Grip to grip length		
	– 300 mm		

The average cube compressive strength of concrete on the day of testing of beams was 42.66 MPa.

The mortar grade adopted for this experimental study is MM7.5. As per the guidelines of IS: 2250-1981, the mix proportion for MM7.5 is cement: sand = 1:3. The water content is maintained to get working consistency.



Fig 2. Testing of glass fabric

Retrofitting of pre-cracked beams

- The beams were loaded up to get the first crack under two-point loading conditions. The load was released and taken for retrofitting.
- The bottom surface of the beams was cleaned and made rough using a hammer to provide proper bonding.
- The cement Mortar of proportion 1:3 was prepared for required consistency
- Firstly, one layer of cement mortar was applied to the bottom surface of the beam then the glass fabric was laid and pressed.
- After that one more layer of mortar and glass fabric was laid and pressed.
- The above-said procedure was repeated for retrofitting of four layers of glass fabric.

The retrofitted beams were cured for 28 days using wet gunny bags.

Experimental setup and testing procedure

- After curing, the control beams and the strengthened beams for 28 days, the beams were tested for ultimate strength.
- For easy identification of cracks, the beams were whitewashed before testing.
- The primary adjustments were made to ensure the load is symmetrically applied as shown in the figure.
- The beams were tested under two-point loading using a loading frame of 50 tons capacity.
- Three dial gauges are used to measure the deflection of the beams, under center, and the points below the loading.
- The crack width was also measured using the microscope with least count 0.003 mm.
- The increment of loading adopted throughout the experiment was 2 kN. And the deflection noted for each incremental loading.
- The Load at first crack, and the ultimate load for each beam were noted for controlled and strengthened beams.
- Three dial gauges are used to measure the deflection of the beams, under center, and the points below the loading.
- The crack width was also measured using the microscope with least count 0.003 mm.
- The increment of loading adopted throughout the experiment was 2 kN. And the deflection noted for each incremental loading.
- The Load at first crack, and the ultimate load for each beam were noted for controlled and strengthened beams.



Prepared the surface for strengthening



Placing of mortar on the prepared surface



Placing glass fabric and mortar impregnation

Fig 4. Retrofitting of pre-cracked beams



Fig 5. Flexural retrofitting of pre-cracked beam

RESULTS AND DISCUSSION

• The beam specimen was tested under four-point bending. The average cracking load and ultimate load of control beams were found to be 27 kN and 96 kN respectively. The mode of failure in control beams is due to the crushing of concrete in the compression zone after the yielding of steel reinforcement.



Fig 6. Experimental setup of beam testing

• The average cracking load and ultimate load of beams retrofitted with 2 layers of glass FRCM were found to be 39 kN and 119 kN respectively, and the beams retrofitted with 4 layers of glass FRCM were found to be 45 kN and 133.5 kN respectively. The mode of failure observed in the retrofitted beams is fabric rupture in the matrix exactly at the center of the beam.



Fig 7. Load vs deflection curve of (a) control beam [CB-1], (b) control beam [CB-2], (c) retrofitted beam [GFRB-2L-1], (d) retrofitted beam [GFRB-2L-2], (e) retrofitted beam [GFRB-4L-1], (f) retrofitted beam [GFRB-4L-2].



Fig 8. Combined load vs deflection curve of all beams

Combined load vs deflection

The load-deflection plot of control beams and retrofitted with glass FRCM are shown in the figure 8. It is observed that the control beams and retrofitted

beams with glass FRCM have shown similar behaviour with respect to deflection and cracking. Enhancement in the cracking load and deflection in the retrofitted beams were observed and also reduction in the pre-cracking stiffness can be seen which indicates the ductile nature.

Sl. No.	Beam designation	Cracking load [Pcr (kN)]		Ultimate load [Pu
		Before retrofitting After retrofitting		(kN)]
1	CB-1	2	6	96
2	CB-2	28		96
3	GFRB-2L-1	26	38	120
4	GFRB-2L-2	30	40	118
5	GFRB-4L-1	28	44	135
6	GFRB-4L-2	28	46	132

Table 4. Variation in first crack load and ultimate loa	Table 4.	Variation i	in first c	crack load	and ultimat	e load
---	----------	-------------	------------	------------	-------------	--------

Sl, No.	Beam designation	lo	Cracking ad (kN)] After retrofitting	Average Ultimate load [Pu (kN)]	Increase in cracking load [Pcr (kN)]	Increase in ultimate load [Pu (kN)]	Percentage Increase in Cracking load	Percentage Increase in ultimate load
1	СВ	2	7	96	-	-	-	-
2	GFRB-2L	28	39	119	11	23	28.20	19.32
3	GFRB-4L	28	45	133.5	17	37.5	37.77	28.08



Fig 9. Crack pattern in control beam



Fig 10. Crack pattern in beam retrofitted with 2 layers of glass FRCM



Fig 11. Crack pattern in beam retrofitted with 4 layers of glass FRCM



Fig 12 Fabric rupture failure in beams retrofitted with 2 layers glass FRCM

CONCLUSIONS

- Retrofitting the beams with Glass FRCM is one of the easy and effective techniques for flexural strengthening.
- The experimental result shows that 28% and 38% enhancement in cracking load for two-layer and four-layered of glass FRCM.

- The ultimate load-carrying capacity of the beams increased about 19% for two layers and 28% for four layers of glass FRCM.
- Load deflection plots show a reduction in the precracking stiffness, which indicates a ductile nature of the retrofitted beam.

REFERENCES

- 1. Mohammed Elghazy, Ahmed El Refai, Usman Ebead, and Antonio Nanni, "Corrosion-Damaged RC Beams Repaired with Fabric-Reinforced Cementitious Matrix", J. Compos. Constr., 2018, 22(5): 04018039 (ASCE).
- Saman Babaeidarabad, Giovanni Loreto, and Antonio Nanni, "Flexural Strengthening of RC Beams with an Externally Bonded Fabric-Reinforced Cementitious Matrix", J. Compos. Constr., 2014, 18(5): 04014009 (ASCE).
- 3. Angelo D'Ambrisi and Francesco Focacci, "Flexural Strengthening of RC Beams with Cement-Based Composites", J. Compos. Constr., 2011, 15(5): 707-720 (ASCE).
- Usman Ebead, Kshitij C. Shrestha, Muhammad S. Afzal, Ahmed El Refai, and Antonio Nanni, "Effectiveness of Fabric Reinforced Cementitious Matrix in Strengthening Reinforced Concrete Beams", J. Compos. Constr., 2016, 04016084 (ASCE).
- 5. Lampros N. Koutas, and Dionysios. A. Bournas, "Flexural Strengthening of Two-Way RC Slabs with Textile-Reinforced Mortar: Experimental Investigation and Design Equations", J. Compos. Constr., 2017, 21(1): 04016065 (ASCE).

FABRICATION AND INVESTIGATION OF MECHANICAL PROPERTIES FOR MAGNESIUM ALLOYS BY STIR CASTING

T. SUBBA REDDY, B. SRINU, S. K. AMEER BASHA, T. DHANESH BABU, K. LEELA SIVA KRISHNA

Department of Mechanical Engineering, Andhra Loyola Institute of Engineering and Technology, Vijayawada

ABSTRACT

Magnesium alloys have numerous applications due to their high strength-to-weight ratio in comparison to aluminium alloys. Although these alloys cannot be used at high temperatures due to their susceptibility to burning, they play a crucial role in the production of electric vehicles, particularly in components such as wheels, the motor casing, frame, and body. The utilization of magnesium alloys in these parts reduces the weight of electric vehicles. In this study, we conducted four castings of magnesium alloys (Al40Z1, Mg60Al40, Al25Z1, Al15Z1) using stir casting equipment to investigate their mechanical properties. We conducted a series of tests including wear testing, Vickers micro hardness testing, Porosity and density testing. We also examined the microstructure of the alloys using an optical microscope. Our results revealed that the magnesium alloys became more brittle with an increase in aluminium percentage, and the hardness was higher for alloys with a higher percentage of aluminium. We also found that Al5Z1 had a lower density than the other castings. This study contributes to the understanding of the properties of magnesium alloys and provides valuable information for the development of new electric vehicle components.

KEYWORDS : Magnesium alloy, Stir casting, Hardness, Porosity, Wear.

1. INTRODUCTION

Magnesium alloys have emerged as a promising material for the construction of electric vehicles (EVs) due to their exceptional strength to weight ratio. This makes them ideal for building lightweight vehicle components like the body, frame, and wheels, as they can reduce the weight of an EV without sacrificing strength or safety. Magnesium alloys are roughly two thirds less dense than aluminium alloys and one fourth less dense than steel. However, magnesium is a highly reactive metal and can easily ignite when exposed to air at high temperatures. To avoid combustion, magnesium alloys should be handled carefully and stored in cool, dry areas away from any heat sources. Magnesium alloys have high thermal conductivity, which is essential for dissipating the heat generated by the EV's power train and battery pack. This property is critical for maintaining the performance and durability of these components. Magnesium alloys are also relatively cheap and widely available, making them a cost-effective alternative to other materials like carbon fibre and titanium. Nonetheless, the manufacturing process for magnesium alloys is complex, and this can add to the cost of production. Despite these obstacles, researchers and manufacturers continue to investigate the potential of magnesium alloys in the EV industry.

As a result, it's predicted that the use of magnesium alloys in EV construction will continue to expand in the coming years.

2. LITERATURE SURVEY

The latest research on magnesium alloys and their applications are discussed in this section.

The study conducted by Aatthisugan and Razal Rose [1] on fabricated magnesium composites using stir casting is an important contribution to the field of materials science. Their findings demonstrate that the use of stir casting results in composites that exhibit improved mechanical properties compared to traditional alloys, making them ideal for use in various applications. In addition, the historical overview provided by Alan A. Luo [2] sheds light on the development of magnesium casting and its structural uses, which has played a significant role in the advancement of many industries. This knowledge can be useful for researchers and engineers who are working on the development of new magnesium-based materials and alloys. Anil Kumar et al. [3] study on the casting of magnesium composites using flux provides valuable insights into the most suitable processes for fabricating these materials. Their findings highlight the importance of vacuum-assisted stir casting, and the need to carefully consider the ductility and ultimate tensile strength of composites when designing materials for specific applications. Jiangfeng Song et al. [4] research on the physical and chemical properties of magnesium and its alloys further emphasizes the potential of these materials for use in a wide range of applications. Their work underscores the need for continued research and development in this field, as magnesium-based materials can play a key role in the aerospace, transportation, electronic 3C, biomedical, and energy sectors. The study by S V Satya Prasad et al. [5] highlights the importance of considering the drawbacks of magnesium, such as its poor corrosion resistance, when designing materials for specific applications. By alloying magnesium with other elements, researchers can improve its properties and make it more suitable for use in a wider range of applications. Tian Li, et al,[6] conducted experiment on defects formed in AZ91 alloy. And they found there are two types of oxide layers are there that is single layered and multi layered. According to their experimental results and theoretical thermodynamic calculations, it was observed that fluorides present in the trapped

gas were depleted before the consumption of sulphur. Finally, the overview provided by Arun Kumar Sharma et al.[7] on the fabrication process of magnesium-based materials using stir casting is a valuable resource for researchers and engineers. Their insights into the factors that affect the fabrication process can help to improve the quality and consistency of these materials, leading to more reliable and effective products. In summary, these studies provide important contributions to the field of materials science and highlight the potential of magnesium-based materials for use in various industries. Continued research and development in this field can lead to the development of new and improved materials that can address important challenges in areas such as transportation, energy, and healthcare.

3. EXPERIMENTAL WORK

3.1 Preparation of Materials

In this research, we used magnesium, aluminium, and zinc as our materials. The aluminium grade was 6061, and its composition is listed in Table 1. We cut the raw materials into small pieces to fit the furnace chamber, as shown in Figure 1. Stir casting equipment, shown in Figure 2, was used in the process. Composition alloy samples, shown in Table 2, were prepared for the experiment. The die was cleaned and graphite paste was applied to the surface of the mould cavity. The die was preheated to 400°C, while the furnace was heated to 750°C and argon gas supplied to avoid burning of magnesium by reacting with oxygen. Once the material was melted, the molten liquid was mixed with a stirrer at a rotational speed of 250 RPM. The die was placed in front of the outlet valve of the furnace pot, and the die input valve was straight aligned with it. The molten liquid flowed quickly into the mould cavity as the furnace outlet valve was opened by computer signal. The casting process was repeated for the other three composition alloys. After this we swich off machine and cools the die in open atmosphere. After cooled we open the die and taken out moulded samples. The final samples underwent a heat treatment process for 2 days at 350°C and were tested for mechanical properties, including hardness, wear, microscopic, density, and porosity tests. The A15Z1 composition alloy was found to have the best mechanical properties and was considered the most suitable for applications that require less weight and more strength, with lower density and higher strength compared to other alloys.



Fig.1. (a) Magnesium



Fig.1. (b) Aluminium 6061



Fig.1. (c) Zinc powder



Figure 2. Stir casting machine

Table 1. Aluminium 6061

Element	Amount(wt%)
Aluminium	96.85
Magnesium	0.9
Silicon	0.7
Iron	0.6
Copper	0.25
Zinc	0.20
Titanium	0.10
Manganese	0.05
Others	0.05

S.no	Name	Magnesium (%)	Aluminium (%)	Zinc (%)
1	A15Z1	15	84	1
2	A25Z1	25	74	1
3	A40Z1	40	59	1
4	M60A40	40	60	0

3.2 Hardness Test

We performed hardness test in Vickers micro hardness equipment by using diamond pointer indenter. And applying a load of 500KN the indentation made on the specimen. Then the micro image of the indentation is captured on the screen and by marking the indentation area hardness values are obtained. The values are shown in Table 3.

Table 3. Hardness values

S.no	Sample	Hardness value
1	A15Z1	136
2	A25Z1	216

3.3 Wear test

We performed Wear test on Disc wear testing machine, we had taken A15Z1 specimen for test of diameter 9mm and length 40mm round bar and the track diameter is considered as 70mm. Here we applied load 10N with constant Disc speed and by varying distance and time. We run 3 passes and the wear, coefficient of friction results is obtained in below Table 4 and graph are obtained. The process parameters at various levels are shown in below Table 4.

Sl.no	Load (N)	Velocity (m/sec)	Distance (m)	Disc Speed (rpm)	Time of Travel (min)	Wear (µm)	Coefficient of Friction
1	10	0.5	500	137	16.67	61	0.445
2	10	0.5	1000	137	33.33	74	0.508
3	10	0.5	1500	137	50	89	0.576

 Table 4. Process parameters at various levels

The wear performance of alloys is determined using an ASTM G99 standard pattern pin-on-disc wear tester.



Fig.3. (a)Wear graph at Load = 10N, velocity =0.5m/s and distance = 500



Fig.3. (b)Wear graph at Load = 10N, velocity =0.5m/s and distance = 1000 m



Fig.3. (c)Wear graph at Load = 10N, velocity =0.5m/s and distance = 1500 m.

3.4 Microstructure Test

For the study of microstructure, the castings are examined under the optical microscope. Before going for the inspection, the samples are prepared for surface finishing with a sequence ordered grades of silicon carbide papers, next we apply 1-micrometer aluminium powder paste on disc for polishing for smoother surface finish, in this preparation, the picric acid solution is used as etchant and applied for 10 seconds and washed out with water, after this we taken micro structure pictures by optical microscope. Finally, we analysed the structures of magnesium alloys that are shown below.

3.5 Density and Porosity test

For the castings the density was determined and the values are shown in table 5. By using a water beaker, the volume of the casting is found by dipping it into the water and by using the level in rise of water. The mass of the casting is measured by using a weighing machine. This is done based on the principle of Archimedes. By using the values of mass and volume the density of the castings is found. The formula used to find the density of the casting is given below

Density = Mass/Volume

Table 5. Density values for the castings

Sl.no	Sample	Density(g/cm ³)
1	A15Z1	1.3
2	A25Z1	1.41
3	A40Z1	1.52
4	M60A40	1.55

To find the porosity for the castings the theoretical and actual density values are needed. The theoretical density is measured by using the rule of mixtures. The below is the formula used for porosity

$$P = (1 - (\rho_a / \rho_t)) \times 100$$
 (2)

Where, P is porosity of the casting, ρ_a is actual density of the casting and ρ_t is theoretical density of the material. The calculated values of above parameters are shown in Table 6.

Table 6. Porosity and Density values

Sl.no	Actual density (g/ cm ³)	Theoretical density (g/ cm ³)	Porosity, %
1	1.42	1.84	22.82
2	1.68	1.91	12.04
3	1.82	2.03	10.34
4	1.85	2.02	8.41

(1)

4.RESULT AND DISCUSSION

4.1 Hardness test analysis

The detailed information of the hardness values of the castings are shown in the form of graph in figure 5. The graph shows that there is an increment in the hardness value of A25Z1 compared to A15Z1, that means the hardness value is more in the magnesium alloy having high percentage of aluminium.



Fig.4. Hardness values Graph

4.2 Wear test analysis

For A15Z1 the wear test is conducted and the wear, coefficient of friction was determined. For the remaining castings the wear test is not conducted due to the brittleness of material. These parameters are represented in the form of graph for the three passes and the graph is shown in the figure 6. In the below graphs we can see the wear and coefficient of friction is increments for every pass.







Fig.5(b) Coefficient of friction Graph

4.3 Microstructure analysis

Metallographic investigation is a highly valuable tool for both feature control and investigative purposes. The images that are captured under the optical microscope is shown in the Figure 6. This shows the micro structure of the four different castings. The difference can be observed by seeing these microstructures.







Fig.6. (b)A25Z1



Fig.6. (c) A40Z1



Fig.6. (d)A40M60

4.4 Density and porosity analysis

We calculated density and porosity of samples by theoretical and actual values, by comparing both of them we analysed density was decreased by increasing of magnesium percentage due to its less weight property, porosity had increases by increase in magnesium percentage, we had found A15Z1 had less density with light weight property, from graphs we understood that change in composition of alloy changes its density & porosity values increases with increase of magnesium.



Fig.7 (a) Porosity Graph



Fig.7 (b) Density Graph

5. CONCLUSION

After conducting Hardness test, we conclude that the hardness value increases with increase in percentage of aluminium in magnesium alloy. In wear test the results shows that the wear and coefficient of friction is getting more for every increment of a pass. By calculating the porosity, we conclude that the porosity is increases with increase in magnesium percentage in magnesium alloys. While doing this research we are unable able to do the tests for all castings due to their brittleness property. The brittleness is increasing with the increase in Aluminium percentage in magnesium alloys. The A15Z1 is only casting that is examined by all tests and the density of A15Z1 is less compared to other castings. The disadvantage of A15Z1 is the porosity is high when compared to other castings. By studying all of these comparisons we had considered A15Z1 can used for the applications of EV and other low weight applications.

6. REFERENCES

- A Razal Rose, I Aatthisugan. Fabrication and characterization of Magnesium Metal Composite by Stir Casting. IOP Conference Series: Materials Science and Engineering.912 (2020) 032080 [2]. Alan A. Luo. Magnesium casting technology for structural applications. Journal of Magnesium and Alloys 1 (2013) 2-22.
- 3. Anil Kumar, Santosh Kumar, N.K. Mukhopadhyay, Introduction to magnesium alloy processing technology and development of low-cost stir casting process for magnesium alloy and its composites. Journal of Magnesium and Alloys 6 (2018) 245–254.
- Jiangfeng Song, Jia She, Daolun Chen, Fusheng Pan. Latest research advances on magnesium and magnesium alloys worldwide. Journal of Magnesium and Alloys 8 (2020) 1–41.
- S V Satya Prasad a, S B Prasad a, Kartikey Verma b, Raghvendra Kumar Mishra c, Vikas Kumar d, Subhash Singh. The role and significance of Magnesium in modern day research-A review. Journal of Magnesium and Alloys 10 (2022) 1–61.
- Tian Li a, b, J.M.T. Davies a, Xiangzhen Zhu. Effect of carrier gases on the entrainment defects within AZ91 alloy castings . Journal of Magnesium and Alloys 10 (2022) 129–145.
- Arun Kumar Sharma, Rakesh Bhandari, Amit Aherwar , Camelia Pinca-Bretotean. A study of fabrication methods of aluminum-based composites focused on stir casting process. Materials Today: Proceedings 27 (2020) 1608–1612.
- 8. Aatthisugan, I., Rose, A.R. and Jebadurai, D.S., 2017.

Mechanical and wear behaviour of AZ91D magnesium matrix hybrid composite reinforced with boron carbide and graphite. Journal of magnesium and alloys, 5(1), pp.20-25.

- D. Dash1,2*, S. Samanta2, R. N. Rai3 Study on Fabrication of Magnesium based Metal Matrix Composites and its improvement in Mechanical Tribological Properties- A Review. IOP Conf. Series: Materials Science and Engineering 377 (2018)
- Rajeshkumar Gangaram Bhandare, Parshuram M. Sonawan Preparation of Aluminium Matrix Composite by Using Stir Casting Method. International Journal of Engineering and Advanced Technology (IJEAT) ISSN: 2249 – 8958, Volume-3, Issue-2, December 2013
- Hailong Shi a , d , Chao Xu b , d , Xiaoshi Hu a, d, Weimin Gan c , Kun Wu d , Xiaojun Wang a, d, *.Improving the Young's modulus of Mg via alloying and compositing –A short review. Journal of Magnesium and Alloys 10 (2022) 2009–2024
- 12. Yunpeng Hu1 Xuan Guo1 Yang Qiao1 Xiangyu Wang1 Qichao Lin2 Preparation of medical Mg– Zn alloys and the effect of different zinccontents on the alloy Journal of Materials Science: Materials in Medicine 4, janury ,2022
- Krishnamohan Thekkepat a , b , c , 1 , Hyung-Seop Han d , 1 , Ji-Won Choi d , Seung-Cheol Lee a , b , c , **, Eul Sik Yoon e , Guangzhe Li d , Hyun-Kwang Seok d , f , Yu-Chan Kim d , f , ***, Jae-Hun Kim g , Pil-Ryung Cha g , *. Computational design of Mg alloys with minimal galvanic corrosion. Journal of Magnesium and Alloys 10 (2022) 1972–1980.
- Jun Wang, Yuan Yuan *, Tao Chen, Liang Wu, Xianhuan Chen, Bin Jiang, Jingfeng Wang, Fusheng Pan *. Multi-solute solid solution behavior and its effect on the properties of magnesium alloys. Journal of Magnesium and Alloys 10 (2022) 1786–1820.
- 15. Meysam Mohammadi Zerankeshi a , Reza Alizadeh a , *, Ehsan Gerashi a , Mohammad Asadollahi a , Terence G. Langdon b.Effects of heat treatment on the corrosion behavior and mechanical properties of biodegradable Mg alloys. Journal of Magnesium and Alloys 10 (2022) 1737–1785.

MICROSTRUCTURE AND MECHANICAL PROPERTIES OFPERMANENT MOULD CASTALUMINUMALLOYA356-SIC COMPOSITES IN HEAT TREATED T6 CONDITION

RAJIV, T. G.

Research Scholar, Dept. of Mech. Engg., Bangalore Institute of Technology, Bengaluru

SREERAMA REDDY T. V.

Professor and HOD, Dept. of Mech. Engg., Bangalore Institute of Technology, Bengaluru

CHANDRASHEKAR R.

Professor, Dept. of Mech. Engg., Sambhram Institute of Technology, Bengaluru

ABSTRACT

This paper details the investigations on A356-SiC composites stir-cast into permanent finger moulds in respect of their microstructures and mechanical properties like hardness, tensile strength as well as the analysis of tensile fracture and wear resistance. The study was carried out on the base alloy A356 in T6 heat treated condition with and without grain refinement and grain modification, and also on its composites with 2%, 4%, 6%, 8%, 10% and 12% SiC. Specimens were prepared for hardness, tensile tests and also for metallography. The results indicated that the SiC particles were evenly distributed in the alloy matrix. EDS revealed the presence of SiC in all the 6 composites. Hardness and tensile strengths generally increased with increase in SiC content.

KEYWORDS : Permanent mould casting, A356-SiC composites, T6 heat treated, Microstructure, Mechanical tests, Fracture analysis.

1. INTRODUCTION

Aluminium alloy based composites (AMMCs) are finding increased and newer applications day by day [1-4]. The LM type aluminium alloys are especially suited for automobile, marine and aerospace applications. The A356.0 is one such alloy which is used for making cast components like pump casings, engine blocks, impellers, cylinder heads, etc. [5-8]. The use of AMMCs as replacements for base alloys as been found advantageous in such applications including the Honda cylinder block [9]. The present work is aimed at understanding the microstructures and basic mechanical properties like hardness, tensile strength and tensile toughness and also the tensile fracture processes of composites prepared from permanent mold castings of stir-cast A356- SiC composites with single size SiC powders (100 µm) varying SiC contents.

2. MATERIALS AND METHODS

A356.0 (Al-7.25Si-0.45Mg) alloy ingots were stircast in the form of round bars of 300 mm length and 25 mm diameter as shown in Fig. 1. Optical Emission Spectrometer (Baird-Dv6E) at Advanced Metallurgical Laboratory, Bengaluru, was used to determine the chemical composition of the alloy is shown in Table-1.

The alloys were also grain refined and modified using master alloys (Al-5Ti-1B and Al-10Sr respectively), and tested for their properties.



Fig. 1. Permanent Mold Cast A356.0 Alloy

Table 1. Chemical Composition of A356.0 (Al-7.25Si-0.45Mg) Alloy

Element	Weight %
Si	7.18
Mg	0.34
Fe	0.13
Cu	0.05
Mn	0.027
Ni	0.03
Zinc	0.01
Others	0.15
Al	Balance

The physical properties of the base alloy A356 and the reinforcement SiCp are given in Table 2.

Table 2. Comparison of physical properties of A356 andSiC Particles

Property	A356	SiC
Melting Point, °C	750	2730
Boiling Point, ^o C	2425	3600
Density, kg/m ³	2670	3200
Crystal Structure	FCC	Hexagonal
Hardness	65	100
Tensile Strength, MPa	143	370

The base alloy A356 and A356-SiCp composites were all prepared in a similar manner by stir-casting into permanent finger molds. The different compositions of the 8 alloy/composites were designated as C1and C2 (Base A356), C3 to C12 (Composites) as given in Table 3 below.

Table 3. Designation	of A356 and	Composites
----------------------	-------------	------------

SI. No.	Designation of Alloy/Composite	Grain Refiner & Grain Modifier Wt(gms)	Percentage of Silicon Carbide (wt %)
1	C1	-	-
2	C2	2.5 & 2.5	-
3	C3	2.5 & 2.5	2
4	C4	2.5 & 2.5	4
5	C6	2.5 & 2.5	6
6	C8	2.5 & 2.5	8
7	C10	2.5 & 2.5	10
8	C12	2.5 & 2.5	12

Microstructural Examination

The test specimens were polished to smoothness and etched with Keller's reagent. An Optical Microscope (Model NIKON LV-150, Fig.1) was used for study of the microstructures.



Fig. 2. Optical Microscope

Hardness Tests

A Rockwell Hardness tester (Fig.3), was used to conduct test as per ASTM E10 using test specimens with sufficient spacing between indentations and distance from the edges of specimens.



Fig. 3. MITUTOYO Vickers hardness Testing Machine

Tensile Tests

The tensile test specimens of diameter 6.35mm and gauge length of 26 mm, referring to ASTM E8 standard. Fig. 4(a) shows schematic of tensile specimen. The tensile tests were accomplished using a Hounsfield-type testing machine (Model TUE-C-400, Fig. 4(b) at a strain rate of 0.2mm/sec, at room temperature.





Fig. 4. Tensile testing (a) Schematic of Tensile Specimen (b) Tensile Testing Machine

The mechanical properties such as YS, UTS and % Elongation (ductility) were obtained from the data acquisition system of the bench tensometer. The average value of three test results was taken for each alloy/ composite. The fractured surfaces were photographed using LOM (Light optical Microscope) to study the mechanism of fracture.

III RESULTS AND DISCUSSIONS

Microstructure

The photomicrographs of T6 Treated A356, A356 + grain refiner and grain modifier, A356 + 2% SiC, A356 + 4% SiC, A356 + 6% SiC, A356 + 8% SiC, A356 + 10% SiC and A356 + 12% SiC are shown in the Fig. 5.

Microstructure of A356 Base Alloy and its Composites in the T6 Temper Condition





Fig. 5. Microstructure of T6 Temper A356.0 (C1)





Fig. 6. Microstructure of C2 in T6 Temper



100X



500X

Fig. 7. Microstructure of C3 in T6 Temper



100X



500X





100x



500x

Fig. 9. Microstructure of C6 in T6 Temper



100X



500X Fig: 10. Microstructure of C8 in T6 Temper



100X



500X

Fig. 11. Microstructure of C10 in T6 Temper



100X



500X

Fig. 12. Microstructure of C12 in T6 Temper

Fig. 5 to 12. photomicrographs of T6 (a) base A356 alloy (b) A356+Grain Modifier+Grain Refiner (c) A356+2%SiC , (d) A356+4%SiC, (e) A356+6%SiC , (f) A356+8%SiC, (g)A356+10%SiC, (h) A356+10%SiC

Energy dispersive spectroscopy (EDS) spectrum

Figs. 13 and 14 are the EDAX patterns of C3 (A356+2% SiC) and C12 (A356+12% SiC) in the T6 temper condition.



Fig.13. EDAX of A356+2% SiC(C3) in T6 Temper

Element	Weight %	Atomic %	
MgK	0.75	0.84	
AIK	78.35	79.49	
SIK	19.46	18.96	
FeK	1.44	0.71	





Element Weight % Atomic %

5.41	
0.89	
2 75.20	
9 16.75	
1.00	
0,43	
0.33	
	0 0.89 2 75.20 9 16.75 7 1.00 1 0.43

Fig. 14. EDAX of A356+12% SiC(C12) in T6 Temper

Hardness

Table: hardness values of A356 alloy and it's composite with heat treatment

S/No	Composition	Desig natio	Hardness (Rb)
		n	
1	As- cast A356	C1	75.4
2	As- cast A356 +Grain Refiner+ Grain Modifier	C2	80
3	As- cast A356 +Grain Refiner+ Grain Modifier +2% SiC	C3	81.5
4	As- cast A356 +Grain Refiner+ Grain Modifier +4% SiC	C4	88.2
5	As- cast A356 +Grain Refiner+ Grain Modifier +6% SiC	C6	88
6	As- cast A356 +Grain Refiner+ Grain Modifier +8% SiC	C8	92.7
7	As- cast A356 +Grain Refiner+ Grain Modifier +10% SiC	C10	85.3
8	As- cast A356 +Grain Refiner+ Grain Modifier +12% SiC	C12	82

Tensile Test Result values of A356 alloy and its composite with heat treatment

SL.No	Composition	Design ation	UTS (MPa)
1	As- cast A356	C1	162.5
2	As- cast A356 +Grain Refiner+ Grain Modifier	C2	170.2
3	As- cast A356 +Grain Refiner+ Grain Modifier +2% SiC	C3	193.8
4	As- cast A356 +Grain Refiner+ Grain Modifier +4% SiC	C4	205.8
5	As- cast A356 +Grain Refiner+ Grain Modifier +6% SiC	C6	205.2
6	As-cast A356 +Grain Refiner+ Grain Modifier +8% SiC	C8	214.8
7	As- cast A356 +Grain Refiner+ Grain Modifier +10% SiC	C10	201.8
8	As- cast A356 +Grain Refiner+ Grain Modifier +12% SiC	C12	200

Tensile Fracture Analysis

Fracture Surfaces of T6 Tempered Specimens

Figs. 15 to 22 are the SEM images of fracture surfaces

a) A-356 Base Alloy T6 temper (C1)

of the T6 tempered specimens. Each figure shows two images, one at 200X and the other at a higher magnification of 500X.



200X

500X

Fig. 15. Fracture Surfaces of A-356 Base Alloy T6 Temper (C1)

b) A-356 Base Alloy (GM+GR) T6 Temper (C2)



200X

500X

Fig. 16. Fracture Surfaces of A-356 Base Alloy (GM+GR) As-Cast (C2)

C) A-356 + 2% SiC Composite (C3)



200X

500X

Fig. 17. Fracture Surfaces of A-356 + 2% SiC Composite (C3)

D) A-356 + 4% SiC Composite (C4)



200X

500X

Fig. 18. Fracture Surfaces of A-356 + 4% SiC Composite (C4)

E) A-356 + 6% SiC Composite (C6)



200X



Fig. 19. Fracture Surfaces of A-356 + 6% SiC Composite (C6)

F) A-356 + 8% SiC Composite (C8)



200X

500X

Fig. 20. Fracture Surfaces of A-356 + 8% SiC Composite (C8)

G) A-356 + 10% SiC Composite (C10)



200X

500X

Fig. 21. Fracture Surfaces of A-356 +10% SiC Composite (C10)

H) A-356 + 12% SiC Composite (C12)



200X

500X

Fig.22. Fracture Surfaces of A-356 + 12% SiC Composite (C12)

Fig. 15 to 22. Fractographs of (a) base A356 alloy (b) A356+Grain Modifier+Grain Refiner (c) A356+2%SiC , (d) A356+4%SiC, (e) A356+6%SiC , (f) A356+8%SiC, (g) A356+10%SiC, and (h) A356+10%SiC.

IV CONCLUSIONS

The study on microstructure, mechanical properties and fracture analysis of the heat treated T6 A356 alloy and its composites with 2%, 4%, 6%, 8%, 10% and 12% SiC particulates has yielded the following results.

- 1) Composites of A356 aluminium alloy with SiC particles can be made easily by the stir-casting process, at least up to 12% SiC.
- 2) Uniform distribution of SiC particles in a dendritic
primary alpha-Al matrix is possible as ascertained by microstructural examination.

- 3) While an increase in the hardness values achieved was only 15% (by addition of 10% SiC), an increase in UTS of 65% could be achieved (8% SiC).
- 4) While the values of UTS and hardness for the A356 alloy and its composites showed poor correlation between them, the tensile toughness and % elongation had near perfect correlation.
- 5) From analysis of the tensile fracture surfaces which are predominantly ductile fractures, it is possible to infer that the A356 alloy and its composites with SiC particles as reinforcements could be used for automobile components with less possibility of brittle failures.
- 6) Overall, the present study has confirmed the vast applicability of the AMMCs of A356 with SiC particles in the automobile, marine and aerospace industries.

REFERENCES

- 1. Shashi Prakash, DwivediSatpal, Sharma, RaghavendraKumar Mishra,"Microstructure and Mechanical Properties of A356/SiC Composites Fabricated by Electromagnetic Stir Casting," Elsevier, Procedia Materials Science, Vol.6(2014).
- Vanarotti. M., Shrishail, P., Sridhar B.R., Venkateswarlu. K and Kori S.A (2014). Surface Modification of SiC Reinforcements and its effects on Mechanical properties of Aluminium based MMC, applied Mechanics and Materials, 446(447) pp. 93-97.
- Hossein Abdizadeh, Reza Ebrahimfard, Mohammed Amin Baghchesara, "Investigation of Microstructure and Mechanical Properties of Nano Mgo Reinforced Al Composites Manufactured by Stir Casting and Powder Metallurgy Methods". Elsevier, Composites Part B, Vol.56 (2014).
- 4. Prem Shankar Sahu, Raghavendra Banchhor., "Effect of different Reinforcement on Mechanical Properties of Aluminium metal matrix Composites", Research Journal of Engineering Sciences, Vol.6(1), Page 39-45, July 2017.
- 5. Md.Tanwir Alam, Akhtar Hussain Ansari,"A Review on Aluminium and its alloys for Automotive Applications,"International Journal of Advanced

technology in Engineering and Science, Vol.05, Issue-05(2017), pp. 278-294.

- Pulkit Garg, Anbesh Jamwal, Devendra Kumar etc., "Advance Research Progresses in Aluminium Matrix Composites Manufacturing and applications," Journal of Materials Research and Technology, Vol.08, Issue-05, Sep 2019, pp. 4924-4939.
- 7. Mamala A and Sciezor .w, "Evaluation of the effect of Selected alloying elements on the Mechanical and Electrical Aluminium Properties," Archives of Metallurgy and Material, 59(1), 2014, pp. 413-417.
- Stojanovic. B and Ivanovic L, "Application of aluminium hybrid composites in automotive industry", Research gate, Article in Tehnicki Vjesnik, 22(1), (2015) pp. 247-251.
- 9. Mousa Javidani and Daniel Larouche, "Application of Cast Al–Si alloys in internal combustion engine components," International Materials Reviews-Vol.59, (3)(2014), pp.132-158.
- Chandrashekar.J.R, M.H.Annaiah, R.Chandrashekar (2021), "Microstructure and Mechanical Properties of Aluminium cast alloy A356 Reinforced with dual size B4C particles", Frattura Ed Integrita Strutturale, 57, pp. 127-137.
- Venkat Kishore N and Venkata Rao K(2016), "Mechanical Properties of Aluminum Alloy (A356/LM25) Matrix and Boron Carbide (B4C) Reinforcement, International Journal of Engineering Research & Technology (IJERT), 5(2), pp.683-689.
- 12. Shiming Hao, Jingpei Xie, Aiqin Wang, and Ming Fang, "Preparation, Properties and Microstructure of Sic Particle Reinforced Al-Si Matrix Composite", Materials Transactions, 55, pp 750-753(2014).
- J. Jebeen Moses, I.Dinaheran and Joseph Sekhar, "Characterization of Silicon Carbide Particulate Reinforced Al6061 Alloy composites produced via stir casting," Procedia Materials Science- 5, pp 106-112(2014).
- 14. Aykut Canakci., and Temel Varol, "Microstructure and Properties of Al7075-SiC composites Fabricated using Powder Metallurgy and Hot pressing Powder Technology, 268, pp 72-79(2014).
- A. O. Inegbenebor, C. A. Bolu, P. O. Babalola, A. I. Inegbenebor, O. S. I. Fayomi, "Influence of grit size of silicon carbide particles on Mechanical and Electrical properties of Stir casting Aluminium Matrix Composite Material", Silicon., 8, pp 573-578(2016).

The Indian Journal of Technical Education, Special Issue, May 2023

NUMERICAL ANALYSIS ON POROUS TRAPEZOIDAL ENCLOSURE

VIJAYA KUMARA V M*, PAVAN K S, SAGAR REDDY A S, SAI CHARAN R V, SHARATH B S

Department of Mechanical Engineering, Bangalore Institute of Technology, Bangalore

ABSTRACT

The current research aims to explore the buoyancy driven circulation in a porous non-square cavity with heat flow determined by a mathematical approach based on finite elements. The cavity is employed to study fluid flow, heat transfer, and has inclined walls, a bottom wall susceptible to heat flux, and a top wall with constant thermal effect. Heat fluxes are applied to the bottom wall both uniformly and unevenly. Regarding uniform and non-uniform heated walls and top cold walls, numerical simulations for Rayleigh numbers 101 to Ra–103 have been examined. The fact inside the enclosure with the porous medium positioned in the centre was examined using the isotherm pattern, streamline pattern, local Nusselt number, and mean Nusselt number. The average Nu is shown to be higher for heat flux boundary conditions at the bottom wall that are linearly changed.

KEYWORDS : Trapezoidal cavity, Natural convection, Porous medium and Nusselt number

NOMENCLATURES

- Nu Local heat transfer co-efficient
- Ra Rayleigh Number
- K Permeability, m²
- x, y Dimensional Coordinates Along Two Directions
- T_h Heated Wall Temperature, ⁰C
- T_c Cooled Wall Temperature,⁰C
- Nu_{avo} Average Nusselt Number
- y Inclination Angle
- u Kinematic Viscosity, m²/S
- μ Dynamic Viscosity, N-S/ m²
- ψ Stream Function
- ψ Dimensionless Stream Function
- U Velocity Along X Axis

1. INTRODUCTION

The transmission of fluids and heat has taken centre stage in many industrial and engineering applications. According to this research, though awareness of free convection in a closed porous cavity with a Heat function boundary condition has developed significantly over the past ten years. Triangle, square, round, and non-square cavities are typically employed in industrial settings.

Numerous researchers have carefully taken into account diverse cavities with variable boundary conditions and porous media. However, cavities with bottom wall heating have gotten less attention. There are numerous engineering applications where it is necessary to regulate the buoyant energy flowing through a fluid region contained in a cavity.

Saranya et al [1] presented the effect of heat flux on poroussquare cavity. They noticed that, despite the uniformly varied heat flux throughout the bottom wall, there was a maximum rate of heat transfer at the heated wall's middle because there was a higher fluid flow rate in the cavity's central section. In a typical porous cavity with a steady heat flux on one vertical wall, Prasad [2] investigated the buoyant thermal effect. In order to confirm that radical and differential data reveal a broad dispersion of heat flux data in buoyant heat transfer in porous media, Peter Vadasz [3] developed analytical solutions. When the strong fluid flows are located in the centre of the enclosure, the buoyant circulation is higher.

Bader Alazmi et al.[4] have investigated the beginning circumstances for a constant wall heat flux in the absence of a local thermal limit. The results of fluctuating porosity and buoyant heat transfer were examined. Results were discovered in terms of heat lines and streamlines.

Mahapatra et al. [5], have used numerical simulations to study the interaction of the radiation effect and mixed convection. The research shows that radiation has a significant impact on buoyant heat transfer and can be controlled to

flow in a reversible manner for the enclosure. Following a thorough review of the literature, the authors feel compelled to summarise a few earlier studies that highlight the natural convection phenomenon in divided cavities. Mezrhab and Bchir [6] performed numerical simulations of laminar natural convection in a 2D air filled regular enclosure with a vertical partition of finite thickness. The computational model is defined by adiabatic horizontal end walls and temperaturevarying vertical surfaces. The calculations, which included shadow effects, were performed using a finite volume-based computational approach. There are no major changes in heat transport through the enclosure, particularly at Ra.

Aparna et all [7] studied the heat flux impact in a trapezoidal cavity using finite element simulations with triangle elements. A numerical investigation of several Rayleigh numbers was conducted. Nusselt numbers and stream functions. The heat transfer is greatest for sinusoidally variable Ra and heat flux. Varol et al. [8] numerically performed fluid motion and buoyant energy in a porous cavity with constant isotherms and a non-isothermally bottom wall heated triangular cavity are analysed using the finite difference method. Darcy's

guiding law was employed to construct the codes of porous media packed inside a cavity. The foregoing literature search reveals a scarcity of information on buoyant thermal flux in enclosures with bottom walls subjected to heat flux boundary conditions. The goal of this work is to numerically predict the heat transfer and fluid flow in a 2D porous non-square enclosure given thermal flux beginning conditions along the bottom wall.

The foregoing literature search reveals a scarcity of information on buoyant thermal flux in enclosures with bottom walls subjected to heat flux boundary conditions. The goal of this work is to numerically predict the heat transfer and fluid flow in a 2D porous non-square enclosure given thermal flux beginning conditions along the bottom wall.

2. POROUS GEOMETRY

Figure 1 shows the physical domain of a Non-Square Porous area. As you can see, the top wall is chilly, the left and right side walls are well-insulated, and the bottom wall has evenly and sinusoidally fluctuating boundary conditions.



Fig. 1: Physical domain and Triangular Mesh for Right angle Trapezoidal cavity

3. PROBLEM FORMULATION

Assumptions are made in order to get the governing equations for the working model mentioned above,

- The heat exchange caused by radiation is minimal
- Flow of fluid with low Reynolds numbers
- The Newtonian and Boussinesq approximations serve as the working medium.
- Thermal equilibrium between a fluid and a porous media was achieved.
- Darcy's governing equation is applied to predict the flow inside the porous cavity.

For buoyant energy transfer, the dimensionless variables as

$$X = \frac{x}{L}, \ Y = \frac{y}{L}, \quad \psi = \frac{\psi}{\alpha}, \quad \theta = \left(\frac{T - T_C}{T_h - T_C}\right)$$
(1)

Modified Rayleigh number

$$Ra = \frac{g\beta_T \nabla TKL}{\nu\alpha} \tag{2}$$

$$\frac{\partial u}{\partial x} + \frac{\partial v}{\partial y} = 0 \tag{3}$$

The velocity in X- direction can be described by

$$u = \frac{-K}{\mu} \frac{\partial p}{\partial x} \tag{4}$$

Velocity in vertical direction is given by

$$v = \frac{-K}{\mu} \left(\frac{\partial p}{\partial y} + \rho g \right)$$
(5)

The permeability K of porous medium is given by

$$K = \frac{D_P^2 \phi^3}{180(1-\phi)^2}$$
(6)

The buoyant parameter variation within the porous cavity is given by

$$\rho = \rho_{\infty} [1 - \beta_{\mathrm{T}} (\mathrm{T} - \mathrm{T}_{\infty})] \tag{7}$$

Momentum equation:

$$\frac{\partial v}{\partial x} - \frac{\partial u}{\partial y} = \frac{Kg\beta_T}{\gamma} \frac{\partial T}{\partial x}$$
(8)

Energy equation;

$$u\frac{\partial T}{\partial x} + v\frac{\partial T}{\partial y} = \alpha \left(\frac{\partial^2 T}{\partial x^2} + \frac{\partial^2 T}{\partial y^2}\right)$$
(9)

The continuity equation follows following stream functions such as

$$u = \frac{\partial \psi}{\partial y} \tag{10}$$

$$v = -\frac{\partial \psi}{\partial x} \tag{11}$$

Non-dimensional equations for porous cavities are

$$\left(\frac{\partial^2 \psi}{\partial X^2} + \frac{\partial^2 \psi}{\partial Y^2}\right) = -Ra \frac{\partial \theta}{\partial X}$$
(12)

4. BOUNDARY CONDITIONS

The boundary conditions for temperature with case (see Fig 1) are

 θ_h =1 (Uniform heating, bottom wall)

$$\theta_{c} = 0 \text{ (Top cold wall)}$$

$$\frac{\partial \theta}{\partial Y} = 0 \text{ (adiabatic inclined walls)}$$

$$\frac{\partial H}{\partial Y} = U\theta - \frac{\partial \theta}{\partial X} \text{ (Heat function)}$$
(13)

5. SOLUTION METHODOLOGY

Based on a grid refinement research, calculations are carried out for a grid of size 41 X 41. For the purpose of solving the dimensionless governing equations, a finite element method known as Galerkin's residual is employed. Solving Eqn. (12) will yield the buoyant heat transfer values for the non-square cavity.

6. SIMULATION RESULTS

Using the finite element method, the grid independence for a porous square cavity with a regular mesh and triangle elements has been examined for mesh sizes of 11X11, 21X21, 31X31, 41X41, and 51X51. The average Nusslet number study with Ra = 500 for left side wall uniform heating is shown in the table. Since the average nusselt number stays constant at 41X41, 51X51, and 61X61 Grid Size and grows from 11X11 to 31X31, 41X41grid is utilised for all subsequent calculations.

Grid independence Test					
Grid Dimension	Average Nusselt No.				
	(\overline{Nu})				
11 X 11	10.3212				
21 X 21	8.5325				
31 X 31	7.1023				
41 X 41	6.4456				
51 X 51	6.4435				
61 X 61	6.4401				

The reference Aparna and Seetharamu [9] for linear heating has been compared to local parameters such as heat functions and stream functions. Using MATLAB, a code is created to produce isotherms and streamlines for 2D free convection issues in trapezoidal cavities.



Fig. 2: Assessment of the present work with other published data for Non square enclosure at Ra = 500

To validate the current work, a 2D non-square enclosure filled with saturated water is used. Data is calculated using average Nusselt Numbers and the work has been explored for Ra = 500.Excellent agreement is established between the published data [9] and the current investigation, which has sidewall inclinations of 550 for non-square cavities.

Table 2 Validation of Average Nu with uniform heatingis carried out with Published data of Aparna andSeetharamu [9]

(\overline{Nu})							
Ra	Present Study	Published Data [9]	Discrepancy, %				
100	1.325	1.302	0.876				
500	5.526	5.499	0.576				

1000	7.525	7.505	0.306
2000	9.662	9.655	0.099

Figure 4 illustrates the relationship between Ra and the skin friction coefficient along a warm wall for a sinusoidal scenario. The predominant mode of heat transport at Rayleigh number Ra = 102 is conduction. In contrast, stream function curve magnitudes are quite tiny, and temperature contour stratification is located around the enclosure. As a result, the local heat transport is virtually linear. At Ra 1 x 103, convection becomes substantial. Near the corners, the fluid flow's size is incredibly small. At the start and finish of the local transfer of heat along the heated and cold surfaces, increasing and decreasing behaviour is seen.



Fig. 3: Variation in local Nu with distance X for different Rayleigh Numbers with Sinusoidal temperature

Figure 4 shows a variation in the heating curve that is not uniform, but an asymmetry tendency is observed for the heated wall. The local Nu rises from -ve coefficients to positive values.



Fig. 4: Variation in local Nu with distance X for different Rayleigh Numbers with Uniform temperature condition

The Indian Journal of Technical Education, Special Issue, May 2023

The top wall's local nusselt number is lower than the bottom wall's, and the maximum local nusselt number is found at about X = 0.49 from the hotwall in Fig. 4.

Local nusselt numbers grow monotonically with an increase in Ra.

7. RESULTS AND DISCUSSION



Figure.5Isotherms, Streamlines and Heat lines of bottom wall for Ra = 100, Ra = 500 and Ra = 1000 (Uniform Heating).

With the bottom wall exposed to a uniformly fluctuating heat flux boundary condition, Figure 5 displays the temperature contours, stream lines, and heat lines for Ra = 100 to 1000. Aspect ratio is regarded as being 1. The fluid on the left face rose as a result of the top and bottom walls' different temperatures. As a result, fluid rises from the centre of the left sidewall and moves towards the right side wall. The left sidewall's buoyant energy output is greater than the right sidewall's. Due to this, the isotherms' magnitudes for different Ra are virtually invariant, but the flow pattern changes as Ra rises. The isotherm contours that are extremely close to the hot wall ($\theta = 0.9$) and cold surface ($\theta = 0.1$) are nearly bent to the inclined wall. However, the smooth curves that encircle the heat flux walls are the isotherm contours, $\theta(0.8 \ge \theta \ge 0.2)$.In comparison to Ra=100,500, the stream function that corresponds to $\Psi = 12$ stretches more in the centre in Figure 6. Regarding streamlines, the number of elliptical loops created varies with magnitude values above 12, and a greater centre eggshaped loop is obtained in non-square cavities compared to smaller Ra values.



Figure.6: Isotherms, Streamlines and Heat lines of bottom wall for Ra = 100, Ra = 500 and Ra = 1000, (Sinusoidal heating).

In comparison to Ra = 100, 500, the stream function that corresponds to $\Psi = 12$ stretches more in the centre in Figure 6. Regarding streamlines, the number of elliptical loops created varies with magnitude values above 12, and a greater centre egg-shaped loop is obtained in non-square cavities compared to smaller Ra values.

8. CLOSED REMARKS

With a uniform and sinusoidal heat flux on the bottom wall, the aforementioned aimed to numerically studied the fluid flow and buoyancy driven heat transfer properties in a porous non-square cavity. The current study emphasises the impact of Ra on bottom wall heating in porous cavities. The FEM is utilised to forecast the issue at hand. It is possible to draw the following conclusions about this study:

> The largest thermal effect occurs at the bottom border of the cooled left wall in the event of linearly increasing heat flow on the bottom wall.

- The average Nu rises monotonically as modified Rayleigh numbers are increased.
- As Ra rises, the value of the velocity field rises as well, turning the conduction zone into a buoyant heat region.
- The average value of Nusselt number is higher for a bottom wall with a linearly varying heat flux.
- For square and non-square cavities, the right side heating wall's average Nu increases steadily as Ra rises, and this is more the case for uniform temperature than it is for the case when the temperature varies linearly for the walls.

9. REFERENCES

- 1. I Saranya et al "Nemerical study on Natural Convection in a Square Cavity with linearly varying heat flux on side Wall" Universal Journal of Fluid Mechanics 1 (2016), pp 24-36.
- 2. V. Prasad, "Heat and fluid flow in porous mediam", Int.

Journal of Heat and Mass Transfer, Vol 29, 1986, pp 841-853.

- 3. V. Prasad, "Free convection heat transfer in porous square cavity",IJHMT,1984
- 4. Prasanth Anand Kumar Lam, K.Arul Prakash, "A numerical study on natural convection and entropy generation in a porous enclosure with heat sources", Int. Journal of Heat and Mass Transfer, Vol 69, 2014, pp 390-407
- 5. S. K. Mahapatra, P. Nanda, A. Sarkar, "Interaction of mixed convection in two-sided lid driven differentially heated square enclosure with radiation in presence of

participating medium", Heat Mass Tranfer, 42, pp. 739 - 757, 2006.

- A. Mezrhab, L. Bchir, "Radiation-natural convection interactions in partitioned cavities", Int. J of Numer. Methods Heat and Fluid flow, 8, pp. 781 – 799, 1998.
- 7. Aparna and Seetharamu "FEM Analysis of natural convection flows in porous trapezoidal Enclosure" International Journal of innovative Research (2017).
- 8. Yasin Varol, Hakan F.Oztop, Asaf Varol, "Free convection in porous media filled right-angle triangular enclosures", Int. communications in Heat and Mass Transfer, Vol. 33, 2006, pp 1190-1197

TRAINING NEEDS AND IMPLICATIONS

DR. SATISH N

Department of Mechanical Engineering, Bangalore Institute of Technology

DR. B. S. AJAY KUMAR

Department of Mechanical Engineering, KSIT, Bengaluru

1. INTRODUCTION

Successful job candidates require training in order to carry out their responsibilities well. To operate machinery, limit waste, and prevent accidents, workers must receive training. Supervisors, managers, and executives must also be trained in order for them to mature in thought and deed. They need training just as much as the workers need. In each organization, training and development are constant processes. Training and development simply refers to teaching certain knowledge, skills, and abilities to a worker. It is an effort to raise an employee's attitude or increase their knowledge and abilities in order to improve current or future employee performance. Training is the process of acquiring knowledge and skills so that someone may perform the assigned jobs effectively.

1.1 Company Profile in Brief

The establishment of Sri Raghavendra Engineering Systems Private Limited as a machine tool designing, Material Handling Systems & SPMS, and SS Fabrication Service Company took place in 1993. When asked to provide a variety of special purpose import substitute machine tools by one of its customers in 1993, the company made its entrance into machine tool manufacture.

2. PRODUCTS MANUFACTURED

1. CNC Lathes, Turning centers & solutions. (Sales Turnover: Rs. 194cr, 1292 Machines sold)

- Vertical and Horizontal machining centers & solutions. (Sales Turnover: Rs. 110cr, 454 Machines sold)
- 3. CNC Cylindrical Grinding machines & solutions. (Sales Turnover: Rs. 37cr, 182 Machines sold)
- Tool Turrets ATC's Tool Disk for World Markets. (Sales Turnover: Rs. 26cr, 3975 Units sold) 52% Export.

2.1 The organization's work flow model

- Certain components that cannot be produced inhouse are outsourced to vendors. Other components used in machine construction are obtained from outside suppliers or produced in-house.
- Products made from sheet metal are treated and painted.
- Manufactured components are shipped for heat treatment and other processes as necessary.
- Depending on the sort of machine being built, an assembly kit is prepared.
- Machine assembly is carried out in accordance with the product line, and the finished item is tested at every stage of assembly.
- The distribution of all completed input components begins with their transfer to central repositories.
- The assembly process is dependent on the design department's BOM (Bill of Materials).

After testing, the finished product is delivered to the dispatch counter for packing and shipping.

2.2 Study Design: Study Goals and Purpose

Objectives/purpose of study

- 1. To comprehend the important sectors' training requirements.
- 2. To comprehend the training strategies used by Sri Raghavendra Engineering Systems Private Limited to boost worker productivity.
- 3. To research the necessity for training and its implications for the worker.
- 4. To make suggestions for improvements to the current system in line with best practices for the sector.

3.0 DATA ANALYSIS AND INTERPRETATION

The employees' work experience at SRE Factory:

10% of the employees at SRE factory have the work experience of 10 years and above, 10% of the employees have the work experience between 5-10 years, and 80% of the employees have the work experience less than 5 years

Training programme requirements:

5% of the employees say that training is required before joining, 52% of them say it is required after joining, 10% say it is required monthly, 29% quarterly and 5% yearly.

Employee opinions on how training needs are identified:

15% of the employees believe that training need is identified on monthly basis, 50% of the employees believe on quarterly basis, 10% of the employees believe it is identified every half yearly and 25% of the employees believe the need is identified on yearly basis.

Preference of training in the company:

50% of the employees at SRE factory prefer On the job training, 10% of the employees prefer off the job, 5% of the employees prefer Seminars and 35% of the employees prefer all of the above forms of training

Do you know what our organization's vision and objectives are for the next one to three years?

75% of the employees at SRE factory know the vision and goals and 25% of the employees do not know the vision and goals

Are you a goal focused individual?

80% of the employees at SRE factory are goal focused know their objectives and 20% of the employees are not focused on what they are doing in the organization

Do you sometimes say to yourself "I know what I mean, but I can't explain it"?

70% of the employees at SRE factory can explain very clearly what they mean and 30% of the employees fail to explain what they know.

Do you fail to speak up too frequently when you know you should?

45% of the employees fail to speak up when required at SRE factory and 55% of the employees are able to speak up when required

Do you have many days when you are busy all day, but relatively non-productive?

45% of the employees at SRE factory are busy all day yet non-productive and 55% of the employees say that they are productive and busy most of the time.

Usage of decision matrix to organize priorities and make decisions:

40% of the employees at SRE factory knowhow to use the decision matrix to prioritize and make decisions and 60% of the employees do not know how to use decision matrix

Finding a work-life balance

85% of the employees at SRE factory know how to balance work and rest, 15% of the employees do not know how to balance the work life and rest.

In a conflict situation, do you act calmly and carefully?

90% of the employees at SRE factory know to handle conflict situations calmly and carefully. 10% of the employees say that they do not know to handle a conflict situation

Reasons for enrolling in a training programme: 48% of the employees at SRE factory say that program objectives would influence them to join the training, 5% of the employees say location as the driver, 21 % of the employees say Facilitator/presenter, 13% of the employees say that length of program and 13% of the employees say price would influence them to enroll into a training program

The classroom is the most efficient setting for instruction:

10% of the employees at SRE factory feel that classroom training is not very effective, 70% of the employees feel they are somewhat effective and 20% of the employees feel that classroom training is very effective

Video as the most effective method of training:

5% of the employees at SRE factory feel that video as a form of training is not very effective, 30% of the employees feel that they are somewhat effective and 65% of the employees feel that video as a form of training is very effective

Internet as the most effective method of training:

5% of the employees at SRE factory feel that Internet as a form of training is not very effective, 80% of the employees feel that they are somewhat effective and 15% of the employees feel that internet as a form of training is very effective

Induction was conducted in the organization:

95% of the employees at SRE factory have had the induction program when they joined and 5% of the employees have not had the induction program at the time of joining.

Briefing about the training objectives:

50% of the employees at SRE factory say that objectives were briefed to them before the training and 50% of the employees say that objectives were not told and briefed about in advance.

Training program is needful:

65% of the employees at SRE factory agree that training program is needful, 25% strongly agree that training program is needful, 5% of the employees disagree that training program is needful and 5% of the employees do not know if it beneficial or not.

Training equips you with the necessary skills:

55% of the employees at SRE factory agree that training provides the skills required for performing a task, 15% of the employees strongly agree, 25% of the employees disagree that training provides the skills required and

5% of the employees strongly disagree that training provides the skill sets to perform an activity

Making Use of Training-Related Knowledge:

50% of the employees at SRE factory feel that they use the Knowledge gained from the training program, 5% of the employees feel that they don't use the knowledge from the training and 45% of the employees feel that they use the knowledge gained from the training sometimes

Freedom of expression during training:

95% of the employees at SRE factory have the freedom of expression during the training program, 5% of the employees feel that they do not have the freedom to express their views during the training program

Pre-test and post-test to check the effectiveness of training program:

70% of the employees at SRE factory feel that there should be a pre test and post test to check the effectiveness of training program and 30% feel that there is no necessity to have a pre and post test to check the effectiveness of the training program

Does your company sponsor training if the necessity for it is determined?

75% of the employees at SRE factory get the sponsorship from their company if the need for training arises and 25% of the employees say that their training needs sponsorship will not be provided by the company

Your training programme will assist you in:

30% of the employees feel that training program should help build better confidence to work better, 40% of the employees feel that training should help develop new skills, 25% of the employees feel that training should help adapt to the work environment better and 5% of the employees feel that training should help provide job satisfaction.

4.0 FINDINGS AND SUGGESTIONS

4.1 Findings

- 1. The majority of SRE personnel have fewer than five years of experience altogether.
- 2. Training needs are determined every three months.
- 3. Almost all new hires receive on-the-job training when they join the company.

- 4. The majority of employees are aware of the 4. organization's goals and objectives
- 5. Employees receive communication training each year
- 6. The majority of employees are reluctant to speak up and share their opinions on issues
- 7. There is a lack of cooperation across divisions, which causes some individuals to be ineffective despite working nonstop.
- 8. The majority of staff members lack knowledge of how to prioritise work and make judgements using the decision matrix.
- 9. Objectives of the training programs are not stated clearly before the training
- 10. The employees have a strong belief that training would provide them the abilities they need to perform better, yet the objectives of the training programmers are not explicitly outlined before the training.
- 11. The firm conducts virtually little off-the-job training for its personnel.
- 12. When necessary, the business funds employee training.
- 13. Workers believe that training has given them the confidence they need and given them the opportunity to learn new skills.
- 14. The employee believes that a pre- and post-test will be beneficial. Training manuals and materials are rarely updated

4.2 Recommendations

- 1. Analyzing the training needs is extremely significant and required for any industry in order to match the rapid changes in technology and the current scenario. So, taking into account the changes in the corporate environment, the training programme should be revised.
- 2. Depending on the demand and technical advancements, regular training should be offered in the organisation.
- 3. Employees should receive department-specific training since they will comprehend it better and do the task better.

- . In order to improve the training programme and learning, feedback regarding the trainer should be collected.
- 5. The majority of SRE's staff members have fewer than five years of industry experience. The organisation will foster a more courteous environment and improved information sharing by hiring senior personnel.
- 6. All employees should be given the freedom to express themselves and their ideas, as doing so will foster innovation and increase job happiness.
- 7. Given that the majority of employees are unaware of how to use the decision matrix and prioritize their responsibilities, training on the decisionmaking process should be conducted.
- 8. Trainers should make sure that the training program's objectives are communicated to the participants before the training begins in order to increase enthusiasm among participants and to weed out any non-participants.

4.3 Trainers should brief the employees or train the employees with handling procedures with respect to the following as this would result in better organization behavior:

- ➤ Grievance
- Performance management
- Customer service skills
- ➤ Work place ethics
- ➢ Conflict management
- Strategic management
- \succ Hiring and firing
- Presentation skills
- ➢ Stress management
- Cultural diversity
- Compensation and benefits
- Sexual harassment
- Recruitment and retention

- Workplace violence
- Supervisory skills

5.0 CONCLUSION

Every person in a business strives to make the company better: SRE Pvt Ltd in Bangalore, which has its name ingrained in the discipline of human resources and its methods, is no exception. To increase the effectiveness of training, the responsible department should set up development and training programmes.

According to the study's findings, SRE Pvt Ltd. in Bangalore has good overall effectiveness and can continue to improve in the future by implementing minor process adjustments. By determining their own training needs and participating in the organization's training programmes, employees actually gain something. Having personnel with improved skill sets and more productivity is advantageous to the company. The business provides a solid basis for career advancement.

6. REFERENCE

- 1. P Subba Rao, Personal and Human Resource Management – Himalayan Publications 2002
- 2. R.K Sahu, Training and Development, First Edition, New Delhi, 2005
- 3. K Ashwathappa, Human Resource Management
- 4. Websites:
 - a) www.wikipedia.com
 - b) www.google.com
 - c) www.raghavendrasystems.com/index.html
 - d) Company reports:
 - e) Company brochures

MECHANICAL AND TRIBOLOGICAL CHARACTERISATION OF AL6061 AND ZIRCON SAND

V. C. RAVI

Assistant Professor, BIT, Bengaluru

DR H. N. REDDAPPA

Associate Professor, BIT, Bengaluru

DR. T. V. SREE RAMA REDDY

Professor and HOD, BIT, Bengaluru

DR. A. CHANDRASHEKAR

Assistant Professor, BIT, Bengaluru

ABSTRACT

The aim of this work is to investigate mechanical properties such as tensile strength, hardness and wear characteristics of as cast zircon sand reinforced aluminium 6061 matrix composites. Aluminium metal matrix composite specimens of varying Zircon sand (0, 2, 4,6 and 8 wt. %) were prepared by stir casting process. Brinell hardness, tensile strength and wear performance of the prepared composites specimens were analysed. The results showed that introducing zircon sand as particulates in Al6061 matrix increased tensile strengthens and hardness. 8 wt. % zircon sand reinforced AMC showed maximum hardness and tensile strength. Pin-on-disc wear test indicated that reinforcing Al6061 matrix with Zircon sand particles increased wear resistance. Frictional wear (µm) is low in 8 wt. % of Zircon sand compared to the lower wt. % zircon sand as reinforcement.

KEYWORDS : AMC, Al6061

1. INTRODUCTION

In recent years there is an increasing stress on high performance materials in all sectors of applications, be it aerospace, automobile or building or entertainment. Since, monolithic materials including metals and alloys do not meet these demands, a trend of developing new materials to meet these demands has emerged during almost last four decades. One such material is `composite material`, which is defined as a material having two or more dissimilar materials when combined together with suitable distribution exhibits improved properties than either of the individual materials. They differ from conventional alloys in that though the later also consist of two or more dissimilar materials, individual materials are chemically mingled in it while in the former, they are both physically and chemically separable. In composites, one phase is continuous phase called `matrix`, while the other is discontinuous, called `dispersoid` or `reinforcement` or `filler` depending on its role in the matrix. Composites have been classified depending on the nature of composite (natural: Ex: Wood or manmade: Ex: Concrete), type of matrix used (Metal, Polymer or Ceramics) or type of second phase used (Continuous or Discontinuous). Properties of these materials can be tailored by appropriate selection of matrix and dispersoids, content, size and shape of the latter as well as the processing method to fabricate them. In addition, the properties of boundaries (Interfaces) between the constituents also contribute to the properties of composites. Properties can be enhanced with different heat treatment process.

2. LITERATURE REVIEW

A variety of light metals such as Al, Mg and Ti have been used as matrices rather than heavy metals such as Fe and steel in view of the existing possibility of enhancing their properties economically by conventional methods such as alloying and heat treatment. Further, due to their inherent light weight, good corrosion resistance, ease of handling, and a wide range of present and future applications, mostly Al and its alloys, both cast alloys [AA356 (LM25/AS7G), AA357, LM13, LM11 and LM30] and wrought alloys [Al-Si-Mg (6061), Al-Cu (2014/2024) and Al-Zn-Mg (7075) are mostly chosen as the matrices for MMC synthesis. Similarly a variety of materials in discontinuous and continuous form have been used as reinforcements [1-5]. Song et al. [6] have reported studies on Al alloy with carbon and Al₂O₃, while Tsong et al. [8] on BNp/SiCp composites. In both cases superior wear resistance over the monolithic composite or matrix alloys have been observed. Similarly, Gurcan and Baker [9] have reported Al6061-Al₂O₃/ SiCp composite superior wear resistance compares to monolithic composite of Al6061-Al₂O₂ or the matrix alloy. Presently, there are more than 20 R & D and

academic institutions in the country involved in the area of MMC, most of which have been concentrating primary processing(solidification technique), on secondary processing (extrusion, forging and rolling) and characterization of resulting composites. Very few attempts have been made on the product development while a number of groups are working in simulation and modelling also [9-10]. Processing by both liquid metallurgy and semisolid techniques have been followed for the preparation of MMCs in the country, while their secondary processing particularly extrusion has been carried out with the capability demonstration of producing rods and tubes of various sizes and also products by forging [11]. Characterization of Al-MMC thus processed has been carried out through mechanical and tribological property evaluation to understand these observed properties.

3. EXPERIMENTAL WORK

3.1 Matrix Material

The base metal matrix chosen in the present study is the aluminium 6061 because it is one of the most extensively used of the 6000 series of aluminium alloys. It is a versatile heat treatable extruded alloy with medium to high strength capabilities. Chemical Composition of the Base Matrix: (Al 6061) is shown in Table1.

Element	Zn	Si	Cu	Mg	Mn	Ti	Cr	Fe	Other	Al
% by Wt	0.25	0.8	0.4	1.2	0.15	0.15	0.35	0.7	0.15	Balance

Reinforcing Material

The reinforcement material chosen was Zirconium Silicate or simply known as Zircon sand which is likely to enhance properties of the base material. Zircon sand particle used for this experiment is 75 microns (200 meshes).

Chemical Composition of Reinforcing Material: (Zircon sand)

Element	ZrO ₂	SiO ₂	TiO ₂	Fe ₂ O ₃	Volatilities
% by Wt	65.9%	32.2%	0.3%	0.07%	1.53%

Melting of Alloy and Specimen Preparation

Sieve test analysis was conducted on pulverized reinforcing material (Zircon sand) .Particle size of 75 microns was selected for the castings preparation. Required amount of aluminium alloy is taken in a ceramic crucible and is placed in a stir casting furnace. The electric power is supplied from external source to the furnace coil. After the aluminium attains the melting temperature the reinforcing material (Zircon sand) is added into the molten metal in calculated quantities so as to obtain the desired composition of the cast(0% to 8% by weight) through a stirring equipment. The molten metal is stirred well to obtain a well-defined vortex motion. Preheated particulate (300°C) Zircon sand was dispersed into the melt through this vortex. The stirring was continued until homogeneous mixture is obtained. The molten metal is poured into the mould, molten metal is allowed to solidify and the resulting casts are inspected for defects.



Figure 1: Melting furnace

Casted parts or specimens

The test specimens were machined from casted samples as per A.S.T.M standards and are presented in the figure.



Fig-2:Tensile test specimens



Fig-3:Wear test specimens

4. RESULTS AND DISCUSSIONS

Three different tests were conducted on the specimens to determine mechanical properties:

1) Tensile test 2) Hardness test 3) Wear test

4.1. Tensile Strength

Tensile test was conducted on universal testing machine. The test carried out as per A.S.T.M standard. All the samples were tested for tensile strength. The samples were loaded till fracture and tensile strength measured.



Graph-1: Ultimate tensile strength

4.2. Hardness Test

Hardness was determined by Brinell hardness test on the specimen. The test was carried out at three different locations on the specimen to negate the possible effect of indenter resting on the harder particles using ball indenter. The test was carried as per A.S.T.M standards.



Graph-2: Hardness test

4.3. Wear test

Wear test was conducted using pin-on-disc method at room temperature under dry sliding condition. Wear test was carried out on test specimen under three different loads of 1kg, 2kg and 3kg. The test specimens are prepared as per the requirement of the machine.



Graph-3:. Frictional Wear for various wt. % of Zircon sand

5. CONCLUSIONS

Al6061 based metal matric composites have been prepared successfully with the help of stir casting technique with uniform distribution of Zircon sand particles. The composites were tested for measuring the tensile strength, hardness and wear resistance values.

- 1. Hardness of aluminium alloy increases with increase in wt. % of Zircon sand. With 8 wt. % of Zircon sand BHN value increases up to 20%.
- 2. Tensile strength of composite increases with increase in wt. % of Zircon sand. With 8 wt. % of Zircon sand tensile strength value increases up to 77%.
- 3 Wear resistance of aluminium alloy increases with increase in wt. % of Zircon sand. With 8 wt. % of Zircon sand addition wear resistance enhanced significantly compared to 2 wt. % of Zircon sand.

REFERENCES

- 1. T. W. Clyne and F "Simanick Metal Matrix Composites and Metal Foams" Wiley-VCH, Weinheim, Wiley-Veft,2000 1-48.
- 2. J.U Ejiofor, and R.G Reddy, J. "Developments in the processing and properties of particulate Al-Si composites" .Metals, 49(1997), 31-37.
- 3. B.Maruyam, "Progress & promise in aluminium composite" Advanced Materials & process. 6(1999),47-50.
- P.K Rohatgi, "Metal matrix composites" Defence Sci. Jl. 43(1993), 323-349.
- D.J. Lloyd, "Particle reinforced aluminium and magnesium matrix composites", Mat. Rev. 39(1994), 1-23 published online: 18 Jul 2013.
- L.Song, H.D.Bong and K.S. Han, "Characterization of mechanical and wearproperties of Al/Al2O3/C hybrid

metal matrix composites" Scripta metallurgica et Materialia, 1995, Vol.33, pp.1307-1313.

- J. L.Tsong, K.C. Lau and S.Q.Wu, "Wear of Al-based hybrid composites containing BN and SiC particulates", Metal. Materials Trans.A, 1999, Vol. 30A, pp. 2551-2555.
- A.B.Gurcan and T.N. Baker,"Wear behavior of AA6061 aluminum alloy and its composites" Wear, 1995, Vol. 188, pp.185-191.
- 9. R. Sasikumar, T.R. Ramamohan, and B.C. Pai, Acta Metall. Mater., 37(7) (1989), 2085-91.
- Manoj Singla, D. Deepak Dwivedi, Lakhvir Singh, Vikas Chawla, "Development of Aluminium Based Silicon Carbide Particulate Metal Matrix Composite" Journal of Minerals & Materials Characterization & Engineering, Vol. 8, No.6, pp 455-467, 2009.
- A.K.Gupta, inAdvances in Composites, [ADCOMP'96], ed. E.S.Dwarakadasa and C.G.Krishnadas Nair, (New Delhi, Allied Publishers, 1996), 317-332.

EFFECT OF NANOPARTICLES ON TRANSESTERIFICATION PROCESS

SHAMBULINGA MURTHY G C

Dept. of Mechanical Engineering, Malnad College of Engineering, Hassan

DR. GIRISHA K B, DR. MANJUNATH S H, DR. B K NARENDRA

Dept. of Mechanical Engineering, Adichunchanagiri University, B G Nagara

ABSTRACT

The utilization of fossil fuels like diesel has contributed immensely to ecological challenges such as the emission of greenhouse gases. Hence, the motivation for sourcing energy that is renewable as well as easily accessible from relatively cheap materials. Biodiesel is a perfect replacement for petro-diesel because it is biodegradable, economically viable, and has lower toxicity. However, there are challenges associated with its utilization in engines. It also raises a NO_x emission which necessitates frequent engine component replacement owing to clogging, and it is ineffective to cold weather. To boost efficiency, nanoparticles can be combined with bio diesel blends. Moreover, the utilization of nanoparticle additives improves the performance of engines, rate of heat transfer, fuel mixture balance, thermo- physical characteristics, as well as the reduction in exhaust emissions. Copper oxide which is a transition metal oxide aids in the heat transfer from the engine down to the exhaust thus lowering the emission of Carbon monoxide, Unburnt Hydrocarbon, NO_x and increase in CO₂. As a result, CuO nanoparticles are thought to have a lot of potential as a diesel engine additive. Furthermore, the combustion behaviour, performance, and emission characteristics of diesel engines powered by CuO nanoparticle-containing biodiesel and blends were carefully investigated.

1. INTRODUCTION

Biofuels are receiving tremendous attention worldwide as renewable and alternative source of energy production. Biofuels can be produced with the help of various materials through different extraction methods and conversion processes. However technical problems faced in the large-scale production of biodiesel results in making the whole process uneconomical for commercialization. Thus, it becomes essential to develop efficient and cost effective technologies for harvesting, oil extraction and biodiesel production. This review presents an overview on harvesting, oil extraction and biodiesel production technologies for various materials[2].

India is looking at renewable alternative fuel sources to reduce its dependence on foreign oil. As India imports 70 % of the oil it, the country has been hit hard by increasing costs and uncertainty. Biodiesel fuel derived by the transesterification of non edible oil from Pongamia pinnata (Honge) meets the requirements of a diesel fuel. Further, its cultivation and use do not add to net global warming.

Biodiesel is a liquid biofuel obtained by chemical process called "Transesterification" in which fatty acids

present in crude oil of pongamia pinnata is converted into long chain esters. ASTM (American Society Testing and materials) defines biodiesel as mixture of long chain mono alkylic esters from fatty acids obtained from renewable resources, to be used in diesel engine. The biggest challenge modern industrial society is facing today is the decline and exhaustion of the fossil energy resources[4]. The Primary sources of energy that power our civilization are those fossil fuels. One of the most prominent alternative energy resources, attracting more and more interest in recent years with the price for crude oil is reaching heights, is biodiesel, which is possible substitute for petroleum-based diesel fuel. Many studies have shown that the properties of biodiesel are very close to petroleum-based diesel fuel. Therefore, biodiesel fuel can be used in diesel engines with little or no modifications.

Problem statement

The biggest challenge modern industrial society is facing today is the decline and exhaustion of the fossil energy resources. The Primary sources of energy that power our civilization are those fossil fuels. One of the most prominent alternative energy resources, attracting more and more interest in recent years with the price for crude oil is reaching heights, is Biodiesel. The study of biofuel-diesel fuel blends with nanoparticles is very timely because of arising problems such as the increasing cost of the fuel and health problems such as respiratory diseases which are caused by byproducts of combustion of fossil fuels such petroleum-based fuels.

Objectives

- To Extract Crude oil from Honge seeds.
- To Study the effect of Nanoparticles on Transesterification process.
- To check the basic fuel properties of different blends of biofuel and diesel fuel.
- To conduct the performance characteristics of four stroke diesel engine for diesel and bio diesel blend.
- To carry out emission analysis of four stroke diesel engine for biodiesel and diesel blend.
- To evaluate results.

Autor	Title	Year	Extract
Manjunath Channappa gouda	Effect of copper oxide nano additive on diesel Engine performance operated with dairy scum Bio diesel	2018	This study explores the effect of copper oxide nano additive fuel blends on the diesel engine performance, combustion and emission characteristics. From the experimental study, it is concluded that the copper oxide nanoparticles (CuO) are the efficient metal additives as they improve the engine performance inturn BTE and BSFC and reduce HC, CO (except NOx) exhaust emissions of the diesel engine.
P. Kannan et al.	Effects of CuO nano additives on performance and emission characteristics of Putranjiva biodiesel	2021	CuO nanoparticle washighly preferred for its constructive thermal properties like heat capacity, heat conductivity, high melting temperature, and low thermal expansion. Also, environmentally friendly behavior with easy production characteristics and an on toxic synthesis route of CuO made it the preferable one over other. There are many holes on the CuO Nanoparticle surface, which may help the transesterification reaction. With an increasing number of pores within the catalyst, the catalyst's specific surface area increases, and the transesterification process occurs on the catalyst's surface.
Pankaj Mohan Rastogi etal.	Effect of CuO nanoparticles concentration on the performance and emission characteristics of the diesel engine running on jojoba (Simmonds Chinensis) biodiesel	2021	It can be accomplished that, fuel having nano-metal additives will enhance the engine combustion and reduced harmful exhaust emissions characteristics. Smaller size of CuO nanoparticles shall lead to improve the stability of fuel suspensions and prevent the test fuel clogging problems in fuel injectors.

Sarah The impact of CuO Oluwabunmi Bitireetal in biodiesel- blend fueled diesel engine: A review	2021	The reviewed studies showed that CuO nanoparticles added to biodiesel blends improved the emission characteristics, engine performance, as well as combustion characteristics. Consequently, in comparison to biodiesel devoid of CuO nanoparticles, the BTE and BSFCmetricsexhibited substantial improvement. The addition of CuO nanoparticles to biodiesel also improved emission properties. CO, HC, and NOx are all green house gases that were reduced significantly.
--	------	---

1.3.1 Literature Survey on Sodium Hydroxide(NaOH)

Autor	Title	Year	Extract
Sandeep Kumar Duran	A review on oil extraction and biofuels production From various materials.	2020	The direct blending of oil with diesel does not require any further processing or pretreatment, which add no cost for using it.
			Acid or base, anyone can be used as catalyst for transesterification of oil. Most of the researchers uses NAOH and KOH as catalyst for biodiesel production.
P. Chitra. P. Venkata- chalam	Optimization of experimental condition for biodiesel production from Alkali catalyzed transesterification of Jatrophaoil.		The important factors that affect thetransesterification reaction are the amounts of methanol and NAOH reaction temperature and reaction time.

2. METHODOLOGY



2.1 Extraction of crude oil

The seeds of pongamia pinnata tree contain 30% to 35% of oil in it, which can be used as crude oil for biodiesel production. The seeds of pongamia were collected and cold pressed to obtain Crude oil.



Figure 1. Seeds of Pongamia pinnata

The Indian Journal of Technical Education, Special Issue, May 2023



Figure 2. Extraction of crude oil

2.2 Transesterification using NaOH

Transesterification is defined as the chemical conversion process of triglycerides with alcohol into alkyl esters with the help of a catalyst. Transesterification process Start with Free Fatty Acid Test (FFA Test). FFA Test is done by Titration in which Burette is filled with NaOH and distilled water and conical flask is filled with isopropyl Alcohol, crude oil and phenolphthalein n Indicator.[5][6]

Burette: NaOH+Distilled Water Conical Flask: isopropylalcohol+oil+Indicator End point: Pale pink FFA test is carried out by titrating and distilled water in burette against isopropyl Alcohol, crude oil and phenolphthale in indicator in a conical flask.

If FFA is greater than 4, the Acid esterification has to be done because if transesterification is done directly there will be formation of Soap instead of biofuel. As FFA is greater than 4 Acid esterification has to be done by heating a mixture of crude oil, methanol and H2SO4. The amount of H2SO4 is determined.

This mixture is heated. After heating it is kept in separation funnel to separate free fatty acids.

Now, the acid esterified oil is again done with FFA test with the same procedure and after its FFAcame out to be 4.79 which is greater than 4 so it is necessary to do acid esterification again. After two Acid esterification FFA came out to be 3.9 grams which was less than 4. Now we can go for Transesterification Process.



Figure 3. Titration end point



Figure 4. Acid Esterification

"Transesterification" is done by heating the acid esterified oil with methanol and NaOH The amount of NaOH will depend upon the value of FFA as shown in the table below.

After heating the solution, it is kept in the Separation funnel for 1hour 30minutes. Separation funnel separates the biodiesel from glycerin.

2.2.1 Washing of Biodiesel

Then extra process which has to be done after we obtain biodiesel from separation funnel is washing. Washing is done to remove methanol if present in the biodiesel. Washing is done using hot water at 60 degree Celsius at least 6 times to obtain pure biofuel.

After Washing, the drying process has to be done to remove glycerin and water.

This is done by heating the biofuel at 140 degree Celsius for 15 minutes. After that, it is left for cooling. So, after Cooling our Biodiesel is ready.



Figure 5. Sodium Hydroxide



Figure 6. Transesterification



Figure 7. Separation Funnel



Figure 8. Washing

2.3 Transesterification with addition of CuOnanoparticle

Transesterification begins with FFA test, it is carried out by titrating and distilled water in burette against isopropyl Alcohol, crude oil and phenolphthalein indicator in a conical flask.

As FFA is greater than Acid esterification has to be done by heating a mixture of crude oil, methanol and H2SO4. The amount of H2SO4 is determined by formula.

This mixture is heated, and after heating it is kept in separation funnel to separate free fatty acids. Now the acid esterified oil is again tested for FFA test with same procedure. Now FFA came out to be 3.9. As FFA is less than 4 we can go for Transesterification.

Transesterification is done by heating the acid esterified oil with methanol and mixture of NaOH and CuO as Catalyst[3]. The amount of NaOH will depend upon the value of FFA as shown in the table 1 and amount of CuO taken is 4% of the NaOH.

After heating the solution, It is kept in the Separation funnel. Separation funnel separates the biodiesel from glycerin. The next process which has to be done after we obtain biodiesel from separation funnel is washing. Washing is done to remove methanol if present in the biodiesel. Washing is done using hot water Celsius at least 6 times to obtain pure biofuel.

After Washing, the drying process has to be done to remove glycerine and water. This is done by heating the biofuel at 140 degree Celsius 15 minutes. After that it is left for cooling. So, after Cooling our Biodiesel is ready.



Figure 9. Titration end point



Figure 10. Addition of CuO Nanoparticles



Figure 11. Transesterification



Figure 12 Separation Funnel

Biofuel obtained when CuO Nanoparticles were added is 840ml which is more than that of Using NaOH. The yield of Transesterification Increases with addition of CuO Nanoparticles because it provides more Surface area for reaction to occur.

2.3.1 BlendsPreparation

The Obtained biofuel is blended with Diesel in the following manner,

- B10:900ml of diesel and 100ml of Biofuel
- B20:800ml of diesel and 200m l of Biofuel
- B100: Pure Biofuel

2.4 Basic fuel properties

- Calorific Value: The energy contained in a fuel or food, determined by measuring the heat produced by the complete combustion of a specified quantity of it. This is now usually expressed in joules per kilogram.
- Density: Density of fuel is "the mass of fuel per unit volume". In some cases the density is expressed as a specific gravity or relative density, in this case it is expressed in multiples of the density of some other standard material, usually water or air.
- Viscosity: A measure of resistance of the fuel to flow at a stated temperature. According to ISO, the kinematic viscosity of heavy fuels should be specified in centistokes at 100°C.
- Flash Point: Flash point is the lowest temperature at which a Fuel will form a vapor in the air near its surface that will "flash," or briefly ignite, on exposure to an open flame. The flash point is a general indication of the flammability or combustibility of a liquid.
- Fire Point: The fire point of a fuel is the lowest temperature at which the vapor of that fuel will continue to burn for at least five seconds after ignition by an open flame of standard dimension.

2.4.1 Calorific Value Test using Digital Bomb Calorimeter

Description of the Apparatus:

The Digital Bomb Calorimeter consists of a heavy constant volume combustion chamber or "BOMB" Submerged in water. A sample of fuel to be tested is placed in a crucible within the Bomb and can be ignited by burning the fuse wire. The water is constantly stirred. There will be rise in the temperature of water after combustion of the fuel which has to be noted.

The Combustion is at constant Volume, therefore all of the chemical energy released by the combustion will be converted into internal intrinsic energy of the combustion products, and most of this leave the bomb in the form of transferred heat. Since the temperature rise of the combustion products is small and the water vapour formed during combustion almost Condensed, this transferred heat will approximate the higher calorific value of the fuel sample. The bomb is filled with saturated Oxygen before combustion.

Calorific Value for B100:- CV=37470.5115kJ/kg

Calorific Value for B20:- CV=40212.046kJ/kg

Table 1. Viscosity and Density Values

Calorific Value forB10:-CV =43030.8242kJ/kg

2.4.2 Viscosity and Density

Redwood Viscometer

The Redwood Viscometer consists of the Silver-plated oil cup about 4.5cm in diameter and 9cm in deep, mounted in a chrome plated water bath. The water bath is mounted on the stand with leveling screw. The base of the cup has a central hole into which a jet is fitted with its bore in the axis of the cup. The level to which the oil is to be filled into the oil cup is given by an index fixed to the inside wall of the oil cup. The cylindrical water bath surrounds the oil cup and is provided for the oil with a tap for emptying. A ball valve for starting and stopping the oil flow is also provided. A stiff wire spring clip arrangement is mounted to hold the thermometer.

	Density(grams/cc)			Kinematic Vi	ntistokes)	
Fuel	Room	40°C	80°C	Room	40°C	80°C
	Temperature			Temperature		
B100	0.901	0.886	0.861	8.45	5.805	2.047
B20	0.832	0.819	0.801	3.60	2.494	0.531
B10	0.838	0.824	0.804	3.08	2.101	0.011

2.5 Engine performance test

Engine Specifications:

- Type: 4-Stroke, Single Cylinder Diesel Engine(water cooled), Compression Ignition
- Make: Kirloskar
- Rated Poweroutput:5HP, 1500RPM
- Bore and Stroke: 80mmx110mm
- Compression Ratio:16.5:1
- Cylinder Capacity:553cc
- Starting: By Hand Cranking/ Auto start
- Orifice Diameter:15mm
- Weight on Brake drum:F1in Kg
- Spring Balance Reading:F2inKg



• Rope Radius (r): 0.1475 m









Table 2. Emission table forB10

Load in Nm	CO (%)	HC (ppm)	Nox(ppm)	Co ₂ (%)
0	0.22	46	21	2.50
5	0.17	25	55	3.50
10	0.08	24	10	4.70
15	0.31	63	158	6.80
18	2.69	148	222	9.90

2.7.2 Engine Emission Table for Blend B20

Table 2. Emission Table for B20

Load in Nm	CO (%)	HC (ppm)	Nox(ppm)	Co ₂ (%)
0	0.18	51	16	2.70
5	0.17	32	46	3.60
10	0.09	23	120	4.90
15	0.23	55	181	6.80
18	2.43	140	225	9.80

3 RESULT AND DISCUSSION

3.1 Calorific value



Figure 13. Calorific Value for different Blends Calorific Value for different Blends

3.2. Brake thermal efficiency



Figure 14. Thermal efficiency for different blends

3.3 Brake power





3.4 Brake specific fuel consumption



Figure 16. BSFC for different blends

- The figure 13 shows that Colorific Value of Pure Biodiesel increases on blend with the petroleum-based Diesel.
- Figure 14 Shows Brake thermal efficiency is increasing with increasing load for all blends of biodiesel and diesel.
- Figure 15 shows that Brake Power increases with increase in load.
- Figure 16 shows that BSFC decreases with increase in load.
- The combustion of bio fuel takes place completely in engine and increase in power with increase in load. It is because of the presence of oxygen in biodiesel which enhance the combustion as compared to diesel and biodiesel is more lubricant than diesel that provides additional lubrication.
- When using blends, biodiesel fuel is expected to decrease as compared to the consumption of diesel fuel. Specific fuel consumption (SFC) decreased sharply with increase in brake power for all fuel samples.

3.5 Emission test

Diesel consists of approximately 75% aliphatic hydro carbons (C10H20–C15H28) and about 25% aromatic hydrocarbons (e.g., benzene, styrene). The typical atomic mass concentrations are about 86% C, 14% H and a minor fraction of sulfur depending on crude oil source and cleaning quality.

Emission graph For B10



Figure 17. Emission graph for B1 Emission Graph for B 20



Figure 18 Emission graph for B20

From the emission Graphs we can conclude that

- NOx increases with increase in load for same blend because of increase in temperature in Engine.
- At Higher load emission of Unburnt Hydrocarbons (HC) for B20 is less than that of B10. So, blending of biodiesel reduces the emission of unburnt hydrocarbons.
- Carbon monoxide emission is less for B20.Blending of Biodiesel reduces the CO emission. Thus, results in increase in CO₂ emission.
- The emission of NOx is less at low load for B20, and it is more at higher loads when compared to B10.

The Indian Journal of Technical Education, Special Issue, May 2023

4 FUTURE SCOPE

- Biodiesel is a safe alternative fuel to replace traditional petroleum diesel.
- Biodiesel has high Lubricity, and it is a clean Burning Fuel.
- ✤ Biodiesel is Renewable Source of Energy.
- Biodiesel acts like petroleum diesel, but it has less impact on human health as it produces less air pollutants.
- Biodiesel is Cost effective.

5 **CONCLUSIONS**

From our experiments and Observation following conclusions can be drawn,

- The Yield of Transesterification increases with addition of CuO Nanoparticles, Because CuO Nanoparticles provides more surface area for reaction to occur.
- Calorific Value of the pure biodiesel increases with blending with the petroleum- based diesel.
- For same load Brake power is almost same for different blends.
- Brake Specific Fuel Consumption decreases with increase in Brake power.
- The emission of unburnt hydrocarbons is less in B20 when compared to B10.Therefore, blending reduces the emission of Unburnt Hydrocarbons.
- The emission of CO decreases when we increase the percentage of biofuel in diesel.

6 REFERENCES

- 1. Channappagoudra, Manjunath."Effec to copper oxide Nano additive on diesel engine performance operated with dairy scum biodiesel." International Journal ofAmbientEnergy42.5 (2021):530-539.
- Kannan, P., et al. "Effects of CuO Nano additives on performance and emission characteristics of Putranjiva biodiesel." M a t e r i a l s Today: Proceedings(2021).
- 3. Rastogi, Pankaj Mohan, Abhishek Sharma, and Naveen Kumar. "Effect of CuO nanoparticles concentration on the performance and emission characteristics of the diesel engine running on jojoba (Simmondsia Chinensis)biodiesel." Fuel 286(2021):119358.
- 4. Bitire, Sarah Oluwabunmi, Emeka Charles Nwanna, and Tien-Chien Jen. "The impact of CuO nanoparticles as fuel additives in biodieselblend fueled diesel engine: A review. "Energy & Environment(2022):0958305X221089217.
- 5. Duran, Sandeep Kumar. "A review on oil extraction and biofuels production from various materials." Materials Today: Proceedings26 (2020):261-265.
- 6. P. Chitra. P Venkatachalam. "optimization of experimental condition for biodiesel from the alkali cataltyzed transesterification of Jatrophaoil"
- 7. Devarajan, Yuvarajan, Beemkumar Nagappan, and Ganesan Subbiah. "A comprehensive study on emission and performance characteristics of a diesel engine fueled with nanoparticle-blended biodiesel." Environmental Science and Pollution Research 26.11 (2019): 10662-10672.

EVALUATION OF VIBRATING MECHANISM IN DRUM TRUCK TIPPERS

R VASANTH KUMAR, Y J MANJUNATH

Assistant Professor, Department of Mechanical Engineering, Bangalore Institute of Technology, Bangalore

MANJUNATH K.

Assistant Professor, Department of Mechanical Engineering, South East Asian College of Engineering and Technology, Bangalore

N. HEMAKESHA, S. SINGARAVELU

Department of Mechanical Engineering, South East Asian College of Engineering and Technology, Bangalore

ABSTRACT

This venture targets working on the proficiency and wellbeing of the tipper trucks while in real life. This undertaking zeroed in on playing out a definite examination of the exhibition, wellbeing, and cost parts of the current strategies of accomplishing that. The upsides and downsides of integrating a vibrator for the tipper truck are examined. This included broad FEA examination in the primer stage. The primary, vibrational, and weakness examination is finished for the basic parts which helped in choosing the plausibility of consolidating such a system. The basic parts for the examination are the foundation of the truck body, trunnion, sections for mounting the adaptive chamber, and the vibratory engine. The computer aided design models are ready as indicated by the business principles and investigations are performed. Irregular information for constrained vibration is created, which is utilized to perform examination for the framework. A vibration sensor would be consolidated utilizing Arduino, and the speed increase information of vibration are recorded and looked at by the hypothetical qualities. A similar report for the solidness examination is finished, with and without the vibrator. An itemized report for the adjustment of stroke length, siphon pressure/stream necessity, and so on is framed and looked at. The improvement in proficiency of unloading, efficient, and different boundaries is likewise thought of. The expense part of moving this framework in the market is additionally considered.

KEYWORDS : DC Vibrator Motor, CAD model, Vibrator Prototype.

1. INTRODUCTION

The principal burden of regular trucks is that labor supply is expected to dump material from them, which demands greater investment and additional expense to be paid for the labor supply. To dispose of these issues pressure driven worked tipping framework was developed. A dump truck is outfitted with an open or shut bed body and is pivoted at the backside. It is furnished with a water powered chamber to lift the front

The Indian Journal of Technical Education, Special Issue, May 2023

end, permitting the material in the bed to be unloaded on the ground at the ideal spot of conveyance. A standard tipper truck is a body mounted on to a truck case. The bed is raised using a hydraulic driven chamber which is mounted under the body in the front-end switch strategy between the underside frame rails, and it is turned at the back of the truck. The Tipper trucks are utilized to convey the material and dump them any place essential. Generally utilized tipper trucks utilize an expanding adjustable chamber which slants the truck body, and hence compelling the material down affected by gravity. Today, all dump trucks are worked by hydraulic power and come in various setups, every one of which is intended to achieve some particular assignment. Nonetheless, these trucks have a few limits. Prior to emptying the material truck should be left according to the design. It requires more fuel and time at long last lessens proficiency. Likewise, mishaps might occur as there are chances of slipovers or turning in the event that the truck isn't left as expected in lopsided locales.

A simplest hydraulic circuit consists of oil reservoir, pump, relief valve, solenoid operated directional control valve, Hydraulic actuator, Connectors and lines. The tank is filled with oil and the pump creates a vacuum then sucks the oil from the tank. The pump is powered by the engine via a PTO (Power Take Off) unit which is connected to the engine and it transfers power from engine to the pump. The oil flows via a pressure relief valve, which as a safety valve, restricts the maximum pressure developed within the system. The directionfinding control valve controls the direction of motion of the hydraulic cylinders. In neutral position of the valves are to be controls the directions, fluid (oil) flows to the tank by pumping action without any pressure build-up; this type of position is called tandem position. This prevents oil from heating up due to pressure buildup. In this case, two Telescopic cylinders are powered to raise the truck body simultaneously. The return line filter in the tank line filters the oil which is going in the tank and thus completing the Hydraulic circuit.

A study conducted by M. Paz, et. al. [1] has explained the application of vibration for material handling in the industry is being presented. A patent awarded to John C. O'Connor [2] proposes a concept of vibratory dump trucks which would facilitate the loading and unloading of freight. Study by Vanliem Nguyen et. al. [3] concentrated on Modeling and Vibration Analysis of a Vibratory Roller for rough terrain application which

was outfitted with various cab isolation mounts in which a unique model of vibratory roller was proposed. An examination by Nitinkumar Anekar et. al. [4] concentrated on Designing and Testing of uneven mass mechanical vibration exciter. Thomas Gillespie [5] studied the effects of vibration on the truck and modelled using the "Quartercar model" described in vehicle dynamics. N. Siva Nagaraju et. al. [6] has modelled, analysed and confirm to innova car chassis which is made of Frame by Varying of the Cross Section of this frame. A.Singh Patel et. al. [7] studied the analysis & optimization of the TATA 2518 TC manufacturing of Truck Chassis Frame elements which is using by the CAD Software. The existing chassis is very heavy for TATA 2518 TC and is taken for design and analysis. Several theoretical calculations are done for various types of vibrating mechanism, but the question remains that how much of the vibration is practically transferred to the vibrating body.

2. DESIGN APPROACH AND DETAILS

2.1 Technical specification

Vibration damping decreases the degree of vibration produced from plant components and their parts during modern use. It does this by scattering vibration energy, prompting a critical decrease in transmitted noise. Vibration damping materials adjust a gear's normal vibration recurrence, which decreases emanated clamour and expands the transmission loss of the equipment. Having a vibration damping material is a significant necessity while planning electronic frameworks, as it decreases the possibilities of any harm to electronic parts and associations. These types of vibration are to be exciters and are normally used in numerous tenders (applications) as: The electro-dynamic exciter, hydraulic exciter, mechanical exciter.

Table 1. Technical Specification of mechanical Exciters

Exciter type parameters	Frequency	Maximum Displacement	Maximum Acceleration	Maximum Force	Excitation Waveform
Mechanical	20-50Hz	2.5cm	20g	4500N	Sinusoidal only

2.2 Design Details

Design method is applied in almost all the case to do basic calculations and then make a tentative model of it. After this, verify the design using simulation software like Ansys. Truck Body dimensions are Capacity -10 Cu. M, Dimensions $-3877 \times 2280 \times 1180$ mm,

Channels section used $-120 \times 55 \times 9 \text{ mm}$ (depth x Shaft diameter -20 mm, Material - Aluminum width x thickness).

Design process for the truck body

Considering how Indian drivers overload their trucks, weight of the material in the body was taken to be 490332.5 N (50 Ton). The number of channels to be used was decided based on the existing designs.



Figure 1. (a) Truck body base channel design (b). C channel section

Moment of Inertia for a C – Channel is given by:

$$I = (2b+d)(\frac{t^3}{3})$$

Moment Bending equation: $(M/I) = (\sigma/y)$

Distribution of the Load is assumed to be uniformly distributed: $M = (wa^2/8)$

Where w, for the figure above would be: w = (W/2B)

Where,

W = Weight of the truck body with material,a = Total length of the truck body B = Width of the truck body

Designing the Unbalanced mass

Unbalance systems can cause vibration in machines with turning part elements and how balancing propellers to an exact position can control extreme loading of bearings and finally avoid failure, thus expanding the life of machinery. Vibrator model dimensions Weight of unbalanced masses – 750 grams, Eccentricity – 5 cm,



Figure 2. (a) CAD Model - Shaft with unbalanced mass at both ends

(b) FEA Analysis - Constraints for Structural analysis - Force and moment

(c) FEA Analysis - Constraints for Structural analysis -Force and moment

The CAD model shown, is of a shaft with unbalanced mass at both the ends. Balancing is of two types i.e., static and dynamic balancing. Mass IS placed opposite to each other with respect to the plane of the shaft axis. Static balancing is achieved and the dynamic balancing creates the vibration by the couple reaction. In an actual vibrator there would be mechanism to rotate the shaft (Electrical, Hydraulic, or Pneumatic) which would rotate the unbalanced mass. There will also be bearings and mounting positions to mount the vibratory motor on the truck. Here for concept demonstration only the unbalanced mass shaft is shown. The direction of force

The Indian Journal of Technical Education, Special Issue, May 2023

exerted on the shaft due to the rotary unbalanced mass is shown in the Figure 2 and the direction of the couple moment is 90° to the direction of force. Understanding the magnitude and direction of force and couple helps in better selection and calculation of bearings. After bearings of the existing vibrators can be enhanced by having a proper idea about the force and moment.

Truck Body



Figure 3. (a) CAD Model - Truck Body Isometric View (Gate Side),

(b) CAD Model - Position of the vibratory motor, with bearings

The CAD model of a truck body is subjected to vibrational loading. The C channel section was selected for the truck body based on bending stiffness and torsional stiffness. The sheet metal selected was of 1- millimetre thickness based on common automotive standards. The base was created first as a separate solid works part. After that the channel section for the side members were selected based on similar calculations and the modelling was done.

It is mentioned that there is a cylinder end which is lifted using hydraulic power and the hinge end which is at the end of the truck body. The cohesive and adhesive at the hinge end is broken down because of the flow of material from the top. A vibrator is needed for efficient removal. Figure 3 shows the location of the vibrator and how it is attached.



Figure 4. (a) FEA Analysis - Top view of Mesh

(b) FEA Analysis - Bottom View of the mesh of Base Plate, the mesh has 165593 Nodes and 66902 elements

(c) FEA Analysis - Constraints for Base Plate of Truck Body – Model Analysis

Mode	1	2	3	4	5	6
Freq. (Hz)	0	2	19	23	24	42

The modal analysis is one of the very good dynamic possessions of assemblies underneath vibrational excitation. A style of shape is a particular example of vibration implemented by mechanical arrangement at a particular frequency. Mode shape is twisted example (method) of object at this frequency. In the event that we change the input frequency at that point item will distort at various pattern (mode). Mode shape varies with frequency. The exploratory or numerical policy of modal examination discoveries these mode



forms(shapes) and the frequencies.

Figure 5. (a). FEA Analysis – Base - Mode shape Modal 3 (b). FEA Analysis – Base - Mode shape Modal 4

Closer the frequency ratio (w/wn) to 1, higher will be the amplitude. If the frequency ratio is equal to 1, then resonance will occur, which is detrimental to the machine. But it should be close to 1, so that the amplitude can be maximized in safe range. Fundamentally, the mode states of a system are obtained when you compute its reaction because of beginning conditions only.

3. CONCLUSIONS

• The forced damped vibration has been conducted which gives us a proper understanding of the functioning of vibratory motor and its application. Extensive numerical simulation has been performed to verify the existing structures used in the tipper. The simulation provides an indication that the structures can with stand the induced vibration.

- Cost versus productivity of the vibratory motor in truck tipping solutions needs to be validated and experimented thoroughly before a conclusive result can be obtained. The data collected by the vibration sensors is relatively accurate and can give us an idea about the vibration generated when tested in an actual truck.
- The simulations done so far indicate that the structures of the truck would be able to handle the vibrations and it will be subjected to the hydraulic cylinders as tested for the pulse test, which means they can absorb the vibration and can perform under this condition.

4. REFERENCES

- 1. M. Paz, Ky. and J. M. Morris, "Industrial vibrators" Journal of Engineering for Industry,1974.
- John C. O'connor vibratory dump truck, Patent no. 2,500,293, 1944.
- 3. Vanliem Nguyen, Vanquynh Le and Renqiang Jiao "Vibration Analysis and Modelling of an Off-Road Vibratory Roller Equipped with Three Different Cab's Isolation Mounts", Journal of Shock and Vibrations, 2018.
- Nitinkumar Anekar, V.V. Ruiwale, Shrikant Nimbalkar, Pramod Rao, Design and testing of unbalanced mass mechanical vibration exciter, International journal of Research in Engineering and Technology, Aug- 2014.
- 5. Thomas Gillespie, Vehicle Dynamics.
- N. S. Nagaraju, U. H. Babu, "Design and Structural Analysis of Heavy Vehicle Chassis Frame Made of Composite Material by Varying Reinforcement Angles of layers," International journal of Advance Engineering research and studies, Vol.1, Issue 2, January-March 2012.
- A. Singh, V. Soni, A, Singh, "Structural Analysis of Ladder Chassis for Higher Strength," International Journal of Emerging Technology and Advanced Engineering, Volume 4, Issue 2, February 2014.

DIGITALIZATION OF STORES OPERATION AND INVENTORY MANAGEMENT

SRI RAM H BHARADWAJ, NALARAJA, PRITHVI P MEDHA, CHANDANA NEERUBHAVI, GANASHREE MN

Bangalore Institute of Technology, Bangalore

ABSTRACT

The purpose of this study is to explore the digitalization of stores operation in the manufacturing industry. The project focuses on achieving several objectives, including obtaining real-time stock data, improving the layout and aesthetics of the stores, and enhancing ergonomic features. Additionally, the study aims to develop standard operating procedures for stores, including dealing with non-moving items, saving man-hours, and creating a visual representation of the stores.

To achieve these objectives, the study utilized various technological solutions, such as Macro Enabled Excel sheets, AutoCAD for Layout Designing. These technologies enabled the project team to obtain real-time stock data and automate various processes, leading to significant man- hour savings.

Furthermore, the study looked into improving the physical layout and aesthetic appeal of the stores, enhancing employee experience and customer satisfaction. The ergonomic features of the stores were also enhanced, reducing employee fatigue and improving productivity.

Overall, the project aimed to create a more efficient, cost-effective, and customer-oriented stores operation for the manufacturing industry. The study's findings and recommendations can help other businesses in the industry to optimize their stores operation and achieve similar benefits.

KEYWORDS : Digitalization, Man-hour savings, Cost-effective.

1. INTRODUCTION

Digital transformation has emerged as a crucial component of boosting production and efficiency in a variety of industries in today's fast-paced business climate. The functioning of retail establishments in the industrial sector is one such area where digitalization may have a substantial impact. To ensure smooth manufacturing processes, cut expenses, and increase customer happiness, efficient store operations are essential.

In the manufacturing sector, digitization can reduce inventory by 15–30% and stock outs by up to 35%,

according to a Deloitte analysis. The significance of real-time stock data for effective inventory management and decision-making is also highlighted in the paper.

This study intends to investigate how the manufacturing industry's retail operations have become more digital and how this has affected a variety of factors, including layout enhancement, aesthetic enhancement, ergonomic features, and standard operating procedures. The study makes use of a variety of technology tools and industry-recognized best practices to streamline shop operations and produce the required results. Overall, this study can help organizations trying to streamline their manufacturing industry processes by offering insightful information about the possible advantages of digitalization in store operations.

2. BACKGROUND

The aims of the study or project on the digitization of store operations in the manufacturing business are explained in this literature review. Inventory levels can be optimised, stockouts can be decreased, and customer satisfaction can be raised by real-time stock data collection using automated systems like RFID and barcode scanners (Nishant et al., 2017). According to Zhang et al. (2018), an effective store layout can boost consumer happiness, lessen employee tiredness, and cut down on the time and effort needed for material handling. Through elements like lighting, colour, and music, aesthetically pleasant stores can increase consumer happiness and loyalty (Zhang and Luo, 2019). According to Ladeira et al. (2018), ergonomic factors including pleasant workstations and tools can increase employee productivity. Having standard operating procedures in place is crucial for ensuring operations are reliable and effective, cutting down on lead times, as well as enhancing client satisfaction (Almada-Lobo et al., 2019). These studies draw attention to the potential advantages of digitalization for retail operations and highlight the significance of the goals set forth in this study/project. Businesses in the manufacturing sector can optimize their processes and get comparable advantages by putting these digitalization goals into practice.

2.1 Research Questions

To fulfill the purpose of the study, the survey sought to answer the following research questions:

- [1] How Much can the store's operation processes can be automated?
- [2] How can the inventory be maintained and to know when exactly to reorder the stock?

3. METHODS

3.1 Problem identification and data collection

The first step involves identifying and documenting the problems faced in stores operation, followed by collecting relevant data to understand the extent and impact of these problems.

3.2 Analysis of data

Once the data is collected, the next step is to analyze it to identify patterns, trends, and insights that can help in problem-solving.

3.3 Finding the root cause for the problems

Based on the analysis, the root cause of the identified problems can be determined, which can help in developing targeted solutions.

3.4 Define and install solution

Solutions can then be designed and implemented to address the identified problems.

3.5 KPI monitoring

Key performance indicators (KPIs) can be defined and monitored to measure the success of the implemented solutions and ensure continuous improvement. This can include KPIs related to inventory management, employee productivity, customer satisfaction, and more.

4.0 MAIN THRUST OF THE PAPER

In recent years, the importance of digitalizing retail operations in the manufacturing sector has grown. This study's objectives were to investigate the possible advantages of digitalization in retail operations and to create solutions to enhance these procedures. The study's methodology included problem identification and data collecting, data analysis, problem root cause identification and solution definition and installation, and KPI monitoring.

This methodology allowed the study to identify a number of important goals, such as getting real- time stock data, improving the layout, aesthetics, ergonomics, standard operating procedures, non- moving items, reducing man-hours, and visualizations. Businesses in the manufacturing sector can optimize their operations, cut expenses, raise customer satisfaction, and increase staff well- being by putting these goals into practice.

5. FUTURE TRENDS

5.1 Predictive maintenance

AI-driven solutions are able to foresee and stop equipment breakdowns, cutting downtime and maintenance expenses. Machine learning algorithms that analyse massive amounts of data and find patterns that suggest possible equipment faults enable predictive maintenance. Predictive maintenance can boost equipment uptime by up to 40% while lowering maintenance expenditures by up to 30%, according to a study by Li et al. (2021).

5.2 Autonomous robots

AI-powered robots are capable of carrying out dangerous and repetitive jobs like material handling, lowering the possibility of employee injury and boosting productivity. Sensors and machine learning techniques that autonomous robots use to navigate and carry out tasks in a changing environment. An investigation by McKinsey & Company (2019) found that autonomous robots could boost productivity by up to 30% and reduce labour costs by up to 60%.

5.3 Real-time inventory tracking

AI can make it possible to track inventory in realtime, boosting accuracy and lowering the danger of running out of goods and overstocking. RFID and other sensor-based technologies that offer real-time data on inventory levels and movements enable realtime inventory tracking. It can reduce human efforts and increase productivity and enhance profit of the company or theorganization it is something that can bring over a change in the operations and it can build better customer relations. Real-time inventory tracking can increase inventory accuracy by up to 98% and decrease inventory expenses by up to 25%, according to a study by Arif et al. (2021).

5.4 Customized client experiences

may evaluate customer data to deliver AI recommendations that are tailored to each individual. improving the customer experience and boosting customer loyalty. Machine learning algorithms that examine client data, such as purchase history and browsing habits, enable personalised recommendations. A 2018 Accenture study found that personalised recommendations might boost sales by up to 15%. Customer or the end user or the client is someone that has to be satisfied at the end he can enjoy better experience when there s a better effort that is to be put using the advances in the society the growing technology and the emerging use cases of artificial intelligence the betterment of customer experience is evident and with such great advances one can be assured of better experience.

5.5 Smart logistics:

AI can streamline logistics processes, such as route planning, scheduling, and delivery, lowering costs and boosting productivity. Machine learning algorithms that improve logistics operations based on real-time data, such as traffic and weather conditions, are what enable smart logistics. Smart logistics can speed up deliveries by up to 30% and cut transportation expenses by up to 20%, according to a Deloitte report published in 2019. Logistics is the barrier that connects the product from the production world to the customer and logistical optimization is something that enhances savings and increases profit AI application in logistics will move the process much faster and enhance customer satisfaction. It has to be the good logistics management that will increase the profits.

5.6 Energy efficiency

AI can optimise energy use in retail operations, lowering energy expenses and having a smaller negative impact on the environment. Machine learning algorithms that optimise energy use based on real-time data, such as occupancy and weather conditions, enable energy optimisation. An investigation by Navigant Research (2019) found that energy optimisation can cut expenditures by up to 30%.

6.0 CONCLUSION

In conclusion, the manufacturing business may greatly benefit from the digitalization of store operations in terms of productivity, efficiency, and customer happiness. The study/project sought to accomplish a number of goals, including gathering real-time stock information, optimizing the store layout, enhancing ergonomics, standardizing operating procedures, identifying non-moving items, lowering manual labor through automation, and utilizing visualization technology.

A technique that included problem identification, data collection and analysis, root cause analysis, solution definition, and KPI monitoring was suggested to accomplish these goals. The analysis of the literature showed that there are a number of studies that emphasize the significance of each of these goals and show how digitalization might help achieve them.

Stores may enhance their overall performance and give customers a better shopping experience by putting
these methods into practice. By enabling predictive maintenance, autonomous robotics, real-time inventory tracking, customized customer experiences, smart logistics, and energy efficiency, the usage of AIpowered technology can further increase the advantages of digitization.

In general, the digitalization of retail operations in the manufacturing sector is a development that has great promise for both firms and customers. Stores can boost operations, cut expenses, and increase customer happiness by applying the suggested technique and utilizing the most recent AI- powered technology, ultimately leading to business growth and success.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

You have my gratitude for helping you with the acknowledgments part of your paper. An example acknowledgment section is provided here for your reference:

I want to publicly thank Bangalore Institute of Technology for giving me a top-notch academic setting and a wealth of learning possibilities while I complete my bachelor's degree in industrial engineering and management there. I couldn't have finished this project without the information and abilities I've gained while studying.

Leantech Engineering gave me the chance to perform this study, and for that, I am incredibly grateful. Their assistance and cooperation throughout the project were crucial to its accomplishment. Leantech Engineering's management and team are to be commended for their support in data collecting and being willing to share their experiences and thoughts.

I want to thank my project mentor and the professor who served as my mentor for their invaluable advice, encouragement, and critical criticism during the project. Their experience and knowledge played a crucial role in determining the focus and results of our investigation.

Finally, I want to thank my family and friends from the bottom of my heart for their constant support, inspiration, and motivation during this effort. They have been a constant source of inspiration and strength through their love and support.

I would want to once more extend my sincere gratitude to everyone who helped bring this project to a successful conclusion.

REFERENCES

- 1. Nishant, R., Kumar, P., & Shrivastava, A. (2017). Impact of real-time data on inventory control systems: A review. International Journal of Industrial Engineering Computations, 8(2), 261-278.
- Zhang, W., Li, J., Li, Y., & Li, Y. (2018). A study on store layout design based on the principles of ergonomics. Journal of Ambient Intelligence and Humanized Computing, 9(2), 303-314.
- Zhang, L., & Luo, J. (2019). The effect of store atmosphere on consumer behavior: A literature review. Advances in Economics, Business and Management Research, 112, 93-99.
- Ladeira, M. B., Ferreira, E. S., Nascimento, D. P., & Paula, M. C. (2018). The impact of ergonomics on work-related musculoskeletal disorders: A systematic review. Work, 60(4), 573-583.
- Almada-Lobo, B., Alves, A. C., & Barbosa-Póvoa, A. P. (2019). Standard operating procedures and lean tools adoption: An empirical analysis of their impact on lead time reduction. Journal of Manufacturing Systems, 50, 98-110.
- 6. Xie, Y., Jiang, L., & Zhang, Y. (2021). A digital twinenabled framework for smart logistics in the industrial internet of things. Journal of Industrial Information Integration, 23, 100274.
- Xu, Y., Liu, Z., & Yan, S. (2021). Personalized recommendation algorithms based on user behavior analysis. Journal of Physics: Conference Series, 1862(1), 012041.
- Raza, M. M., & Kongar, E. (2019). Predictive maintenance: A review of tools and techniques. Journal of Quality in Maintenance Engineering, 25(2), 121-149.
- 9. Zhu, X., Zhou, Y., & Li, H. (2020). Autonomous mobile robots in logistics: A comprehensive review. International Journal of Production Research, 58(5), 1515-1533.
- 10. Sharma, A., Gupta, M., & Sharma, S. (2020). Real-time inventory management: A review. Journal of Industrial and Systems Engineering, 13(1), 117-138.
- 11. Gao, X., He, Z., & Zhang, Y. (2019). An intelligent decision-making framework for sustainable logistics management under uncertainty. Sustainability, 11(7), 1969.
- 12. Yıldız, H., & Öztürk, N. (2020). Design of an automated warehouse system using IoT and RFID technologies.

Computers & Industrial Engineering, 142, 106384.

- Sahu, S. K., Mahapatra, S. S., & Sankar, M. R. (2021). A review of recent advances in intelligent inventory management. Journal of Manufacturing Technology Management, 32(2), 397-428.
- 14. Chen, Y., & Zhou, R. (2019). The impact of e-commerce on supply chain management: A review. Journal of Industrial Engineering and Management, 12(1), 1-17.
- Wang, X., Li, H., & Li, B. (2020). Big data analytics for logistics and supply chain management: A review. International Journal of Production Research, 58(15-16), 4604-4622.
- Seuring, S., & Gold, S. (2013). Conducting contentanalysis based literature reviews in supply chain management. Supply Chain Management: An International Journal, 18(5), 544-555.

- 17. Govindan, K., & Soleimani, H. (2017). A review of reverse logistics and closed-loop supply chains: A Journal of Cleaner Production focus. Journal of Cleaner Production, 142, 371-384.
- Wang, Z., & Li, Q. (2018). Green logistics network design: A literature review. International Journal of Logistics Research and Applications, 21(6), 571-590.
- Zailani, S. H., Iranmanesh, M., & Shaharudin, M. R. (2021). A systematic review of Industry 4.0 and circular economy research: Bibliometric analysis and future research directions. Journal of Cleaner Production, 284, 125457.
- 20. Gligor, D. M., & Holcomb, M. C. (2014). Understanding the role of transportation in logistics chain. International Journal of Logistics Management, 25(2), 232-256.

DESIGN MODIFICATIONS AND VALUE ANALYSIS OF A CHOPPING BOARD

SAI RAJ S H

Student, Bangalore Institute of Technology, Bangalore

PROF. V. S. GIRI

Associate Professor, Bangalore Institute of Technology, Bangalore

ABSTRACT

Chopping Board is a durable board which is used to place materials for chopping, scraping, slicing and dicing. The chopping board which is traditionally made of wood has lately been a vital component among the various kitchenary items.

This technical paper aims to elicit how to use the Value Analysis methods to analyse the existing design and come out with an improved design.

With evolution of chopping board from just a wooden slab to a wide variety of options, in this paper we try to add more value to it by usage of alternative material and modifying its design to drastically increase functionality. This is realized through introducing a strainer and cabins to lay the cut materials as additional features.

The above objectives are achieved by the implementation of systematic approach, Value Analysis Methodology encompassing techniques such as Functional Analysis, Decision Matrix, Evaluation Matrix.

With the attainment of both sell function and work function, it is thus hoped that the results of the study will assist the manufacturing companies to call for improved decisions regarding the design of the chopping board.

KEYWORDS : Chopping board, Value analysis, Functional analysis, Decision matrix, Evaluation matrix, Work function.

INTRODUCTION

Value Analysis is defined as an organised effort directed at analysing the functions of systems, equipment, facilities, service and supplies for the purpose of achieving the essential functions at the lowest life-cycle cost, consistent with required performance, quality, reliability and safety.

CONCEPT OF VALUE

Value is the lowest possible cost of a product or a service

performing a useful and essential function with required quality and reliability.

GOALS OF VALUE ENGINEERING

Improve project quality

- Reduce project cost
- Foster Innovation
- Eliminate unnecessary cost.
- Ensure efficient investments



PHASES OF VALUE ANLYSIS

- Information Phase.
- Functional Phase
- Creative Phase
- Evaluation Phase
- Development Phase.
- Recommendation Phase
- Presentation Phase.

VALUE ENGINEERING CONCEPT



Chronological advancements towards Value Analysis

1932-1938: Lawrence D Miles worked as a design Engineer at GE under W.C.White, Manager of the Vacuum Tube Engineering Department.

1938-1944: Transferred to GE purchasing department, working under Harry Erlicher, VP Purchasing. He worked with vendors to obtain lower costs. Then with change of emphasis, he was asked to procure adequate quantity for the war effort.

1944-1947: Transferred to Locke Insulator, subsidiary of GE, as Manager of Purchasing. Saw first- hand both the productive and destructive forces of human attitude and practices, and their effect on appropriate designs and appropriate costs.

Fall, 1947: Returned to Schenectady and was placed under William Sredenschecky who gave him full support to produce an approach for GE to improve cost and productivity.

In December 1947, the basic Value Analysis Functional Approach was born.

OBJECTIVES OF THE RESEARCH PAPER

Chopping Board which is an essential element in the kitchen has room for modifications in design and functions. In the paper, we intend to realise the following objectives:

- 1. Improve functionality of the existing product.
- 2. Bring about ease in use.
- 3. Ensure better consumer satisfaction.
- 4. Uplift profitability of the organization.

1. INFORMATION PHASE

This is the first phase in Value Methodology in which all the relevant information regarding the project is gathered.

The available information of Chopping Board was collected from various sources and the summary is reproduced below:

Product: Chopping Board.

Material: Wood, Plastic, Bamboo, Rubber, Silicone, Steel.

Standard dimensions: 12" X 9" X 0.5".

Purpose: Chop, scrape, dice.

Place: Professional and family kitchens.

A TYPICAL CHOPPING BOARD



MANUFACTURING OF CHOPPING BOARD

- 1. A hard wood board is taken and using a block plane a small amount of wood on either end is removed and this process is repeated until the cut surface doesn't wobble on the table.
- 2. With one face flat the board is run through a thickness planer to get two parallel and smooth faces.
- 3. Across cut sled is used on the table saw to get the end squares before chopping the board to final length.
- 4. A hole is drilled in any one of the corners to get a grip of chopping board.
- 5. A 150-grit sandpaper is used to provide a glossy finish.
- 6. A sandpaper or a router with a round-over or a chamfer bit is used to make the rough edges round.
- 7. De-natured alcohol is used on the board and dried up later to raise the grains to provide a smoother surface.
- 8. To give the wood protection from water, the process is finished off with food-grade mineral oil.

2. FUNCTIONAL PHASE

According to Lawrence. D. Miles, "The basic purpose of each expenditure is to fulfil a function."

The success of Value Analysis depends on careful analysis of the functions of the assembly/components. The objective is to clearly identify the tasks to be carried out by the assembly components.

The functions are classified as Basic or Secondary. A function is Basic if it is the prime or specific purpose

for which the assembly or components were designed. A function is Secondary if it does not directly contribute to the basic function or it is only required to support the achievement of the basic function.

FUNCTIONAL ANALYSIS

Table 1: Functional Analysis- Identification of functions

			FUNC	TION	CATE	GORY
SL.NO	PART DESCRIPTION	Quantity	VERB	NOUN		
					Ba Secon	
1	Chopping surface	1	Provide	Surface	x	
2	Handle	1	Hold	Board		x
3	Bushes	4	Provide	Support		x

COST-WORTH ANALYSIS

Table 2: Function Cost Worth Analysis- Decide whichfunction has potential for value improvement.

SL.NO	DESCRIPTION	FUNCTION	PRESENT COST (C)	WORTH (W)	VALUE GAP (C-W)	RANKING
1	Chopping Surface	Provide Surface	350	50	300	I
2	Handle	Hold Board	30	10	20	ш
3	Bushes	Provide Support	40	10	30	п



Graph 1: Description vs Value Gap

Table 3: Cost break-up of the product



Major Performance-3

Medium Performance- 2

Minor Performance-1



3. CREATIVE PHASE

'What else could do the same function?' is the central theme of the creative phase. The ranking of the functions based on value gap in the descending order are the indicators where to pinpoint for getting maximum advantage.

Table 4. Evaluation of ideas found from Creative Phase

In order to generate more ideas, brainstorming technique is followed. The following ideas were generated:

1) Plastic sheet.

2) Plate

- Ceramic.
- Steel.
- Plastic.
- 3) Kitchen Slab.
- 4) Food Processor.
- 5) Press Vegetable chopper.
- 6) Rolling Board.
- 7) Multi-featured Chopping Board.

4. EVALUATION PHASE

The creative ideas generated during the brainstorming session are critically examined and few of the proposals are finalised.

SI.	Ideas	State of Art	Cost to	Probability of	Potential	Time to	Features	Total
No		10: Off	Develop	implementation	cost benefit	implement	10: with	Ranking
		Shelf	10: No	10: Excellent	benefit	10:	additional	
			cost	Chance	10:	Extremely	features	
		1: New			Large	short		
		Technology	1: High	1: No chance	savings		1:	
			cost			1:	Without	
					1: No	Extremely	additional	
					savings	long	features	
1	Plastic Sheet	10	9	9	9	9	1	47(II)
2	Plate	9	8	8	8	9	2	44(III)
3	Kitchen Slab	10	8	8	8	8	1	43(IV)
4	Food Processor	8	3	8	3	3	10	35(VI)
5	Press Vegetable Chopper	9	5	7	5	4	1	31(VII)
6	Rolling Board	9	8	8	7	7	1	40(V)
7	Multi- featured Chopping Board	9	7	9	7	7	10	49(I)

Table 5: Evaluation of alternative with respect to desirable features

Ideas							
Parameters	1	2	3	4	5	6	7
Durability	0	1	1	1	1	1	1
Maintenance	1	1	1	0	0	1	1
Appearance	0	0	0		1	0	1
Ease of Use	1	1	1		0	1	1
Compactness	1	1	0	0	1	1	1
Total	3	4	3	2	3	4	5
%	60	80	60	40	60	80	100
			1- YES	5 0- NO			

5. DEVELOPMENT PHASE

This phase allows the manufacturers to determine the most preferred alternatives amongst the various proposed alternatives. Advantages and Disadvantages are listed and ranked to determine which alternative should be implemented.

Table: Decision Matrix

Parameters	Performance Rating	Hygiene and Ease of Use Rating	Customer Satisfaction rating	Total
Weightage Alternatives ↓	9	8	7	
Existing Product: Multi-featured Chopping Board	4 36	4 32	4 28	96
Plastic Sheet	2 18	2 16	2 14	48
Plate	3 27	2 16	2 14	57

4	Excellent
3	Good
2	Fair
1	Poor

The most feasible ideas are selected. Advantages and Disadvantages of each feasible idea are listed to select the best alternative.

Sl No	Ideas	Advantages	Disadvantages	Ranking
1	Plastic Sheet	i) Easily Available ii)Cheap in cost iii)Easy use	i) Shaky and unbalanced ii) Non-durable.	п
2	Plate	i)Easily Available	i) Wobbly Surfaceii) Difficulty in use	Ш
3	Multi-featured Chopping Board	i)Multi-use ii)Cost effective iii) Consumer Satisfaction iv) Compact	i)Not sturdy compared to wooden board.	I

6. RECOMMENDATION PHASE

The Evaluation Matrix indicated that alternative of (Multi-featured Chopping Board) is preferred to the existing product and the other proposed alternatives. The function benefit analysis is done for the preferred alternative and the existing one as shown below:

More	Less	manufacturing	cost	and	raw
manufacturing cost	mater	rial cost.			
and raw material					
cost					

The numerical evaluation sheet for the proposed alternative is shown below:

Situation Before- Existing Product	Situation After-
Single Use	Multi use- 1. cabins to hold cut vegetables or culinary items like knife, scraper etc.
	2. Strainer for straining when necessary or can again be used as a cabin
Less Economical	More Economical

	В	С	
Α	A3	A3	6
	В	B2	2
		С	1

Major Performance-3

Medium Performance- 2

Minor Performance-1

COST BREAK-UP FOR THE PROPOSED ALTERNATIVE

Labour Cost (Rs)	116
Material Cost	80
Factory Cost	206
Manufacturing Cost	229
Selling Cost	255
Total Cost	300





7. PRESENTATION PHASE

This phase presents the function-based creativity in the chosen product along with the monetary aspects.

Present Cost (Rs)	420
Proposed Cost(Rs)	300
Saving(Rs)	120
% Saving	40

Proposed Alternative Designs





KEY POINTS ON IMPLEMENTATION

For Manufacturers	For Customers
Reduced Manufacturing cost	High Return-on- Investment
Reduced lead time	High customer satisfaction
Better brand recognition	Multi-featured product

CONCLUSION

The Value Analysis process and procedures are generally well-defined and well understood at all levels in the

industry. Value Analysis has well formulated techniques of evaluation of cost and functions of the product considering key criteria like consumer satisfaction, functionality, ease of use, durability and so on. From the case study, we observe that there has been an increase in functionality of the chopping board due to the additional features such as cabins used to lay the cut vegetables and the provision of an extra compartment which can act as a strainer when necessary or can again be used as a cabin when the strainer function is not required. The cabins can as well be used to store culinary material like knife, scrapper etc when the chopping board is not in use. The traditional material of wood has been replaced by polypropylene material which helps in reduction of manufacturing cost and hence helps to cut down on the total price of the material. Though the product provides multiple uses, it maintains its ease of use. The above reasons lead to better consumer satisfaction and sell

function is also satisfied. We hence try to provide an upgraded design for a simple chopping board.

REFERENCES

- Indian Value Engineering Society (1977-2017) Survey of Forty Years and Selected Essays, Anil Mukhopadhyaya.
- 2. Techniques of Value Analysis and Engineering, 2nd Edition, Lawrence D Miles.
- https://www.ijirset.com/upload/2014/october/24_ Application.pdf- Application of Value Engineering for Cost Reduction of Household Furniture Product - A Case Study, Chougule Mahadeo Annappa, Dr. Kallurkar Shrikant Panditrao.
- 4. https://www.mybluprint.com/article/diy-a-cuttingboard-in-7-steps
- Product Design Credits- Sameera Nag, Pre-Final Year Engineering Student, Bangalore Institute of Technology.

APPLICATION OF VALUE ENGINEERING FOR COST REDUCTION ON A WAIST BELT- A CASE STUDY

V. S. GIRI, A. P. PARTHA, VARSHA

PADMANABHA

Industrial Engineering and Management, Bangalore Institute of Technology, KR Road, Bangalore

ABSTRACT

Value Engineering is a proven management technique that can make valuable contributions to value enhancement and cost reduction in design of a belt. A case study on the design of a belt is discussed in which the product is changed according to Value Engineering Methodology. This paper introduces how to apply theories and methods of Value Engineering in the design of a belt. Value Engineering with its different phases can be implemented on any product and its design. To find the best possible alternative from the choices, we have used tools such as Function Analysis, Functional Evaluation and Decision Matrix, which gives the most appropriate results.

KEYWORDS : Value engineering, Function analysis, Functional evaluation, Decision matrix, Design of a belt.

1.0 INTRODUCTION

The Concept of Value: Value is the lowest cost to reliably provide the required function or service at a desired time and place within essential quality. It can be described by the below equation

Value = Function of the Item Cost of the Item/ Cost of the Item

Advent of Value Analysis: The concept of Value Analysis began during the Second World War. Due to the war, there was an acute shortages of skilled labor and raw materials. Also, a ban imposed by the government on many of the resources, forced Lawrence Miles and Harry Erlicher of General Electric Co. to start looking for acceptable substitutes which led them to believe and observe that these substitutions often reduced costs and improved the product as a whole. What started out to be a hunt for necessities turned into an organized creative problem solving technique for product improvement. This technique was called 'Value Analysis'.

Definition of Value Analysis: According to Lawrence

D. Miles, "a problem solving system which has an organized and creative approach, which has its purpose of effective identification of unnecessary cost, the cost which neither provides quality nor use, nor appearance, nor customer feature is called Value Analysis".

2.0 INFORMATION PHASE

A belt is a flexible band or strap, typically made of leather or heavy cloth, and worn around waist. Waist belts are items of clothing used by the young and old. The actual use of this belt is to keep the pants tight at the waist. They are made in different widths and lengths to suit customers. The buckles used are of different attractive designs and are detachable and fitted as per customer's choice. The manufacturing process of the belt is very simple which means that it can easily be fabricated in small scale units.

2.1 Origin of the Belt : Belts have been documented as a male clothing since the bronze age. The first form of belt wasn't used for fashion purposes, but as a means for men to hold tools and even weapons as was in the

case of soldiers and emperors. Prior to 1920s the belt was used as a decorative and as a utilitarian part of military uniforms. Moreover, prior to that trousers did not even have a belt loop. However by the mid 18th century sports wear had already incorporated them.

2.2 Function of the Belt: The belt today primarily serves as a means to tighten trousers around the waist. Waist Belts also in some cases are used to store tools and other items especially in construction sites and some heavy large scale industries.

Some also use the belt for decorative purposes.

2.3 Manufacturing the Belt: The manufacturing process primarily involves 5 steps.

i) Leather for the is procured from a tannery. At the tannery the leather undergoes various tanning processes like soaking, dehairing, degreasing and bleaching. Following this chemicals are used to stabilize the leather and prevent rot. Finally the leather is dried and sent for preparation.

ii) This leather is measured and cut to requisite size. The tail end of the belt is also cut. The belt is later run through a beveling machine to create an angled edge and smoothen the edges giving a polished finish.

iii) The other end of the leather(opposite the tail end) is folded to accommodate the buckle.

iii) Holes are punched at the tail end to allow size adjustment of the belt.

Another set of holes are punched at the folded end to accommodate the tongue of the buckle.

iv) The buckle and the belt loop is inserted at the folded end of the leather strip.

v) Logo and other inscriptions are heated and pressed using a heated press or an inscription tool.

Case Study: is done on a waist belt. Value Analysis is done as per following steps on the design of a belt:

a) Function analysis worksheet is prepared for different parts of the product.

b) Functional analysis is done for each part.

c) Numerical evaluation sheet is prepared.

d) Creativity Worksheet is made.

e) Alternatives are selected through decision matrix.

f) Recommendations are made.

g) Conclusion.

3.0 FUNCTIONAL PHASE

Parts of Belt: The parts of the belt is as shown in the figure below:



Fig 1: Parts of a waist belt

Table 1: Function Analysis Worksheet







Detailed functional evaluation of different parts of a waist belt with weight and percentage cost in the product as shown in the table below :

Key Letter	Part	Function	Weight	%Cost
A	Panel (Leather Strip)	Hold trouser	12	52.49%
В	Buckle	Adjust length	04	39.37%
С	Tongue	Hold belt	05	5.25%
D	Hole	Insert tongue	01	0.26%
E	Belt loop	Hold belt	01	2.62%

Cost %



Graph 2: Components Cost% and Weight

NUMERICAL EVALUATION SHEET

A	В А 3	C A3	D A3	E A3	TOTAL 12
	В	C1	B2	B2	04
		С	C2	C2	05
			D	D1	01
				Е	01

Major Performance: 3

Medium Performance: 2

Minor Performance: 1

4.0 CREATIVE PHASE

The main function of this phase is to find out what else may be done in order to get the same function, assuming cost as a constraint.

Alternatives are listed below and a ranking for these

is provided based on the given parameters in order to obtain maximum advantage:

- 1. Use of a Velcro based panel which eliminates holes and buckles.
- 2. Use of Intertwined panel which eliminates creation of holes.
- 3. Use of a easy withdraw clip buckle with length adjusters minimizing the number of parts, creation of holes.
- 4. Use trouser adjusters with side tabs that eliminate the requirement of a belt as a means to hold trousers.

Evaluation of above 4 ideas against the 5 parameters to check feasibility.

Table 4: Forced Decision Matrix

Comparison	1	2	3	4
Parameters				
Durability	0	0	1	1
Maintenance Requirement	1	0	1	0
Appearance	1	1	0	0
Ease Of Use	1	0	1	0
Compactness	1	0	0	1
TOTAL	4	1	3	2
%	40	10	30	20

Table 5: Function-Cost-Worth Analysis

Part	Functio	n	Existing Worth		Saving	Rankin	
Name	Verb	Noun	–Cost In Rs.	Tentative Alternative	Estimated cost	s	g
Panel (Leather Strip)	hold	trouser	100.00	Heavy Cloth with Velcro	80.00	20.00	11
Buckle	adjust	length	75.00	Plastic	45.00	30.00	1
Tongue	hold	position	10.00	Eliminated	00.00	10.00	ш
Hole	Insert	tongue	0.50	Eliminated	00.00	0.50	V
Belt loop	hold	belt	5.00	Eliminated	00.00	5.00	IV
TOTAL			190.50		125.00	65.50	



Graph 3: Component's Existing Cost, Estimated Cost and Value Gap

5.0 EVALUATION PHASE

Parameters of Interest

A: Durability B: Ease of Use

C: Maintenance Requirement D: Appearance

	В	С	D	TOTAL
А	A2	A1	Al	4
	В	B1	B2	3
		С	C1	1
			D	1

Major Performance: 3

Medium Performance: 2

Minor Performance: 1

Alternative 1: Heavy Cloth with Velcro

Alternative 2: Plastic Buckle

Evaluation of the 2 alternatives is done by considering various factors like rigidity, durability and appearance.



 Table 6: Evaluation Matrix

5	Excellent
4	Very Good
3	Good
2	Fair
1	Poor

6.0 RECOMMENDATION PHASE

The evaluation matrix indicates that the first alternative is better than the existing as well as the second alternative. The cost benefit analysis is also done for both alternatives along with the existing one as shown below,

Table 7: Cost Benefit Matrix

SI no.	Part Name	Existing	Alternative 1	Alternative 2
1	Panel (Leather Strip)	100.00	80.00	50.00
2	Buckle	75.00	00.00	45.00
3	Tongue	10.00	00.00	00.00
4	Hole	0.50	00.00	00.00
5	Belt loop	5.00	00.00	00.00
TOTAL		190.50	80.00	95.00

Based on Evaluation Matrix as well as the cost benefit analysis, alternative-I is recommended.

7.0 IMPLEMENTATION PHASE

The alternative 1 is suggested as the best alternative.

8.0 CONCLUSION & FUTURE SCOPE

From this case study, it is observed that how the Value Engineering is used for the cost reduction without the change in the product function & its values. A proper design matrix is prepared for choosing the appropriate alternative from the feasible choices available. The total saving which can be incurred per product by the implementation of above recommendations are 50.13% for alternative-II and 58% for alternative-I.

The Value Engineering process and procedures are generally well defined and well-understood at all levels in the industry. VE is recognized as an effective way to improve the performance of a product with reduction in cost and maintaining the quality. The quality (qualifications & experience) of the team leader is a key ingredient to the success of the Value Engineering program. It is more effective and influential on the performance, quality, and cost of a product when done relatively early in the production schedule.

9.0 REFERENCES

- 1. https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Belt_(clothing) [pg 1-3] belt (clothing).
- https://www.buckmason.com/leather-belt-process [pg 3] belt manufacturing process.
- 3. ttps://www.google.co.in/search?q= belt+parts&espv=2&biw=1164&bih=6 99&sour

ce=lnms&tbm=isch&sa=X&ved=0ahUKEwio1p PJwrL SAhXKGZQKHRFrDcsQ_

A UIBigB#tbm=isch&q=leather+belts+o-clan&*& imgrc=wgU1p_VOCg8J4M [pg 4] parts of the belt

- 4. L&T Case study on the belt Introduction
- 5. Don J. Gerhardt, Ingersoll Rand, "Managing Value Engineering in New Product Development".
- 6. L.D.Miles "Techniques and Approaches of Value Engineering", A Reference book.
- Dr. Habil. Ference Nadasdi , CVS, ph.D., FSAVE, college of Dunaujvaros Hungary, Dunaujvaros, Tancsics M. u. 1/a., "Can value added strategies Enhance the Competitiveness Of products?"

EVALUATING CUSTOMER AWARENESS TOWARDS MIVAN SHUTTERING TECHNOLOGY IN CONSTRUCTION COMPANY", WITH REFERENCE TO NAVAMI BUILDERS

PAVAN KUMAR S, DEEPIKA M S, ISSAC DSOUZA, PRADHAN SHEKAR D, DDATHITH VASISTA H D

PRATHITH VASISTA H R

Bangalore Institute of Technology, Bangalore

ABSTRACT

Mivan shuttering technology is a relatively new construction method that has gained popularity in recent years due to its numerous benefits. However, the success of this technology depends on the level of awareness among customers, particularly those in the construction industry. This study aims to evaluate customer awareness towards Mivan shuttering technology by analyzing survey data collected from construction professionals and other stakeholders in the industry. The results indicate that while awareness of Mivan shuttering technology is increasing, there is still a significant knowledge gap among customers. Many customers are not aware of the benefits of this technology and are hesitant to adopt it due to concerns about cost and lack of experience with the results and are likely to use it again in the future. Based on these findings, the study recommends that more efforts should be made to increase customer awareness of Mivan shuttering technology and to address concerns about cost and implementation.

KEYWORDS : Mivan formwork, Time saving, Cost-effective.

1. INTRODUCTION

A kind of aluminium formwork, Mivan shuttering has travelled across the globe and proved to be an economical variant to the traditional method of construction which is labor-intensive and time- taking. Mivan technology construction is economical when it is a large construction [1][2].

Formwork is defined as temporary structure whose purpose is to provide support and containment for fresh concrete until it can support itself. It moulds the concrete to the desired shape and size and controls its position and alignment [3][4]. The development of formworks is parallel with the growth of concrete construction throughout the 20th century. The advancement of technology, increase of population and the space limitation led the way to construct high-rise buildings. But the task was not very easy at the beginning but now the man made the task easy by inventing new machinery and new techniques [5][6][7]. The most important factor in terms of cost, quality and speed in a high-rise building construction project is the type of the formwork used in the project [8][9].

1.1 Advantages of Mivan Shuttering

- Mivan Formwork requires relatively less labor.
- Faster completion of floors.

- Lesser number of joints and reduced leakages.
- Smooth finishing of wall and slab.
- Low maintenance.
- More seismic resistance.
- Huge carpet area.
- Good quality construction work.



3.0 METHODS FLOW DIAGRAM

2.0 BACKGROUND

When the construction companies were started, they used traditional method of construction, which cost them more. As the technology improved there were lot of research going on in the field of construction and they introduced new technology called MIVAN SHUTTERING TECHNOLOGY which is used to construct building and panels. This made us to select the project called Mivan shuttering technology

2.2 Research Questions

To fulfill the purpose of the study, the survey sought to answer the following research questions:

- [1] How to evaluate customers awareness towards mivan shuttering?
- [2] How to suggest customer about Mivan shuttering technology



3.1 Research Design

Research design refers to the framework of research methods and techniques that are chosen by a researcher. The design that is chosen by the researchers allow them to utilise the methods that are suitable for the study and to set up their studies successfully in the future as well.

There are three types of research designs, Exploratory, Descriptive, and experimental. In this study Descriptive Research Design is used.

Descriptive research design is a type of research design

that aims to obtain information to systematically describe a phenomenon, situation, or population. More specifically, it helps to answer the what, when, where, and how questions regarding the research problem, rather than the why.

3.2 Nature and Source of Data

Data can be defined as the quantitative or qualitative values of a variable. Data can be numbers, images, words, figures, facts, or ideas. All the collected data cannot be helpful or useful. To get information from data one must interpret data into the meaningful information. There are various methods to interpreting data. Data sources are broadly classified into Primary Data and Secondary Data.

Primary Data

Primary data refers to the first-hand data gathered by the researcher himself. The tool used to collect Primary Data is a Questionnaire. The methods used to collect primary data is Survey method using structured questionnaire. someone other than the primary user. Common sources of secondary data for social science include censuses, information collected by government departments, organizational records and data that was originally collected for other research purposes.

3.4 Sampling Techniques Used

Sampling is a process used in statistical analysis in which a predetermined number of observations are taken from a larger population. The methodology used to sample from a larger population depends on the type of analysis being performed, there are 2 types of sampling: Probability sampling and non-Probability sampling. Under probability sampling there are 4 types of sampling techniques such as simple random sampling, systematic random sampling, stratified sampling, and cluster sampling. Under non-probability sampling there are again 4 types: Convenience sampling, judgement sampling, quota sampling, snowball sampling.

3.5 Analysis and Interpretation

 To understand how mivan shuttering technology helps construction companies like Navami builders

Secondary Data

Secondary data refers to data that is collected by



Would you describe mivan shuttering technology in your own words?

INTERPRETATION: The total strength has responded to the agree option which is 65.7% with the majority and there are also20% people who have strongly agreed to the statement and 14.3% of people yet to decide.

INFERENCE: Here to conclude that the majority of people have selected to agree option with percentage of 65.7%.

Would you recommend Mivan shuttering technology to others in the construction industry? 35 responses



Would you recommend Mivan shuttering technology to others in the construction industry	Percentage
Strongly Disagree	-
Disagree	-
Undecided	22.9%
Agree	65.7%
Strongly Agree	11.4%

INTERPRETATION: The total strength have responded to the agree option which is 65.7% with the majority and there are also 22.9% people who have strongly agreed to the statement and 11.4% of people yet to decide.

INFERENCE: Here to conclude that the majority of people have selected to agree option with percentage of 65.7%



Is Mivan shuttering technology different from traditional formwork system	Percentage
Strongly Disagree	8%
Disagree	5.1%
Undecided	10%
Agree	37.7%%
Strongly Agree	48.6%

INTERPRETATION: The total strength has responded to the strongly agree option which is 48.6% with the majority and there are also 37.7% people who have agreed to the statement, 10% of people yet to decide, some people with 5.1% have disagreed to the statement and there are people with 8% people who strongly disagree.

INFERENCE: Here to conclude that the majority of people have selected to strongly agree option with percentage of 48.6%.



Is there safety consideration when using Mivan shuttering is better than traditional formwork? 35 responses

Is there safety consideration when using Mivan	Percentage
shuttering is better than traditional formwork	
Strongly Disagree	7%
Disagree	14.3%
Undecided	34.3%
Agree	37.1%
Strongly Agree	8.6%

INTERPRETATION: The total strength has responded to the agree option which is 37.1% with the majority and there are also 8.6% people who have strongly agreed to the statement, 34.3% of people yet to decide, some people with 14.3% have disagreed to the statement and

there are people with 7% people who strongly disagree.

INFERENCE: Here to conclude that the majority of people have selected to agree option with percentage of 37.1%.

* To evaluate customer awareness towards Mivan shuttering technology



Have you ever heard Mivan shuttering technology	Percentage
Strongly Disagree	6%
Disagree	14.3%
Undecided	8.6%
Agree	48.6%
Strongly Agree	22.9%

INTERPRETATION: The total strength has responded to the agree option which is 48.6% with the majority and there are also 22.9% people who have strongly agreed to the statement, 8.6% of people yet to decide, some people with 14.3% have disagreed to the statement and

there are people with 6% people who strongly disagree.

INFERENCE: Here to conclude that the majority of people have selected to agree option with percentage of 48.6%.

Do you think Mivan shuttering technology is more expensive than traditional formwork systems? 35 responses



Do you think mivan shuttering is more expensive than traditional formwork systems	Percentage
Strongly Disagree	22.9%
Disagree	31.4%
Undecided	11.4%
Agree	22.9%
Strongly Agree	11.4%

INTERPRETATION: The total strength has responded to the disagree option which is 31.4% with the majority and there are also 11.4% people who have strongly agreed to the statement, 11.4% of people yet to decide, some people with 22.9% have strongly disagreed to the

statement and there are people with 22.9% people who agree.

INFERENCE: Here to conclude that the majority of people have selected to disagree option with percentage of 31.4%.

Do you think Mivan shuttering technology can improve the overall quality of construction projects? 35 responses



Do you think mivan shuttering can improve the	Percentage
overall quality of construction projects	
Strongly Disagree	-
Disagree	6.1%
Undecided	11.4%
Agree	42.9%
Strongly Agree	40%

INTERPRETATION: The total strength have responded to the agree option which is 42.9% with the majority and there are also 40% people who have strongly agreed to the statement, 11.4% of people yet to

decide, some people with 6.1% have disagreed

INFERENCE: Here to conclude that the majority of people have selected to agree option with percentage of 42.9%.

• To suggest customer about mivan shuttering technology



INTERPRETATION: The total strength has responded to the agree option which is 31.4% with the majority and there are also 21.4% people who have strongly agreed to the statement,5.1% of people yet to decide, some people with 6% have disagreed there are people

with 5% people who strongly disagree.

INFERENCE: Here to conclude that the majority of people have selected to agree option with percentage of 31.4%.



Are you familiar with the benefits of Mivan shuttering technology, such as reduced construction time and improved quality	Percentage
Strongly Disagree	2.1%
Disagree	14.3%
Undecided	7%
Agree	42.9%
Strongly Agree	34.3%

INTERPRETATION: The total strength has responded to the agree option which is 42.9% with the majority and there are also 34.3% people who have strongly agreed to the statement, 7% of people yet to decide, some people with 14.3% have disagreed there are people with 2.1% people who strongly disagree.

INFERENCE: Here to conclude that the majority of people have selected to agree option with percentage of 42.9%.

3.6 Suggestion and Conclusion

According to the above survey data, people are aware about the mivan shuttering technology. Although they have acute knowledge about its cost and future development, they have a positive attitude towards it.

From this we can conclude that though mivan shuttering technology is not up to mark at this particular period of time, it can be improved and accelerated in the future and may emerge as a trending technology in construction field.

4.0 MAIN THRUST OF THE PAPER

- To understand how Mivan shuttering technology helps construction companies like Navami builders
- To identify the uses of Mivan shuttering technology in construction companies
- To evaluate customer awareness towards Mivan shuttering technology
- To suggest customer about Mivan shuttering technology

5.0 FUTURE TRENDS

- Faster construction
- Cost-effective
- Improved quality
- Flexibility
- Reduced environmental impact

6.0 CONCLUSION

In conclusion, the analysis of customer knowledge of Mivan shuttering technology has shown that, despite this technology's recent rise in popularity, many customers still don't know much about it. This is mostly because traditional construction techniques have been employed for a considerable amount of time, and clients are typically more familiar with these techniques. However, the benefits of Mivan shuttering technology in terms of speed, affordability, quality control, and sustainability make it a workable substitute for conventional construction techniques.

It is advised that construction firms and developers actively promote the advantages of Mivan shuttering technology through advertising and other marketing channels in order to increase client awareness. In order to aid clients in making educated selections, they should also give them comprehensive information about the capabilities, benefits, and limitations of the technology. To guarantee that construction employees are proficient in using the technology, it is also crucial to offer them training and support.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

I heartily thank Bangalore Institute of Technology for giving me a top-notch academic setting and a wealth of learning possibilities while I complete my bachelor's degree in industrial engineering and management there.

I thank Navami Builders and Developers who for their assistance and cooperation throughout the project which were crucial to its accomplishment.

I thank my project guide Prof. Deepika M S and Prof. C R Krishnaprasad, dept. of MBA for their invaluable advice, encouragement, and critical criticism during the project.

Finally, I thank my family and friends for their constant support, inspiration, and motivation during this effort. They have been a constant source of inspiration and strength through their love and support. I once again extend my sincere gratitude to all who made this project successful.

REFERENCES

- 1. Arbaz Kazi, Fauwaz Parkar, "Comparative study and decision making for a formwork technique to be adopted on a construction site in Mumbai", IJRET: ISSN: 2319-1163 | ISSN: 2321-7308.
- P. Dinesh, M. Soundararajan, P. Dinesh, M. Soundararajan, "Analysis of effective selection Of formwork system based on Various factors for Construction projects"

- Prof. Ashish P. Waghmare, Renuka S. Hangarge, Cost and Time estimation for Conventional, Aluminium &Tunnel Formwork. (IRJET) July -2017 Volume: 04 e-ISSN: 2395-0056, Issue: 07.
- Miss. Jyoti Suresh Magdum, Prof. Madhav Bhalchandra Kumthekar, Prof. Gayatri Dhananjay Jadhav, "Comparative Study of Various Types of Aluminum Formworks "International Journal of Engineering Research and Technology, Number 1 (2017) ISSN 0974-3154 Volume 10
- Vasav R. Rakholia, Srinil H. Soni, "Comparative Studies of Construction Techniques (Conventional vs. Mivan (IRJET) Nov - 2017, e-ISSN: 2395-0056, Volume: 04 Issue: 11

- 6. Aaqib Majid Khan,"Impact of Mivan Formwork over Conventional Formwork", International Journal of Science and Research, ISSN (Online): 2319-7064.
- 7. Mivan Technology reference paper by Mr.Kushal Patil.
- 8. MIVAN Technology Aluminium Formwork" by Mivan India: This is a brochure that explains the Mivan technology in detail, including its features, benefits, and applications.
- "MIVAN Formwork System: A Review" by S. M. Ahuja and S. K. Jain, International Journal of Engineering Research and Development, Vol. 9, Issue 5: This paper provides a detailed review of the Mivan formwork system, including its advantages, limitations, and construction process.

BIT CART

MANOJ V Student, Bangalore Institute of Technology, Bangalore

PREETHI K H

Assistant Professor, IEM Department, BIT Bangalore

VENKATESH H KULKARNI

Student, Bangalore Institute of Technology, Bangalore

HUDA FATHIMA Student, Bangalore Institute of Technology, Bangalore

DR MOUNIKA Student, Bangalore Institute of Technology, Bangalore

ABSTRACT

The website's primary purpose is to provide a platform for users to buy and sell goods and service online. A clean and user-friendly interface is crucial for the website's success. The website should be easy to navigate, and users should be able to find what they are looking for quickly. The website should have a registration system that allows users to create an account and manage their listings. The website should provide users with tools to manage their listings, including adding, editing, and deleting listings. The website should have a robust search system that allows users to find relevant listings based on keywords, location, and other filters. The website should have a secure payment gateway that allows users to make payments for their purchases. The website should have an admin panel that allows the site owner to manage the website, including managing users, listings, payments, and site content. The website should be secure to protect user data and prevent fraud. The website should be optimized for mobile devices, as many users access the internet on their smartphones.

KEYWORDS : Website, Time saving, Cost-saving

1. INTRODUCTION

Our website provides a platform for buyers and sellers to connect and trade goods and services online. We understand the importance of convenience, accessibility, and security when it comes to buying and selling online. Therefore, we have designed our website to offer all three. Our website provides a user-friendly interface that makes it easy for anyone to browse and post ads. Our platform is accessible on any device, making it convenient for users to buy or sell from anywhere. We also offer a variety of categories to cater to different needs and interests, such as Textbooks, stationary, and more.

We take the security of our users very seriously, and we have implemented measures to protect the interests of all parties involved. Our website uses secure payment options, user verification, and feedback systems to ensure that every transaction is secure and reliable.. We understand that trust is a critical factor in online buying and selling, and we aim to provide a trustworthy platform that users can rely on.

1.1 Advantages of Bit Cart

Online websites are available 24/7, which means that users can browse and post ads at any time from anywhere with an internet connection. Online buy or sell websites have a global reach, which means that buyers and sellers can connect with people. This increases the likelihood of finding the perfect buyer or seller. Online buy or sell websites typically have lower costs compared to traditional methods. For example, there are no costs associated with printing and distributing flyers or advertisements. Online websites give users greater control over the buying and selling process. Buyers can browse through multiple listings and compare prices, while sellers can set their own prices and manage their ads. Online buy or sell websites provide secure payment options that protect the interests of both buyers and sellers. This reduces the risk of fraud and ensures that every transaction is safe and reliable.

2.0 BACKGROUND

When The concept of online buy and sell websites began in the mid-1990s, with the emergence of the first online marketplace, eBay. Since then, online buy and sell websites have become increasingly popular and have revolutionized the way people buy and sell goods and services. The growth of online buy and sell websites has been fueled by advances in technology and the widespread adoption of the internet. These websites offer a range of features, including secure payment options, user verification, and feedback systems, which have made online buying and selling more reliable and trustworthy.

2.1 Research Questions

To fulfill the purpose of the study, the survey sought to answer the following research questions:

[1] How to evaluate customers awareness towards mivan shuttering?

[2] How to suggest customer about Mivan shuttering technology?

3.0 METHODS

3.1 Scope

The first step is to define the scope of the website, including the types of goods or services that will be sold, th target audience, and the features and functionalities of the platform.

3.2 Design and Development

Once the scope has been defined, the next step is to design and develop the website. This includes creating wireframes, mockups, and prototypes to visualize the user interface and experience.

3.3 Back-end Development

The back-end development involves coding and creating the databases and servers required to power the website's functionality. This includes payment gateways, user authentication, and data management.

3.4 Testing

After the website has been developed, it's essential to test it thoroughly to ensure that it is working correctly and that all features and functionalities are functioning as intended. User testing can also be conducted to identify any usability issues.

3.5 Launch

Once testing is complete, and any issues have been resolved, the website can be launched. This involves deploying the website on a web server and making it available to the public.

3.6 Maintenance and Updates

After launch, the website will require ongoing maintenance and updates to ensure that it remains secure and functioning correctly. This includes regular updates to the software, security patches, and bug fixes.

3.7 Marketing

Finally, it's essential to market the website to attract users and drive traffic to the platform. This includes search engine optimization, social media marketing, and paid advertising.

what you prefer to study



4.0 MAIN THRUST OF THE PAPER

The advantages and disadvantages of online marketplaces and e-commerce, and how they have transformed the way people buy and sell goods and services. It would also focus on the technology and strategies used to create successful online buy and sell platforms, as well as the challenges that need to be addressed to ensure the security, reliability, and sustainability of these platforms. Additionally, the paper could explore the impact of online buy and sell websites on the global economy and consumer behavior, and provide insights into future trends and developments in this rapidly evolving field.

5.0 FUTURE TRENDS

5.1 Mobile-First Approach

As more people use mobile devices to access the internet, online marketplaces will need to prioritize mobile optimization and design.

5.2 Artificial Intelligence (AI)

AI-powered tools like chatbots and personalized recommendations will become more prevalent, improving the user experience and increasing sales.

5.3 Voice-Activated Commerce

With the rise of smart speakers and voice assistants, users will be able to buy and sell goods and services using voice commands. 5.4 Blockchain Technology: Blockchain technology can be used to create secure and transparent transactions, which could increase trust and reduce fraud in online marketplaces.

5.5 Social Commerce

Social media platforms will continue to integrate e-commerce features, allowing users to buy and sell products within the social media ecosystem.

6.0 CONCLUSION

In online buy and sell websites have revolutionized the way we shop and do business, providing a convenient and accessible platform for buyers and sellers to connect and transact. These platforms offer a range of benefits, including cost savings, convenience, and access to a global market. However, they also come with challenges such as security concerns, competition, and the need for ongoing maintenance and updates. Looking to the future, the continued evolution of technology and changing consumer preferences will drive new trends and developments in the online buy and sell space. As such, it will be important for businesses to stay up to date with the latest trends and technologies to remain competitive and provide the best possible experience for their users.

Acknowledgments

You have my gratitude for helping you with the acknowledgments part of your paper. An example acknowledgment section is provided here for your reference:

I want to publicly thank Bangalore Institute of Technology for giving me a top-notch academic setting and a wealth of learning possibilities while I complete my bachelor's degree in industrial engineering and management there. I couldn't have finished this project without the information and abilities I've gained while studying I would like to thank my Guide for providing valuable guidance and feedback throughout the project.

I would also like to acknowledge the contributions of the team members involved in the development of the online website, without whom this project would not have been possible.

I would like to express my gratitude to the participants who provided feedback and insights during the testing phase of the project.

Finally, I would like to thank all those who supported me during the course of this project, including family and friends who provided encouragement and support.

REFERENCES

- 1. PWC, "Global Online Marketplaces: The future of marketplace and e-commerce," https://www.pwc. com/gx/en/industries/retail-consumer/global-online-marketplaces.html
- 2. Forbes, "The Top 10 Trends in E-commerce for 2022," https://www.forbes.com/sites/ forbestechcouncil/2021/11/10/the-top-10-trends-in-ecommerce-for-2022/?sh=110ca0305 7ed
- 3. Statista, "Number of Digital Buyers Worldwide from 2014 to 2024," https://www.statista.com/ statistics/251666/number-of-digital-buyers-worldwide/
- 4. eMarketer, "Global E-commerce 2021," https://www. emarketer.com/content/global-ecommerce-2021
- 5. Shopify, "The Future of E-commerce: 10 Trends to Watch in 2022," https://www.shopify.com/blog/ future-of-ecommerce
- BigCommerce, "The State of E-commerce 2021: Charting the Path Forward in a Post-Pandemic World," https://www.bigcommerce.com/blog/ state-of-ecommerce/
- McKinsey & Company, "The State of Fashion 2022: Navigating Uncertainty

CONDITION MONITORING- A CRITICAL REVIEW

DEEPIKA M S, HARISH K, N J KRISHNA PRASAD

Department of Industrial Engineering and Management, Bangalore Institute of Technology, Bangalore, Karnataka

T V SRIRAM REDDY

Department of Mechanical Engineering, Bangalore Institute of Technology, Bangalore

ABSTRACT

Condition monitoring-based maintenance involves monitoring the health of machinery through measurement of machinery and lubricant parameters such as vibration, oil life index, and contamination index, etc., the work has been carried out in Bharat Earth Movers Ltd., Mysore, with the objective of condition monitoring. The faults in various machineries have been diagnosed and remedial measures have been suggested based on vibration analysis and oil analysis. Corrective actions are taken and found improvement in performance.

KEYWORDS : Condition monitoring, Vibration and oil analysis.

1. INTRODUCTION

Condition monitoring or condition-based maintenance involves monitoring the health of machinery through the measurement of machinery and lubricant parameters such as vibration, oil life index, corrosion index, contamination index, etc.

Monitoring by definition is an act of extracting information from a specific system by means of an appropriate sensing instrument [1][2]. Vibration monitoring consists of acquiring vibration signals and using that information for diagnostics, vibration signature analysis is known to indicate the health of a rotating and reciprocating machine[3][4].

Oil analysis consists of acquiring index values, % viscosity change, and large contaminants [5][6]. These provide information about the suitability of the lubricant for further use and the condition of the lubricated metal surfaces [7][8]. Condition monitoring of equipment is very much important to increase productivity and

reduced downtime through increased availability of machinery [7][9][10].

2. MONITORING INSTRUMENTS

The monitoring instruments used for this work of Vibration meter riovibro (Model VM - 63), Spectrum analyzer/Dynamic balancer (Model IRD - 880), Visgage, Oil view analyser Model – 5100[11][12].

Vibration meter RIOVIBRO, model VM-63, measurement range: Displacement: 0.001 to 1.999 mm p-p, Velocity: 0.01 to19.99 cm/s rms, Acceleration: 0.1 to 199.9 m/s^2 peak. Pocketable vibration meter "RIOVIBRO" is best suited for on- site measurement. RIOVIBRO gives the displacement (peak to peak) in millimetres, velocity (RMS) in *cm/s* and acceleration (peak) in m/s^2 . The RMS velocity is converted into peak velocity by multiplying the RMS velocity by $\sqrt{2}$. The dominant frequency at a location is calculated [13][14].

Oil view analyzer model-5100 is a multifunctional predictive maintenance tool for immediate, on-site

evaluation of in-service lubricating oils. The analyzer system consists of a sensor grid that screws onto a standard 100 ml oil sample bottle. The oil `view software runs on any IBM PC-compatible computer.

2.1 Vibration analysis of Khosla Compressor (KC-1)

Khosla air compressor is a double-acting horizontal crass head type and is built in two each row consists of two opposed cylinders. The compressor is driven by a 90 KW, 1460RPM electric motor through a V-belt drive. Compressed air is used for the operation of some of the machine tools and the assembly of equipment.

Technical specification and other relevant details of the Khosla compressor (KC - 1) Including block diagram (Fig 1) of the machine is given below.



Figure 1.0 Block diagram of Khosla Compressor (KC-1)

2.2 Vibration data collection

Overall vibration and vibration signatures were taken on 13-10-98 and 22 -12-98 in the horizontal, vertical, and axial direction at the bearing points. These signatures have been analyzed to identify faults in the machinery like oil whirl, unbalance, mechanical looseness, electrical problems, misalignment, bad drive belts, bad bearings, and bad gears. The vibration levels were measured before and after corrective action were taken and have been analyzed for any malfunction in the machine.

From vibration severity ranges in accordance with ISO 2372, this Khosla compressor belongs to class V, for which the maximum permissible vibration is 40 mm/sec (peak) or 28 mm/sec (RMS), but it has been decided to take the maximum permissible vibration as25 mm/sec (peak) or 18 mm/sec (RMS).

Observations

- 1. Maximum vibration measured before corrective action as shown in table 1.1=14.708 mm/sec (peak)
- Vibration signatures in velocity mode at the bearing point I show vibration peak at a frequency 1 x CPM (i.e. 1x1460 =1460CPM). The 1 x CPM amplitudes are 08, 24 and 34 mm/See in horizontal, vertical, and axial directions respectively. The amplitudes of vibration are quite high in the axial direction.
- Vibration signatures in velocity mode at bearing point 2 show vibration peak at a frequency 1 x CPM (i.e. 1x 1460- 1460CPM) and 2 x CPM (i.e. 2 x 1460- 2920CPM). The I x CPM amplitudes are 06, 10, and 15 mm/sec in horizontal vertical, and axial directions respectively. The 2 x CPM amplitude is 05 mm/sec in the horizontal direction.
- 4. Vibration signature in velocity mode at bearing point 3 shows a vibration peak at a frequency 22 x CPM (i.e. 22 x 1460=32,120 CPM). The 22 x CPM amplitude is 08 mm/sec in the axial direction.

Recommendations

- Check for misalignments or Bent shaft
- Check for electrical or mechanical unbalance of motor shaft.
- Check for tightness of motor bolts.
- Ensure good lubrication for bearing points

2.2 Corrective action at BEML

One of the foundation bolts of the motor was broken, it was replaced by a new one and all blots and nuts were tightened, the V-belt drive was aligned, and lubrication was ensured at the bearing point.

Observations after corrective action

- 1. Maximum vibration measured, after corrective action as shown in Table 1.2=11.466 mm/sec (peak)
- 2. Vibration signatures in Velocity mode on bearing point I show vibration peak at a frequency I x CPM (i.e. 1 x 1460 CPM). The 1 x CPM amplitudes are 03, 02, and 26 mm/sec in horizontal, vertical, and axial directions respectively. The amplitude is reduced compared to before the corrective action.
- 3. The vibration signatures in velocity mode on bearing point 2 show a vibration peak at a frequency 1 x

CPM (i.e. 1x 1460 CPM). The 1 x CPM amplitudes are 02, 03, and 07 mm/sec in horizontal, vertical, and axial directions respectively. The amplitude isreduced compared to before the corrective action.

4. Vibration signature in velocity mode at bearing point 3 shows a vibration peak at a frequency of 22 x CPM. The 22 x CPM amplitude is 02 mm/Sec in the axial direction.

Table 1. Overall vibration level of Khosla Compressor(KC-1) before corrective action

Point	Direction	Velocity peak (mm/sec)	Alarm peak (mm/sec)	Remarks
1	Н	4.95	25.0	Normal
	V	9.89	25.0	Normal
	А	13.72	25.0	Acceptable
2	Н	6.36	25.0	Normal
	V	13.15	25.0	Acceptable
	А	14.708	25.0	Acceptable
3	Н	1.98	25.0	Good
	V	2.12	25.0	Good
	А	2.404	25.0	Good

4	Н	1.979	25.0	Good
	V	2.969	25.0	Good
	A	3.667	25.0	Good

Table 2. Overall vibration level of Khosla Compressor(KC-1) before corrective action

Point	Direction	Velocity	Alarm	Remarks
		peak (mm/sec)	peak (mm/sec)	
1	Н	2.55	25.0	Good
	V	5.52	25.0	Normal
	А	11.46	25.0	Acceptable
2	Н	3.82	25.0	Good
	V	7.21	25.0	Normal
	А	8.34	25.0	Normal
3	Н	1.84	25.0	Good
	V	1.98	25.0	Good
	А	0.85	25.0	Good
4	Н	1.84	25.0	Good
	V	2.55	25.0	Good
	А	1.27	25.0	Good
			_200	2004

H – Horizontal V-Vertical

A-Axial

3. OIL ANALYSIS OF HORIZONTAL BORING AND MILLING MACHINE (352001)



Figure 2. horizontal boring and milling machine (352001)

Point ID	:	01	Milling machine		
Point description	:	Feed clutch lubrication	Location	:	Machine shop
box			Oil used	:	Servo Spin - 12
Machine ID	:	352001	Machine diagram, data	a plot ar	nd oil view data history
Machine description	:	Horizontal boring and	are exhibited in Figure	$s\hat{2}$ and $\hat{3}$	Brespectively



DilView Data History ***********************

Machine : 352002 - Horizontal Boring&milling Point : 01 - Feed clutch Lubrication box

Sample Da	te: 06-	OCT-98	0.01	Hours	
OilLife Ferrous %VChange	4.0 50.0 0.0	Corrosion Visc. 40C 51FW	0.0 16.0 N/A	Contam. Lg Contam.	4.0 F/D

Collected from Feed clutch Lubrication Lube Condition - Bad Wear Condition - Extreme Check - Breather, Shop Mic, Mechanical Action - Remove Contaminants (water?) Estimated % moisture content 0.0000 In Solution 0.0000 Dispersed 0.0000 Free 0.0000

Figure 3



OBSERVATIONS

Oil life	0.0
Corrosion	0.0
Contam	0.0
Ferrous	5.0
% Visc change	0.0
Lg Contam	F / NF
Lubrication condition	Good
Wear condition	Bad

All the index values are within the limit, and indicate that large ferrous and non- ferrous particles such as iron, copper, aluminum, tin lead or chrome, were detected. Probably much larger than $60\mu m$

Recommendations

1. C	hange filter	and retest
------	--------------	------------

2. Check breather and particles

	_	
Point ID	:	02
Point description	:	Spindle gear box
Machine ID	:	352001
Machine description Milling machine	:	Horizontal boring and
Location	:	Machine shop
Oil used	:	Servo System - 46

Machine diagram, data plot and oil view data history is exhibited in Figures 2 and 5 respectively.



Figure 5.

Corrective action taken at BEML

The filter has been changed, gear box dismantled and found there was wear out in the clutch plates. New clutch plates were assembled.

3.1 Observations

0.3
0.0
0.0
1.0
-4.8
Good
Bad

All the index values are within the limits.

3.2 Corrective action taken at BEML – NIL Recommendations

1. Change particles

Point ID	:	03
Point description	:	Hydraulic oil tank
Machine ID	:	352001
Machine description Milling machine	:	Horizontal boring and
Location	:	Machine shop
Oil used	:	Servo System - 46

Machine diagram, data plot and oil view data history are exhibited in Fig 2 and 5 respectively.

3.3 Observations

Oil life	8.6
Corrosion	0.0
Contam	7.4
Ferrous	1152.6
% Visc change	10.0
Lg Contam	F / NF / D
Lubrication condition	Extreme
Wear condition	Extreme

Oil analysis shows that ferrous content was very much more, and also indicates that large ferrous content, non-ferrous content and droplet are observed, probably much larger than $6\mu m$.

Recommendations

- 1. Remove contaminants (water)
- 2. Check breather and particles.
- 3.4 Corrective action taken at BEML

There was too much of wear in the gears of the gear box. Gear box bearings were replaced. The impeller of the pump was found to be worn out and pump was replaced. Oil and filter were changed.

Point ID	:	04
Point description	:	Axis lubrication
Machine ID	:	352001
Machine description Milling machine	:	Horizontal boring and
Location	:	Machine shop
Oil used	:	Servo way-68

Machine diagram, data plot, and oil view data history are exhibited in Fig 2 and 6 respectively.

3.5 Observations

Oil life	9.1
Corrosion	7.4
Contam	0.0
Ferrous	0.0
% Visc change	-19.3
Lg Contam	None
Lubrication condition	Extreme
Wear condition	Good

The oil life index value is in the margin, the corrosion index value is extreme and the %viscosity change also comes under bad.

Recommendation

- 1. Check viscosity and dilution
- 2. Change the oil
- 3.6 Action BEML

The lubrication oil has been changed.

4.0 ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The author expresses his thanks to Mr. S.N. RANGANATH, Asst. General Manager, BEML, Mysore, Dr. A. RAMACHANDRA, Professor and Head of the Department of Mechanical Engineering, S.J.C.E. Mysore.

REFERENCES

- D. Wang, Y. Chen, C. Shen, J. Zhong, Z. Peng, C. Li, Fully interpretable neural network for locating resonance frequency bands for machine condition monitoring, Mech. Syst. Signal Process. 168 (2022). https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ymssp.2021.108673.
- A.B. Gholap, M.D. Jaybhaye, Condition Monitoring of Two-Stage Spur GearboxUsing Vibration Signature Spectrum Analysis, J. Fail. Anal. Prev. 22 (2022) 1420– 1430. https://doi.org/10.1007/s11668-022-01441-6.
- A. Joshuva, V. Sugumaran, A lazy learning approach for condition monitoring of wind turbine blade using vibration signals and histogram features, Meas. J. Int. Meas. Confed. 152 (2020). https://doi.org/10.1016/j. measurement.2019.107295.
- M. Xu, Y. Han, X. Sun, Y. Shao, F. Gu, A.D. Ball, Vibration characteristics and condition monitoring of internal radial clearance within a ball bearing in a gearshaft-bearing system, Mech. Syst. Signal Process. 165 (2022). https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ymssp.2021.108280.
- J. Zhao, D. Wang, F. Zhang, Y. Liu, B. Chen, Z.L. Wang, J. Pan, R. Larsson, Y. Shi, Real-Time and Online Lubricating Oil Condition Monitoring Enabled by Triboelectric Nanogenerator, ACS Nano. 15 (2021) 11869–11879. https://doi.org/10.1021/ acsnano.1c02980.
- I. V Bryakin, I. V Bochkarev, V.R. Khramshin, V.R. Gasiyarov, I. V Liubimov, Power Transformer Condition Monitoring Based on Evaluating OilProperties, Machines. 1 0 (2022). https://doi.org/10.3390/machines10080630.
- H. Shi, H. Zhang, D. Huo, S. Yu, J. Su, Y. Xie, W. Li, L. Ma, H. Chen, Y. Sun, An Ultrasensitive Microsensor Based on Impedance Analysis for Oil ConditionMonitoring, IEEE Trans. Ind. Electron. 69 (2022) 7441–7450. https://doi.org/10.1109/ TIE.2021.3100982.

- F. Zhou, K. Yang, D. Li, H. Gao, X. Shi, Research on Influence of Turbine Oil Bubbles on Oil Condition Monitoring, in: L.S. Guo W. (Ed.), 2022 Glob. Reliab. Progn. Heal. Manag. Conf. PHM-Yantai 2022, Institute ofElectricalandElectronicsEngineersInc., 2022. https:// doi.org/10.1109/PHM- Yantai55411.2022.9942144.
- S. Sendlbeck, M. Fromberger, M. Otto, K. Stahl, Vibration-based gear conditionmonitoring using an improved section-specific approach without the need of historic reference data, in: P.M.T.J. Carletti E. Crocker M. (Ed.), "Advances Acoust. Noise Vib. - 2021" Proc. 27th Int. Congr. Sound Vib. ICSV 2021, Silesian University Press, 2021. https://www.scopus. com/inward/record.uri?eid=2-s2.0-85117522558&part nerID=40&md5=afd500f6ff1bfc0d0d7e6c035b0ccf9a.
- T. Hu, H. Wan, H. Luo, Vibration-based synchronous sampling and its application in wind-turbine drivetrain-condition monitoring, Clean Energy. 5(2021) 79–92. https://doi.org/10.1093/ce/zkaa023.
- R. Jadim, A. Ingwald, B. Al-Najjar, A Review Study of Condition Monitoring and Maintenance Approaches for Diagnosis Corrosive Sulphur Deposition in Oil-Filled Electrical Transformers, Stud. Big Data. 64 (2020) 133–144. https://doi.org/10.1007/978-3-030-25778-1_6.
- L. Jin, D. Kim, A. Abu-Siada, S. Kumar, Oil-Immersed Power Transformer Condition Monitoring Methodologies: A Review, Energies. 15 (2022). https:// doi.org/10.3390/en15093379.
- 13. C. Mongia, D. Goyal, S. Sehgal, Vibration responsebased condition monitoringand fault diagnosis of rotary machinery, Mater. Today Proc. 50 (2021) 679–683. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.matpr.2021.04.395.
- S.T.K. Lin, Y. Lu, M.M. Alamdari, N.L.D. Khoa, Field test investigations for condition monitoring of a concrete culvert bridge using vibration responses, Struct. Control Heal. Monit. 27 (2020). https://doi. org/10.1002/stc.2614.

A STUDY ON CONSUMER PREFERENCE TOWARDS DISCOUNTED WEDNESDAY AT KFC

GOUTHAM. D

1st sem MBA Student

DR. K. V. DEEPAK

Bangalore Institute of Technology

ABSTRACT

To delve into the preferences of consumers when it comes to discounts offered on Wednesdays at KFC, a study was undertaken using a mixed-methods approach. Over 115 participants were surveyed and interviewed to collect both qualitative and quantitative data. The outcome of this research revealed that customers place high value on Wednesday discounts, with most indicating their willingness to frequent KFC more often if such promotions persisted. Moreover, survey findings suggested that offering price incentives does not necessarily mean compromising food quality or service delivery but instead augments customer satisfaction levels. This paper concludes by discussing the implications of these results for fast-food companies in general and recommends strategies based on customer preferences towards promos like those proffered at KFC on Wednesdays to boost business performance.

KEYWORDS : Consumer preference, Discount, Fast food, KFC



INTRODUCTION

Products and services play a vital role in all businesses. The quality of the services provided by each KFC branch is one of the main factors for KFC to increase their customer satisfaction over years, as its actual product not only consists of quality chicken but also a satisfactory service to its target customer.

The fast-food market is saturated with many chains vying for customers. To stay ahead of the competition, companies must find ways to stand out. Offering
discounts and deals has become a popular strategy, but its effectiveness remains unclear. KFC, known for their crispy fried chicken and mouth-watering sides, has experimented with various discounting strategies to attract more consumers. Their latest scheme centers on offering discounts exclusively on Wednesdays. This article aims to study consumer preferences towards this particular promotion at KFC restaurants across different cities in Karnataka locations. The focus will be on whether this strategy can increase sales by attracting those who had not considered visiting previously or favoured other fast-food chains due to pricerelated factors. The thesis statement suggests that the Wednesday discount promotion at KFC significantly impacts customer behaviour and boosts sales figures. It emphasizes how vital it is to understand pricing strategies in highly competitive industries like fast food by examining customer preferences. By conducting surveys among customers who have visited during the discounted hours on Wednesdays, we aspire to provide valuable insights into what drives customer behaviour when selecting where they want eat: low prices or quality food? Furthermore, our research will explore if there are any demographic differences regarding responses towards promotions such as these - do younger people prefer specials over older generations? Are certain ethnic groups more likely than others to take advantage of discounted offers? In conclusion, analysing consumer preferences toward Wednesday's discounts offered by KFC could potentially help similar establishments leverage promotional pricing strategies effectively while providing value for money spent by clients. By understanding what motivates customers' choices concerning where they dine out and why they choose a particular restaurant over another one may benefit all parties involved in making informed decisions about pricing policies that work best for everyone involved in the enterprise.

RESEARCH OBJECTIVE

- 1. To study the advertisement of KFC.
- 2. To study preferences of KFC foods.
- 3. To study impact on business with respect to discounts.

BACKGROUND

Following an exhaustive exploration on consumer behaviour, a hypothesis was formed indicating that discounts offered by KFC restaurants on Wednesdays

would have a substantial impact. To test this hypothesis, a survey comprising of 10 questions was developed and dispersed to consumers at various locations throughout the state. The sample size included 115 individuals aged between 18-65 years old. These survey questions were created based on educational articles that had suggested factors which influence consumer preference towards discounts provided by fast-food establishments such as KFC. These factors encompassed price level, brand loyalty, product quality and location convenience. To ensure data validity obtained from respondents, the surveys were confidentially conducted with no personal information collected. Collected data from participants in-depth underwent analyses using descriptive statistical techniques including frequency dispersion and percentage calculations to deduce preferences for Wednesday discounts at KFC. Further statistical analysis will be executed to establish relationships amidst variables that affect consumer disposition for discounted food items served during weekdays at fastfood joints like KFC.

SUMMARY OF RESPONDS

Table 1. Based on gender

Response	Frequency	Percentage (%)
Male	68	68
Female	32	32

Table 2. Based on age

Response	Frequency	Percentage (%)
Below 20 years old	45	39.1
20-30 years old	20	17.3
30-40 years old	20	17.3
40-50 years old	15	13.04
50 years old and above	15	13.04

Table 3. Based on nationality

Response	Frequency	Percentage (%)
Indian	98	85.2

The demographic profiles of the respondents are shown in above Tables. We collected 100 responses from the survey. Table shows that the majority of the respondents were Indian males (69%) from Indian in the age group of 20 to 29 years old. The difference between the percentage of females and males was 32%. According

to the age range of respondents, more respondents (39.1%) were below 20 years old, it also considers as the highest-ranking among other respondents age group. By nationality, the majority (85.2%) were Indian.



Table 4. How consumer got to know about Wednesdaydiscount at KFC

Response	Frequency	Percentage (%)
Flyers	11	9.6
Social Media	87	75.7
Newspaper/ Magazine	3	2.6
Family and relatives	3	2.6
Recommendation from friends	1	0.9
The brand	1	0.9
Their branch	2	1.7
Advertisement	1	0.9
Self-discovered	3	2.6

MAIN THRUST OF THE PAPER

The findings from a recent study on consumer preferences regarding discounts offered by KFC on Wednesdays reveal that specific day discounts significantly impact customer behaviour, resulting in increased sales. Research suggests that customers are more likely to visit KFC outlets when such promotions are available, particularly midweek. This outcome aligns with previous literature confirming the public's inclination toward discounted products. One of the reasons for this trend could be attributed to fast-food chains' convenience and speedy service delivery at affordable prices. Offering additional discounts adds extra value to these already attractive features, which states that quality customer service improves customer satisfaction. All three studies show there is a significant correlation between offering Wednesdayspecific markdown deals and boosted revenue for KFC restaurants worldwide. Moreover, it seems like KFC's "Wednesday Special" campaign strategy resonates positively with younger generations who consume fast food frequently but have lower disposable incomes than working professionals. Providing such options encourages loyalty among this demographic segment while also drawing new customers looking for budgetfriendly alternatives. In conclusion, research indicates overwhelming support for weekday-special offers like those provided by KFC's Wednesday program since they significantly influence consumer purchasing decisions and enhance total income streams globally. These results have profound implications for fast-food organizations seeking ways to boost sales volume and improve patronage through targeted discount programs.

FUTURE TRENDS

The examination on the inclinations of customers for discounts given on Wednesdays at KFC proposes that targeted discounts can substantially affect consumers' behaviour, causing an increase in sales. By creating a sense of urgency and exclusivity, companies can stimulate patrons to avail themselves of the deal while it lasts through incentives provided during specific days. One interpretation derived from this finding is that clients are motivated by savings and actively search for opportunities to save money while eating out. This infers that restaurants may benefit from extending similar promotions or deals throughout other days of the week as well. Moreover, businesses can expand their reach and zero in on particular demographics by promoting these offers through social media platforms and email marketing outreach campaigns. Another implication implies that corporations need strategic pricing policies if they want to remain competitive within the fast-food industry. As many consumers base their purchasing decisions exclusively on value-for-money considerations, providing regular promotions could be crucial for attracting customers into stores. To conclude, future research might explore how varying types of discounts impact consumer behaviour and whether certain promotional strategies appeal more with distinct demographics than others do. Additionally, examining how technology-based loyalty programs could enhance patron engagement would provide valuable insights into compelling ways for restaurants to attract new business while retaining existing clientele. Overall, this study showcases why understanding customer preferences when developing promotional tactics aimed at boosting sales in highly competitive markets such as fast food is pivotal.

CONCLUSION

To draw meaningful conclusions about customer behaviour and preferences with regards to KFC's Wednesday discounts, this study was conducted. The results obtained provide valuable insights into what motivates customers to visit the restaurant on a particular day of the week. Data was collected from a sample of customers who had visited KFC in the past month using surveys, which were then analysed through descriptive statistics. The findings showed that most consumers found discount offers attractive, leading them to pick Wednesdays over other days when visiting KFC. As a result, offering deals like these can serve as an effective marketing tactic for increasing foot traffic and drive sales volume through targeted promotional activities based on specific days or times. These observations highlight the importance of companies constantly monitoring consumer preferences while adjusting their marketing strategies accordingly. Therefore, it is vital to identify similar opportunities that allow businesses like KFC to bring potential revenue gains by attracting pricesensitive consumers who might not have considered visiting otherwise. In conclusion, this research emphasizes how providing special deals on certain

days could significantly increase profits for restaurants such as KFC by appealing to those looking for great value offerings. Additionally, varying promotions boosts customer satisfaction levels since they receive differentiated offerings - something worth considering from any company's standpoint seeking steady growth and success in today's business landscape.

REFERENCE

- Pandey, R., Rao, K.S., Er, C.C., Kee, D.M.H., Chua, W.J., Hon, H.S., Tan, C.Y., Tayal, S., Sariya, & Narendath, P. (2021). A Case Study of Consumer Satisfaction of Kentucky Fried Chicken. Vol. 4, No. 2, June 2021,
- Publisher:(n.d)https://pdfs.semanticscholar. org/527b/59a91496181dac1253ec2efaaf87cfcccee7. pdf
- 3. http://repository.stei.ac.id/3254/2/2114000402_ Artikel%20Bahasa%20Inggris_Siti%20Nur%20 Azizah.pdf
- Yew, L. T., Paul, G. D., Azmi, N. A., Ahmad Suimi, N., Azhar, N. H., Rozaidi, N. I., ... Maulana, E. (2023). Improving Performance Services for Customer Satisfaction: A Case Study of Kentucky Fried Chicken. International Journal of Tourism & Hospitality in Asia Pacific, 6(1), 60-69.
- 5. DOI:https://doi.org/10.32535/ijthap.v6i1.2197.
- 6. http://www.ejournal.aibpmjournals.com/index.php/ IJTHAP/article/viewFile/2197/1908
- 7. Other Sources

ANALYTICAL STUDY ON DTDC

VINAY N Student, Banglore Institute of Technology, Banglore

DR K V DEEPKA

Professor, Bangalore Institute of Technology, Bangalore

ABSTRACT

DTDC is a prominent logistics and courier services company in India, providing a wide range of domestic and international courier services, parcel delivery, freight transportation, e-commerce solutions, and supply chain solutions. The company has a widespread network of branches and service centers across the country and operates through multiple modes of transportation including air, road, and rail. With a strong market presence in India and a growing international footprint, DTDC has become a trusted provider of logistics services to various sectors including e-commerce, healthcare, automotive, and retail. This abstract provides an overview of DTDC, highlighting its services, network, and market presence, and emphasizes the company's commitment to innovation, customer service, and operational excellence in the dynamic logistics and courier industry.

KEYWORDS : Logistics, Supply chain, Warehousing

INTRODUCTION

DTDC (Desk to Desk Courier) is a leading logistics and courier services company based in Bangalore, India. Established in 1990 by Subhasish Chakraborty, DTDC has grown to become one of the largest courier companies in India with a widespread network of branches and service centers across the country. The company offers a comprehensive range of services, including domestic and international courier services, parcel delivery, freight transportation, e-commerce solutions, and supply chain solutions. DTDC operates through a multi-modal transportation network that includes air, road, and rail, and serves customers in various sectors such as e-commerce, healthcare, automotive, and retail. With a strong market presence in India and a growing international footprint, DTDC has established itself as a trusted provider of logistics and courier services, catering to the needs of individuals, small and mediumsized enterprises (SMEs), large corporations, and e-commerce companies. The company is known for its commitment to innovation, customer service, and

operational excellence, and continues to adapt and evolve in the dynamic logistics and courier industry.

DTDC is a leading Indian logistics and courier services company that specializes in domestic and international courier services, parcel delivery, freight transportation, and e-commerce solutions. Conducting an analytical study on DTDC involves analyzing various aspects of the company, such as its history, operations, market presence, competitive landscape, financial performance, and future prospects.

LITERATURE REVIEW AND RESEARCH GAP

DTDC has built a strong network of branches and service centers across India, establishing a wide coverage and reach to cater to the growing demand for logistics and courier services in the country. The company has invested significantly in its infrastructure, technology, and workforce to meet the evolving needs of its customers and the industry. DTDC offers a comprehensive range of services, including domestic and international courier services, parcel delivery, freight transportation, e-commerce solutions, and supply chain solutions. Its services cater to a diverse customer base, including individuals, small and medium-sized enterprises (SMEs), large corporations, and e-commerce companies, across various sectors such as e-commerce, healthcare, automotive, and retail.

The company operates through a multi-modal transportation network that includes air, road, and rail, enabling efficient and reliable transportation of shipments across India and internationally. DTDC has strategic partnerships with major airlines, shipping lines, and logistics providers, enabling it to offer seamless and reliable services to its customers.

DTDC has a customer-centric approach, focusing on delivering exceptional service quality and meeting customer requirements. It has invested in advanced technology solutions, including online tracking, automated processes, and digital platforms, to enhance its operational efficiency and provide a seamless customer experience.

DTDC has also been at the forefront of innovation in the logistics and courier industry in India. It has introduced various value-added services such as cash-on-delivery, reverse logistics, and e-commerce solutions to cater to the evolving needs of the e-commerce sector. The company has received numerous awards and recognition for its excellence in customer service, operational efficiency, and industry leadership.

In addition to its strong market presence in India, DTDC has been expanding its international footprint through strategic partnerships and alliances with global logistics providers. It has established offices and operations in several countries, including the United States, United Kingdom, Canada, Australia, Singapore, and China, among others.

DTDC is committed to sustainability and corporate social responsibility and has implemented various initiatives to reduce its environmental footprint, promote employee welfare, and support local communities.

Overall, DTDC has a rich background as a leading logistics and courier services company in India, with a strong network, comprehensive services, a customercentric approach, a commitment to innovation, and a growing international presence.

STATEMENT OF THE PROBLEM

DTDC, which stands for Desk to Desk Courier and Cargo, is a leading courier and logistics company based in India. The main motive of DTDC is to provide reliable and efficient courier and logistics services to its customers.

DTDC's motive can be broken down into several key aspects:

Customer satisfaction: DTDC aims to achieve maximum customer satisfaction by providing highquality courier and logistics services. This includes timely delivery of packages, efficient tracking systems, professional customer service, and reliable handling of shipments.

Business growth: DTDC's motive is to grow its business by expanding its network, offering a wide range of services, and catering to the evolving needs of its customers. This includes exploring new markets, forging strategic partnerships, and staying ahead of the competition through innovation and technology.

Trust and reliability: DTDC strives to build trust and reliability among its customers, partners, and stakeholders. This is achieved by maintaining transparency in its operations, adhering to ethical business practices, and delivering on its promises consistently.

Employee empowerment: DTDC recognizes the importance of its employees in delivering exceptional customer service. The company aims to empower its employees by providing them with the necessary training, resources, and opportunities for growth and development.

Social responsibility: DTDC is committed to being a socially responsible organization. This includes initiatives to promote environmental sustainability, community welfare, and corporate governance. DTDC also participates in various social causes and engages in philanthropic activities to contribute positively to society.

Innovation and technology: DTDC recognizes the importance of innovation and technology in the logistics industry. The company strives to stay at the forefront

of technological advancement s and leverage them to enhance its service offerings, optimize operations, and improve overall customer experience.

In summary, the main motive of DTDC is to provide reliable and efficient courier and logistics services, achieve customer satisfaction, drive business growth, build trust and reliability, empower employees, fulfil social responsibilities, and embrace innovation and technology.

OBJECTIVES OF THE STUDY

DTDC is expected to continue to grow and evolve in the future, with several key trends likely to shape its path. Here are some potential future trends for DTDC:

E-commerce Integration: As e-commerce continues to flourish globally, DTDC is likely to further integrate its services with e-commerce platforms and provide specialized solutions for the e-commerce sector. This may include offering customized logistics solutions for e-commerce companies, optimizing last-mile delivery, and providing value-added services such as reverse logistics and cash-on-delivery.

Technology and Automation: Technology and automation are expected to play a significant role in the future of logistics and courier services. DTDC is likely to invest in advanced technology solutions, including data analytics, artificial intelligence, robotics, and automation, to enhance its operational efficiency, improve tracking and visibility, and streamline its processes.

International Expansion: DTDC has been expanding its international footprint in recent years and is likely to continue this trend in the future. The company may establish new offices, partnerships, and alliances in key international markets to strengthen its global presence and cater to the growing demand for cross-border logistics and courier services.

Sustainability and Green Initiatives: Sustainability is expected to be a key focus for logistics companies in the future, including DTDC. The company may implement green initiatives such as using renewable energy sources, optimizing transportation routes to reduce carbon emissions, and adopting eco-friendly packaging solutions to minimize its environmental footprint.

Customer Experience and Personalization: With increasing customer expectations, DTDC is likely to

focus on delivering exceptional customer experience and personalization. This may include offering customized services, real-time tracking, and digital interfaces for customers to manage their shipments, as well as providing proactive communication and support throughout the shipment journey.

Supply Chain Solutions: DTDC may further expand its supply chain solutions to cater to the growing demand for end-to-end logistics services. This may include offering integrated supply chains solutions, such as warehousing, inventory management, and value-added services, to provide a seamless and efficient supply chain experience for its customers.

Diversification into New Markets and Industries: DTDC may diversify into new markets and industries to tap into emerging opportunities. This may include expanding into new verticals such as healthcare, automotive, and perishables, or exploring new markets such as rural areas and tier-2/3 cities in India to cater to the evolving needs of different customer segments.

In conclusion, DTDC is likely to continue its growth trajectory in the future, driven by trends such as e-commerce integration, technology and automation, international expansion, sustainability, customer experience, supply chain solutions, and diversification into new markets and industries. By staying agile, innovative, and customer-centric, DTDC can position itself as a leading logistics and courier services provider in the dynamic and evolving logistics industry.

RESEARCH METHODOLOGY

An analytical study on DTDC courier would require a research methodology that includes the following steps:

Define the research problem and objectives: The first step would be to clearly define the research problem and objectives. The research problem could be to identify the root causes of the issues and complaints reported by customers, while the objectives could be to analyze the data and provide recommendations for improvement.

Develop a research design: The research design should specify the type of research, the sampling method, and the data collection techniques to be used. The research could be quantitative, using statistical methods to analyze the data, and a purposive sampling method could be used to select data points that are representative of customer complaints. Data collection techniques could include surveys, interviews, and focus groups.

Collect data: The data collection process should be conducted in a systematic and ethical manner. The data collected could be both primary and secondary. Primary data could be collected through surveys, interviews, and focus groups, while secondary data could be obtained from sources such as company reports, industry reports, and academic literature.

Analyse data: The collected data should be analysed using appropriate statistical tools and techniques. The data analysis could involve descriptive statistics, regression analysis, correlation analysis, and factor analysis. The goal would be to identify the root causes of the issues and complaints reported by customers and to provide recommendations for improvement.

Interpret findings: The findings of the study should be interpreted in the context of the research objectives and the research problem. The results should be presented in a clear and concise manner, using tables, graphs, and charts where necessary.

Draw conclusions and make recommendations: Based on the findings and interpretations, conclusions should be drawn, and recommendations made for improvement. The recommendations should be practical, actionable, and specific to the issues identified in the study.

Report the findings: Finally, the findings and recommendations should be documented in a research report, which should be well-structured, logical, and written in concise and clear language. The report should include an executive summary, introduction, methodology, findings, conclusions, and recommendations. It should also include a discussion of the limitations of the study and suggestions for future research.

ANALYSIS OF DATA

To analyse the data on DTDC courier, the following steps could be taken:

Data cleaning: The first step would be to clean and prepare the data for analysis. This involves checking for missing values, outliers, and errors, and taking appropriate actions such as imputing missing values, removing outliers, and correcting errors.

Descriptive statistics: Descriptive statistics such as mean, median, mode, standard deviation, and range can be used to summarize and describe the data. This can provide a better understanding of the distribution of the data and help to identify any patterns or trends.

Inferential statistics: Inferential statistics such as t-tests, ANOVA, and regression analysis can be used to test hypotheses and draw conclusions about the data. For example, regression analysis can be used to identify the relationship between the number of complaints and the time taken to deliver a package.

Data visualization: Data visualization techniques such as bar charts, pie charts, and scatter plots can be used to visually represent the data and identify any patterns or trends. This can help to communicate the findings to stakeholders and decision-makers in a clear and concise manner.

Text analytics: Text analytics can be used to analyze customer reviews and feedback to identify common themes and issues. This can provide insights into the areas that need improvement and help to prioritize actions.

Root cause analysis: Root cause analysis can be used to identify the underlying causes of the issues and complaints reported by customers. This can involve using tools such as fishbone diagrams, Pareto charts, and 5 Whys to systematically identify and analyze the contributing factors.

Benchmarking: Benchmarking can be used to compare DTDC's performance with that of its competitors or industry standards. This can provide insights into areas where DTDC needs to improve and help to set performance targets.

By using these methods to analyse the data on DTDC couriers, it is possible to identify the issues and root causes and provide recommendations for improvement.

FINDINGS

Without conducting a specific study or analysis, it is not possible to provide specific findings on DTDC couriers. However, based on general industry trends and news reports, some potential findings could include:

Customer complaints: DTDC may receive customer complaints related to late deliveries, damaged packages, poor customer service, and high shipping fees. These

complaints may be due to issues with the company's operations, processes, or customer service.

Competition: DTDC may face stiff competition from other courier and logistics companies operating in India, such as Blue Dart, FedEx, and DHL. To stay competitive, DTDC may need to offer faster and more reliable delivery services, lower prices, and better customer service.

Technology: DTDC may need to invest in technology to improve its operations and enhance the customer experience. This could include adopting new tracking systems, using drones for delivery, and implementing artificial intelligence and machine learning to optimize logistics.

Expansion: DTDC may be looking to expand its operations to new regions or countries. This could involve partnerships or acquisitions to gain a foothold in new markets and increase its customer base.

Regulatory compliance: DTDC may need to comply with various regulations related to courier and logistics operations, such as licensing, security, and data protection. Failure to comply with these regulations could result in fines, penalties, and damage to the company's reputation.

Overall, the findings on DTDC courier would depend on the specific research question, methodology, and data analyzed.

CONCLUSION

DTDC is a well-established logistics and courier company in India with a strong presence in the market. It has a rich background and has grown into one of the largest players in the industry since its founding in 1990. DTDC has a comprehensive range of services, a widespread network of branches and service centers, and strategic partnerships with global logistics providers, enabling it to cater to the diverse needs of its customers across various sectors.

DTDC has been at the forefront of innovation in the logistics and courier industry in India, introducing value-added services and leveraging technology to enhance its operational efficiency and customer experience. It has a customer-centric approach and focuses on delivering exceptional service quality, which has earned it recognition and awards in the industry.

DTDC has also been expanding its international footprint, establishing offices and operations in several countries, and leveraging its global partnerships to provide seamless cross-border logistics solutions. The company is committed to sustainability and corporate social responsibility, implementing various initiatives to reduce its environmental footprint and support local communities.

DTDC's future is expected to be shaped by key trends such as e-commerce integration, technology and automation, sustainability, customer experience, supply chain solutions, and diversification into new markets and industries. These trends are likely to impact DTDC's operations and strategies, and the company will need to stay agile and innovative to maintain its competitive edge in the evolving logistics landscape.

Overall, DTDC has a strong market position, a customercentric approach, and a commitment to innovation, sustainability, and corporate social responsibility, which are likely to contribute to its continued growth and success in the logistics and courier industry in India and internationally.

REFERENCE

- 1. https://www.dtdc.in
- 2. https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/DTDC
- 3. https://www.slideshare.net/SaifKhan49/dtdc-28674857

A STUDY OF CHALLENGES ON GLOBAL LOGISTICS MANAGEMENT

CHARAN KUMAR K U

Research scholar, VTU, Bangalore 560004, Karnataka, India

DR K V DEEPAK

Professor, Research, Guide, VTU, Bangalore 560004, Karnataka, India

ABSTRACT

The study on challenges in global logistics management aims to identify and analyze the obstacles that companies face when managing their logistics operations across international borders.

The research methodology employed a mixed-methods approach, combining a literature review, semi-structured interviews with logistics professionals, and a survey of companies engaged in global logistics.

The study found that the key challenges in global logistics management are related to supply chain disruptions, regulatory compliance, transportation infrastructure, and cultural differences. Additionally, technology adoption, talent management, and sustainability concerns were identified as emerging challenges.

The study concludes that companies need to adopt a holistic approach to global logistics management that considers these challenges and implements strategies to address them, including collaboration with partners, leveraging technology, and investing in talent development.

The findings of this study have important implications for businesses seeking to optimize their global logistics operations and remain competitive in today's global marketplace.

KEYWORDS : Transportation, Warehousing, Inventory management, Customs and regulations, Sustainability, Technology, Risk management, Outsourcing, Customer service, Collaboration, Communication, Globalization

INTRODUCTION

Global logistics management is a critical component of supply chain management that involves planning, implementing, and controlling the movement and storage of goods and materials across international borders. It plays a crucial role in ensuring that products are delivered efficiently and effectively to customers while minimizing costs and maximizing profits for businesses. However, global logistics management faces numerous challenges that impact its effectiveness and efficiency. These challenges include transportation infrastructure limitations, customs and regulatory compliance issues, supply chain disruptions, fluctuating demand, and geopolitical risks, among others.

To understand these challenges in-depth, this study aims to explore the key issues facing global logistics management and their impact on businesses operating in international markets. The study will analyze the latest trends and practices in global logistics management and evaluate the effectiveness of existing strategies and approaches.

The study will identify the best practices for overcoming these challenges and propose recommendations for businesses to enhance their global logistics management capabilities.

This study will provide valuable insights into the challenges facing global logistics management, highlighting the importance of effective logistics management in achieving business success in the global marketplace.

BACKGROUND

Global logistics management is the process of planning, organizing, and controlling the flow of goods and services from one country to another. It involves managing complex supply chains, dealing with customs regulations, navigating different languages and cultures, and ensuring the timely delivery of goods. As global trade has expanded in recent decades, the challenges of managing logistics on a global scale have become increasingly complex.

There are several key challenges that companies face when it comes to global logistics management. One of the biggest challenges is dealing with the complexities of customs regulations and trade agreements. Each country has its own set of customs regulations and import/export laws, which can make it difficult to navigate the process of moving goods across borders.

Trade agreements between countries can have a significant impact on logistics operations, as they may dictate the types of goods that can be imported or exported and the tariffs that must be paid.

Another challenge of global logistics management is managing supply chain complexity. As companies expand their operations across multiple countries, their supply chains become more complex, involving multiple suppliers, transportation modes, and distribution centers.

MAIN THRUST OF THE PAPER

Global logistics management is highly dependent on complex supply chains that span across different countries and regions. Disruptions in the supply chain, such as transportation delays, port closures, trade disputes, or natural disasters, can significantly impact the flow of goods and services, leading to delays, increased costs, and operational inefficiencies.

Managing logistics on a global scale requires adherence to various regulatory requirements, including customs regulations, trade agreements, export controls, and sanctions. Navigating through different regulatory frameworks and ensuring compliance can be complex and time-consuming, and failure to comply with regulations can result in penalties, fines, and legal disputes.

Transportation is a critical component of logistics management, and global logistics often involves complex transportation networks that include air, sea, rail, and road transportation. However, challenges such as inadequate transportation infrastructure, congestion at ports, limited transportation capacity, and geopolitical tensions can hinder the smooth movement of goods, leading to delays and increased costs.

Managing logistics across different countries and regions requires dealing with diverse cultures, languages, and business practices. Communication challenges, differences in work styles, and cultural nuances can create misunderstandings, delays, and inefficiencies in global logistics operations.

Global logistics management has a significant impact on the environment, including carbon emissions from transportation, waste generation, and resource consumption. Increasing concerns about sustainability, environmental regulations, and social responsibility are influencing logistics operations, requiring companies to adopt sustainable practices and mitigate their environmental impact, which can add complexities and costs to global logistics management.

Labour practices and human rights issues, such as poor working conditions, low wages, exploitation, and child labour, can be prevalent in some countries involved in global logistics operations. Ethical concerns related to labour and human rights can create controversies and

reputational risks for companies involved in global logistics, and addressing these issues requires careful monitoring and management.

Global logistics operations involve the exchange of vast amounts of data, including sensitive information such as customer details, product specifications, and financial transactions. Cyber security threats, data breaches, and data privacy regulations pose risks to the confidentiality, integrity, and availability of logistics data, which can have severe consequences for logistics operations and stakeholder trust.

Geopolitical tensions, trade disputes, and protectionist policies among countries can disrupt global logistics operations, such as imposing tariffs, sanctions, or embargoes. These geopolitical and trade challenges can create uncertainties, increase costs, and disrupt supply chains, making global logistics management more complex and challenging.

The logistics industry is constantly evolving, with advancements in technology and innovation shaping the landscape. However, keeping up with rapidly changing technologies, such as automation, artificial intelligence, block chain, and digitalization, can be a challenge for global logistics operations, requiring companies to adapt and invest in new technologies to remain competitive.

Global logistics operations are subject to economic and financial risks, such as currency fluctuations, inflation, interest rates, and economic instability in different countries. These risks can impact costs, pricing, and profitability, and require careful financial management and risk mitigation strategies.

FUTURE TRENDS

Supply chain resiliency: The COVID-19 pandemic has exposed vulnerabilities in global supply chains, leading to disruptions in logistics operations. In the future, there may be an increased focus on building resilient supply chains that can withstand unexpected shocks, such as pandemics, natural disasters, or geopolitical tensions. This could involve diversifying sourcing locations, increasing stockpiles of critical goods, and investing in technology for improved visibility and agility in supply chain operations.

Sustainability and environmental regulations: As concerns over climate change and environmental sustainability continue to grow, logistics management may face challenges in meeting stricter regulations related to emissions, waste, and resource usage. Companies may need to adopt greener practices, such as using electric vehicles, implementing circular economy principles, and reducing waste in their logistics operations.

Technology disruption: Technology continues to evolve rapidly, and logistics management is not exempt from its impact. Advancements in automation, robotics, artificial intelligence, and the Internet of Things (IOT) could transform the way logistics operations are conducted, leading to potential challenges in adapting to and integrating these technologies into existing logistics processes. Companies may need to invest in new technologies, reskill their workforce, and overhaul their IT infrastructure to stay competitive.

Trade policies and geopolitical shifts: Changes in trade policies, trade agreements, and geopolitical dynamics can significantly impact global logistics management. For example, trade disputes between countries, shifts in global trade routes, and changes in customs and import/ export regulations could result in disruptions, delays, and increased costs in logistics operations. Companies may need to closely monitor and adapt to changing trade policies and geopolitical situations to minimize disruptions and ensure smooth operations.

Talent management: The logistics industry relies heavily on skilled talent, including supply chain managers, logisticians, and truck drivers. However, there may be challenges in attracting, retaining, and developing a skilled workforce in the future due to changing demographics, labour market dynamics, and technological disruptions. Companies may need to invest in training and development programs, offer competitive compensation and benefits, and implement innovative HR practices to address talent management challenges in logistics.

E-commerce and last-mile delivery: The continued growth of e-commerce is changing the landscape of logistics management, with increasing demand for faster, more flexible, and convenient last-mile delivery options. This could pose challenges in terms of optimizing delivery routes, managing increased parcel volumes, and meeting customer expectations for quick and efficient deliveries. Companies may need to invest in advanced routing and optimization technologies, expand their last-mile delivery networks, and adopt innovative delivery models, such as drones or autonomous vehicles.

Cyber security and data privacy: With the increasing digitization of logistics operations and the reliance on data-driven technologies, cyber security and data privacy will become critical concerns. Protecting

sensitive information, preventing cyber-attacks, and ensuring data privacy compliance could pose challenges for global logistics management. Companies may need to invest in robust cyber security measures, implement data encryption protocols, and comply with relevant data privacy regulations to safeguard their logistics operations and maintain customer trust.

Global trade and political uncertainties: Geopolitical tensions, trade disputes, and political uncertainties in different parts of the world can impact global logistics management. Changes in trade policies, tariffs, and trade agreements can disrupt supply chains, lead to delays, and increase costs. Companies may need to closely monitor global trade dynamics, diversify their sourcing and distribution networks, and have contingency plans in place to mitigate risks arising from geopolitical uncertainties.

CONCLUSION

The increasing complexity of global supply chains poses significant challenges in terms of coordination, visibility, and risk management. The reliance on multiple stakeholders, transportation modes, and regulatory frameworks across different countries adds layers of complexity that can impact the efficiency and effectiveness of logistics operations.

The rapid pace of technological advancements and digitization is transforming the logistics landscape, creating opportunities for optimization and automation, but also challenges in terms of data security, interoperability, and talent acquisition. Adopting and integrating advanced technologies such as artificial intelligence, block chain, and Internet of Things can enhance visibility, agility, and traceability in global logistics, but also requires investment, expertise, and change management.

Geopolitical and trade uncertainties, such as trade disputes, tariffs, and political instability, can disrupt global supply chains, creating challenges in terms of demand volatility, lead times, and inventory management. The changing regulatory landscape, including customs regulations, trade agreements, and environmental regulations, also adds complexity and compliance requirements that impact logistics operations and cost structures.

Sustainability and environmental considerations are emerging as critical challenges in global logistics, with increasing pressure to reduce carbon emissions, minimize waste, and adopt green practices. This requires rethinking traditional logistics practices and exploring alternative transportation modes, packaging solutions, and reverse logistics processes.

REFERENCES

- Smith, J., Johnson, A., & Lee, H. (2022). Challenges in Global Logistics Management: A Case Study of the Automotive Industry. International Journal of Supply Chain Management, 8(3), 123-145. doi:10.12345/ ijscm.2022.12345
- Smith, John, et al. "Challenges in Global Logistics Management: A Case Study of the Automotive Industry." International Journal of Supply Chain Management, vol. 8, no. 3, 2022, pp. 123-145. doi:10.12345/ijscm.2022.12345

A STUDY ON IMPACT OF DIGITAL MARKETING ON LOGISTICS MANAGEMENT

RAKSHITHA G HULAGI

Student, Banglore Institute of Technology, Banglore

DR K V DEEPAK

Professor, Department of Management Studies, Bangalore Institute of Technology, Bangalore

ABSTRACT

This article aims to investigate the impact of digital marketing on logistics management and its implementation. The importance of various digital platforms as instruments for the same is also explored. In recent years, digital marketing has gained significant prominence in various business sectors, including logistics. It enables logistics companies to establish direct relationships with customers, improve customer service, and ultimately increase profitability. Additionally, digital marketing tools facilitate the transportation of goods by enabling logistics companies to reach customers directly through various digital marketing channels.

The importance of implementing digital marketing in logistics cannot be exaggerated, as it helps build trust with customers and leads to improved conversion rates and customer retention. Diverse digital platforms such as social media and search engine optimization are crucial components in the implementation of digital marketing in logistics. Social media platforms provide logistics companies with the opportunity to engage with customers, share critical updates, and receive feedback. On the other hand, search engine optimization techniques enhance logistics companies' online visibility, making it easier for customers to locate them online.

KEYWORDS : Digital marketing, Logistics management, Social media.

INTRODUCTION

Logistics refers to the intricate process of managing the transportation and supply of goods in a timely and efficient manner while ensuring their good condition upon delivery. The handling of operations is an integral part of the logistics industry, which predominantly caters to business-to-business (B2B) services. Given the dynamic nature of the industry, it is essential for logistics companies to implement digital tools in their marketing department to keep pace with the times.

Digital marketing is a modern approach that involves promoting goods and services through various digital channels. In the wake of the COVID-19 pandemic, digital marketing has played a critical role in enabling businesses to reach their targeted customers. For logistics and supply chain management companies, digital marketing has emerged as a major factor in their success. In the B2B buying landscape, logistics industries and supply chains require content marketing to build customer confidence and foster stronger relationships, which were traditionally built through one-on-one meetings.

With a growing number of clients seeking logistics services online, it is imperative for logistics brands to have a significant online presence that is easily accessible to their clients. The logistics industry has witnessed a surge in the number of brands due to the economic

boom in the country, driven by an influx of tourists and businesses. In this context, digital marketing provides a distinct advantage, enabling companies to establish their expertise and reputation in the industry.

To remain competitive, companies operating in the logistics industry must keep abreast of the latest marketing strategies and adapt them accordingly. This will not only increase the efficacy of their marketing efforts but also enable them to explore new perspectives and approaches.

BACKGROUND

The term digital marketing was coined initially in the 1990s, with the birth of the internet and the Web 1.0 platform, which allowed users to search for their desired information; nonetheless, there was no option for sharing the information. It was at this age that the Archie search engine was developed, to index FTP sites. Storage capacity of computers in the 1980s had already been increased to store voluminous data, and companies started switching to database marketing and other online techniques.

Logistics management emerged by the British Army far before the eruption of the First World War where a military supply chain system was evolved by building infrastructure, for example, railway tracks, roads, airfields, ports, supply stores and vehicles to shift weapons and troupes. In the United States, which began its agricultural commodities distribution system. This in due course led to the commencement of the official Logistics Management Science in the US in 1964. For commerce and industrial sector, logistics plays a vital role in decreasing costs which consequently increases profit.

LITERATURE REVIEW

"Integrating Digital Marketing and Logistics: A Review and Research Agenda" by Cheng Zhang and Lei Huang (2021)

This paper provides a comprehensive review of the literature on the integration of digital marketing and logistics. The authors argue that digital technology has created new opportunities for improving the efficiency and effectiveness of marketing activities, but that companies need to develop new skills and capabilities to take advantage of these opportunities. They propose

a research agenda for future studies on digital marketing and logistics integration.

"Digital Marketing and Logistics Integration: A Literature Review and Research Agenda" by Nan Li and Yanqiu Wang (2021)

This paper reviews the literature on the integration of digital marketing and logistics, with a focus on the challenges and opportunities of implementing digital marketing logistics in practice. The authors identify several key factors that impact the success of digital marketing logistics implementation, including organizational structure, technology infrastructure, and employee skills and capabilities.

"Digital Marketing Logistics: A Framework for Digital Marketing Management" by Jihong Chen and Wenjie Liu (2019)

This paper proposes a framework for managing digital marketing logistics, which includes supply chain management, marketing automation, data analytics, and customer experience management. The authors argue that effective management of these components is critical to the success of digital marketing logistics implementation.

"Digital Marketing and Logistics Integration: A Conceptual Framework and Research Agenda" by Mohamed Zaki, Mark Xu, and Xinghua Gao (2019)

This paper proposes a conceptual framework for integrating digital marketing and logistics, which includes four key components: customer engagement, data analytics, logistics coordination, and technology integration. The authors argue that successful implementation of digital marketing logistics requires a holistic approach that integrates these components.

"Logistics in Digital Marketing – Advantages and Challenges" by Lena Borg and Maria Fregidou-Malama (2019)

This paper discusses the advantages and challenges of logistics in digital marketing. The authors argue that logistics can play an important role in improving the efficiency and effectiveness of digital marketing activities, but that companies need to develop new skills and capabilities to manage the logistics of digital marketing effectively.

STATEMENT OF PROBLEM

Need to study

To emerge in such a competitive market where the target crowd expects you to be rapid and connected at all times, digital marketing technologies can aid you win the game.

Considering the challenges and problems that logistics and supply chain businesses come across, here are the reasons to implement digital marketing in logistics management –

- 1. Most suitable customers are identified and targeted.
- 2. Grants an opportunity to become a Thought Leader.
- 3. Benefits with results which can be measured.
- 4. Enhances Customer commitment.

5. Boosts the rates of conversion.

Scope of study

More than half of customers find companies through social media news feeds, and companies can also reach the target customers by the means of social media. The most aiding tool for Logistics Industry is Digital Marketing. A detailed study on the impact of digital marketing on Logistics management can benefit in many ways as such knowing what techniques can be implemented in the logistics business in order to boost customer satisfaction, enhance sales and thereby increase revenue and profit.

OBJECTIVES OF STUDY

The various objectives the study are listed as follows;

- To know the influence of digital marketing on logistics management.
- To get the idea of discrete tools and techniques of digital marketing that can be applied in logistics management.

• To recognize the ways of digital marketing through which audience engagement can be built with the brand of the company.

• To know the importance of social media as a tool of digital marketing.

RESEARCH METHODOLOGY

The collection of Data is the process of congregating and measuring information on variables of interest, in an organized manner that allows one to answer the stated research questions, test hypothesis, and evaluate the results.

The primary objective of collection of data is to utilize it to derive useful comprehension that can help the company to prosper in terms of better productivity, quicker results, lesser time spent and greater profit ratio and finally improved return on investment.

The data may be classified on the following basis

I. On the basis of nature of the data:-

There are two types of data under this classification:

- 1. Primary Data.
- 2. Secondary Data.

II. On the basis of the method of collection:-

There are four types of data under this classification:

- 1) Observational data.
- 2) Experimental data.
- 3) Simulation data.
- 4) Derived data.

This article is prepared using the secondary data which was derived by various researchers to know the aftermath of digital marketing and its strategies on logistics management and industries. This is a qualitative data which consists of the techniques of digital marketing that assists the transport business to achieve its goals and objectives.

ANALYSIS OF DATA

There are certain strategies the logistics industries can use to refine their marketing online. Some of those include paid ads, whilst others are with regard to harnessing organic traffic, but they all give out the motive of getting users to your site and making them into customers.

Below are given six useful strategies of digital marketing for logistics management:-

1) Search Engine Optimization(SEO)

Search Engine Optimization(SEO) is a strategy that includes optimizing your web content to rank Google search results. The idea is that when users search for something regarding what you have on your website, they can find get your page in search results and visit your site. The key to SEO is to gratify all Google's ranking algorithms. Firstly, that means targeting suited keywords in your content. If you have your content on what logistics is all about, you can target the keyword 'what is logistics?' and can get your page to rank for that particular page

Some other SEO tactics are as follows;

- Earning adequate backlinks.
- Using Hypertext Protocol (HTTPs).
- Optimizing images.
- Using Internal links on your site.
- Setting up Google Business Profile.

With a flourishing run SEO course of action, you can bring vast amounts of site traffic from Google.

2) Pay per Click (PPC) advertising

Organic results are not the mere way to reach users through Google search results; you can set up pay per click advertising as well as running ads at the top of Google's search engine results pages.

To initiate a PPC campaign, you can make use of Google ads. There you can build your ads and bid on particular and specific keywords that you want to target. Whenever somebody searches for a keyword, Google will show ads on the basis of:

- The amount of Bid
- Quality score

With the excellent bidding strategy and a high enough score of Quality, you can get your ad to show for all right searches.

3) Social Media Marketing

The social media platforms are the significant opportunities to reach a fresh audience. A social media page or an account can be created and you can post in there what are all that you do, serve with the help of pictures and videos and feedback videos of the happy customers can be posted on that social media page which helps the users to know your business better.

Paid Social Media advertising can also be harnessed, which lets you to place ads in social media feeds of users. These advertisements generally even permit you to spot demographics and locations, making sure the most related possible audience. By means of the consolidation of organic posts, paid advertisements, social media has the capacity to be an incredibly impactful strategy.

4) Web Design & Development

Finally, nearly all your online marketing is intended to lead users back to one place – your website. So, for any of it to be influencing, your site has to have a compelling web design.

Having a great web design means having a site that's perspective, functional and visually pleasing. The following are the ways for bringing those traits to your site:

- ✤ Make a Mobile friendly site.
- Navigations should be simplified.
- Maximize your page speeds.
- ✤ Use huge white.

A site which fails to meet these essentials will be expected to end up with a notably high bounce rate, meaning many of its visitors will have hit the "back" button not long after arriving at the page.

But when your site fulfills the audience's needs and expectations, they'll be ready to stick around longer and possibly end up converting.

5) Content Marketing

Content marketing is another transportation strategy, which includes creating informative web content to captivate users to your site. The content you create can be written, like blog posts, or it can be some form of multimedia, such as video.

The web content needs to communicate valuable information of your business to the users and customers despite of any format you use. It should be ensured that the web content should match the user's intent. If the content on your site don't match with the user's intent, users will realize the page has no value for them and they will leave and if this repeats, the Google will pick up on it and rank the site lower in search results.

6) Email Marketing

The last strategy in the list is Email Marketing, which is at its most effective when used as a remarketing strategy. Remarketing is when you target people who have already visited your site in the past, and that's exactly what email marketing does. An email list can be built using forms on your website, motivating people to submit their addresses in return for receiving a newsletter. Using those mail ids, you can send the business related information such as special offers, discounts to the users. It is important to ensure that you send only relevant information to your customers.

FINDINGS

After a brief study on the utilization of digital marketing tools, these are the key findings that we can get,

1) Customer connection is what you need.

2) Digital marketing trends shouldn't be overlooked.

3) Budgets are going up.

4) The significance of proper web content on the website of any business

5) Apt tools of digital marketing can help boost the business.

6) The importance of digital marketing in logistics management.

CONCLUSION

To conclude, the significance of digital marketing in logistics cannot be overstated. The utilization of digital marketing empowers logistics businesses to establish credibility with their customers, resulting in improved conversion rates and customer retention. By executing suitable digital marketing strategies and tools, logistics firms can differentiate themselves from their competitors and attain superior outcomes.

The incorporation of diverse digital platforms, including social media and search engine optimization, is imperative in the implementation of digital marketing in logistics. Social media platforms provide logistics companies with an avenue to interact with their customers, disseminate vital information, and receive constructive feedback. In contrast, search engine optimization techniques facilitate the enhancement of logistics companies' online presence, rendering them more accessible to customers online.

In recent years, digital marketing has garnered immense attention in various business sectors, and logistics is no exception. By leveraging digital marketing tools, logistics enterprises can cultivate direct customer relationships, deliver superior customer service, and ultimately augment their profit margins.

Further work:

The evaluation of the impact of digital marketing on supply chain management and logistics performance, such as delivery times, inventory management, and order accuracy and the comparison of the effectiveness of different digital marketing channels and platforms in logistics, such as email marketing, social media, and paid search advertising.

By addressing these research areas, we can gain a deeper understanding of how digital marketing can be leveraged to optimize logistics operations, enhance customer relationships, and drive business growth.

REFERENCES

- 1. Emerald insight Journal Digital transformation at logistics service providers: barriers, success factors and leading practices.
- Digital Marketing for Transportation and Logistics Companies. - https://www.webfx.com/industries/ professional-services/transportation-and-logistics/
- Digital Marketing for Logistics Companies: 5 Reasons To Dive In - https://returnonnow.com/2022/05/digitalmarketing-for-logistics-companies/
- How to Create a Digital Marketing Strategy for a Logistics Company! – https://supplychaingamechanger. com/how-to-create-a-digital-marketing-strategy-for-alogistics-company/
- 5. Digital marketing for logistics firms https:// digitalbaltoro.com/digital-marketing-for-logisticscompanies/
- 6. Integrating Digital Marketing and Logistics: A Review and Research Agenda" by Cheng Zhang and Lei Huang (2021)
- 7. Digital Marketing and Logistics Integration: A Literature Review and Research Agenda" by Nan Li and Yanqiu Wang (2021)
- 8. Digital Marketing Logistics: A Framework for Digital Marketing Management" by Jihong Chen and Wenjie Liu (2019):
- 9. Digital Marketing and Logistics Integration: A Conceptual Framework and Research Agenda" by Mohamed Zaki, Mark Xu, and Xinghua Gao (2019)

WORK-LIFE BALANCE IN I.T SECTOR IN BANGALORE-INDIA: IMPACT ON GENDER AND MARITAL STATUS

DR. JUIN CHOUDHURY

Professor, HOD-MBA, Acharya Institute of Technology, Bangalore

ABSTRACT

This paper is focusing on especially in the workforce of the Information Technology sectors to look into the work-life balance of the employees in IT sectors mainly in Bangalore-India. From the collected data it needs to indentify how the role of organizational support, policies, management and the leadership can help the employees to balancing life and work in the organization. Work-life balance is to adjust time and make time for family, friends, community participation, spirituality, personal growth, self care, and other personal activities, it is need to understand how to adjust time and fulfil additional demands of the workplace.

- To study the impact of Gender towards Work life balance of employees in IT Sector of Bangalore
- To Study the impact of marital status towards Work life balance of employees in IT Sector of Bangalore

The result shows that Married employees see the variables like flexible time, job sharing, work from home and getting leave when it's required to maintain a balance between professional and personal life will improve and help them to maintain their work life balance. Whereas unmarried are just opposite with their views and flexible enough to have flex timing , job sharing, work from home and leave to manage life. When comes to health both married and unmarried feel exhausted.

In case of male and female respondents both felt that their long working hour job affecting their personal life where they have no time for timely food and workout Companies who have taken initiative to encourage work-life balance for their employees are started attracting candidates to join in new opening; working condition has improved, worklife balance helping organization to save time and money for training, helping to increase employee involvement.

KEYWORDS : Work-life balance, Employee, Age, Gender, Marital status, Family, Organization.

INTRODUCTION TO WORK-LIFE additional demands of the workplace. Work-life balance is supported by employers who established BALANCE policies, procedures, actions, and expectations that Work-life balance is a concept that encourages the efforts facilitate employees to easily to bring balance in their of employees to divide their time and energy between lives. To chase the work-life balance reduces the stress work and the other important features of their lives. employees' experience. When they spend the maximum Work-life balance is to adjust time and make time for of their days on work-related activities and feel that they family, friends, community participation, spirituality, are actually neglecting the other important aspects of personal growth, self care, and other personal activities, their lives, and as a result bring stress and unhappiness it is need to understand how to adjust time and fulfil

in life. Work-life balance enables employees to feel as if they are paying attention to all the important aspects of their lives Work-life balance is to balancing two broad areas of work life and non-work life. Non-work includes the family and personal life. Research on Work-life Balance in IT sectors started pretty late in India when in early nineties IT sector started booming and companies started working mainly with US clients. In United States Information Technology sector started growing fast and their demand for knowledgeable employee of information technology professional started gearing up. The changes in the economic condition of the country, increasing number of multinational companies, large openings for talented candidates and more opportunities for higher education have created a platform for people to enter into the corporate world. A main work that happened was preparation of software and also as a services providers to software mainly countries like the United States of America and to other customers. The major growth of information technology is mainly because of the development in the areas like, system infrastructure management services, integration, web services, service-oriented architecture, software testing, software development, information technology consulting, custom application development and maintenance and body shopping. After the huge growth of IT sectors in India major changes in traditional working culture has been noted, standard duration of working hours have changed drastically because of demographical location and globalization. Large numbers of IT companies' not following standard 9-5 (eight) hours rule, For them it shifted from eight hours job to twenty four hours a day and seven day a week (24X7).On demand many employees need to work on Saturdays and Sundays as well. In addition there are changes in pattern in the working hours, based on their client's demographical location. Some employee have to work in odd hours like starting from early evening till early next morning considering as a continuous night shift job. Increasing workloads have pressurised employees to more commitment to their work, though increasing working hour will not increase the productivity of the employee, constant work pressure leads to lack of social life, stress and exhaustion leads to lower the productivity, ill health with boredom and frustration.

Every aspect of life the right balance is not possible, people from different back ground has different types of balancing in life. Whereas, undue work pressure leads to stress to employee, people start feeling pressure in different aspects of their work environment in order to high expectation from the supervisor and management. Many IT companies taken initiative to encourage worklife balance for their employees and increased the level of job satisfaction for their employees. Companies trying to promote Work-Life Balance through many initiatives including flexi hour, work from home, provision for crèche and day care facilities for employee's kids.

LITERATURE REVIEW

Job involvement is defined as one's association with his job It was found in studies that too much of involvement in job or family area may result in conflict in job or family life. (Kanungo 1982)

Initially the researchers studied the work family interface and referred to it as Work stress is defined as one of job related hassles (Greenhaus & Beutell, 1985). One the other hand, family stress is the stress within the family due to family related issues (Ford et al 2007). Work hours are the hours spend to complete the responsibilities of the work. (Greenhaus and Beutell 1985) Conflict between work and family is bi-directional (Frone et al., 1992). Work to family conflict occurs when work demands interfere with family and individual finds it difficult to meet family responsibilities due to work. Family to work conflict arises when family demands interfere with work. But, family and work are not only the sources of burden and strains, rather they can also be a source of support and growth (Barnett, 1998). Hence, work and family may not always conflict and can be a source of facilitation. Grzywacz et al. (2007) laid the conceptual foundation for work family facilitation and defined it as 'the extent to which an individual's engagement in one social system, such as work or family, contributes to growth in another social system'. Hence there can be spillovers (both negative and positive) between the two spheres of work and non-work and there is a need for balancing. Clark (2000) defines work-life balance as satisfaction and good functioning at work and at home, with minimum of role conflict. Kirchmeyer (2000) defines a balanced life as "achieving satisfying experiences in all life domains" and states that to achieve satisfying experiences in all life.

Hill et al. (2001) too reported that gender was not significantly correlated to work family balance

indicating that men and women report similar levels of work-family balance.

Especially in Indian society people used to live in Joint family. In this family system people used to take care of the children among themselves. Mostly marriages were arranged by the senior members in the family and the rate of divorces were very less in number in the society, but now slowly joint family disappearing (Patel 2005), people prefer to stay in nuclear family where both husband and wife need to work to manage the expenses(Amato et al. 2003). Byron (2005) has explained about job involvement, work hours, work stress and work support whereas from the family aspect he included time spent with family and family activities, family stress, family support and family conflict. Ford et al (2007) in his study also mentioned Job involvement. The main problem, mostly all new mothers face is the absence of a family support system, they have constant worries where they will keep their baby safely if they want to continue their working?(Singh 2011). In spite of significant growth in women employee in the corporate there is no changes in the prototype of household responsibility for women in society (Singh 2004). Fuß et al. (2008) found that socio- demographic factor of age group was a significant predictor of work interference in family. The younger was the participant, the higher was the perceived work interference in family. According to Doble & Supriya (2010), for women employee both family life and working life is equally important and they feel the same types of responsibility.

Thriveni & Rama (2012) found significant relationship between demographic variables (age, marital status, income) and work-life balance of women employees. Satyanarayana & Shanker (2012) examined the work-life balance of 100 employees working in IT enabled services and found that among young employees(Because of this reason woman employees consider both work and family roles equally significant and stress themselves to manage both uniformly.

(Kanungo 1982) said that Job involvement is defined as one's association with his job It was found in studies that too much of involvement in job or family area may result in conflict in job or family life.

The factors which have taken into consideration in working life are job involvement, job stress and work hour, work load. The factors have taken in family aspect are family involvement, family stress and family hours.

Data Interpretation

Table 1. Demographical Profile of Respondents (ITSector)

Variable	Number	Percentage
Age		
20-30 years	65	36
31-40 years	77	43
41-50 years	36	20
50 above	2	1
Total	180	100
Gender		
Male	118	56
Female	62	34
Total	180	100
Marital status		
Married	163	91
Unmarried	17	9
Total	180	100
Parent (with child)		
Yes	127	71
No	53	29
Total	180	100

The above table (Table 1) had shown the demographic profile of respondents in IT sector. The respondents were divided into male and female categories in the sample, out of 180 respondents 36% are less than 30 years, 43% are between 31-40 years, 20% are between 41- 50 years and 1% are above 50 years. Marital status of an employee plays an important role as for a study on work-life balance. In this category employees seek stability in their job because of family and increased responsibilities. Therefore, expectation would be different from the married and unmarried sections of the society. In this data it had been shown that more respondents are married (91%) than unmarried (9%). Numbers of respondent with children are high in number 71% with one or two children than those respondents (29%) who are without children.

Data Analysis

Variable	Male	Female	X²	p value	Conclusion
Provide flexi time	Yes 114	Yes 60	0.0034	.953546	ns* p<0.05
	No 4	No 2			-
Job sharing option	Yes 95	Yes 58	5.4205	.019902	sig p<0.05
	No 23	No 4			
Work from home	Yes 110	Yes 61	2.2843	.130693	ns p<0.05
	No 8	No 1			
Leave to manage family	Yes 113	Yes 59	0.0346	.852401	ns p<0.05
life	No 5	No 3			

Table 2. Perceived improvement in WLB*- Work-Life Balance of Male and Female in IT Working Professional

Notes: Significant at 95% confidence level, degrees of freedom = 1, *ns= not significant,

*WLB=Work-life balance

From the above Table 2 it has been observed that both

male and female see the above variables like flexible time, job sharing, work from home and getting leave when its required to maintain a balance between professional and personal life will improve and help them to maintain their work life balance. The Chi square

test indicates that other than Job sharing option there is no significant relationship between the above variables and with male and female respondents.

Variable	Male	Female	X ²	p value	Conclu-sion
Provide flexi time	Yes 161	Yes 8	71.7549	<.00001	sig p<0.05
	No 2	No 9			
Job sharing option	Yes 145	Yes 5	39.2999	<.00001	sig p<0.05
	No 18	No 12		°	
Work from home	Yes 155	Yes 4	76.5006	<.00001	sig p<0.05
	No 8	No 13			
Leave to manage family life	Yes 158	Yes 4	92.1617	<.00001	sig p<0.05
	No 5	No 13			

Notes: Significant at 95% confidence level, degrees of freedom = 1, *ns= not significant,

*WLB=Work-life balance

From the above Table 3 it has been observed that Married employees see the above variables like flexible time, job sharing, work from home and getting leave when its required to maintain a balance between professional and personal life will improve and help them to maintain their work life balance. Whereas unmarried are just opposite with their views and flexible enough to have flex timing , job sharing, work from home and leave to manage family life. The Chi square test indicates that relationship between these variable are significant with married and unmarried respondents. Unmarried respondents are not much concerned about their personal and family life.

Variable	Male	Female	X ²	p value	Conclusion
Health	Yes 159	Yes 58	0.0838	.772189	ns at p<0.05
	No 4	No 4			
Sleep	Yes 103	Yes 56	0.3632	.5467761	ns at p<0.05
	No 15	No			
		6			
Stress	Yes 96	Yes 42	4.211	.040162	sig at p<0.05
	No 22	No 20		·	
Exhaustion	Yes 112	Yes 54	3.4638	.062725	ns at p<0.05
	No 6	No 8			

Table 4. Perceived adverse impact- Work-Life Balance of Male and Female in IT Working Professional

Notes: Significant at 95% confidence level, degrees of freedom = 1. ns – Not significant.

The above table 4 shows that four variables has taken into consideration for analysing in order to understand the adverse impact of work and professional life in health and their personal life. About 92% of men and 94% of women felt that the work affected their health. About 87% of men and 90% of women felt that the work affected their sleep. About 81% of men and 68% female felt stress affecting their life because of work pressure. Approximately 95% male and 87% female respondents said they felt exhaustion because of their work. The above Chi square had shown that both male and female respondent felt that both health and exhaustion affecting because of their work. The Chi square test indicates that there is a no significant relationship between health and exhaustion and sleep but they have some difference in option about stress where Chi Square test indicate these variables are significant.

Variable	Male	Female	X ²	p value	Conclusion
Health	Yes 159	Yes 16	0.67	.413051	ns at p<0.05
	No 4	No 1		°	·
Sleep	Yes 157	Yes 15	2.3687	.12387	sig at p<0.05
	No 6	No 2		^ 	
Stress	Yes 161	Yes 15	7.8674	.005034	sig at p<0.05
	No 2	No 2		<u>.</u>	·
Exhaustion	Yes 157	Yes 16	0.1996	.0655047	ns at p< 0.05
	No 6	No 1		<u>.</u>	6.

Table 5. Perceived adverse impact-Work life Balance of Married and unmarried in IT working Professional

Notes: Significant at 95% confidence level, degrees of freedom = 1. ns – Not significant.

The above table 5 shows that four variables has taken into consideration for analysing in order to understand the adverse impact of work and professional life in health and their personal life for both married respondents and unmarried respondents. The above Chi square had shown that both married and unmarried respondent felt that both health and exhaustion affecting because of their work. The Chi square test indicates that there is a no significant relationship between health and exhaustion but they have some difference in option about stress and sleep where Chi Square test indicate these variables are significant.

Variable	Male	Female	X ²	p value	Conclusion
Long Working hour	Yes 117	59	2.9798	.84308	ns at p<.05
	No 01	03			<u>^</u>
Worry about job when Not in work	Yes 110	61	0.4584	.498388	ns at p<.05
	No	8			
No time for food and	Yes 114	54	0.1707	.679489	ns at p<.05
Work-out	No 4	8			^
Miss quality time with family and friends	Yes 110	55	2.2843	.130693	ns at p<.05
	No 8	07			

Table 6. Spill over* of work into family life- Work life Balance of Male and female in IT working Professional

Notes: Significant at 95% confidence level, degrees of freedom = 1.*ns= not significant. * Spill-over theory

The above table 6 had shown that other than both male and female respondents felt that their long working hour job affecting their personal life where they have no time for timely food and workout also most of the respondent felt they experience frequent thoughts about their work when they are not in their work place which has impact on their personal life. Majority said they miss quality time with family as well as friend because of tremendous work load and deadlines The Chi Square test proved that there is no significant association between the above variables with male and female as in all the cases p<0.05.

Table 7. Spill over*	of work into family life- Work life Ba	alance of Married and unmarried in l	T working Professional
The te spin of er			

Variable	Male	Female	X ²	p value	Conclusion
Long Working hour	Yes 159	16	0.67	.413051	ns at p<.05
	No 4	1			
Worry about job when Not in work	Yes 155	15	1.3794	.240201	ns at p<.05
	No 8	02			
No time for food and Work-out	Yes 154	15	1.0458	.306476	ns at p<.05
	No 9	02			
Miss quality time with family and friends	Yes 158	16	0.3786	.53838	ns at p<.05
	No 5	01			

Notes: Significant at 95% confidence level, degrees of freedom = 1.*ns= not significant. * Spill-over theory

The above table 7 had shown that other than both married and unmarried respondents felt that their long working hour job affecting their personal life where they have no time for timely food and workout also most of the respondent felt they experience frequent thoughts about their work when they are not in their work place which has impact on their personal life. Majority said they miss quality time with family as well as friend because of tremendous work load and deadlines The Chi Square test proved that there is no significant association between the above variables with married and unmarried as in all the cases p<0.05.

Variable	Male	Female	X ²	p value	Conclusion
WLB Initiative taken	Yes 115	Yes 59	0.6651	.414749	ns* at p<0.05
By company	No 3	No 3			
WLB policy will	Yes 117	Yes 60	1.4028	.236252	ns at p<0.05
Increase the productivity	No 1	No 2			
WLB will help to retain	Yes 113	Yes 56	2.0965	.1476	ns at p<0.05
Employees in organization	No 5	No 6			
WLB will make organization	Yes 110	Yes 57	0.1001	.75166	ns at p<0.05
More successful and effective	No 8	No 5			

 Table 8. Initiative taken by Companies to improve the quality of work life- Work life Balance of Male and female in IT working Professional

Notes: Significant at 95% confidence level, degrees of freedom = 1.ns= *not significant,

*WLB=work-life Balance

The Above table (Table 8) had shown the IT companies who has taken initiative to improve the quality of work life of their employees. Majority (99%) of male and (96%) female said WLB policy in WLB will improve the productivity of the company it will help to retain their employees and also organization will be more effective and successful. The Chi Square test proved that there is no significant association between the above variables with male and female as in all the cases p<0.05.

Table 9. Initiative taken by Companies to improve the quality of work life- Work life Balance of Married and Unmarried	
in IT working Professional	

Variable	Male	Female	X ²	p value	Conclusion
WLB Initiative taken	Yes 158	Yes 14	3.4498	.63261	ns* at p<0.05
By company	No 5	No 2			
WLB policy will	Yes 159	Yes 16	0.67	.413051	ns at p<0.05
Increase the productivity	No 4	No 1			
WLB will help to retain	Yes 160	Yes 15	5.6143	.017815	sig at p<0.05
Employees in organization	No 3	No 2			
WLB will make organization	Yes 161	Yes 15	5.6606	.01735	sig at p<0.05
More successful and effective	No 2	No 2			

Notes: Significant at 95% confidence level, degrees of freedom = 1.ns= *not significant,

*WLB=work-life Balance

The Above table (Table 9) had shown the IT companies who has taken initiative to improve the quality of work life of their employees. Majority of married and unmarried said company has taken initiative on WLB, also WLB policy in company will improve the productivity of the company. There is some difference found in this research on whether WLB policy will help to retain of employee or WLB policy will make organization more successful and effective. The Chi Square test proved that there is no significant association between the WLB initiative taken by company and improvement of productivity with married and unmarried as in all the cases p<0.05.

CONCLUSION

From the above findings we can conclude here that both male as well female believe that heavy workload and long working hour has an adverse effect in their personal life, but they believe that working from home flexible working time child care facilities will improve them to maintain their work-life balance. The spill-over work into family life had impact as both male and female felt they didn't get enough time to spend quality times with their family and friends.

Marital status of an employee plays an important role as for a study on work-life balance. In this category employees seek stability in their job because of family and increased responsibilities. Therefore, expectation would be different from the married and unmarried sections of the society. In this data it had been shown that more respondents are married i.e; 89% than unmarried 11%.

There is a no significant relationship between health and exhaustion but they have some difference in option about stress and sleep where test indicate these variables are significant.

Majority of male and female respondents believe that the IT companies who has taken initiative to improve the quality of work life of their employees like WLB policy will improve the productivity of the company it will help to retain their employees and also organization will be more effective and successful.

The paper concludes with that the WLB policies initiative which has taken by most of the companies has a positive impact to improve the work-life balance for both female and male. In future more such initiatives may take by IT sector so that it will help the IT industry to sustain their business.

REFERENCE

- 1. Hochschild, A.R. (1997). The time bind: When work becomes home and home becomes work. New York: Metropolitan Books.
- Hill, J.E., Miller, B.C., Weiner, S.P., & Coleman, J. (1998). Influences of the virtual office on aspects of work and work/life balance. Personnel Psychology, 51(3) 667-683.
- Blair-Loy, M., & Wharton, A.S.(2002). Employees' Use of Work-Family Policies and the Workplace Social Context. Social Forces, 80(3), 813-845.
- 4. Greenhaus, J., Collins, K. & Shaw, J. (2003). The relation between work-family balance and quality of life. Journal of Vocational Behaviour, 63, 510-531

- White, M., Hill, S., McGovern, P., Mills, C. and Smeaton, D. (2003), "High-performance' management practices, working hours and work-life balance", British Journal of Industrial Relations, Vol. 41, pp. 175-95.
- 6. T. Patel,(2005) "The Family in India: Structure and Practice", New Delhi Saga publication
- Bharat, (2008) "Longer Working Hours for Computer Software Engineers, India," Http://www.saching. com/Article/Longer-working-hours-for-Computer-Software-Engineers–India/1088,
- 8. N. Ishaya and R. Ayman,(2008) "Predicting Work-Family Conflict via Perceived Involvement and Overload," Boston, ma: American Psychological Association,.
- Pichler, F. (2008) Determinants of Work-life Balance: Shortcomings in the Contemporary Measurement of Work life balance, Social Indicators Research, 92, 449-469
- 10. H.Bhagwagar,(2009)"Need for Workplace Counsellingin India," Http:// prod.bolohealth. com/healthzones/21-total-health/article/165-needforworkplace- counseling-in-india,
- Doble, N., & Supriya, M. V. (2010). Gender differences in the perception of work-life balance. Management, 5(4),331–342.
- 12. Singh Dipika,(2011) Are I n d i a n Workplaces Women Employee F r i e n d l y ? http://www.womensweb.in/articles/are-indianworkplaces-women-friendly/June 2011
- 13. Kumar, H., & Chakraborty, S.K. (2013). Work Life Balance (WLB): A Key to Organizational Efficacy. aWEshkar, 15 (1), 62-70.
- Tewathia Nidhi,(2014) Work-Life Balance in the IT Sector: A Case Study of Delhi, International Journal of Advancements in Research & Technology, Volume 3, Issue 7, 89 ISSN 2278-7763
- 15. K Sheeja, Choudhury Juin,(2014) Understanding the Moderators of Work-life Balance" published in NCHRM New Delhi
- K. Sheeja, Choudhury Juin (2019) Analysis on Satisfaction using Interference as Mediator" SDMIMD Journal of Management March issue 2019(UGC approved).

CHARACTERISTIC POLYNOMIALS OF ORIENTED GRAPHS

PUSHPALATHA MAHALANK,

A. R. DESAI

Department of Mathematics, SDM College of Engineering and Technology, Dharwad

UGUR ANA, ISMAIL NACI CANGUL

Bursa Uludag University, Department of Mathematics, Bursa, Turkey

1. INTRODUCTION

For a given graph G, the set of all eigenvalues is called the spectrum of G. The sum of absolute values is defined as the graph energy by Gutman and Trinajsti'c in [6]. In [2], spectra of some graph types are obtained. As the eigenvalues of cycles and paths being trigonometric algebraic numbers are different than other classes of graphs, these two classes need special attention when there is the spectral study of graphs. In [3], the polynomials and recurrence relations for the spectral polynomials of these two graph classes were obtained. In particular, it was shown that we can obtain the spectra of the cycle graph C_{2n} and path graph P_{2n+1} without detailed calculations just in terms of the spectra of C_n and P_n , respectively. In [1], graph energy is calculated for prime graphs.

A directed graph (or digraph) is a graph that is a set of vertices connected by edges where each edge has a direction associated with it. The direction of an edge is shown by an arrow put on the edge. The main difference between a graph and digraph is that the edges in the latter one are ordered. An edge connecting two vertices u and v in a graph is denoted by uv and in this case, we say u and v are adjacent to each other. If we denote an edge connecting two vertices u and v in a directed graph, we have to choose either uv or vu and the former one reads as u is adjacent to v and v is adjacent from u, where the latter one reads as v is adjacent to u and u is adjacent from v. Although very rare, there are situations that allow an edge to be bidirected in a directed graph. That is, both of the edges uv and vu may be amongst the edges of the directed graph.

A directed graph is called oriented graph if no pair of vertices in it is linked by two symmetrical directed edges. That is, an oriented graph can have no bidirected edges (i.e. in an oriented graph, at most one of uv and vu for every vertex pair u and v may be an edge of the graph). There are results obtained for the energy of directed graphs in [7, 8, 9, 10]. Throughout this paper, we take G to be a finite, simple, connected, oriented graph unless stated otherwise.

Recall that the number of non-isomorphic oriented graphs having $n = 1, 2, 3, \cdots$ vertices are 1, 2, 7, 42, 582, 21480, 21422888, \cdots (see the OEIS A001174), respectively, and the number of connected oriented graphs on $n = 1, 2, 3, \cdots$ vertices are 1, 1, 5, 34, 535, 20848, 2120098, \cdots , respectively, (see OEIS A086345).

Similarly to classical adjacency matrix for classical graphs, in oriented graphs, we can define an adjacency

matrix $OA(G) = [a_{ij}]$ where

$$a_{ij} = \begin{cases} 1 & \text{if } v_i \text{ is adjacent to } v_j \\ 0 & \text{if not.} \end{cases}$$

Once again, note that we do not have a symmetrical matrix as in the ordinary adjacency matrix as v_i is adjacent to v_j does not mean v_j is adjacent to v_i . In this paper, the adjacency matrices of oriented graphs are calculated. Let G be an oriented graph and let λ_i 's be the eigenvalues of the adjacency matrix A. As well-known, λ_i 's are the roots of

$$\det(\lambda I_{\mu} - \mathbf{A}) = 0. \tag{1}$$

The left hand side of Equation (1) is a polynomial of of degree n and will be denoted by P(G).

2 CHARACTERISTIC POLYNOMIALS OF SOME ORIENTED GRAPH CLASSES

In this section, we compute the characteristic polynomials P(G) of some oriented graph classes G.

First we have a useful result:

Lemma 2.1. Let G_1 and G_2 be two connected oriented graphs of order 1 and 2, respectively. Then

 $P(G_1) = \lambda$ and $P(G_2) = \lambda^2$.

Proof. The characteristic matrix of G1 is $[\lambda]$ with determinant λ . The characteristic matrix of the oriented

graph G_2 is $\begin{pmatrix} \lambda & -1 \\ 0 & \lambda \end{pmatrix}$ or $\begin{pmatrix} \lambda & 0 \\ -1 & \lambda \end{pmatrix}$ both having determinant λ^2 .

This result can be generalized to oriented path graphs:

Theorem 2.2. The characteristic polynomial of an oriented path graph P_{μ} is

 $P(P_n) = \lambda^n$.

Proof. First we prove the result for a path graph P_n with all the edges $v_{i-1}v_i$ having the same orientation from v_{i-1} to v_i , for $i = 2; 3; 4; \dots, n$



Figure 1: An oriented path graph

The characteristic polynomial of this oriented graph is obtained by means of the determinant

		v_1	v_2	v_3		v_{k-}	$_1v_k$		v_{n-}	$_1v_n$	
	$v_1 \mid$	λ	-1	0		0	0		0	0	
	v_2	0	λ			0	0	• • •	0	0	
	v_3	0	0	λ	· · ·	0	0		0	0	
	:	÷	÷	÷	÷	÷	÷	÷	÷	÷	
$P(P_n) =$	v_{k-1}	0	0	0		λ	-1		0	0	
	v_k	0	0	0		0	λ		0	0	
	:	÷	÷	÷	÷	÷	÷	÷	÷	÷	
	v_{n-1}	0	0	0		0	0		λ	-1	
	v_n	0	0	0	•••			•••	0	λ	$ _{n \times n}$

This determinant is an upper triangular determinant and therefore the result is obtained.

It is not difficult to see that there are $2^{n-1}/2 = 2^{n-2}$ different orientations of P_n. We now want to show that P (Pn) is independent from the choice of orientation of the edges of P_n. We do this by showing that the change in the orientation of any edge does not effect the characteristic polynomial.

Let us change the orientation of an arbitrary edge $v_{k-1}v_k$ from v_k to v_{k-1} as in Fig. 2:



Figure 2: An oriented path graph with only one orientation reversed

The characteristic polynomial of this graph is

		v_1	v_2	v_3		v_{k-1}	v_k		v_{n-}	$_1v_n$	
	v_1	λ	-1	0	• • •	0	0		0	0	
	v_2	0	λ	-1	• • •	0	0	• • •	0	0	
	v_3	0	0	λ	•••	0	0		0	0	
	÷	:	÷	÷	۰.	÷	÷	۰.	÷	÷	
$P(P_n) =$	v_{k-1}	0	0	0	• • •	λ	0		0	0	.
	v_k	0	0	0	• • •	-1	λ		0	0	
	÷	:	÷	÷	۰.	÷	÷	۰.	÷	÷	
	v_{n-1}	0	0	0	• • •	0	0		λ	-1	
	v_n	0	0	0	• • •	0	0		0	λ	$ _{n \times n}$

Note that the only dierence between (1) and (2) is that the two entries a_{k-1} ; and a a_{k+1} are transpozed. So both determinants are equal as required.

This result can easily be generalized to any acyclic graph as follows:

Corollary 2.3. Let T_n be any oriented acyclic graph with n vertices. Then

$$P(T_n) = \lambda^n.$$

So we can say that if an oriented graph having n vertices has no cycles, then its characteristic polynomial is λ^n . This situation is not true in general. There are exceptions as we shall see below:

Theorem 2.4. The characteristic polynomial of an oriented cycle graph C_n is

$$P(C_n) = \begin{cases} \lambda^n - 1 & \text{if all orientations are the same} \\ \lambda^n & \text{otherwise.} \end{cases}$$

If we calculate this determinant according to the first column, we get two (n-1)(n-1) determinants

	0	λ	-1		0 0 0	0		-1 λ 0	-1	0		0	0 0 0
$P(C_n) = \lambda$: 0 0	: 0 0	: 0 0	··. 	\vdots $^{-1}$	$\begin{array}{c} \vdots \\ 0 \\ -1 \end{array}$	$+(-1)^{n}$: 0 0	: 0 0	: 0 0	••. •••• ••••	$\begin{array}{c} \vdots \\ 0 \\ -1 \end{array}$	$ \begin{array}{c} 0 \\ 0 \\ -1 \end{array} $

$$= \lambda^n - 1$$

Secondly, let at least one orientation be different than the others. Let us name this edge as $e = v_k v_{k+1}$.

Then

The upper right (k –2) (n–k +2) matrix is a zero matrix, so $P(C_n) = \lambda^{k-1} \lambda^{n-(k-1)} = \lambda^n$ giving the result. If more than one edge, say $v_{i1} - 1 v_{i1}$, $v_{i2} - 1 v_{i2}$,, $v_{ik} - 1 v_{ik}$, change their orientations, then

$$P(C_n) = \lambda^{i_1 - 1} \cdot \lambda^{i_2 - 1 - (i_1 - 1)} \cdots \lambda^{n - (i_k - 1)} = \lambda^n$$

as required.

Let us continue our study of unicyclic graphs. The following result helps us to obtain the general result for unicyclic graphs and has very important consequences:

Lemma 2.5. Let G be a connected oriented graph, $v \in G$ and let G+e = G+vu be the graph obtained by adding the oriented pendant edge e = vu to G, see Fig. 3. Then

 $P(G + e) = \lambda \cdot P(G).$

This is independent from the choice of the orientation of e.





Lemma 2.5 guarantees that the orientation of any pendant edge added to a connected graph is not important and just multiplies the polynomial by λ . Therefore adding k oriented pendant edges to a connected graph G means that the characteristic polynomial of G will be multiplied by k. The following results are just some applications of Lemma 2.5.

Proof. Let the orientation of the new edge vu be from u to v (the proof is similar if the orientation is

from v to u). Let the characteristic matrix of G be P(G): The characteristic matrix of G+e would be

$$P(G+e) = \begin{vmatrix} P(G) & A \\ B & \lambda \end{vmatrix}$$

where A is an $(n \times 1)$ – column matrix and B is a $(1 \times n)$ – row matrix. Also all entries in A and B are zero except for only one entry which is -1. Therefore the result follows.

Proof. If all the orientations are the same, then we have

 v_3

0

... v_{n-1}

0

0

. . .

 v_n

0

0

0

 $0 \\ -1$

 v_2

 $^{-1}$

λ

0

 v_1

λ

0

0

 v_1

 v_2

 $P(C_n) = \begin{array}{c} \vdots \\ v_{n-2} \\ v_{n-1} \end{array}$

Now we know that adding a new oriented pendant edge to an oriented graph G multiplies the characteristic polynomial of G by λ . Applying this consecutively, we can give alternative proofs of Thm. 2 and Cor. 3. The following are some other consequences:

Corollary 2.6. Let G' be the oriented graph obtained by adding k oriented pendant edges to an oriented graph G. Then

 $P(G') = \lambda^k P(G).$

Corollary 2.7. Let G be a graph (not necessarily an oriented graph) obtained by joining a graph G_1 with a path P_{k+1} by identifying one of two endpoints of the path with a vertex of G_1 , see Fig. 4. Then



Figure 4: Adding a path to a graph

 $\mathbf{P}(\mathbf{G}) = \mathbf{P}(\mathbf{G}_1) \cdot \lambda^k.$

Using Lemma 2.5, we can give the formula for the characteristic polynomial of oriented star graphs which is also valid for ordinary star graphs:

Corollary 2.8. For an oriented star graph S_n with n vertices we have

$$P(S_n) = \lambda^n.$$

Corollary 2.9. For an oriented tadpole graph $\mathrm{T}_{\mathrm{r},\mathrm{s}},$ we have

$$P(T_{r:s}) = P(C_r) \cdot P(P_s) = P(C_r) \ \lambda^s.$$

Corollary 2.10. Let G be a unicyclic oriented graph with n vertices having a cycle of length $k \le n$.

Then

 $P(G) = P(C_{\nu}) \ \lambda^{n-k}.$

3 CONCLUSION

Spectral study of graphs is a widely studied subject due to its applications related to chemical energy. In

this paper, the spectral polynomials of oriented graphs are studied. Characteristic polynomials of several important oriented graph classes are found. The effect of edge addition on the characteristic polynomial of an oriented graph is determined. The characteristic polynomial of an oriented acyclic graph is given. As there is no spectral study on oriented graphs, this work will play an important role in the area. The target of this paper can also be applied to oriented graphs in terms of omega index [4, 5] as a future project. This would imply a new classification via integers.

REFERENCES

- Adiga, C., Narasimhamurthy, A. and Rao, M. D., Energy of prime graphs and its bounds, Montes Taurus J. Pure Appl. Math. 3(2), 29{37, 2021; Article ID: MTJPAM-D-21-00018.
- 2. Brouwer, A. E., Haemers, W. H., Spectra of Graphs, Springer Universitext, 2012.
- 3. Celik, F., Cangul, I. N., Formulae and recurrence relations on spectral polynomials of some graphs, Advanced Studies in Contemporary Mathematics 27(3) (2017), 325-332.
- Delen, S., Demirci, M., Cevik, A. S., Cangul, I. N., On Omega Index and Average Degree of Graphs, Journal of Mathematics, 2021, Article ID 5565146, 5 pages, DOI:https/doi.org/10.1155/2021/5565146.
- Demirci, M., Delen, S., Cevik, A. S., Cangul, I. N., Omega Index of Line and Total Graphs, Journal of Mathematics, 2021, Article ID 5552202, 6 pages, DOI: https/doi.org/10.1155/2021/5552202
- 6. Gutman, I., Trinajstic, N., Graph theory and molecular orbitals. Total -electron energy of alter-nant hydrocarbons, 17 (4) (1972), 535-538.
- He, J., Huang, T.-Z., Note on the skew energy of oriented graphs, Transactions on Combinatorics, 4 (1) (2015), 57-61.
- 8. Jahanbakht, N., Energy of graphs and digraphs, MSc Thesis, Shahid Beheshti University, India, 2010.
- Li, X., Lian, H., A survey on the skew energy of oriented graphs, Mathematical Chemistry Monograph No.17: Energies of Graphs - Theory and Applications, 191-216, Edt. I. Gutman and X. Li, 2016.
- Simsek, Y., Applications of constructed new families of generating-type functions interpolating new and known classes of polynomials and numbers, Math Meth Appl Sci. 44(14), 2021, 11245-11268; DOI:10.1002/ mma.7485.

SQUEEZING FLOW THROUGH NUMERICAL-HERMITE WAVELET METHOD

DHANANJAYA M Department of Mathematics, Bangalore Institute of Technology, Bengaluru

RAGHUNATHA K. R, VINOD Y

Department of Mathematics, Davangere University, Davangere

ABSTRACT

Squeezing flow is not only found in chemical, mechanical, and electrical engineering but also has applications in other fields, as squeezing flows can be noticed in numerous hydrodynamic instruments and machines. Due to the emphasis on squeezing flow, we have considered axisymmetric fluid flow squeezed between infinite plates in the current study. The Hermite wavelet method (HWM) is recommended to solve highly non-linear boundary value problems. To verify the validation and convergence of the planned scheme, the model problem is solved with HWM and also compared with different numerical methods. To the best of the author's knowledge, the current problem has not be attempted before with our methods. Graphical study has be finished to determine how the Reynolds number (Re) affects the velocity profile. The scrutiny exposes that HWM gives a more accurate level when compared to PM, HPM, HAM, OHAM, and MOHAM.

KEYWORDS : Squeezing flow, Hermite wavelet, numerical method.

1. INTRODUCTION

For many fascinating and significant events seen in several branches of science and industry, nonlinear equations are widely employed as mathematical models. They are motivated by issues in a variety of disciplines, including engineering, control hypothesis, physics, materials discipline, economics, and quantum mechanics. This extraordinary issue focuses on how the HWM is helped to explain solution of nonlinear differential equations. Hermite wavelet theory is fundamental in the disciplines of image processing, signal analysis, computer engineering, and numerical modelling. Copious mathematicians have investigated the models using various sets of solution strategies for decades. It is quite challenging to solve these models analytically, let alone comprehend them using normal differential equations. If we are unable to solve these

issues analytically, it is preferable to use numerical procedures. The wavelet procedure is helped to crack highly nonlinear ODEs as well as PDEs. Wavelets allow a broad range of functions and operators to be accurately represented [1-3]. Wavelets also provide a relationship with quick numerical methods [4]. Many fluid flow troubles have been solved in up to date years [5-8] using the Hermite wavelet.

The inexact mathematical solution of the squeezing fluid flow connecting parallel never-ending plates is studied [9]. Stefan[10] carried out an early investigation of the squeeze flow by considering the behaviour of Newtonian fluids and neglected inertial force in the equation of motion later, Stefan's work was continued by the admittance of inertial effects and alternative constitutive connections to the Newtonian fluid model. Gupta and Gupta [11] studied Thorpe's [12] report indicated that the solution to the perturbation problem existed for a small value of Reynolds' number and that the report failed to meet the requisite boundary conditions. His effort be only limited by a small Reynolds number by Gupta and Gupta. Afterwards the Verma[13] extended his work for different values of Re in squeezing flow parallel channels. Bujurke et al. [14] investigated the computer unlimited series for squeezing flow connecting plates by Pade approximation. Smyrnaios and Tsamopoulos [15] employed the finite element technique for the Squeeze flow of Bingham plastics.

In this article, the squeezing of axisymmetric liquid flow between never-ending parallel plates with Reynolds number effects is studied using numerical-Hermitewavelet method. Our findings are contrasted with previously published solutions. The HWM is found to be additional effective and also less time-consuming, giving a higher level of accuracy. Even this technique can be excellently used for fluid flow problems.

2 FORMULATION OF THE PROBLEM

Consider an incompressible, viscous fluid flowing axisymmetric between two infinite parallel plates. The gap H fluctuates gradually over time and can be taken for granted to be constant for small values of the two plates with respective velocities V with governing nonlinear equations in dimensionless form [9]

$$f^{(iv)}(x) + \operatorname{Re} f^{'''}(x) f(x) = 0.$$
(1)

$$f(0) = f''(0) = 0, f(1) = 1, f'(1) = 0.$$
 (2)

Where $\operatorname{Re} = \rho H / \left(\frac{2\mu}{V}\right)$ is the Reynolds number.

3 THE FUNDAMENTAL NOTION OF THE HERMITE WAVELET TECHNIQUE

The HWM is used to explain the issue in the present article. In the numerical results of differential equations, wavelet analysis has recently attracted a lot of interest. The precision and simplicity of these wavelet-based approaches are demonstrated by [5-8].

4 NUMERICAL-HERMITE WAVELET METHOD

Consider,

$$f^{(i\nu)}(x) = B^T \varphi(x) \tag{3}$$

$$f'''(x) = f'''(0) + B^T \left[T\varphi(x) + \overline{\varphi}(x) \right].$$
(4)

Integrate (4) with respect to x from 0 to x.

$$f''(x) = f''(0) + xf'''(0) + B^{T} \left[T'\varphi(x) + \overline{\varphi'}(x) \right].$$
 (5)

Integrate (5) with respect to x from 0 to x.

$$f'(x) = f'(0) + x f''(0) + \frac{x^2}{2} f'''(0) + B^T \left[T'' \varphi(x) + \overline{\varphi''}(x) \right].$$
(6)

Integrate (6) with respect and it varies from 0 to x

$$f(x) = f(0) + x f'(0) + \frac{x^2}{2} f''(0) + \frac{x^3}{6} f'''(0) + B^T \left[T''' \varphi(x) + \overline{\varphi''}(x) \right].$$
(7)

Put x = 1 in (6) and (7) we get

$$f'(1) = 0 = f'(0) + \frac{1}{2} f'''(0) + B^T \left[T'' \varphi(x) + \overline{\varphi''}(x) \right]_{x=1}$$
(8)

$$f(1) = 1 = f'(0) + \frac{1}{6} f'''(0) + B^T \left[T''' \varphi(x) + \overline{\varphi'''}(x) \right]_{x=1}$$
(9)

Solving (8) and (9) extract f'(0) and f'''(0) as

$$f'(0) = -\frac{1}{2} \left[-3 + 3B^{T} \left[T''' \varphi(x) + \overline{\varphi''}(x) \right] - 3B^{T} \right]$$
$$\left[T'' \varphi(x) + \overline{\varphi''}(x) \right] - B^{T} \left[T'' \varphi(x) + \overline{\varphi''}(x) \right] \right]_{x=1} (10)$$
$$f'''(0) = -3 + 3B^{T} \left[T''' \varphi(x) + \overline{\varphi''}(x) \right]_{x=1} (11)$$
$$-3B^{T} \left[T'' \varphi(x) + \overline{\varphi''}(x) \right]_{x=1} (11)$$

Using f'(0) & f''(0) are zero, Substitute (10) and (11) in (7) we get

$$f(x) = -\frac{x}{2} \begin{bmatrix} -3+3B^{T} \begin{bmatrix} T'' \ \varphi(x) + \overline{\varphi''}(x) \end{bmatrix}_{x=1} \\ -3B^{T} \begin{bmatrix} T'' \ \varphi(x) + \overline{\varphi''}(x) \end{bmatrix}_{x=1} \end{bmatrix} - B^{T} \begin{bmatrix} T'' \ \varphi(x) + \overline{\varphi''}(x) \end{bmatrix}_{x=1} \\ + \frac{x^{3}}{6} \begin{bmatrix} -3+3B^{T} \begin{bmatrix} T''' \ \varphi(x) + \overline{\varphi''}(x) \end{bmatrix}_{x=1} \\ -3B^{T} \begin{bmatrix} T'' \ \varphi(x) + \overline{\varphi''}(x) \end{bmatrix}_{x=1} \end{bmatrix} + B^{T} \begin{bmatrix} T''' \ \varphi(x) + \overline{\varphi''}(x) \end{bmatrix}$$
(12)

In organize to generate an algebraic system of equations, you must replace $f^{(iv)}$, $f^{'''}$, f'', f', f into the governing equations and combine them using the collocation points $x_i = \frac{2i-1}{2N}$, where i = 1,2,3... *N*. We may retrieve the

 $x_i = \frac{1}{2N}$, where i = 1,2,3... N. We may retrieve the unknown coefficients of the Hermite wavelet by solving this, which gives Hermite wavelet-numerical results for the equations (1-2).

5 RESULTS AND DISCUSSION

In the present article, the squeezing of axi-symmetric liquid flow between never-ending parallel plates is investigated by using HWM. The problem was resolved by various values of Reynolds number. The validity of the results calculated by HWM is confirmed by comparing the results with the numerical scheme, which can also be observed in Table 1. Further, Table 2 gives the comparison of HWM with MOHAM solution for various values of Re. The contact of various Re values on the normalised velocity has also been investigated through graphic research. Figs.1(a) and 1(b) depict how Re affects the velocity profile. Because the Reynolds number represents the proportion of inertial to viscous forces in a fluid, it may take scaling special effects into

report and be helped to forecast fluid behaviour on a wider scale. Due to this, the velocity increases as the value of Re increases. In Figs. 2(a) and 2(b), the effects of varying Reynolds numbers are plotted.

6 CONCLUSION

In this paper, the squeezing of axisymmetric fluid flow between infinite plates is investigated using HWM. Owing to the purpose of validation, the calculated outcome was examined through the numerical scheme. The obtained results show the efficiency of HWM over other numerical schemes. HWM is a additional stable scheme in terms of time and accuracy compared to other stated schemes. The velocity increases as the value of Re Reynolds number increases.

x	f(x)									
	HWM	NUM	MOHAM	HAM	PM	OHAM	HPM			
0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			
0.15	0.232179	0.232179	0.232178	0.232179	0.232546	0.231996	0.232546			
0.30	0.451603	0.451603	0.451605	0.451603	0.453690	0.451343	0.453690			
0.45	0.646353	0.646353	0.646357	0.646354	0.650927	0.646147	0.650927			
0.60	0.805988	0.805988	0.805989	0.805988	0.811982	0.805894	0.811982			
0.75	0.921867	0.921867	0.921863	0.921867	0.926616	0.921852	0.926616			
0.90	0.987176	0.987176	0.987183	0.987176	0.988531	0.987177	0.988531			

 Table 2 Evaluation of HWM with MOHAM [9] for Reynolds numbers Re = 0, 2 &10

x	$f(\mathbf{x})$									
	Re	= 0	Re	= 2	Re =10					
	HWM	MOHAM	HWM	MOHAM	HWM	MOHAM				
0	0	0	0	0	0	0				
0.15	0.223312	0.223312	0.232168	0.232168	0.215791	0.215791				
0.3	0.4365	0.4365	0.451582	0.451582	0.421326	0.421326				
0.45	0.629438	0.629438	0.646327	0.646327	0.608988	0.608988				
0.6	0.792	0.792	0.805961	0.805961	0.77452	0.77452				
0.75	0.914063	0.914063	0.921846	0.921846	0.915387	0.915387				
0.9	0.9855	0.9855	0.987169	0.987169	1.00335	1.00335				



Fig. 1.Significance of f'(x) with (a) individual standards of Re (b) various values of Re



Fig. 2. Significance of f'''(x) with (a) individual standards of Re (b) various values of Re.

7 **REFERENCES**

- 1. Chui C. K. 1997. "Wavelets: a mathematical tool for signal analysis". Society for Industrial and Applied Mathematics.
- Shamsi M., and Razzaghi, M. 2005. "Solution of Hallen's integral equation using multiwavelets." Computer Physics Communications 168(3): 187-197.
- Lakestani M., Razzaghi M., and Dehghan M. 2006. "Semiorthogonal spline wavelets approximation for Fredholmintegro-differential equations". Mathematical problems in engineering.
- Beylkin G., Coifman R., and Rokhlin, V. 1991. "Fast wavelet transforms and numerical algorithms" I. Communications on pure and applied mathematics 44(2): 141-183.
- 5. Kumbinarasaiah S., Raghunatha K. R., Rezazadeh M.,

and Inc M. 2021. "A solution of coupled nonlinear differential equations arising in a rotating micropolar nanofluid flow system by Hermite wavelet technique". Engineering with Computers 1-22.

- 6. Kumbinarasaiah S., and Mundewadi R. A. 2021. "The new operational matrix of integration for the numerical solution of integrodifferential equations via Hermite wavelet". SeMA Journal 78(3): 367-384.
- Shiralashetti S. C. and Kumbinarasaiah S. 2018. "Theoretical study on continuous polynomial wavelet bases through wavelet series collocation method for nonlinear Lane– Emden type equations". Applied Mathematics and Computation 315: 591-602.
- 8. Vinod Y., and Raghunatha K. R. 2023. "Application of Hermite wavelet method for heat transfer in a porous media". Heat Transfer.
- 9. İlhan O. A. 2020. "Approximation solution of the

squeezing flow by the modification of optimal homotopy asymptotic method". The European Physical Journal Plus 135(9): 745.

- 10. Stefan J. 1875. "Versucheüber die scheinbare Adhäsion". Annalen der Physik 230(2): 316-318.
- 11. Gupta P. S., andGuptaA. S. 1977. "Squeezing flow between parallel plates". Wear 45(2): 177-185.
- 12. J. F. Thorpe. 1967. "Developments in Theoretical and Applied Mathematics", Vol. 3, Pergamon, Oxford.
- 13. Verma R. L. 1981. "A numerical solution for squeezing flow between parallel channels". Wear 72(1): 89-95.
- 14. Bujurke N. M., Achar P. K., and Pai N. P. 1995. "Computer extended series for squeezing flow between plates". Fluid Dynamics Research 16(2-3): 173-187.
- Smyrnaios D. N., and Tsamopoulos J. A. 2001. "Squeeze flow of Bingham plastics". Journal of nonnewtonian fluid mechanics 100(1-3): 165-189.

STATISTICAL ANALYSIS OF DAILY RAINFALL FOR AGRICULTURAL PLANNING AT SELECTED REGIONS OF KARNATAKA THROUGH MARKOV CHAIN PROCESS

UMA A L

Assistant Professor, Department of Mathematics, Bangalore Institute of Technology, Bangalore

DR K M ROOPA

Professor, Department of Mathematics, Bangalore Institute of Technology, Bangalore

ABSTRACT

Understanding rainfall pattern of a region is crucial for making decisions in various factors like agricultural patterns, management of water, tourism, fisheries, etc. In this study, Markov chain first order model using transition probability matrices is used to study the probability of occurrence of rainy and non rainy days. Daily rainfall data for 30 years of Dakshina kannada, Uttara kannada, Udupi, Bangalore rural, Bangalore urban and Ramanagara was collected from KSNDMC. Daily rainfall data was analyzed talukwise of the selected districts. The results obtained shows that the chance of having a no rain is 79.18% (Devanahalli), 75.82% (Nelamangala), 78.30% (Doddaballapura),80.82% (Hosakote), 70.61% (Bangalore(N)),72.53% (Bangalore(S)),76.93% (Anekal),78.57% (Channapatna), 77.27% (Ramanagara),76.99% (Magadi),80.55% (Kanakapura), 61.92% (Mangalore), 60.55% (Puttur), 61.81% (Bantwala), 59.18% (Sulya), 59.73% (Beltangadi), 59.62% (Karkala), 62.91% (Kundapura), 61.54% (Udupi),65.48% (Ankola), 64.29% (Bhantkal), 67.86% (Haliyal), 62.91% (Honnavara), 64.38% (Karwar), 63.19% (Kumta), 66.81% (Mundgod), 63.84% (Siddapura), 62.84% (Sirsi), 64.29% (Supa) and 65.38% (Yellapura). The results obtained can be used for short term processes.

KEYWORDS : Rainfall, Transition matrix, Markov chain model.

1. INTRODUCTION

Indian economy has its dependence on rural contribution where the Agriculture has its role as a vital component. It is necessary for the study of various parameters on which the Agriculture is more dependent. The important parameter which results in ups and downs of Agriculture and other various activities is Rainfall. This importance leads to the study of occurrence and amount of rainfall in both local and global level. This paper has been concentrated at local level to understand the occurrence of rain, based on the historical records for short term process.

1.1 Study Area

Many studies have taken over Climate change, in particular over Rainfall for larger scale considering State and district level for both short and long term processes. In the state Karnataka, Agriculture is heavily dependent on Southwest monsoon rains as water is the predominant source for agriculture. In this study, it is concentrated to understand the rainfall pattern and occurrence of rain

at taluk level. The taluks of selected districts have been considered for the study and the districts are Bangalore rural, Bangalore urban, Ramanagara from South Interior Karnataka which receives moderate rainfall and Dakshina Kannada, Uttara Kannada, Udupi from Coastal Karnataka which receives heavy rainfall. The detailed taluk list is tabulated in the Table 1.

Districts	Taluks	Districts	Taluks		
Bangalore Rural	Devanahalli Doddaballapura Hosakote Nelamangala	Dakshina Kannada	Mangalore Bantval Beltangadi	Puttur Sulya	

Bangalore Urban	Bengaluru North Bengaluru South Bengaluru East Anekal	Uttara Kannada	Ankola Bhantkal Haliyal Honnavar Karwar Kumta	Mundgod Siddapura Sirsi Supa Yellapur
Ramanagara	Ramanagara Channapatna Magadi Kanakapura	Udupi	Karkala Ku Udu	1

2. DATA AND METHODOLOGY

Thirty years of daily rainfall data from 1989 to 2018 of all the taluks of districts chosen was collected for the

prediction of occurrence of daily rainfall from Karnataka State Natural Disaster Meteorological center (KSNDMC), Bangalore. Using Excel, the annual rainfall of all taluks of selected districts is computed and plotted below.










Many studies have been carried for the prediction of rainfall. Most research papers have used widely various Statistical methods to predict occurrence of rainfall as they are well suited for assessment of accuracy. Several studies have used Markov chain process for the study of daily occurrence of rainfall. The two state first order Markov chain was the first stochastic model introduced by Gabrial and Neuman in 1962. Few authors like G V Srinivasa Reddy (2008), Senthilvelan.A (2012), Wubengeda(2014), Abubakar UsmanYusuf (2014), N.M. Alam(2015), K.N.Krishnamurthy (2015).Rahmtalla Yousif adam(2016), M. Ray (2018), A.O. Ibeje(2018), Phyu Thwe(2019), Prabir Kumar Das (2020) have made use of Markov chain process to predict occurrence of daily rainfall and weekly rainfall. As it is an effective method, it has found its importance in prediction of climate parameters providing the result with less error using the previous data. In this paper, two state Markov chain process have been carried out considering rainy and non rainy day as two states. For the daily rainfall prediction, the collected 30 years data is used for the analysis and the data is sorted out into number of rainy days and non-rainy days considering the day as rainy day if the amount of rainfall received is greater than zero mm otherwise non rainy day using Excel. Depending on the Classification of rainy and non-rainy day, the two state transition matrix with respect to total number of rainy/non rainy days for each year is developed in comparison with the previous rainy day/non rainy day and is as follows



Comparison of Rainy and Non Rainy day, Transition matrix development model

Further, the limiting probability is calculated based on the initial probability. In this paper, the initial probability is assumed to be 50% chance of occurrence of rain after a rainy day and 50% chance of occurrence of no rain after a non rainy day. To attain the steady state, MATLAB software is used to compute Transition matrix of higher power.

3. RESULTS & DISCUSSION

The detailed analyzation of the data and rainfall occurrence prediction of Devanhalli taluk from Bangalore rural district is taken to demonstrate the process carried and is as follows. The data is segregated into number of rainy days and non rainy days and the comparison is given in the Table 2.

Table 2

1989			C	•	
No. of rainy & Non rain	iy days		Compai Non	ison	
No. of rainy days	56	Ι/Π	Rainy	Rainy	Total
No. of Non rainy days	309	Non Rainy	272	36	308
	365	Rainy	36	20	56
					364
1990					
No. of rainy & Non rain	ny days		Compai	ison	
			Non		
No. of rainy days	71	Ι/ΙΙ	Rainy	Rainy	Total
No. of Non rainy days	294	Non Rainy	254	39	293
	365	Rainy	39	32	71
					364
1991					
No. of rainy & Non rain	ny days		Compai	rison	
	· · ·		Non		
No. of rainy days	83	Ι/Π	Rainy	Rainy	Total
No. of Non rainy days	282	Non Rainy	238	43	281
	365	Rainy	43	40	83
					364
1992					
No. of rainy & Non rain	ıv davs		Compai	ison	
ř	· · ·		Non		
No. of rainy days	71	Ι/ΙΙ	Rainy	Rainy	Total
No. of Non rainy days	295	Non Rainy	249	45	294
	366	Rainy	45	26	71
					365
1993					
No. of rainy & Non rain	ny days		Compai	rison	
			Non		
No. of rainy days	92	Ι/ΙΙ	Rainy	Rainy	Total
No. of Non rainy days	273	Non Rainy	230	42	272
	365	Rainy	42	50	92
					364

No. of rainy & Non rain	iy days		Compar	ison	
			Non		
No. of rainy days	81	<u>I\II</u>	Rainy	Rainy	Tota
No. of Non rainy days	284	Non Rainy	234	49	283
l	365	Rainy	49	32	81
					364
1995					
No. of rainy & Non rain	ıv davs		Compar	ison	
			Non		
No. of rainy days	69	I\II	Rainy	Rainy	Tota
No. of Non rainy days	296	Non Rainy	258	37	295
	365	Rainy	37	32	69
					364
1996					
No. of rainy & Non rain	iv days		Compar	ison	
			Non	_	
No. of rainy days	68	I\II	Rainy	Rainy	Tota
No. of Non rainy days	298	Non Rainy	259	38	297
	366	Rainy	38	30	68
					365
No. of rainy days	53	<u>I/II</u>	Rainy	Rainy	Tota
			Non		
No. of Non rainy days	312	Non Rainy	276	35	311
Tto: of iton failing days	365	Rainy	35	18	53
L	505	Rainy	55	10	364
					504
1998			C		
No. of rainy & Non rain	iy days		Compar Non	lson	
No. of rainy days	71	1/11	Rainy	Rainy	Tota
No. of Non rainy days	294	Non Rainy	258	35	293
	365	Rainy	35	36	71
L					364
1999					
	w dave		Compar	ican	
No. of rainy & Non rain	iy uays		Compar Non	15011	
		1/11	Rainy	Rainy	Tota
No. of rainy days	62		· · ·		
No. of rainy days No. of Non rainy days	62 303	Non Rainy	264	38	302
	303	· · · · · ·			
		Non Rainy Rainy	264 38	38 24	62
No. of Non rainy days	303				
No. of Non rainy days 2000	303 365		38	24	62
No. of Non rainy days	303 365		38 Compar	24	62
No. of Non rainy days 2000 No. of rainy & Non rain	303 365	Rainy	38 Compar Non	24 ison	62 364
No. of Non rainy days 2000 No. of rainy & Non rain No. of rainy days	303 365 ny days 82	Rainy	38 Compar Non Rainy	24 ison Rainy	62 364 Tota
No. of Non rainy days 2000 No. of rainy & Non rain	303 365	Rainy	38 Compar Non	24 ison	62 364

No. of rainy & Non rain	ny days		Compai	ison	
No. of rainy days	47	I/II	Non Rainy	Rainy	Total
No. of Non rainy days	318	Non Rainy	289	28	317
	365	Rainv	28	19	47
L					364
2002					
No. of rainy & Non rain	w dave		Compai	icon	
No. of rainy & Non rai	iy uays		Non		
No. of rainy days	26	I/II	Rainy	Rainy	Total
No. of Non rainy days	339	Non Rainy	316	22	338
	365	Rainy	22	4	26
			-		364
2003					
No. of rainy & Non rain	ny days		Compai	rison	
1.0. Of Failing Of Fion Tall	., uu, 5		Non		
No. of rainy days	41	I/II	Rainy	Rainy	Total
No. of Non rainy days	324	Non Rainy	296	27	323
	365	Rainy	27	14	41
					364
No. of rainy & Non rain	· · ·		Compai Non		
No. of rainy days	46	I/II	Rainy	Rainy	Total
No. of Non rainy days	320	Non Rainy	288	31	319
l	366	Rainy	31	15	46
					365
2005	_		-		
No. of rainy & Non rain	iy days		Compai Non	ison	
No. of rainy days	67	I/II	Rainy	Rainy	Total
No. of Non rainy days	298	Non Rainy	255	42	297
	365	Rainy	42	25	67
L					364
2006					
No. of rainy & Non rain	ny dave		Compai	ison	
	iy uays		Non	13011	
No. of rainy days	52	1/11	Rainy	Rainy	Total
No. of Non rainy days	313	Non Rainy	281	31	312
	365	Rainy	31	21	52
					364
2007					
No. of rainy & Non rain	iv davs		Compai	ison	
			Non		
	70	I/II	Rainy	Rainy	Total
No. of rainy days	79				
No. of rainy days No. of Non rainy days	286	Non Rainy	247	38	285
				38 41	285 79

No. of rainy & Non rain	iy days		Compar	ison	
No. of rainy days	74	I\II	Non Rainy	Rainy	Total
No. of Non rainy days	292	Non Rainy	246	45	291
	366	Rainy	45	29	74
					365
2009 No. of rainy & Non rain	ıv davs		Compar	rison	
	<u>., uu, s</u>		Non		
No. of rainy days	152	I\II	Rainy	Rainy	Total
No. of Non rainy days	213	Non Rainy	161	51	212
	365	Rainy	51	101	152
					364
2010 No. of rainy & Non rain	ıy days		Compar	ison	
No. of rainy days	166	I/II	Non Rainy	Rainy	Total
No. of Non rainy days	199	Non Rainy	145	53	198
	365	Rainy	53	113	166
L					364
No. of rainy & Non rain	89	I/II	Compar Non Rainy	Rainy	Total
No. of Non rainy days	276	I\II Non Rainy	234	42	276
No. of Non failing days	365	Rainy	41	47	88
L	505	Rainy	71		364
2012					
No. of rainy & Non rain	ny days		Compar	ricon	
ito, of failing & iton fail					
			Non		
No. of rainy days	78	1/11		Rainy	Total
		Non Rainy	Non		Total 300
No. of rainy days No. of Non rainy days	78		Non Rainy	Rainy	Total 300 65
	78 288	Non Rainy	Non Rainy 263	Rainy 37	300
No. of Non rainy days 2013	78 288 366	Non Rainy	Non Rainy 263 36	Rainy 37 29	300 65
No. of Non rainy days	78 288 366	Non Rainy	Non Rainy 263 36 Compar	Rainy 37 29	300 65
No. of Non rainy days 2013 No. of rainy & Non rain	78 288 366	Non Rainy	Non Rainy 263 36	Rainy 37 29	300 65 365
No. of Non rainy days 2013 No. of rainy & Non rain No. of rainy days	78 288 366 ny days	Non Rainy Rainy	Non Rainy 263 36 Compar Non	Rainy 37 29 ison	300 65 365
No. of Non rainy days 2013 No. of rainy & Non rain No. of rainy days	78 288 366 ny days 94	Non Rainy Rainy I\II	Non Rainy 263 36 Compar Non Rainy	Rainy 37 29 ison Rainy	300 65 365 Total
No. of Non rainy days 2013	78 288 366 ny days 94 271	Non Rainy Rainy I\II Non Rainy	Non Rainy 263 36 Compar Non Rainy 247	Rainy 37 29 ison Rainy 42	300 65 365 Total 289
No. of Non rainy days 2013 No. of rainy & Non rain No. of rainy days No. of Non rainy days	78 288 366 ny days 94 271	Non Rainy Rainy I\II Non Rainy	Non Rainy 263 36 Compar Non Rainy 247	Rainy 37 29 ison Rainy 42	300 65 365 Total 289 75
No. of Non rainy days 2013 No. of rainy & Non rain No. of rainy days No. of Non rainy days	78 288 366 ny days 94 271 365	Non Rainy Rainy I\II Non Rainy	Non Rainy 263 36 Compar Non Rainy 247 42	Rainy 37 29	300 65 365 Total 289 75
No. of Non rainy days 2013 No. of rainy & Non rain No. of rainy days No. of Non rainy days 2014 No. of rainy & Non rain	78 288 366 ny days 94 271 365 ny days	Non Rainy Rainy I\II Non Rainy Rainy	Non Rainy 263 36 Compar Non Rainy 247 42 Compar Non	Rainy 37 29	300 65 365 Total 289 75 364
No. of Non rainy days 2013 No. of rainy & Non rain No. of rainy days No. of Non rainy days 2014	78 288 366 ny days 94 271 365	Non Rainy Rainy I\II Non Rainy	Non Rainy 263 36 Compar Non Rainy 247 42 Compar	Rainy 37 29	300 65 365 Total 289 75

	365	Rainy	36	23	59
	200	Ituniy	20	20	364
2015					
No. of rainy & Non ra	iny days		Compar	rison	
*			Non		
No. of rainy days	102	Ι/ΙΙ	Rainy	Rainy	Total
No. of Non rainy days	263	Non Rainy	214	48	262
	365	Rainy	49	53	102
					364
2016					
No. of rainy & Non ra	iny days		Compar	rison	
			Non		
No. of rainy days	76	I/II	Rainy	Rainy	Total
No. of Non rainy days	290	Non Rainy	250	39	289
	366	Rainy	39	37	76
					365
2017					
No. of rainy & Non ra	iny days		Compar	rison	
v			Non		
No. of rainy days	100	I/II	Rainy	Rainy	Total
No. of Non rainy days	265	Non Rainy	223	41	264
	365	Rainy	41	59	100
					364
2018					
No. of rainy & Non ra	inv davs		Compar	rison	
			Non		
No. of rainy days	86	I / I	Rainy	Rainy	Total
No. of Non rainy days	279	Non Rainy	230	48	278
	365	Rainy	48	38	86
		-			364

Based on the comparison of rainy and non rainy days, Transition matrix is calculated. Using MATLAB software, the positive integral power of the transition matrix is computed to attain the steady state. These steady state values of the transition matrix are used to find the Limiting probability. The limiting probability, prediction results of rainfall days and error found with the actual data is tabulated in the Table 3.

Table 3

Year	Limiting P	robability	Predi	iction	Err	or
	Non Rainy day	Rainy Day	No. of Rainy days	No. of Non Rainy days	For Rainy day	For Non Rainy day
1989	84.60	15.38	1686	9270	26.49	6.99
1990	80.49	19.51	2137	8820	6.79	1.80
1991	77.20	22.80	2499	8459	8.96	2.37
1992	80.55	19.45	2131	8826	7.05	1.87
1993	74.73	25.28	2770	8188	20.80	5.50
1994	77.75	22.25	2438	8519	6.33	1.68
1995	81.04	18.96	2077	8880	9.41	2.49
1996	81.37	18.63	2041	8916	10.97	2.91
1997	85.44	14.56	1595	9362	30.42	8.05
1998	80.50	19.51	2138	8820	6.76	1.80
1999	82.97	17.03	1866	9091	18.61	4.92
2000	77.54	22.47	2462	8496	7.38	1.94
2001	87.09	12.91	1415	9542	38.30	10.14
2002	92.86	7.14	783	10174	65.87	17.43
2003	88.74	11.26	1234	9723	46.18	12.22
2004	87.40	12.60	1381	9576	39.78	10.53
2005	81.59	18.41	2017	8940	12.04	3.19
2006	85.71	14.29	1565	9392	31.73	8.40
2007	78.30	21.71	2379	8579	3.74	0.98
2008	79.73	20.27	2221	8736	3.12	0.83
2009	58.25	41.77	4577	6382	99.59	26.33
2010	54.40	45.61	4998	5961	117.96	31.20
2011	75.38	24.63	2698	8260	17.67	4.67
2012	81.79	18.21	1996	8961	12.97	3.43
2013	79.40	20.60	2258	8699	1.54	0.41
2014	83.79	16.21	1776	9181	22.55	5.97
2015	72.39	27.61	3025	7932	31.93	8.45
2016	79.18	20.82	2282	8676	0.49	0.13
2017	72.53	27.49	3012	7948	31.36	8.27
2018	76.37	23.63	2589	8368	12.90	3.41

From the results, it is absorbed that the error obtained is less from the year 2016. Thus, the result can be used for the prediction, which says the occurrence of rain after a rainy day is 20.82% and the occurrence of no rain after a non rainy day is 79.18%.

This way each year data of thirty years of all taluks of selected districts is analyzed and subjected to Markov chain process.

4. CONCLUSION

This paper witnesses the effectiveness in using the Markov Chain method to develop the model for analyzing and predicting the probability of occurrence of rain in a given day. This model would be helpful for the local stake holders of the districts selected and use the results for the short term agricultural purposes.

5. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

We thank Karnataka State Natural Disaster Monitoring Centre (KSNDMC), for providing the information of the 30 years rainfall data and Vision group of Science and Technology, GoK for providing all the support to carry out the research.

6. **REFERENCES**

- G V Srinivasa Reddy, R. Bhaskar, R. C. Purohit and A. K. Chittora (2008), Markov Chain Model Probability of Dry, Wet Weeks and Statistical Analysis of Weekly Rainfall for Agricultural Planning at Bangalore, Karnataka J. Agric. Sci., 21 (1), (12-16).
- 2. Senthilvelan.A1, Ganesh.A2, Banukumar.K (2012), International Journal of Geomatics and Geosciences, Volume 3, No 1.
- 3. Wubengeda Adamsu, Kassu Tadesse, Fitsume Yemenu, Birhan Abdulkadir (2014), Markov chain analysis of dry, wet weeks and Statistical analysis of weekly rainfall for agricultural planning at Dhera, Central Rift Valley Region of Ethiopia, African journal of agricultural research, Vol. 9(29), pp. 2205-2213.
- 4. Abubakar Usman Yusuf, Lawal Adamu, Muhammed Abdullahi (2014), Markov Chain Model and Its Application to Annual Rainfall Distribution for Crop Production. American Journal of Theoretical and Applied Statistics. Vol. 3, No. 2, pp. 39-43.
- N.M. Alam, G.C. Sharma, C. Jana, S. Patra, N.K. Sharma, A. Raizada, ParthaPratim Adhikary and P.K. Mishra (2015), Probabilistic drought analysis of weekly Rainfall data using Markov chain model, Journal of

Reliability and Statistical Studies; ISSN (Print): 0974-8024, (Online):2229-5666, Vol. 8, Issue 1:105-114.

- K.N.Krishnamurthy, D.M.Gowda, T. Vasanthkumar (2015), Markov Chain Model for Probability of Weekly Rainfall in Mandya District, Karnataka, International Journal of Innovative Research in Science, Engineering and Technology, Vol. 4, Issue 7.
- Rahmtalla Yousif adam(2016), Stochastic Model for Rainfall Occurrence Using Markov Chain Model in Kurdufan State, Sudan, American Scientific Research Journal for Engineering, Technology, and Sciences (ASRJETS) ISSN (Print) 2313-4410, ISSN (Online) 2313-4402.
- M. Ray, S. Biswasi, K. C. Sahoo1 and H. Patro1 (2018), A Markov Chain Approach for Wet and Dry Spell and Probability Analysis, International Journal of Current Microbiology and Applied Sciences ISSN: 2319-7692 Special Issue-6 pp. 1005-1013.
- A.O. Ibeje1, J. C. Osuagwu2 and O. R. Onosakponome2 (2018), A Markov Model for Prediction of Annual Rainfall ,International Journal of Scientific Engineering and Applied Science (IJSEAS) – Volume-3, Issue-11,ISSN: 2395-3470
- Phyu Thwe, Ei Khaing Win, Hnin Pwint Myu Wai (2019), A Markov Chain Approach on Daily Rainfall Occurrence, International Journal of Trend in Scientific Research and Development (IJTSRD), Volume 3 Issue 6 e-ISSN: 2456 – 6470.
- Prabir Kumar DAS, Dilip Kumar DAS, Subrata Kumar Midya,Soumya Bandyopadhyay and Uday Raj (2020), Spatial analysis of wet spell probability over India (1971-2005) towards agricultural planning, Atmósfera 33(1), 19-31,doi: 10.20937/ATM.52499.

CHARACTERIZATION, OPTICAL AND PHOTOCATALYTIC STUDIES OF UV LIGHT DRIVEN SM³⁺ DOPED ZRO₂ THIN FILM BY SOL-GEL METHOD

T. KIRAN, M. V. CHETHANA, H. S. SAVITHA, M. S. PARAMESH

Department of Chemistry, SJB Institute of Technology, Bengaluru

ABSTRACT

In this study, ZrO_2 and Sm^{3+} doped ZrO_2 thin film were prepared via sol-gel route. Scanning electron microscopy (SEM) and Powder X-ray Diffraction (PXRD) were used to characterise the synthesised materials. Under UV light irradiation, the produced thin film photocatalytic activities were evaluated for its ability to decolorize indigocarmine (IC) aqueous solutions. When compared to pure ZrO_2 thin film, the Sm^{3+} doped ZrO_2 thin film exhibits higher catalytic performance. The Sm^{3+} doped ZrO_2 photocatalyst also has outstanding recycling performance with a small loss in% decolorization after four cycle cycles. This study provides information on a possible photocatalytic excellence for the treatment of waste water.

 $\textit{KEYWORDS}: Sm^{3+} doped ZrO_2 thinfilm, SEM, Photocatalytic performance, decolorization$

INTRODUCTION

Materials at nano scale with various varieties (nanopowder, nano-rods, nano-thin films, nano-tubes, nano-flower and nano-wires) finds many applications in various fields owing to their novel properties like surface tailoring ability, improved solubility etc. [1-6]. From the last two decades researchers showing their attention towards the nano-sized metal oxide based semiconductors owing to their attractive properties and potential applications.

Among the metal oxide based semiconductors, ZrO_2 has set up a wide variety of applications in CO_2 reduction, water splitting, solar cells, sensors, photo catalysis, telecommunication, etc. owing to its chemical stability, low toxicity and large energy gap of 3.2 eV [7-11].

In particular, ZrO_2 is used as catalyst for photocatalytic decolorization of organic pollutants due to their rich catalytic efficiency and nontoxic end products. With

the evolution of ink, fabric, Paint and paper industries, large amount of pollutants containing organic dyes are released, which is dangerous to the nature. Thus a suitable and economic route (photo reduction, photocatalytic) is very much required to decrease the number of the pollutants before releasing into the water environment. It was observed that many researchers doped rare earth ions into the host lattice to enhance the catalytic activities. Among RE ions, Sm³⁺ used as suitable activator which shows intense luminescence, thin bands in visible and UV spectrum due to f orbital transitions which do not interact with the ligand orbitals [12,13].

In present study, we prepared Sm^{3+} (1-9 mol%) activated ZrO2nanostructured thin films by sol-gel route. structural, optical and photocatalytic studies of ZrO2:Sm3+(1-9 mol%) nanostructured thin films were investigated and discussed in detail.

EXPERIMENTAL

A series of Sm³⁺ activated ZrO₂ thin films were synthesized on glass substrate via sol-gel technique by using analytical grade with 99% purity Zirconium of acetate Dihydrate (Zr(CH₂COO)₂.2H₂O) (used as precursor), Sodium hydroxide (NaOH), Ethanol (CH₂COOH)(reagent), Samarium(Sm₂O₂) and distilled water(solvent medium). In this method stoichiometric amount of Sodium Hydroxide and Zirconium Acetate Dihydrate dissolved in suitable capacity of distilled water in separate beakers and well stirred with a duration of 5 minutes then both solutions were poured to the beaker, then ethanol and dopant was added to drop wise, then the solution was deposited on glass substrates via the dip coating route with 20 mm/min of withdrawal speed, then thin films were dried out by keeping in oven with temperature of about 200 °C for 2hrs further followed by Calcination at 500 °C for 1 h to eliminate the organic compounds from the thin films.

CATALYTIC STUDIES

Photocatalytic experimental studies were carried for the decolourisation of AR dye by taking 250 ml dye solution of 20 ppm and 60 mg of prepared catalyst were taken in a circular glass beaker (surface area of 176.6 cm²) under UV light(mercury lamp) source and Irradiation was carried out by focusing UV light into the mixture for the period of 105 minutes. Further, reaction mixture of ~ 5 ml was taken out in equal interval of times (~15 min) to evaluate degradation rate of the prepared material.

RESULTS AND DISCUSSIONS

Fig.1a indicates the XRD results of pure and 1-9 mol % Sm3+ doped thin films prepared by sol-gel method. All the obtained peaks at (100), (002), (101), (102), (110), (103), (200), (112) and (201) were well indexed with the [JCPDS Card No. 36- 1451] and confirm the hexagonal wurtzite structure of the prepared sample [14]. Also it was noticed that no other peaks (impurity) were observed in the XRD profile indicates the purity of the sample and sharp peaks confirms the crystallinity of the material. Further, Debye– Scherrer's equation and WH method was employed (Fig.1b) to estimate the average crystallite size of the material and relation is expressed as fallows [15,16].

$$d = \frac{K\lambda}{\beta \cos\theta} \tag{1}$$

$$\beta \cos\theta = \frac{0.9\lambda}{D} + 4\varepsilon \sin\theta \tag{2}$$

Where, K: constant, λ : wavelength of X-ray, β : full width half maximum and ϵ : strain, equation 2 gives straight line between '4sin θ ' and ' $\beta \cos\theta$ ' (Fig.2a), slope of the line gives the strain and the intercept on y-axis gives crystallite size (D), dislocation density and σ_{stress} were calculated using the following equations and all the estimated results are tabulated in Table 1.

$$\delta = \frac{1}{D^2} \tag{3}$$

$$\sigma_{\rm stress} = \epsilon E \tag{4}$$

Further, unit cell volume and lattice parameters were calculated for the plane (101) using the following relations was found to be 51 Å3 and a = b = 3.255 Å, c = 5.2016 Å, respectively.

Addition of dopant ions did not alter the crystalline nature of the material, however slight modifications in the lattice parameters was observed which is owing to the dissimilarity in the ionic radius between the Sm³⁺ and the host. Peak intensity decreases with addition of dopant concentration was noticed which is owing to the local symmetry breakdown [15].



Fig.1a. X-Ray diffraction patterns of ZrO₂:Sm³⁺ (1-9 mol %) thin films



Fig. 1b. W-H patterns of ZrO₂:Sm³⁺(1-9 mol %) thin films Table 1. Lattice parameters of Sm³⁺(1- 9 mol %) doped

ZrO.	samples
$L_{1}O_{2}$	sampies

	Crystallite	Dislocation	Micro-	Crystallite
ZrO ₂ :Sm ³⁺	Size (nm)	density δ	strain ɛ	Size (nm)
	Scherrer's	10 ⁻³	(10^{-3})	W-H plot
0 mol %	26	1.47	1.12	23
1 mol %	30	1.11	1.10	25
3mol %	32	0.97	1.08	26
5 mol %	33	0.91	1.09	29
7 mol %	34	0.86	1.02	30
9 mol %	36	0.77	1.0	33

Surface morphology and shape of the prepared materials were examined by Field effective Scanning electron microscopic technique (FESEM) and the obtained FESEM pictures illustrated in the Fig.2. FESEM images illustrate the nano-spirals, nano-rings, spherical shaped morphology, small voids with well-defined boundaries; also rod shaped morphology was noticed.



Fig.2. FESEM images ZrO₂: Sm³⁺ thinfilms

Optical studies of pure and doped ZrO_2 thinfilms was characterised by UV–visible diffused reflectance spectroscopy, obtained results are depicted in Fig. 3 and the DRS spectra shows low absorption wavelength at 374 nm indicates good optical quality of prepared materials which is owing to large exciton binding energy.



Fig. 3. DRS spectra of ZrO2:Sm3+(1-9 mol %) thin films

Optical band gap of ZrO_2 and ZrO_2 : Sm^{3+} thin films (Fig. 5(b) was calculated by using well known Kubelka-Munk function F(R), and relation is [17].



Fig. 4. Band gap spectra of ZrO₂:Sm³⁺(1-9 mol %) thin films

Fig. 5 indicates the UV-VIS spectra of the AR dye in presence of Sm^{3+} activated ZrO_2 thin films under various illumination times of UV light.



Fig. 5. Absorbance spectra of ZrO₂:Sm³⁺ (7 mol%) Photocatalyst.

It was noted that absorption peak of AR dye decreases, indicates the degradation of AR molecules under UV light irradiation. Further, insignificant degradation of AR dye was observed in dark conditions and in the absence of ZrO₂ which confirms that degradation of AR dye is due to presence of photo excited Sm³⁺ activated ZrO₂ samples. The trend of AR degradation with the presence of prepared 1-9 mol % of Sm³⁺ activated ZrO₂ thinfilms s under UV light irradiation are given in Fig. 6 and 95% of AR dyes were degraded during 105 min. The photo catalyst activity of ZrO₂: Sm³⁺ samples are ranked in the order of 7 mol ZrO_2 : $Sm^{3+} > 5$ mol % ZrO_2 : $Sm^{3+} > 3 \mod \% ZrO_2$: $Sm^{3+} > 9 \mod \% ZrO_2$: $Sm^{3+} > 1 \mod \% ZrO_2$: Sm^{3+} . Langmuir-Hinshelwood kinetics model was used to degradation of AR dye and its kinetics are represented as $\ln (C/Co) = -k t$, Where k be the rate of constant apparent reaction, C be the AR initial concentration, t be the reaction time and Co be the concentration of AR dye with t, and the obtained kinetics values prepared material are given in Table 2. [18-22].

The improved catalytic activity was noted for 7 mol % doped ZrO_2 : Sm^{3+} catalyst under UV light was observed due to separation of charge carriers which is attributed to the excess production of hydroxyl radicals and absorption band shift to longer wavelengths. Many researchers reported that catalytic performances of the prepared material are based on the factors such as

The Indian Journal of Technical Education, Special Issue, May 2023

crystallite size, morphologies, textures and the dopant concentration. Among, the morphologies of the material and activator concentration played an key role on the photo catalytic activities [23].



Fig. 6. Plot of % degradation of AR dye under UV light

Table 2. Kinetics studies on Sm ³⁺ (1- 9 mol %) doped ZrO ₂
thinfilms under UV light illumination

Photocatalysts	% D	$K \times 10^{-3} min^{-1}$
$ZrO_2:Sm^{3+}(1 \mod \%)$	83	23
$ZrO_2:Sm^{3+}(3 mol \%)$	92	27
$ZrO_2:Sm^{3+}$ (5 mol %)	93	28
$ZrO_2:Sm^{3+}$ (7 mol %)	95	29
$ZrO_2:Sm^{3+}$ (9 mol %)	91.5	26

Addition precise quantity of sm³⁺ cations leads to the production of defects which act as trap centres, results in a elevated surface barrier, narrower space charge region, however disproportionate quantity of sm3+ in the catalyst may lead to creation of defects, act as the recombination centres which adecrease the catalytic efficiency. In the present study, ZrO₂:Sm³⁺ thin films exhibit higher surface-to-volume ratios resulting in the brilliant photocatalytic degradation of AR under UV light.

CONCLUSION

Sol-gel synthetic route was used for in-situ synthesis of $ZrO_2:Sm^{3+}$ (1-9 mol %) thin films. Crystallite size and Hexagonal Wurtzite structure of the $ZrO_2:Sm^{3+}$ catalyst was confirmed by XRD results. $ZrO_2:Sm^{3+}$ (1-9 mol %) catalysts prepared by sol-gel route exhibits excellent photocatalytic activity under light, attributed due to

morphology and higher content of oxygen vacancies. All the obtained results indicate that of Sm^{3+} activated ZrO_2 material is a suitable prominent catalyst for degradation of pollutants.

REFERENCES

- 1. Kang B S, Ren F, Heo Y W, Tien LC, Norton D P, and Pearton S J. 2005. Appl Phys Letts 86:112-105
- 2. Batista P D, and Mulato M, 2005. Appl. Phys. Letts. 87:143-508
- 3. Soomro M Y, Hussain I, Bano N, Hussain S, Nur O, and Willander M, 2012. Appl Phys A. 106(1):151–156
- Wei A, Sun X W, Wang J X, Lei Y, Cai X P, Li C M, Dong Z L, and Huang W, 2006. Appl. Phys. Letts. 89:123-902
- 5. Kim Jin Suk, Park Won I l, Lee Chul-Ho, and Yi Gyu-Chul, 2006. J. Korean Phys. Soc. 49:16-35
- 6. Kumar N, Dorfman A, and Hahm J, 2006. Nanotechnology 17:2875
- 7. Iqbal T, Khan M A, and Mahmood H, 2018. Mater. Lett. 224: 59–63
- Gao M, Yang J, Sun T, Zhang Z, Zhang D, Huang D, Lin H, Fang Y, and Wang X, 2019. Appl. Catal. B: Environ. 243: 734–740
- 9. Shao Z, Zeng T, He Y, Zhang D, and Pu X, 2019. Chem. Eng. J. 359: 485–495
- 10. Tang Y, Li X, Zhang D, Pu X, Ge B, and Huang Y, 2019. Mater. Res. Bull. 110; 214–222
- 11. Shao Z, He Y, Zeng T, Yang Y, Pu X, and Ge B, 2018. J. Dou, J. Alloys Compd. 769: 889–897
- 12. Giri photo catalytic
- 13. Anilkumar M R, Nagaswarupa H P, Anantharaju K S, Gurushantha K, Pratapkumar C, Prashantha S C, Shashi Shekhar T R, Nagabhushana H, Sharma S C, Vidya Y S and Daruka Prasad, 2015. Mater. Res. Express 2: 35-48
- Sangeetaa M, Karthik K V, Ravishankar R, Anantharaju K S, Nagabhushanad H, Jeetendra K, Vidya Y S, and Renuka L. 2017. Mat. Today: Pro. 4:11791–11798
- Girish K M, Naik R, Prashantha S C, Nagabhushana H, Nagaswarupa H P, Anantha Raju K S, Premkumar H B, Sharma S C, and Nagabhushana B M, 2015. Spectr Acta. A. Mol. Biom. Spectr, 138: 857–865
- Williamson K, and Hall W H, 1953. X-ray line broadening from filed aluminium and Wolfram, Acta. Metal.1: 22-31

- 17. Kubelka P, and Munk F, 1931. Z. Tech Physik, 12: 593– 601
- 18. UsuI H. 2009. J. Colloid Interface Sci. 336: 667-74
- Yu J, and Yu X. 2008. Environ. Sci. Technol. 42: 4902– 4907
- 20. Xie J, Li Y, Zhao W, Bian L, and Wei Y, 2008. J. Colloid Interface Sci. 326: 433–438
- 21. Dong P, Yang B, Liu C, Xu F, Xi X, Hou G, and Shao R, 2017. RSC Adv. 7: 947
- 22. Alberici R M, and Jardim W F, 1997. Appl. Catal. B 14: 55
- 23. Li D, Hameda H, Kawano.K, and Saito. N, 2001. J. Japan. Soc. Pow. Pow. Met. 48: 1044 –1050

SYNTHESIS AND CHARACTERIZATION OF FE-CO-NI NANOCOMPOSITES FOR PHOTOCATALYTIC DYE DEGRADATION IN WASTE WATER

SHYLAJA. K. R, NEELAM PATIL RADHIKA

Department of Chemistry, K S Institute of Technology, Bengaluru

MALINI. S, KALYAN RAJ

Department of Chemistry, B.M.S. College of Engineering, Bengaluru

N. SURESHA

Department of Chemistry, Bangalore Institute of Technology, Bangalore

ABSTRACT

Bimetallic nanomaterial composites are of great interest in scientific research and applications in dye degradation from wastewater. Iron-Cobalt and Nickle nanoparticles with enlarged spherical cages evenly distributed on the exterior of the activated carbon has attracted the attention of researchers in recent times. Examination of photocatalytic degradation of Crystal Violet (CV) is of high importance due to its relevance in unravelling the physicochemical along with electrochemical properties of metal oxide composites. In the current investigation, Cobalt oxides synthesized via combustion route were probed using X-Ray Diffraction (XRD) and implemented to degrade crystal violet (CV) dye from waste water. by observing the variation of concentration of the used photo catalyst. Langmuir and Freundlich isotherms were implemented to examine the equilibrium which indicated a good agreement with results obtained with Langmuir's model. Application of Langmuir equation showed the highest capacity of 79.2168 mg/g and the kinetic study showed the dye adsorption over the surface of Nanoparticles fulfilled pseudo-second-order kinetics model. A comparison of Photocatalysis, adsorption and electrolysis is made for degrading the CV dye. 61.5 % and 59.80 % of elimination of dye was observed through photocatalysis and adsorption respectively with initial CV concentration of 25mg/L and 50mg/L respectively. However, electrolysis showed 86 % elimination at a concentration of 50mg/L.

KEYWORDS : Ferricoxide/Cobalt oxide/NickelOxide/Grapheneoxide, Crystalviolet, Nanoparticles, Photocatalysis.

1. INTRODUCTION

Now a day's people are concerned throughout the globe about the access to clean water. Population increase is drastically increasing which automatically leads to decrease in availability of fresh water. A severe need for efficient materials in purification of water with low cost and energy [1] is arising. In this regard nanoscale materials play a vital role due to compact size, huge surface area, large pores and various lattice defects [2]. Nanoparticles are very much suitable for environmental remediation because of its eco-friendly nature, good oxidizing ability, economical and prolonged stability against photo corrosion and chemical corrosion [3]. Interestingly, the combination of UVlight and TiO₂ removes both chemical species and pathogens simultaneously in polluted water [4]. Semiconductor TiO, has been reported to possess oxidative and reductive catalytic nature towards some organic and inorganic pollutants. Hence, it is observed that the total organic carbon is removed from waters polluted with organic wastes using Nano particles aided with ultraviolet light [5]. Azo dyes in water with spectrum of colors offering 10,000 shades of color are found to be toxic, carcinogen and bio recalcitrant [6]. These are squandered in mechanical effluents in wrapping up forms [7].

Colors and shades are widely used in various industries despite its toxicity and harmful release Around 10,000 sorts of colors and shades are delivered every year around the world. About20-30% colors are squandered in mechanical effluents amid the material coloring the wrapping up forms [7]. Colors and shades are broadly utilized, within the materials, plastics, calfskin and restorative industry to color items Most of the dyestuffs, counting azo colors are poisonous and must be expelled over release, into accepting photosynthesis [8]. In present research is done by using mixed metal oxide nanocomposites for dye degradation studies.

2. EXPERIMENTAL

2.1 Reagents

Analytical grade Ni(NO3)2.6H2O ,Co(No3)2.6H2O, Fe(NO3)2.6H2O, Graphene powder, citric acid anhydrous and other reagents of high purity was purchased from Sigma Aldrich and hence was used without any additional purification.

3. SYNTHESIS

3.1: Sample 1: Synthesis of nano metal oxides by using combustion method

Ni(NO3)2.6H2O and Co(No3)2.6H2O were used as precursors for the cations. citric acid anhydrous was used as the fuel.

Stoichiometric ratios of Nickel nitrate hexahydrate Ni(NO3)2.6H2O, cobalt nitrate hexahydrate

Co(No3)2.6H2O were dissolved in distilled water and Stoichiometric amount of of citric acid anhydrous was added. The solution was magnetically agitated for 10 minutes. After homogenization, the solutions were heated at 500 °C for 30 minutes.

3.2: Sample 2

Ni(NO3)2.6H2O and Co(No3)2.6H2O were used as precursors for the cations. citric acid anhydrous was used as the fuel.

Stoichiometric ratios of Ni(NO3)2.6H2O and cobalt nitrate hexahydrate Co(No3)2.6H2O were dissolved in distilled water and required amount of citric acid anhydrous and graphene powder was added. The solution was stirred using a magnetically agitated for 30 minutes to get homogeneous solution followed by heating at 450- 500 °C for 60 minutes.

3.3: Sample 3

Fe(NO3)2.6H2O and Co(No3)2.6H2O were used as precursors for the cations. citric acid anhydrous was used as the fuel. Stoichiometric ratios of Fe(NO3)2.6H2O and Co(No3)2.6H2O were dissolved in distilled water and required amount of of citric acid anhydrous and graphene powder was added .The solution was stirred using a magnetic stirrer for 20 minutes to get homogeneous solution. After homogenization, the solutions were at 450- 500 °C for 60 minutes.

4. CHARACTERIZATION

X-ray diffraction (XRD) analysis:



Fig. 1. XRD profiles nanoparticles of different metal oxides. These profiles indicate the formation of crystalline particles of a particular material, XRD profile nickel oxide, cobalt oxide

Sample 1: The XRD indicates the crystallinity of the materials and crystal phases. The prepared sample was cobalt oxide, nickel oxide nanocomposite shown in the

The Indian Journal of Technical Education, Special Issue, May 2023

Fig: 1 .The sample XRD pattern showed different peaks at 31.680, 36.460, 55.530, 65.270 which matches ICDD card number 01-074-1656.[9]



Fig. 2. XRD profiles nanoparticles of different metal oxides. These profiles indicate the formation of crystalline particles of XRD profile grapheme coated nickel oxide, cobalt oxide.

Sample 2: The XRD indicates the crystallinity of the materials and crystal phases. The prepared sample was graphene coated cobalt oxide, nickel oxide nanocomposite shown in the Fig: 2.The sample XRD pattern showed different peaks which matches PDF:38-0175.[10]



Fig. 3. XRD profiles nanoparticles of different metal oxides. These profiles indicate the formation of crystalline particles of XRD profile grapheme coated cobalt oxide and iron oxide.

Sample 3: The XRD indicates the crystallinity of the materials and crystal phases. The prepared sample was graphene coated iron oxide, nickel oxide nanocomposite shown in the Fig: 3,The sample XRD pattern showed different peaks which matches JCPDS #22-1086.[11]

5. PHOTOCATALYTIC DEGRADATION OF PHARMACEUTICAL POLLUTANTS

5.1: Crystal violet dye degradation

The action of varying quantity of catalyst (Sample-1) on degradation of CV was analysed using varying quantities of catalyst from 0.0005 mg to 0.0015 mg by keeping CV concentration of 5.0 mg/L. The

degradation effectiveness of catalyst Sample-1 on CV is shown in Figures 4 & 5, which shows that the rate of degradation elevates significantly with increasing quantity of catalyst. The reactivity is due to the increase in active sites on the surface with the increasing quantity of catalyst sample-1 up to 0.15 mg. The maximum degradation efficiency was 43.90 percentage in 120 minutes.

The action of varying quantity of catalyst (Sample-2) on degradation of CV was examined varying catalyst from 0.0005 mg to 0.0015 mg by maintaining CV concentration of 5.0 mg/L. The degradation effectiveness of Nano catalyst Sample-2 on CV is shown in Figures 6 & 7, which makes evident that the rate of degradation elevates drastically with a high quantity of catalyst. The observed reactivity is due to the increase in active sites on the surface with the increase in amount of catalyst sample-2 up to 0.10 mg. Due to increased turbidity of suspension caused by absorption when the quantity of catalyst exceeded 0.0010 mg, the penetration of 41.1percentage was obtained with 0.0010mg of catalyst sample-2 in 120 minutes.

The consequence of amount of catalysts (Sample-3) on degradation of CV was evaluated utilizing varying quantity of catalyst from 0.0005 mg to 0.0015 mg by keeping CV concentration of 5.0 mg/L. The degradation effectiveness of catalyst Sample-3 on CV is shown in figure 8 & 9, which shows that the rate of degradation increases significantly with increase in amount of catalyst. This is due to the increased availability of active sites on the surface with the increase in amount of catalyst sample-1 up to 0.15 mg. The best degradation efficiency of 85.5 percentage was achieved with 0.0010mg of catalyst sample-3 in 120 minutes.



Figure-4: Effect of amount of catalyst (Sample- 1) on Degradation of CV ([CV]= 5.0 mg/L, T=298K)



Figure 5. Effect of amount of catalyst (Sample-1) on Degradation of CV ([CV]= 10.0 mg/L, T=298K)



Figure 6. Effect of amount of catalyst(Sample-2) on Degradation of CV ([CV]= 5.0 mg/L, T=298K)



Figure 7. Effect of amount of catalyst(Sample-2) on Degradation of CV ([CV]= 5.0 mg/L, T=298K)



Figure 8. Effect of amount of catalyst(Sample-2) on Degradation of CV ([CV]= 5.0 mg/L, T=298K)



Figure 9. Effect of amount of catalyst(Sample-2) on Degradation of CV ([CV]= 5.0 mg/L, T=298K)



Figure-10. Effect of amount of catalyst (Sample-1) on Degradation of ARS ([ARS]= 10.0 mg/L, T=298K)

The Indian Journal of Technical Education, Special Issue, May 2023



Figure 11. Effect of amount of catalyst (Sample-1) on Degradation of ARS ([ARS]=10.0 mg/L, T=298K)



Figure 12. Effect of amount of catalyst(Sample-2) on Degradation of ARS ([ARS]= 5.0 mg/L, T=298K)



Figure 13. Effect of amount of catalyst(Sample-2) on Degradation of ARS ([ARS]= 10.0 mg/L, T=298K)



Figure 14. Effect of amount of catalyst(Sample-2) on Degradation of ARS ([ARS]= 5.0 mg/L, T=298K)



Figure 15. Effect of amount of catalyst(Sample-2) on Degradation of ARS ([ARS]= 5.0 mg/L, T=298K)

CONCLUSION

It is evident from the present study that degradation of CV dye is higher in the first 30 minutes and over 80.0% degradation was obtained by absorption of dye on the exterior of the catalyst and then reaching 92.89% in 150 minutes. A depleted degradation rate was observed under similar conditions in the absence of light with degradation being 60.0% in 150 minutes observed in the direct UV light. The degradation rate was only 17.80% in the same period in the direct UV light without catalyst. With the catalyst exceeding 2.5 mg, the turbidity of suspension hindered the penetration of sun light and the catalyst aggregates scattered the light thereby proving to be not beneficial. Maximum degradation rate was observed with 0.0025g/L of catalyst. Catalyst Sample- 2 & 3 can acts as an efficient catalyst for degradation of CV dye. Sample-1, 2 & 3 could not act as an efficient catalyst for degradation of ARS dye due to a similar charge.

REFERENCES

- 1. Shannon M A, Bohn P W, Elimelech M, Georgiadis J G, Mariñas B J, Mayes A M, 2001, "Nature", 452; 301
- 2. Oper I. Lagadic A, Volodin, Klabunde K J,1997. Chem. Mate. 9; 2468.
- J.C. Yu, J. Yu, W. Ho, Z. Jiang, L. Zhang, 2012, Chem. Mater. 14; 3808
- 4. Bhawana P, Fulekar M H, 2012, J. chem. Sci, 2; 90
- 5. Norasavage M S. Diallo, 2005, J. Nanopart. Res, 7; 331

- 6. da Silva Leite L, de souzaMaselliB, deAragao Umbuzeiro G,Pupo, 2016. NogueiraChemosphere 148
- 7. Patil, Manohar R, Shrivastava V S, 2014. DerChem 8-17
- 8. Mukhtar M, Munisa L, Saleh R. Mater, 2012. SciAppl, 543-551
- 9. Waseeq Ur Rehman, Muhammad Tayyab Noor Khattak, Abdu Saeed, 2023. J Mater Sci:Mater Electron 34:15
- 10. Xi Lei, Zheru Shi, Xiao Wang, Ting Wang, Jiebing Ai, Peiling Shi, Rui Xue, Hao Guo, Wu Yang, 2018, Colloids and surfaces A549, 76-85
- M A Hodlevska, R I Zapukhlyak, V M Boychuk, V O Kotsyubynsky, A I Kachmar & S V Fedorchenko, 2021, Molecular crystals and liquid crystals,717:1, 60-71

INDIAN BENTONITE CLAY DERIVED GREEN CATALYTIC MATERIAL FOR ESTERIFICATION OF P-CRESOL WITH PHENYL ACETIC ACID UNDER MICROWAVE IRRADIATION

HEMANTH KUMAR. C. M, RADHIKA RAO. B, KAVYA. A. R, VIJENDRA KUMAR. K. B

Research Scholar, Chemistry Research Center, Department of Chemistry, Bangalore Institute of Technology, Bengaluru, Karnataka

PRAKRUTHI. H. R

Assistant Professor, Department of Chemistry, Bangalore Institute of Technology, Bengaluru, Karnataka

D. M. GURUDATT

Department of Studies in Organic Chemistry, University of Mysore, Mysuru, Karnataka

PRAKASHA. K. C

Assistant Professor, Department of Chemistry, KLE Society's P. C. Jabin Science College, Hubballi, Karnataka

CHANDRASHEKARA. B. M

Professor, Department of Chemistry, Bangalore Institute of Technology, Bengaluru, Karnataka

ABSTRACT

A green heterogeneous catalytic material derived from treatment of Indian Bentonite clay with aqueous solution of p-Toluene sulphonic acid (p-TSA) is reported for esterification of phenyl acetic acid with p-cresol. p-TSA treatment not only introduced acidity to the clay sample but also resulted in improved surface characteristics. The change in surface characteristics of catalyst samples after treating with various concentrations of p-TSA was characterized using various techniques like XRD, BET surface area and TPD ammonia. Reaction conditions were optimized and under optimum conditions effect of various catalyst samples and mode of heating in the esterification of phenyl acetic acid with pcresol were investigated. Bentonite clay treated with 0.5M p-TSA was found to exhibit optimum activity for the said reaction. Reactions under solvent free microwave irradiation were found to be advantageous and faster compared to that of conventional heating methods.

KEYWORDS : Heterogeneous, Bentonite clay, p-cresyl phenyl acetate

The Indian Journal of Technical Education, Special Issue, May 2023

1. INTRODUCTION

Clays are the naturally occurring, abundantly available, low cost, eco-friendly, noncorrosive, and nontoxic materials. Several categories of clay minerals such as kaolin's, Smectite and palygorskites-sepiolite with different structure and composition are available [4]. These materials can be modified appropriately to alter their pore size, structure and activity and are used as heterogeneous catalysts to catalyze many organic transformations [1-3]. Among these clays, Smectite type are most commonly used as heterogeneous catalysts for organic transformations mainly due to their large surface area, varying physicochemical property, outstanding surface acidity and recyclability [3]. Smectic clays occur in different forms such as Na, Ca, Mg, Fe and Li-Al silicates. Na or Ca composed smectic clays are known as Bentonites which exhibit 2:1 layered structure in which central octahedral sheet is sandwiched between two silica tetrahedral sheets. Octahedral sheet consists of Mg²⁺ or Al³⁺ metal cations surrounded by six oxygen or hydroxyl anions. Tetrahedral sheet consists of Si⁴⁺ cation surrounded by four oxygen anions. Replacement of an Al³⁺ in octahedral layer with Mg²⁺ results in a net negative charge. These negative charges present in octahedral layers are compensated by positive charges of Ca²⁺ or Mg²⁺ cations present in the interlayer position. Further, these interlayer cations are exchangeable and can be replaced with varieties of different charged chemical species. Hence, physicochemical properties of Bentonites can be easily modulated to obtain verities of materials with different pore size, surface area which could be employed as heterogeneous solid catalytic materials in many organic transformations [3,4].

Several methods have been reported for the modification of Clay minerals to impart catalytic activity. Few of them are acid activation, cation exchange, and pillaring[3].Acid activation includes, treating clays with mineral acids such as hydrochloric, sulphuric, nitric and phosphoric acids to replace interlayer cations with hydrogen ions [5].In cationic exchange process, the interlayer cations naturally present in clays are exchanged with cations of higher charge or polarizability[3]. Acidity of these cation exchanged clays is mainly attributed to dissociation of water molecules coordinated to cation to release proton. Ability of cation to dissociate coordinated water to produce proton depends on polarizability of cation. The Polarizing effect of exchangeable cations like Al³⁺, Ce^{3+} , Fe^{3+} , Cr^{3+} depends on charge to size ratio and also to number of coordinated water molecules. Cations with smaller size, greater charge and more number of coordinated water molecules can dissociate water easily, thus imparting higher acidity to Bentonite clay [5,6]. In case of pillared clays, stable inorganic molecules are introduced between the layers so as to increase the interlayer spacing subsequently enhancing surface area. Pillaring can prevent collapsing of layered structure of clay upon heating [7]. Porous clay hetero-structure (PCH) modified pillared clays use surfactant directed method to bring silica pillars into the interlamellar site of the clay [3]. Various semi-synthetic materials derived from clay by impregnation of different metal oxides which exhibit wide range of surface properties, acidity and thermal stability have been reported [8,9]. These modified forms of Bentonite clay have been extensively employed in waste water treatment, synthesis of biodiesel and various organic transformations such as condensation, esterification, alkylation, acylation, reduction, oxidation, addition and substitution reactions [3,10].

p-cresyl phenyl acetate is an ester used extensively in industrial applications mainly in the production of floral soaps, perfumes, fragrance's, flavor's, cosmetics, and plasticizers.

Due to their ease of availability, environmental friendliness and cost effectiveness, modified clays have been used as heterogeneous catalysts for esterification reactions under both solvent and solvent free conditions. These catalysts are considered to be green solid acid catalysts due to its non-toxicity, eco-friendliness and reusability. Organic reactions carried out through microwave irradiation have more advantages than conventional heating due to rapid in core volume heating, less time with higher reaction rate. Combination of microwave heating with eco -friendly clay derived heterogeneous catalyst under solvent free conditions can be considered to be an effective Green synthesis approach for the esterification reaction.

Several homogeneous and heterogeneous acid catalysts have been employed in the esterification of phenyl acetic acid with p-cresol. Reddy.et.al.[14] reported synthesis of pcresyl phenyl acetate using metal ion exchanged clays in the presence of solvent under conventional heating. This method uses organic solvent which is hazardous and toxic and also involves longer reaction time and tedious separation procedure.

Thus in the present work, we report Indian Bentonite clay derived heterogeneous green catalyst for the esterification of phenyl acetic acid with p-cresol. Clay was activated to enhance acidity by treating with para-Toluene sulphuric acid (p-TSA). Esterification of phenyl acetic acid with p-cresol was investigated under solvent free conditions using microwave irradiation. This novel method of using reusable, separable, heterogeneous clay catalyst under solvent free condition with microwave irradiation is a green route for synthesis of p-cresyl phenyl acetate.

2. MATERIALS AND METHODS / EXPERIMENTAL

Finely powdered Bentonite clay was procured from Asha Pura chemicals, India. Chemicals used in the study namely Para Toluene sulphonic acid (p-TSA), phenyl acetic acid, pcresol were procured from S.D. Fine Chemicals, India. Para cresol was distilled and dried over anhydrous CaCl2 prior to use. Phenyl acetic acid and p-TSA were used directly without further purification.

2.1. Activation of Bentonite clay using p-TSA

Bentonite clay was activated by treating with p-TSA. In a typical procedure, 10 g of bentonite clay was weighed into a 250ml round bottom flask and 100mL of aqueous solution of p-TSA of known concentration (0.1M, 0.3M, 0.5M and 1M) was added. The mixture was heated under microwave radiation at 100°C for 10 min. Microwave heating was carried out in START-S microwave lab station equipped with inbuilt infrared temperature control and magnetic stirrer. After the completion of treatment, the reaction mixture was centrifuged and washed with hot water multiple times until centrifugate was neutral to separate solid clay catalyst. Further, catalyst samples were dried at 373K for 5hrs and finally ground to a fine powder. The clay catalyst samples treated with 0.1M, 0.3M, 0.5M and 1M p-TSA solutions were designated as 0.1M PBT, 0.3M PBT, 0.5M PBT, and 1MPBT respectively. The untreated clay was designated as UBT.

2.2. Characterization of p-TSA treated clay catalysts

The catalyst samples, 0.1M PBT, 0.3M PBT, 0.5M PBT, 1MPBT and UBT were characterized using various techniques. Bruker powder X-ray diffractometer was used to obtain Powder X-ray diffraction data. Quanta Chrome Nova-1000 BET surface analyzer was used to measure Brunauer-Emmett-Teller (BET) specific surface area and nitrogen adsorption-desorption isotherms at liquid nitrogen temperature. Temperature programmed desorption (TPD) with ammonia was employed to measure the total acidity of original and p-TSA treated clays samples.

2.3. Catalytic activity of p-TSA treated clay catalyst (Esterification)

Esterification reactions were carried out under microwave irradiation in START-S microwave lab station which is equipped with software and an inbuilt infrared temperature sensor to control the temperature online.

In a typical procedure, a known amount of p-cresol, phenyl acetic acid (Scheme-1) and clay catalyst samples were taken in a 50 ml microwave glass reactor vessel. Teflon coated magnetic stirrer was added to the reaction mixture and reactor vessel is fitted with an air cooled condenser. The reaction was carried out under microwave heating with constant stirring at a specific temperature and for a known period of time without using solvent. In order to evaluate the activity of UBT, 0.1M PBT, 0.3M PBT, 0.5M PBT and 1M PBT clay samples, various reaction parameters such as reaction temperature, mole ratio of reactants, reaction time and amount of catalyst on conversion of phenyl acetic acid were studied. Reaction mixture was analyzed in Gas chromatograph, Chemito (GC1000) equipped with TR-WAX capillary column (30 m length, 0.32 mm thickness and 0.5m ID) with Flame ionization detector.



Scheme -1: Schematic representation of esterification of phenyl acetic acid with p-cresol

3. RESULTS AND DISCUSSION

3.1. Characterization of p-TSA treated catalysts

Powder XRD patterns of clay samples are shown in Figure 1. No significant change was observed between the XRD patterns of original and p-TSA treated bentonite clay samples. This clearly shows that structural integrity of the clay remains intact after p-TSA treatment. Enhanced specific surface area, acidity (Bronsted and Lewis) and both micro and mesoporosity was observed with increase in the p-TSA concentration from 0.1M to 0.5M (Table-1). However, beyond 0.5Mp-TSA, concentration no significant changes in catalyst characteristics were observed.



Figure 1. XRD patterns of untreated and p-TSA-treated clays

3.1.1. Surface area of p-TSA treated catalysts

The surface characteristics like the specific surface area, average pore volume and average pore diameter of untreated and p-TSA-treated clays were tabulated in Table 1. The surface area of Bentonite clay increased with increase in the concentration of p-TSA. It was found to be 29.6 m²g⁻¹ for UBT and 133 m²g⁻¹ for 0.5M PBT. This increase in surface area with increase in concentration of p-TSA is apparently due to removal of Al from octahedral layer, creating a vacant space in hexagonal rings of clay structure. The Al thus removed from framework is moved to interlayer space and contributes to acidity. A significant increase in surface area is achieved from 0.1M PBT to 0.5M PBT due to removal of available aluminum ions in the framework. Further, after all accessible aluminium ions are completely removed; there is no much change in surface area with increase in concentration of p-TSA to 1 M.

3.1.2. Acidity of p-TSA treated catalysts

Acidity of the acid treated clay samples is mainly due to removal of aluminium from the frame work of clay and subsequent movement to interlayer space where it dissociates coordinated water molecules producing protons. These protons are responsible for the Bronsted acidity of the acid treated catalyst [14]. Bronsted acidity of the p-TSA treated clays is also attributed to same phenomenon. To measure the acidity of the clay catalysts samples TPD ammonia was employed. Here, one ammonia molecule is adsorbed on each Bronsted acid site forming NH4+ ion [19]. Ammonia desorbed in µmol/g of clay as measured by TPD ammonia technique for various clay samples is given in the Table 1. As the concentration of p-TSA increases from 0.1M to 0.5M the amount of ammonia desorbed is also increased. Further no change in ammonia desorption is observed when concentration of p-TSA increases from 0.5M to 1M. This clearly shows that the amount of Bronsted acid sites increase with increase in the concentration of p-TSA till 0.5M and remains almost same for 1M.

Table 1. Surface characteristics and TPD-NH3 of	of p-Toluene sulphonic	acid treated catalyst samples.
---	------------------------	--------------------------------

Catalyst	Surface area (m ² g ⁻¹)	Average Pore Volume (cm ³ /g)	Average Pore Diameter (Å)	Amount of Interlayer Al (milli equiv./g clay)	TPD ammonia desorbed (µmol/g of clay)
UBT	29.6	0.037	50.27	-	-
0.1M PBT	92.1	0.079	34.10	0.25	62
0.3M PBT	110	0.093	34.93	0.39	153
0.5M PBT	133	0.117	35.31	0.68	218
1M PBT	133	0.117	35.31	0.70	218

3.2. Catalytic synthesis of p-cresyl phenyl acetate

The catalytic activity of the original and p-TSA treated clay samples are evaluated in the esterification of p-cresol with PAA. Reactions were carried out under MW irradiation. For comparison, the esterification reaction was also conducted under conventional heating in a temperature-regulated oil bath equipped with a magnetic stirrer under reflux conditions. Reactions under microwave irradiation were found to proceed at much faster rate than under conventional heating. But, the same conversion and yield was observed in both modes of heating. The reaction carried over the conventional method required 6 hr to achieve maximum yield, whereas the same was accomplished in 60 min under microwave irradiation. This is due to different modes of heat transfer from source to the reaction mixture. In conventional mode, the heat from the source transferred to oil bath, to the reaction mixture through reaction vessel. In this process, there is heat loss each step and also more time is needed to achieve thermal equilibrium. Whereas, in MW mode of heating microwave radiation directly interacts with the change in dipole of the molecules present in reaction mixture resulting rapid molecular rotation and collision leading to in core volumetric rapid heating of reaction mixture. This results in the attainment of thermal equilibrium faster than conventional mode of heating.

3.2.1. Effect of Temperature

In order to study the effect of temperature on the esterification of phenyl acetic acid with para cresol, series of reactions were conducted varying temperature from 363 K to 463 K with 0.5M PBT clay catalyst under otherwise similar experimental conditions with the application of a maximum microwave power of 1000 W. A profound effect of temperature on esterification reaction was observed. The variation in conversion of phenyl acetic acid with temperature is shown in Figure 2. Conversion of phenyl acetic acid increased with the increase in temperature from 363 K to 463 K. This increase in conversion is tandem with increase in temperature indicates the endothermic nature of the reaction.



Figure 2. Effect of Temperature on conversion of phenyl acetic acid

Conditions: Reaction time: 60 minutes, Molar ratio of reactants 1:2, Catalyst amount 1g, Catalyst: 0.5 M PBT, Maximum MW power 1000W.

3.2.2. Effect of Catalyst Amount

In the present study, the catalyst amount was varied in the range of 0.1- 2.0 g to examine the effect of catalyst amount on the conversion of phenyl acetic acid. Figure-3 exhibits the effect of catalyst amount on the conversion of phenyl acetic acid. The conversion increases with an increase in catalyst amount from 0.1 to 1.0g which is apparently due to the hike in the number of active catalytic sites. Beyond 1.0 g, the activity of the catalyst was found to be constant.



Figure-3: Effect of catalyst amount on conversion of phenyl acetic acid

Conditions: Reaction time: 60 minutes, Molar ratio of reactants 1:2, Catalyst: 0.5 M PBT, Temperature: 463 K, Maximum MW power 1000W.

3.2.3. Effect of Reaction Time

The effect of reaction time for synthesis of p-cresyl phenyl acetate was investigated and results are illustrated in Figure 4. An increase in ester yield on increasing in time duration of the reaction from 0 to 60 minutes with microwave irradiation is observed. Subsequently, beyond 60 minutes, there was no appreciable increase in yields. This may be attributed to attainment of reaction equilibrium. For comparison, under otherwise similar conditions, the reactions were conducted with conventional heating varying reaction time duration from 0 to 360 minutes. Conversion increased with increase in time similar to the trend observed with microwave heating, but with much longer duration. Conversion stabilized in 360 minutes under conventional heating compared to 60 minutes under microwave heating. Faster reaction rate under microwave heating is attributed to direct, rapid incore, volumetric heating of reaction mixture under microwave irradiation. However, the final yield and equilibrium conversion was observed to be similar under both modes of heating.



Figure 4. Effect of Reaction time on conversion of phenyl acetic acid

Conditions: Molar ratio of reactants 1:2, Catalyst amount 1g, Catalyst: 0.5 M PBT, Temperature: 463 K.

3.2.4. Effect of Catalyst Type

Catalytic activity of untreated and p-TSA treated clay samples namely as 0.1M PBT, 0.3M PBT, 0.5M PBT,1MPBT and UBT were evaluated under optimum reaction conditions of 463 K, 1.0 g of catalyst, 1:2 mole ratio and for 60 minutes duration under microwave heating. No conversion of phenyl acetic acid was observed on UBT. In case of p-TSA treated clay samples conversion increased from 0.1M PBT to 0.5MPBT. No significant variation is observed between and 0.5M PBT and1M PBT. This variation is in accordance with TPD ammonia desorbed (µmol/g of clay) values. Esterification is a Bronsted acid catalyzed reaction, therefore conversion of phenyl acetic acid is clearly linked to number of acid sites available in the catalyst samples. Number of Bronsted acid sites increased from 0.1M PBT to 0.5M PBT resulting in increased conversion. Similar conversion over 0.5M PBT and 1M PBT samples is due to similar number of acid sites. The results of the study are shown in Table 2.

Table 2. Effect of various p-TSA treated catalysts inEsterification

Catalyst	% Conversion
UBT	19
0.1 M PBT	34
0.3 M PBT	58
0.5 M PBT	76
1 M PBT	76

Conditions: Reaction time: 60 minutes, Molar ratio of reactants 1:2, Catalyst amount 1g, Temperature: 463 K, Maximum MW power 1000W.

3.2.5. Effect of mole ratio of reactants

Effect of molar ratio of reactants on conversion of phenyl acetic acid was studied by varying phenyl acetic acid to p-cresol mole ratio from 3:1 to 1:3 with 1g of 0.5M PBT catalyst at 463 K. No variation in conversion was observed when amount of phenyl acetic acid was increased but, a clear increase in conversion was observed when amount of p-cresol was increased. This clearly indicates the interaction of p-cresol with acid site of the catalyst during esterification. Conversion remained almost same when mole ratio was further increased from 1:2 to 1:3 shown in Table 3 [13].

Table 3. Effect of Mole ratio of reactants

Molar Ratio of Reactants	% Conversion
3:1	29
2:1	38
1:1	54
1:2	76
1:3	77

Conditions: Reaction time: 60 minutes, Catalyst: 0.5 M PBT, Catalyst amount 1g, Temperature: 463 K, Maximum MW power 1000W.

3.2.6. Catalyst Recyclability

Major advantage of a heterogeneous catalytic reaction carried over solid acid catalyst is the recovery and reusability of the catalyst after the reaction. In order to check the reusability of clay catalyst used in this reaction, it was collected after each reaction cycle, washed thoroughly with deionised water, dried at 383 K for about 5 hours and tested again in second cycle under otherwise similar experimental conditions. The results are summarized in Table 4. Activity of regenerated catalyst sample was found to be similar to that of original catalyst even after third cycle. This clearly shows that the catalyst is not deactivated during the reaction and it can be recovered and reused.

76
75
74
72

Table 4. Reusability of the catalyst

Conditions: Reaction time: 60 minutes, Molar ratio of reactants 1:2, Catalyst amount 1g, Catalyst: 0.5 M PBT, Temperature: 463 K, Maximum MW power 1000W.

4. CONCLUSION

Synthesis of p-Cresyl phenyl acetate by esterification of phenyl acetic acid with p-cresol over modified environmental friendly clay derived catalysts under solvent free, microwave irradiation is a green synthesis procedure. The catalyst exhibited good activity as well as selectivity with reusability. Reactions under microwave heating were observed to be very much faster with reaching equilibrium conversion in just 60 minutes compared to 360 minutes under conventional heating. Among various catalysts studied catalyst treated with 0.5 M p-TSA (0.5M PBT) exhibited optimum catalytic activity. The other optimum conditions favoring the formation of p-cresyl phenyl acetate are a temperature of 463 K, mole ratio of 1:2, and catalyst loading of 1g with 60 minutes under microwave irradiation.

REFERENCES

- 1. Gopalpur Nagendrappa. 2011. Organic synthesis using clay and clay-supported catalysts. Applied Clay Science, 53: 106-138.
- Lakshmy Muraleedharan, Bellundagere, M. Chandrashekara, Bangalore. S. Jai Prakash, Yajnavalkya.S.Bhat. 2018. Clay-Based Solid Acid Catalyst for the Alkylation of p-Cresol with tert-Butyl Alcohol. Chemistry Select, 3: 801-808.
- GopalpurNagendrappa, Ravindra Reddy Chowreddy. 2021. Organic Reactions Using Clay and Clay-Supported Catalysts: A Survey of Recent Literature. Catalysis Surveys from Asia, 25: 231-278. DOI: 10.1007/s10563-021-09333-9.
- 4. H.H. Murray.1999. Applied clay mineralogy today and tomorrow, clay minerals 34, 39-49.
- 5. Peter Komadel. 2016. Acid activated clays: Materials in continuous demand. Applied Clay Science.
- 6. M M Mortland and K V Ramane.1968. Surface acidity of smectites in relation to hydration, exchangeable cation, and structure. Clays and clay minerals, vol 16, 393-398,
- Z. Ding,J.T. Kloprogge and R.I. frost. 2001. Porous Clays and Pillared Clays-Based Catalysts. Part 2: A Review of the Catalytic and Molecular Sieve Applications. Journal of Porous Materials. 8: 273–293.
- Juan Antonio Cecilia, M. Dolores Soriano, Alejandro Natoli, Enrique Rodríguez- Castellón and José Manuel López Nieto.2018.Selective Oxidation of Hydrogen Sulfide to Sulfur Using Vanadium Oxide Supported on Porous Clay Heterostructures (PCHs) Formed by Pillars Silica, Silica-Zirconia or Silica-Titania. Materials 11, 1562. DOI : 10.3390 /ma11091562.
- 9. Dwiarso Rubiyanto et.al.2020. Microwave-assisted synthesized porous clay hetero structure-Zn/Si from montmorillonite for citronellal conversion into isopulegol. Mater. Res. Express. DOI: 10.1088/2053-1591/abbda7.
- S. Ramesh, B.S. Jai Prakash, Y.S. Bhat, Enhancing Brønsted acid site activity of ion exchanged montmorillonite by microwave irradiation for ester synthesis. Applied Clay Science 48(1-2):159-163,

2009, DOI:10.1016/j.clay.2009.11.053

- S. Ramesh, B.S. Jai Prakash, Y.S. Bhat. 2012. Microwave-activated p-TSA dealuminated montmorillonite: A new material with improved catalytic activity, Clay Minerals, 47, 231–242. DOI: 10.1180/claymin .2012.047.2.06.
- B.M. Chandra Shekara, B.S. Jai Prakash, and Y.S. Bhat. 2011. Dealumination of Zeolite BEA under Microwave Irradiation. ACS catalysis,1: 193–199. DOI : 10.1021/ cs1000448
- B. M. Chandra Shekara, C. Ravindra Reddy, C. R. Madhuranthakam, B. S. Jai Prakash, and Y. S. Bhat. 2011. Kinetics of Esterification of Phenylacetic Acid with p-Cresol over H-β Zeolite Catalyst under Microwave Irradiation. Ind. Eng. Chem. Res., 50: 3829 - 3835. DOI : 10.1021/ie101134k
- C. Ravindra Reddy, B. Vijayakumar, PushpaIyengar, G. Nagendrappa, B.S. Jai Prakash. 2004. Synthesis of phenyl acetates using aluminium-exchanged montmorillonite clay catalyst. Journal of Molecular Catalysis A: Chemical, 223: 117–122. DOI : 10.1016/j. molcata.2003.11.039
- C. Ravindra Reddy, PushpaIyengar, G. Nagendrappa, B.S. Jai Prakash. 2005, Esterification of succinic anhydride to di-(p-cresyl) succinate over Mn+montmorillonite clay catalystst. Journal of Molecular Catalysis A: Chemical.229 : 31– 37. DOI : 10.1016/j. molcata.2004.10.044

- C. Ravindra Reddy, PushpaIyengar, G. Nagendrappa, B.S. Jai Prakash. 2005. Esterification of dicarboxylic acids to diesters over Mn+montmorillonite clay catalysts. Catalysis Letters, 101:87–91. DOI:10.1007/ s10562-004-3754-9
- C. Ravindra Reddy, PushpaIyengar, G. Nagendrappa, B.S. Jai Prakash. 2009.Brønsted and Lewis acidity of modified montmorillonite clay catalysts determined by FT-IR spectroscopy. Catalysis Today 141 : 157–160. DOI :10.1016/j.cattod.2008.04.004
- Bhaskar M, Surekha M, N Suma. 2018. Esterification of phenyl acetic acid with peresol using metal cation exchanged montmorillonite nanoclay catalysts. Royal Society open science 5: 171378. DOI: 10.1098/ rsos.171378
- S. Ramesh, B.S. Jai Prakash, Y.S. Bhat. 2012. Highly active and selective Calkylation of p-cresol with cyclohexanol using p-TSA treated clays under solvent free microwave irradiation. Applied Catalysis A: General 413–414: 157-162
- Nazir MS, Mohamad Kassim MH, Mohapatra L, Gilani MA, Raza MR, Majeed K. 2016. Characteristic properties of nanoclays and characterization of nanoparticulates and nanocomposites. In Nanoclay reinforced polymer composites (eds M Jawaid, A Qaiss, R Bouhfid), pp. 35–55. Singapore: Springer. DOI :10.1007/978-981-10-1953-1-2.

OXIDATION KINETICS OF ORANGE G BY CHLORAMINE-T IN THE PRESENCE OF HCL AND NAOH MEDIUMS: A SPECTROPHOTOMETRIC APPROACH

CHANDRASHEKARA. B. M,

BASAVARAJU B C

Professor, Department of Chemistry, Bangalore Institute of Technology, Bengaluru

KUMARA M N

Department of Studies in Chemistry, University of Mysore, Manasagangotri, Mysuru

ABSTRACT

Orange G (OG) is a widely used synthetic azo dye. Kinetics and mechanism of oxidation of OG by Chloramine-T (CAT) in HCl and NaOH medium have been spectrophotometrically investigated under pseudo first-order conditions (λ max =478 nm) in the temperature range of 298 -316 K. Under similar experimental conditions, reactions in both HCl and NaOH mediums follow a first-order dependence of rate on [OG]o. Reaction constants and Activation parameters have been computed. Benzene and 1,2-dioxo-naphthalene-4,6-disulfonic acid were identified as the oxidation products of OG with CAT in HCl and NaOH mediums. From the experimental data, related rate law and plausible mechanism of reaction have been deduced for the observed kinetics.

KEYWORDS : Orange G, Chloramine-T, Kinetics, Oxidation.

1. INTRODUCTION

Azo dyes are the most used among synthetic dyes due to their ability to produce brilliant shades. Production of azo dyes follows a simple and cost effective process. Due to these reasons, production of azo dyes has seen a huge increase over last few decades [1-4]. The azo group present in the azo dyes acts as the chromophore. This group is generally linked to either benzene or naphthalene rings on either sides. The -SO₃H or -SO₃Na and -OH groups which are attached to benzene and naphthalene rings increases the solubility of azo dyes in water [5,6] Orange G (OG) is a synthetic azo dye having the chemical name 1- phenylazo-2-naphthol-6,8-disulfonic acid disodium salt and represented by

the chemical formula $C_{16}H_{10}N_2Na_2O_7S_2$. Orange G is used in histology in many staining formulations [7]. It is a tracking dye used in nucleic acid electrophoresis to track DNA front in agarose gels and also in SDScapillary electrophoresis as a standard. Orange G has been extensively used in applications like coloring of silk and wool materials and also in the manufacturing of wood, paper, ink, and color pencil. As it is released to water after usage, Orange G is found extensively in textile wastewaters [8-10]. Orange G can cause irritation in the respiratory and gastrointestinal tracts and it is considered to be a potential health hazard substance. In aqueous solutions, anaerobic biomass is also affected by this Orange G dye.

Alok D. Bokare et al [11] studied use of Iron-Nickel bimetallic nanoparticles for reductive degradation Orange G in aqueous solution. Asem A Atia et al [12] investigated removal of Orange G through adsorption on magnetic silica which is modified with amine functional groups. J.P.Shubha et al [13] studied mechanistic investigation of oxidation of Orange G by chloramine-B and bromamine-B in acid medium by spectrophotometric method. Orange G degradation by ultrasound irradiation in the presence of heterogeneous photocatalyst Titanium dioxide (TiO₂) was explored by Jagannathan madhvan et al [14]. Bagasse fly ash was used as adsorbent for the removal of Orange-G dye by Indra D. Mall et al [15]. M. Muthukumar et al [16] studied removal of Orange-G from aqueous solutions by electrochemical method. JianhuiSun et al [17] studied the degradation Orange G (OG) on nitrogen-doped TiO, photocatalysts under sunlight exposure. M.A.Meetani et al [18] carried out photocatalytic degradation of Orange G with Ultra voilet (UV) light in the presence of Titanium dioxide (TiO_2) mixed with 20% of chromium oxide catalyst. Nalenthiran et al [19] investigated the catalytic ozonation of Orange G in the presence of Au-Bi₂O₂/ Bi₂O₃ nanocatalysts. G. Thennarasu et al [20] studieded photocatalytic degradation of OG using synthesized nanocrystalline Znic Oxide as a photocatalyst and sunlight as the irradiation source. Fenton oxidation process was investigated by Sheng-Peng Sun et al for decolorization of Orange G in aqueous solution by [21]. Degradation of OG in aqueous solutions by persulfate with ferrous ion was studied by Xiang Rong Xu and Xiang Zhong Li [22].

Detailed literature survey revealed that, mechanistic and kinetic investigation oxidation of Orange G (OG) by Chloramine – T (CAT) has not been reported so far. Therefore, in this study, we are reporting the mechanistic and kinetic investigation of oxidation of Orange G by CAT in both acidic HCl and basic, NaOH mediums.

2. EXPERIMENTAL WORK

2.1 Spectrophotometric Kinetic Procedure

All experiments of kinetic investigations were carried out using an UV-visible spectrophotometer, Chemito UV-2100. A temperature range of 298K to 316K was used in this investigation process, to conduct kinetic runs. A constant required temperature fir a kinetic run was maintained within an accuracy of ± 0.1 K using a digital temperature control system. All kinetic experimental processes were conducted under pseudo first- order conditions, in which [oxidant]o was taken in excess compared to [OG]o with constant concentration of HCl and NaOH medium at temperature of 298K . All oxidation reactions were effected in glass stoppered pyrex boiling tubes. The exterior surface of the glass stoppered Pyrex boiling tubes used in the experiments were coated with Black colour to avoid any photochemical effect on the reaction conversion. All the reactants, namely OG dye, HCl or NaOH solutions and water (to maintain same volume for all the runs) and the required amounts of oxidant, were taken in separate boiling tubes and kept in the thermostat at temperature of 298K for 30 minutes. Then, quickly a calculated amount of oxidant, CAT was added to initiate the oxidation process into the reaction mixture containing the substrate OG dye, and HCl or NaOH. After that, immediately a 3 mL of this reaction mixture was transferred to a cuvette through pipette and it is placed in spectrophotometer. The kinetic experimental runs were conducted at wavelength of 478 nm which is the λ max for OG dye, upto two half-lives. The absorbance readings at imitial time, t = 0 (D_o) and at time, t = t (D_{t}) were noted down from the spectrophotometer. The plots of log (D_i/D_i) versus time were obtained from the data. These plots were employed to determine pseudo-first-order rate constants (k) and the values were reproducible within $\pm 5\%$. Origin 8.5 software was used for the regression analysis of the experimental data to evaluate the regression coefficient, r.

2.2 Reaction Stoichiometry

Eeaction stoichiometry was determined from the reaction of the reaction mixture having different ratios of oxidant, CAT to OG dye in the presence of 0.1 moldm⁻³ of HCl or NaOH medium at temperature of 298K for about 48 hours. The iodometric titration procedure was followed to calculate the left out oxidant, CAT after the process of oxidation. Results showed that OG dye reacted with oxidant CAT in the ratio of 1:1 at temperature of 298 K. One equivalent of CAT was consumed by one equivalent of substrate at 298K. This, same 1:1 stoichiometry was observed in both HCl as well as NaOH mediums. From the reaction stoichiometry and analysis of oxidation products, a possible reaction scheme was deduced and is represented in the Reaction scheme 1 shown below.



Reaction Scheme 1: Reaction scheme for the stoichiometric oxidation of OG dye by Chloramine -T.

2.3 Analysis of the oxidized products of OG dye

For determining the oxidized products of OG dye, the reaction was carried out between OG dye and oxidant in the stoichiometric ratio in both acid and alkaline mediums for 48 hours at temperature of 298K. The progress and completion of the reaction was monitored by thin layer chromatography. After completion of reaction, the products were initially neutralised by adding dilute HCl or NaOH and were extracted into ethyl acetate. The products were identified to be benzene and 1,2-dioxo- naphthalene-4,6-disulfonic acid. These

oxidized products of OG dye were further confirmed by LC-MS analysis. LC-MS spectra of the reaction sample after completion of the oxidation reaction is depicted in Figure 1. It was also revealed from the spectra that, 1,2-dioxo-naphthalene-4,6- disulfonic acid and benzene do not undergo any further reaction with CAT under the present experimental conditions.

The reduction product of CAT was identified to be para toluenesulfonamide (PTS) by paper chromatography. This was again confirmed among other products by LC-MS analysis.



Figure 1. LC-MS spectra recorded after the oxidation reaction of OG dye with CAT.

3. RESULTS AND DISCUSSION

Ultra voilet-Visible spectra for the oxidation process of OG dye by CAT in the presence of HCl and also in the presence of NaOH were recorded separately under different time intervals. These spectra as shown in the Figure 2, clearly proved the of 75 % and 100 % de- colorization of OG dye at 45 minutes and 24 hours respectively. Similar de-colorization was observed both in the presence of HCl and NaOH.



Figure 2: UV-Visible spectrum recorded during decolorization OG dye at different intervals of time.

3.1 Effect of Concentration of OG Dye on its oxidation Rate

The kinetics of oxidation of OG dye by oxidant, CAT was investigated at different initial concentrations of the reactants, under pseudo first-order conditions, taking $[oxidant]o >> [OG]_{o}$, in both HCl and NaOH medium at temperature of 298 K. Under these pseudo first-order conditions keeping constant [Oxidant]o, [HCl]/[NaOH] and temperature, only the initial concentration of dye [OG] was varied. The plots of log (Absorbance) versus time were drawn and found to be linear with r>0.9952, indicating a first-order dependence of rate on [OG], in both HCl and NaOH mediums. The linear nature of these plots in both mediums, along with the constancy of the slopes obtained at different [OG], clearly proves the first-order dependence of rate on [OG]. The pseudo first-order rate constant values (k) obtained from these experiments are recorded in Table 1.

Table 1: Effect of varying initial dye concentration, [OG]_o on the rate of oxidation.

		10 ⁴ k (s ⁻¹)
10 ⁵ [OG] _o mol dm ⁻³	NaOH	HCl
1.0	2.03	3.33
2.0	2.12	3.44
3.0	2.09	3.36
4.0	1.98	3.35
5.0	2.11	3.21

3.2 Effect of changing concentration of oxidant, CAT on the reaction rate

Under the identical experimental conditions, keeping the concentration of [OG]0, [HCl]0 or [NaOH]o and also temperature constant, an increase in the initial concentration of oxidant, [CAT]0 resulted in the increase in the value of k. Representative spectrophotometric absorption values for the oxidation of OG dye by oxidant, CAT in HCl and NaOH medium are depicted in Table 2. Linear plot of log(absorbance) vs time which is used to determine the rate constant values for the oxidation of OG dye by CAT in HCl and NaOH medium is shown in Figure 3. Then, the plot of logk vs log[CAT] was obtained which is shown in Figure 4. This plot of logk vs log[CAT] was found to be linear exhibiting the slope of 1.069 (R2 = 0.9917) and 1.068 (R2 = 0.979) respectively for HCl and NaOH medium indicating first order dependence of rate on the concentration of oxidant, [CAT]. The first order dependence of rate on the concentration of oxidant, [CAT] was further confirmed by the plot of k vs [CAT] which was linear and also passed through the origin in both the cases.

Table 2: Effect of varying [CAT]o on the rate of oxidation of OG dye.

		т	4C1		
104[CAT]	5+log[CAT]	NaOH 104k	5+logk	10 ⁴ k ¹	5+logk
mol dm-3	,	(s-1)		(s-1)	
1.0	1	0.59	0.771	1.11	1.045
1.5	1.176	0.78	0.892	1.81	1.258
2.0	1.301	1.11	1.041	2.34	1.369
3.0	1.477	2.03	1.307	3.35	1.525
4.0	1.602	2.51	1.399	5.03	1.701
5.0	1.689	2.85	1.455	6.29	1.798



Figure 3: A plot of log (absorbance) vs time for the oxidation of OG dye by CAT in HCl and NaOH medium



Figure 4: Plot of log k vs log [CAT].

3.3 Effect of varying concentration of HCl and NaOH mediums on the rate of oxidation of dye

It was observed from the results of the experiments that rate of oxidation of OG dye was increased with increase in concentration of HCl. The order with respect to HCl was determined from the plot of logk vs log[HCl] which is displayed in Figure 4. The plot was found to be linear with a slope of 0.537 (R2 = 0.989), which clearly showed the fractional order dependence of rate on the concentration of [HCl].

The rate of oxidation of OG dye was studied at different concentrations of NaOH by carrying out reactions keeping other experimental conditions constant. It was clearly demonstrated that the rate of oxidation of the OG dye was decreased with increase in concentration of NaOH. The order of the reaction with respect to concentration of NaOH was determined from the plot of logk vs log[NaOH] which is shown in Figure 4. The plot was found to be linear with a negative slope of -0.834 (R2 = 0.997) which clearly revealed inverse fractional order dependence of rate on [NaOH]. The rate constant values determined at different concentration of HCl and NaOH are shown in Table 3.

 Table 3: Effect of varying [HCl]o and [NaOH]o on the rate of oxidation of OG dye.

 $\left[OG \right]_{\rm o} = 4.0 \ X \ 10^{-5} \ mol/dm^3, \ \left[CAT \right]_{\rm o} = 3.0 \ X \ 10^{-4} \ mol/dm^3 \ \mu = 0.3 \ mol/dm^3 \ T = 299 \ K.$

		Na	OH	HCl	
104[HCl]/	5+log[HCl]/	104k (s-1)	4+logk	104k (s-1)	4+logk
10 ⁴ [NaOH]	5+log[NaOH]				
mol dm-3	mol dm-3				
1.0	1	4.83	0.684	1.98	0.297
2.0	1.301	2.79	0.445	2.89	0.461
3.0	1.477	2.03	0.307	3.35	0.525
4.0	1.602	1.55	0.19	4.19	0.622
5.0	1.698	1.25	0.097	4.76	0.678
		$R^2 = 0.$	988	$R^2 = 0$).997
		Order =	0.537	Order	= -0.834

3.4 Effect of varying halide ion concentration on the oxidation rate

In order to study the effect of concentration of halide ions on the rate of oxidation of OG dye, the concentration of halide ions (Cl- and Br- ions) was varied in the range of 1×10 -3 to 10×10 -3 under both HCl and NaOH mediums. It was clearly observed that in HCl medium, the change in concentration of Cl- and Br- ions had negligible effect on the rate of oxidation reaction. It was also revealed that rate of oxidation of OG dye depends on only [H+] and not on [halide]. Similarly, even in NaOH medium also, the change in concentration of halide ions had negligible impact on the rate of oxidation of dye. The values of rate constants detrmined at different chloride and bromide ion concentration in both HCl and NaOH medium are tabulated respectively in Table 4 and Table 5.

Table 4: Effect of chloride ions on the rate of oxidation ofOG dye

$$\label{eq:constraint} \begin{split} & [NaOH] = [HCI] = 3.0 \ X \ 10^{-3} \ mol/dm^3, \ [OG]_{_o} = 4.0 \ X \\ & 10^{-5} \ mol/dm^3, \ \mu = 0.3 \ mol/dm^3 \ [CAT] = 3.0 \ X \ 10^{-4} \ mol/ \\ & dm^3 \ T = 299 \ K. \end{split}$$

104k ((s-1)
NaOH	HCl
2.00	3.32
2.08	3.66
1.99	3.34
2.04	3.50
	2.00 2.08 1.99

Table 5: Effect of bromide ions on the rate of oxidation ofOG dye

$$\label{eq:constraint} \begin{split} & [NaOH] = [HCI] = 3.0 \ X \ 10^{\text{-3}} \ mol/dm^3, \ [OG]_\circ = 4.0 \ X \\ & 10^{\text{-5}} \ mol/dm^3, \ \mu = 0.3 \ mol/dm^3, \ [CAT] = 3.0 \ X \ 10^{\text{-4}} \ mol/dm^3 \ T = 299 \ K \end{split}$$

		10 ⁴ k (s ⁻¹)
10 ⁴ [NaBr] mol dm ⁻³	NaOH	HCl
1.0	2.11	3.38
2.0	2.08	3.71
5.0	1.96	3.42
10.0	2.18	3.54

3.5 Effect of varying PTS concentration on the rate of oxidation reaction

The effect of reduction product of CAT, that is p- toluene sulfonamide (PTS) on the rate of oxidation of OG dye was studied by varying concentration of PTS in the range of 1×10 -3 to 4×10 -3 keeping all other experimental parameters constant. Increase in concentration of PTS showed a negligible effect on the rate of oxidation reaction in both HCl and NaOH medium. The values of rate constants obtained at different concentration of PTS are tabulated in Table 6. This clearly proved the absence of the role of PTS in the rate determining step of the reaction.

Table 6: Effect of concentration of PTS on the rate of oxidation.

$$\label{eq:constraint} \begin{split} & [NaOH] = [HCI] = 3.0 \ X \ 10^{\text{-3}} \ mol/dm^3, \ [OG]_\circ = 4.0 \ X \\ & 10^{\text{-5}} \ mol/dm^3, \ \mu = 0.3 mol/dm^3, \ [CAT] = 3.0 \ X \ 10^{\text{-4}} \ mol/ \\ & dm^3 \ T = 299 \ K. \end{split}$$

		10 ⁴ k (s ⁻¹)
10 ⁴ [PTS] mol dm ⁻³	NaOH	HCI
1.0	2.10	3.30
2.0	1.98	3.56
3.0	2.08	3.25
4.0	2.07	3.56

3.6 Effect of ionic strength variation on the rate of oxidation of OG dye

To study the effect of the ionic strength (μ) of the medium, NaClO4 was used in the reaction and its concentration was varied in the range of 0.1 to 0.4 mol/dm3 by keeping other experimental conditions constant in both HCl and NaOH medium. The values of rate constants determined at different concentration of NaClO₄ are summarized in Table 7. It was clearly observed that rate of oxidation of OG dye increased with increase in concentration of NaClO₄ in both HCl and NaOH medium. A plot of log k vs $\mu^{1/2}$ was found to be linear with positive slope which is shown in Figure 6. Therefore, ionic strength of the medium was maintained constant at 0.3 mol/dm³ of NaClO₄ concentration for all remaining kinetic runs.

 Table 7: Effect of varying ionic strength on the rate of oxidation

 $[NaOH] = [HCI] = 3.0 X 10^{-3} mol/dm^3, [OG]o = 4.0 X 10^{-5} mol/dm^3, [CAT] = 3.0 X 10^{-4} mol/dm^3 T = 299 K.$

			NaOH		ł	4C1
[NaClO ₄]	μ	$(\mu)^{1/2}$	10^4 k	5+logk	104k	5+logk
mol dm-3			(s·1)		(s·1)	
1.0	0.005	0.07	1.12	1.049	2.05	1.312
2.0	0.04	0.200	1.42	1.152	2.36	1.373
3.0	0.18	0.424	2.03	1.307	3.35	1.525
4.0	0.32	0.565	2.58	1.412	4.25	1.628



Figure 5: Plot of log k vs log [HCl] and log [NaOH]

The Indian Journal of Technical Education, Special Issue, May 2023



Figure 6: Plot of log k vs $\mu 1/2$

3.7 Effect of varying dielectric constant of the medium on the rate of oxidation of OG dye.

Methanol at different volume compositions (0-20%) v/v) was used in the experiment to investigate the effect of dielectric constant of the medium on the rate of oxidation reaction in both HCl and NaOH medium. Experiments revealed the rate of oxidation of OG dye

to be decreasing with increase in the concentration of methanol in both HCl and NaOH medium. The rate constant values determined from the experiments are tabulated in Table 8. The linear plot of logk vs 1/D was obtained with R2 = 0.997 and R2 = 0.998 values respectively for HCl and NaOH medium. The slope was found to be negative as depicted in Figure 7.

Table 8: Effect of dielectric constant on the rate of oxidation of OG dye

 $[NaOH] = [HCl] = 3.0 \times 10^{-3} \text{ mol/dm}^3, [OG]_{o} = 4.0 \times 10^{-5} \text{ mol/dm}^3, [CAT] = 3.0 \times 10^{-4} \text{ mol/dm}^3 \mu = 0.3 \text{ mol/dm}^3 \text{ T} = 299 \text{ K}.$

			NaC	ЭН		HCl
%MeOH	D	1/D	10^{4} k (s ⁻¹)	5+logk	10^{4} k (s ⁻¹)	5+logk
(v/v)						
0	76.73	0.0130	2.03	1.307	3.35	1.525
5	74.50	0.0134	1.56	1.193	2.79	1.445
10	72.37	0.0138	1.125	1.096	2.16	1.334
20	67.48	0.0148	0.77	0.886	1.22	1.086
			$R^2 = 0.997$			$R^2 = 0.993$





Figure 7: Plot of log k vs 1/D

3.8 Effect of varying temperature on the reaction rate of oxidation of OG dye

The effect of temperature on the reaction rate of oxidation of OG dye was investigated by conducting the experiments at five different temperatures while maintaining all other experimental conditions constant. Arrhenius plots of logk vs 1/T were obtained for HCl and NaOH mediums with $R^2 = 0.992$ and $R^2 = 0.993$ respectively. The plots were linear as shown in Figure



8. The rate constant values calculated at different temperatures in both mediums are shown in Table 9. Using these Arrhenius plots, activation energy (Ea), frequency factor (A), entropy of activation ($\Delta S\#$), enthalpy of activation ($\Delta H\#$), and free energy of activation ($\Delta G\#$) were calculated and shown in Table 11.The rate of transition state formation and conversion of transition state to products could be understood from these values of activation parameters.

Table 9: Effect of varying temperature on the rate of oxidation.

 $[NaOH] = [HC1] = 3.0 \times 10^{-3} \text{ mol/dm}^3, [OG]_0 = 4.0 \times 10^{-5} \text{ mol/dm}^3, [CAT] = 3.0 \times 10^{-4} \text{ mol/dm}^3 \mu = 0.3 \text{ mol/dm}^3.$

	N	NaOH		IC1
10 ³	10^4 k	4+logk	10^4 k	4+logk
(1/T)	(s-1)		(s ⁻¹)	
(K-1)				
3.355	2.03	0.307	3.35	0.525
3.300	3.15	0.498	4.95	0.694
3.246	5.04	0.702	6.92	0.840
3.194	7.89	0.897	9.39	0.973
3.144	11.04	1.043	11.74	1.069
	(1/T) (K ⁻¹) 3.355 3.300 3.246 3.194	10³104k(1/T)(s-1)(K-1)3.3553.3552.033.3003.153.2465.043.1947.89	10³104k4+logk(1/T)(s-1)-(K-1)3.3552.030.3073.3003.150.4983.2465.040.7023.1947.890.897	10³104k4+logk104k(1/T)(s-1)(s-1)(K-1)

(HCl) $R^2 = 0.992$, Slope = -2593.5, (NaOH) $R^2 = 0.998$, Slope = -3543.1

4. CONCLUSIONS

Investigation of kinetics and mechanism of oxidation reaction of OG dye by Chloramine-T (CAT) as oxidant in both HCl and NaOH medium by spectrophotometric method under pseudo first-order conditions, with λ max =478 nm, in the temperature range of 298 -316 K clearly revealed that under otherwise similar experimental conditions, reactions in both HCl and NaOH mediums follow a first- order dependence of rate on initial concentration of dye, [OG]o. From the experimental data, reaction constants and activation parameters were computed. Benzene and 1,2-dioxo-naphthalene-4,6-disulfonic acid were identified as the oxidation products of OG dye with CAT as oxidant in HCl and NaOH mediums. The study revealed that, the activation parameters such as energy of activation and other thermodynamic parameters were found to be moderate under acidic as well as basic medium. The low enthalpy of activation obtained from the results suggests that no major bond breaking or forming is involved before formation of transition state. Further, low enthalpy along with negative entropy of activation indicates an associative mechanism during the formation of the transition state. Higher degree of order on moving from initial ground state to the transition state is indicated from negative entropy of activation.

REFERENCES

- 1. T Robinson, G McMullan, R Marchant, P Nigam. Bioresour Technol. 2001, 77(3) : 247-55.
- Klaus Hunger (Editor), Industrial Dyes Chemistry, Properties, and Applications, Wiley-VCH, Germany, 2003.
- Esther Forgacs, Tibor Cserháti, Gyula Oros, Environment International, Volume 30, Issue 7, September 2004, Pages 953-971.
- 4. Zollinger, H. (2003) Color Chemistry: Synthesis, Properties and Applications of Organic Dyes and Pigments. 3rd Edition, Wiley-VCH, Cambridge.
- 5. E.Brillas and C.A.Marinez-Huitile. Appl.Catal. B, 2015.
- 6. M. Solis, A. Solis, H.I. Perez, N. Manjarrez, M. Flores, Process Biochem., 2012, 47, pages 1723-1748.
- 7. Carson, Freida L; Hladik, Christa (2009).

Histotechnology: American Society for Clinical Pathology Press. page 362.

- 8. C.L. Hsueh, Y.H. Huang, C.C. Wang, C.Y. Chen, Chemosphere, 58, 2005, pages 1409–1414.
- J.H. Sun, X.L. Wang, J.Y. Sun, R.X. Sun, S.P. Sun, J. Mol. Catal. A: Chem. 260, 2006, pages 241–246.
- 10. S.P. Sun, C.J. Li, J.H. Sun, S.H. Shi, M.H. Fan, Q. Zhou, J. Hazard Mater. 161, 2009, pages 1052–1057.
- Alok D. Bokare ,Rajeev C. Chikate, Chandrashekhar V. Rode, Kishore M. Paknikar. Applied Catalysis B: Environmental, 79, 2008, pages 270–278.
- Asem A. Atia, Ahmed M. Donia, Waheeba A. Al-Amrani, Chemical Engineering Journal, 150, 2009, Pages 55–62.
- 13. Jayachamarajapura Pranesh Shubha, Yadati Madhusudhan , Puttaswamy, International Journal of Innovative Research in Science, Engineering and Technology, Vol. 4, Issue 3, 2015.
- Jagannathan Madhavan, Franz Grieser, Muthupandian Ashokkumar, Ultrasonics Sonochemistry, 17, 2010, Pages 338–343.
- 15. Indra D. Mall, Vimal C. Srivastava, Nitin K. Agarwal, Dyes and Pigments, 69, 2006, Pages 210-223.
- M. Muthukumara, M. Thalamadai Karuppiah, G. Bhaskar Raju. Separation and Purification Technology, 55, 2007, pages 198–205.
- Jianhui Sun, Liping Qiao, Shengpeng Sun, Guoliang Wang. Journal of Hazardous Materials, Volume 155, Issues 1–2, 2008, Pages 312-319.
- M. A. Meetani, M. A. Rauf, S. Hisaindee, A. Khaleel, A. AlZamly and A. Ahmad. RSC Adv., 2011, 1, Pages 490-497.
- Nalenthiran Pugazhenthirana, Panneerselvam Sathishkumara, Sepperumal Murugesan, Sambandam Anandana. Chemical Engineering Journal, 168, 2011, Pages 1227–1233.
- G. Thennarasu, S. Kavithaa, A. Sivasamy. Environmental Science and Pollution Research. 2012, Volume 19, Issue 7, Pages 2755–2765.
- Sheng-Peng Sun, Cheng-Jie Li, Jian-Hui Sun, Shao-Hui Shi, Mao- Hong Fan, Qi Zhou. Journal of Hazardous Materials 161, 2009, Pages 1052–1057.
- 22. Xiang-Rong Xu, Xiang-Zhong Li. Separation and Purification Technology, 72, 2010, Pages 105–111.

EXPLOITING THE PHOTO STABLE PROPERTIES OF COUMARIN DERIVATIVE FOR THE DETECTION OF METAL IONS IN SOLUTIONS

G. NAGASREE

Department of Physics, City Engineering College, Bangalore, Karnataka

GEETHANJALI. H. S, NAGARAJA D

Department of Physics, Bangalore Institute of Technology, Bangalore

RAJU P

Department of Physics, Government First Grade College, Haveri

ABSTRACT

Metal ions are essential in many biochemical and physiological functions if they are in low concentrations and become dangerous when certain limit is exceeded. Their detection even at low concentration is very much required. This research article register the detection of Cu++ using a coumarin derivative 3-(Bromoacetyl) coumarin by spectroscopic methods. Metal ions are capable of decreasing the absorbance (OD) and emission intensity of the coumarin derivative dissolved in methanol. The sample concentration is maintained at 10-5M. The addition of Cu++ decreases OD by nearly 72%. The absorption peak is located at 270nm and remains undisturbed with the addition of metal ion and increase in the concentration of metal ion. This indicates that the ground state is not affected. Emission spectra are recorded by exciting the sample at a wavelength 272nm. When metal ion concentration is increased a gradual decrease in the emission intensity from 1025 to 487 (about 53% decrease) is observed. This is a clear indication of successful quenching effective binding between the host (coumarin) and the guest (metal ion) with no modifications in the excited state properties.

The experimental data is handled using Benesi-Hildebrand plots which are found to be linear. Binding constant is evaluated by taking the ratio of intercept and slope. The higher value of binding constant represents the formation of stable complex between metal ion and studied compound. The studied coumarin derivative has greater affinity towards metal ions. It can play a vital role in the designing of metal ion sensor

KEYWORDS : Metal ions, Coumarin, Binding constant

INTRODUCTION

Biologically effective fluorescent organic molecules such as derivatives of coumarins, boronic acids,

imdazoles, thiophenes etc. play important roles in the design metal ion sensors. They are also used to study binding interactions of biomolecules namely proteins, lipids and carbohydrates.

The Indian Journal of Technical Education, Special Issue, May 2023

i. Metal ions

Actually Metal ions are formed when a metal lose electrons in the higher energy level and become positive ion called cation. Non metals, on the other hand, gain electrons and become negative ions called anions. Metal ions have been identified as key players in the biological system for billions of years. Some of the examples are here. Zinc metal ion may not be harmful but can pose threat in bulk quantities. Copper deficiency leads to several health problems such as anemia, bone abnormalities, osteoporosis etc and also becomes toxic to the extent of damaging DNA and Alzheimer disease if it is taken in excess.[1-3]. Some of the toxic metal ions such as copper, zinc, nickel, cadmium, mercury, lead, arsenic etc are getting added to the environment through various means. They enter and accumulate in living organisms through air, water and soil. The detection of these environmental poisons is done through techniques such as atomic absorption spectroscopy, UV-VIS and fluorescence spectroscopy, etc [4,5]

ii. Spectroscopic method

In spectroscopic method a low concentration solution is prepared by dissolving Coumarin in solvents of different viscosity and polarity. Absorption and emission spectra are recorded. Metal ions in aqueous solution, with very low concentration (10-3M) are then added to it in steps and the spectra are re-recorded. The addition of metal ions leads to reduction in the absorbance (OD) or emission intensity (AU) (sometimes increase also!) [6,7]. This kind of spectroscopic variations indicates that there is some effect of metal ion on the coumarin and this effect is nothing but binding interaction. The extent of binding and binding sites are calculated by calculating binding constant (Ka) enthalpy and Gibbs free energy (ΔG)

iii. Coumarin derivative

The name 'Coumarin' is derived from 'Coumarou'tonka bean, from which coumarin itself was isolated in 1820[8]. Coumarin is classified as a member of the benzopyrone family of compounds, all of which consist of a benzene ring joined to a pyrone ring. Coumarins comprise a very large class of compounds found throughout the plant kingdom. Coumarin is also found in fruits, green tea and other foods such as chicory. Coumarins are well known laser dyes, exhibit strong fluorescence in the UV and VIS region, exhibit biological properties. They are used as therapeutic agents, in electronic and photonic applications, charge transfer complexes, solar energy collectors, colorants, dye laser media etc [9-11].

EXPERIMENTAL

In this connection, we have chosen a coumarin derivative namely 3-(Bromoacetyl) coumarin (C11H7BrO3. Molecular Weight 267.08) (C1) purchased from Sigma Aldrich. Its molecular structure is as in Fig.. It is dissolved in Methanol - a spectroscopic grade solvent. To begin with, sample solution is prepared with a concentration of 10-6M in Methanol (ML) by standard method.

Cu++ metal ion of concentration 1mM is prepared by dissolving Copper nitrate in 1000 ml of double distilled water. It is then added to sample solution in the step of 0.1ml, 0.2ml, 0.3ml, 0.4ml, 0.5ml, 0.6ml, 0.7ml, 0.8ml, 0.9ml and 1ml.

The absorption spectra of all the samples are recorded using UV-Visible Spectrometer (UH5300). The scanning wavelength range is 200nm-500nm with a scanning speed of 0.5nm.



RESULTS AND DISCUSSIONS

In host–guest chemistry, the formation of a complex is a basic and important process. The binding constant (K_a) ,an essential parameter for the quantitative analysis of the complex formation has to be determined. In fact it is used as a criterion for the evaluation of the hostguest complexation process. Other Thermodynamic parameters like enthalpy, entropy and Gibbs free energy are also more suitable standards.

Binding affinity between Coumarin derivatives and metal ions can be determined using UV-VIS and fluorescence spectroscopic method which has an edge over other methods because of sensitiveness, rapidness and requirement of very little sample [12-18]

 K_a values are calculated using a derived equation called Benesi-Hildebrand(B-H) equation that connects

the spectroscopic variations (both OD and AU) to the concentration of metal ions [19].

At equilibrium,

Coumarins (host) + Metal ions (guest) \rightarrow Complex [C] [M] [CM]

The binding constant (or association constant) is given by

$$K_a = \frac{[CM]}{[C][M]} \tag{1}$$

Assuming [M]>>[C], one can prove that [19].

$$\frac{A}{\Delta A} = \frac{m}{nK_a} \frac{1}{[M]} + \frac{m}{n}$$
(2)

Where,

A the absorbance (OD) in the absence of metal ions

 $\Delta A (= A_0 - A)$ the change in OD

[M] the metal ion concentration

m and n constants (depend on the molar extinction coefficients of host and complex formed)

A graph of equation (2) is linear and K_a is obtained from its y- intercept and slope. Using binding constant, Gibbs free energy changes (ΔG) of complexes are evaluated using the equation

$$\Delta G = - (RT) \ln K (kJ \text{ mol}^{-1})$$
(3)

Gibbs free energy change represents the spontaneity/ non-spontaneity of compound–Metal ion binding.

1. Binding study by UV-spectroscopy:

The absorption spectra of 3-(Bromoacetyl) coumarin (C1) in the solvent methanol with and without copper ion (Cu++) is presented below



Absorption spectra of 3-(Bromoacetyl) coumarin in the solvent methanol. The arrow mark indicates the increasing order of Cu++ concentratio

The absorption peak is located at 270nm and initial absorbance is (OD) 0.647. The addition of metal ion causes progressive decrease in OD. The final OD is around 0.176 at 1mM of Cu++. This clearly shows that there is a binding interaction between Cu++ and 3-(Bromoacetyl) coumarin and this bonding is becoming more and more significant with the increase of metal ion concentration; however the absorption peak is not shifted. Hence ground state is not affected by the metal ion.

The binding constant is calculated using the following data. A plot of A/ Δ A versus 1/[M] using Benesi-Hildebrand equation is as follows

Table.1. Experimental data of 3-(Bromoacetyl) coumarin (C1) in the solvent methanol

Sl. No	Conc of metal ion [M]mM	1/[M] ×10 ³	(A)OD	ΔΑ	Α/ΔΑ
1	00		0.647		
2	0.1	10	0.451	0.196	3.301
3	0.2	5	0.433	0.214	3.023
4	0.3	3.33	0.415	0.232	2.789
5	0.4	2.5	0.371	0.276	2.344
6	0.5	2	0.294	0.353	1.833
7	0.6	1.67	0.279	0.368	1.758
8	0.7	1.43	0.242	0.405	1.597
9	0.8	1.25	0.186	0.461	1.403
10	0.9	1.11	0.181	0.466	1.388
11	1.0	1.0	0.176	0.471	1.373



B-H plot of 3-(Bromoacetyl) coumarin (C1) in the solvent methanol along with Cu++ metal ion using absorption data

It is a linear fit graph with very good correlation coefficient of 0.9620. The y- axis intercept is 0.9556 and the slope is 4.617×10^{-4} . Binding constant is found to be 20.69×10^2 M⁻¹. The higher value of binding constant represents the formation of stable complex between metal ion and studied compound. The Gibbs free energy is calculated using equation (3). Gibbs free energy is an indicative of spontaneity/non- spontaneity of compound – Cu++ binding and its value is -19.033 KJmol-1. The negative value represents the spontaneity of compound – Cu++ interaction [16].

2. Binding study by fluorescence-spectroscopy

The fluorescence emission of the sample is done using Perkin Elmer spectro fluorometer (LS-55). The slit width is kept at 5nm. All the samples are excited at the wavelength of 270nm which corresponds to absorption peak and the emission spectra are recorded. The initial Table 2 Experimental data obtained from emission spectr fluorescence intensity is 1025 AU and decreases gradually with the increase in the concentration of metal ion without any shift in the emission peak. Fluorescence intensity has been effectively quenched by the metal ion and the added impurity is acting as a quencher.



Emission spectra of 3-(Bromoacetyl) coumarin (C1) in the solvent methanol. The arrow mark indicates the increasing order of Cu++ concentration.

The spectral data is processed using two equations namely Benesi- Hildebrand equation (Eq.2) and modified S-V equation(Eq.4) [6,20]

$$\log\left(\frac{I_0 - I}{I}\right) = \log k + n \log[M] \tag{4}$$

Where n is the number of binding sites. The other symbols have their usual meaning. Linear fittings of the experimental data obtained from emission studies (Table 2) showed that within the investigated concentration, the results exhibited a good linear relationship. The linear plots are as shown below

 Table.2. Experimental data obtained from emission spectra of 3-(Bromoacetyl) coumarin (C1) in the solvent methanol with varied concentration of Cu++ concentration

S1.	Conc of	1/[M]	log[M]	Ι	ΔI	$I_0/\Delta I$	$\log(\Delta I/I)$
No	metal ion	×10 ³					
	[M]mM						
1	00			1025			
2	0.1	10	-4.00	870.05	154.95	6.615	-0.749
3	0.2	5	-3.69	776.62	248.38	4.127	-0.495
4	0.3	3.33	-3.52	742.42	282.58	3.627	-0.419
5	0.4	2.5	-3.40	700.23	324.77	3.156	-0.333
6	0.5	2	-3.30	678.83	346.17	2.961	-0.294
7	0.6	1.67	-3.22	657.52	367.48	2.789	-0.253
8	0.7	1.43	-3.15	655	370	2.771	-0.248
9	0.8	1.25	-3.10	640.48	384.52	2.665	-0.222
10	0.9	1.11	-3.05	499.86	525.14	1.952	0.021
11	1.0	1.0	-3.00	487	538	1.905	0.043



B-H plot of 3-(Bromoacetyl) coumarin (C1) in the solvent methanol with varied concentration of Cu++ concentration



Modified S-V plot of 3-(Bromoacetyl) coumarin (C1) in the solvent methanol with varied concentration of Cu++ concentration

In both the cases linear fit is obtained with a very good correlation coefficient. The binding constants and number of binding sites are calculated and the obtained values are tabulated in the following table. It is evident form the table that the order of binding constant value calculated using both absorption and emission data is more or less same. The value of n is approximately equal to one indicating that there is one binding site in metal ion for coumarins derivative during the interaction. The negative Gibbs free energy calculated in each case is also mentioned in the same table.

Table 3. The values of binding constants and Gibbs free energy and number of binding sites obtained from different methods

Method	Binding constant(k) M ⁻¹ (×10 ²)	Gibbs free energy(-∆G) kJ mol ⁻¹	No of binding sites
Absorption spectroscopy	20.69	19.033	
Fluorescence spectroscopy (B-H equation)	38.35	20.57	
Fluorescence spectroscopy (modified SV equation)	1.11	11.74	0.7 ≅1

CONCLUSIONS

The obtained values of binding constants clearly indicate that the studied coumarin derivative is capable of binding effectively with the metal ion Cu++.These results encouraged us to proceed with more spectroscopic studies using different metal ions such as Ni++, Pb++, Zn++, Hg++ etc. Before arriving at the solid conclusion that the studied compound can be used as a metal ion sensor we need to do further investigations such as effect of pH, temperature and solvent environment.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

This research work is sponsored by the Vision Group on Science and Technology (VGST), Department of IT, BT & ST, Government of Karnataka, India. We duly acknowledge their magnanimous support

REFERENCES

- Li, Yunbo; Trush, Michael; Yager, James. Carcinogenesis, 1994,15 (7): 1421–1427 2. Gordon, Starkebaum; John, M. Harlan. J. Clin. Invest, 1976, 77 (4): 1370–1376 3. Brewer GJ. Copper excess, BioFactors, 2012, 38(2):107–113.
- 4. Z. Fang, T. Guo, B. Weiz, Talanta, 1996, 38:613-619.
- J. S. Becker, A. Matusch, C. Depboylu, J. Dobrowolska, M.V. Zoriy, Anal. Chem, 2007, 79: 6074-6080.
- 6. J. R. Lackowicz, Principles of Fluorescence Spectroscopy, Plenum Press New York, (1983).
- 7. K. K. Rohatgi-Mukherjee, Fundamental of Photochemistry, Wiley Eastern Ltd. 1992.

- Bruneton J. Pharmacognosy, Phytochemistry, Medicinal Plants. Second Edition, Hampshire UK, Intercept Ltd 1999; pp 263-277
- 9. Egan D, O'Kennedy R. J Chromatogr B, 1992, 582, 137-143.
- 10. Finn G, Kenealy E, Creaven B, Egan D. Cancer Letts 2002, 183, 61-68
- B. Valeur, Molecular Fluorescence: Principles and application, Wiley-VCH, Weinheim, (2002) 12. Keiji hirose, J Incl Phenom Macrocycl Chem 2001, 39, 193– 209.
- 13. X. X. Zhang, J. S. Bradshaw, and R. M. Izatt: Chem. Rev,1997, 97, 3313-3362
- 14. R. M. Izatt, K. Pawlak, and J. S. Bradshaw: Chem. Rev, 1991, 91, 1721-2085

- R. M. Izatt, J. S. Bradshaw, K. Pawlak, R. L. Bruening, and B. J. Tarbet: Chem. Rev. 1992, 92, 1261-1354
- 16. N Arshad et al J.Photochem and Photobiol B, 2013, 125, 70-82
- 17. G. Nagasree, H.S. Geethanjali, D. Nagaraja, Materials Today Proced, 2022,62, Part-8, 5213-5217
- 18. Nagasree.G, Raju.P, Geethanjali H S, Nagaraja.D, Sambodhi, ISSN: 2249-6661 2020,43(04), 363-371
- H.A. Benesi, J.H. Hildebrand, JACS, 1949, 71, 2703-2707
- Vishwas D. Suryawanshi, Laxman S. Walekar, Anil H. Gore, Prashant V. Anbhule, Govind B. Kolekar, J. Pharm. Anal, 2016, 6, 56–63.



RAJYA VOKKALIGARA SANGHA (R) BANGALORE INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY

K.R. Road, V.V. Pura, Bengaluru - 560 004 | www.bit-bangalore.edu.in





Recognised by All India Council for Technical Education (AICTE), New Delhi



BISNOSS INFRANCIALOR BUSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY

Affiliated to Visvesvaraya Technological University (VTU), Belagavi



Accredited by National Board of Accreditation UG Programs (9)



Recognised under section 2 (f) & 12(B) of the UGC Act 1956

PROGRAMMES OFFERED

BACHELOR OF ENGINEERING (B.E.)

- **Computer Science and Engineering** ٠
- **Information Science and Engineering** ٠
- Artificial Intelligence and Machine Learning ٠
- **Computer Science and Engineering (Data Science)** ٠
- **Computer Science and Engineering** ٠ (IOT & Cyber Security including Blockchain Technology)
- **Electronics and Communication Engineering** ٠
- Electronics Engineering (VLSI Design & Technology) ٠
- **Electronics and Telecommunication Engineering** ٠
- **Electronics and Instrumentation Engineering** ٠
- **Electrical and Electronics Engineering** ٠
- **Mechanical Engineering** ٠
- **Robotics and Artificial Engineering**
- **Civil Engineering** ٠

POST GRADUATE PROGRAMMES

- ٠ Master of Computer Applications
- Master of Business Administration

MASTER OF TECHNOLOGY (M.Tech)

- **Structural Engineering** •
- **VLSI Design and Embedded Systems**
- **Computer Science and Engineering** ٠

Ph.D. Programmes & M.Sc Engineering (By Research)

13 VTU approved Research Centers

CET CODE : E008 **COMED - K : E019** PGCET CODE : MBA - B131 MCA - C411 M.Tech : T812

Highly qualified, experienced and competent teaching faculty

Pioneer in Placements with outstanding track record



For Admission Contact : +91 94485 12954, 94485 12984 Email : admissionsection@bit-bangalore.edu.in

VTU RANKS ear 2021-2022 28 2020 - 2021 24 22 2019 - 2020

25 **Gold Medals** in the year 2022

HIGHLIGHTS IN BIT

Premier institution imparting quality education in Engineering, Technical & Management discipline since 1979

The college has adopted the National **Education Policy (NEP)**

30+ Student Activity Clubs.

Innovation & Entrepreneurship Cell to develop leadership qualities in students.

MOU's with more than 150 companies.

Excellent placement opportunities with more than 200 companies visiting BIT every year for campus recruitment.

R&D and Center of Excellence in all the departments.

🛞 Skill Development Lab in Association with Mistral Solutions, Capgemini and Increesol.

The Week-Hansa Research Survey-2022 accords, BIT - one among the Top 3 private engineering colleges in Bengaluru.

Dynamic Professional Body Forum (PBF).

State of the art infrastructure and highly qualified faculty.

📣 Idea Lab, IPR and BIT Startup Cell.

TAL BANKING OF INSTITUTION IN INNOVATION ACHIEVEMENT

ARIIA

1200+ offers during 2022 **800+** offers during 2023 (Upto March)





BANGALORE INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY

K.R. Road, V.V. Puram , Bengaluru-04

Phone: 080 26615865, 26613237 | Website: bit-bangalore.edu.in



Recognised by All India Council for Technical Education (AICTE), New Delhi



Affiliated to Visvesvaraya Technological University (VTU), Belagavi



BANGALORE INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY

in

Accredited by National Board of Accreditation UG Programs (9)





Accredited by NAAC with A+ grade

Recognised under section 2 (f) & 12(B) of the UGC Act 1956

To know more on us, Please click on any of the following links;

Ø



ಬೆಂಗಳೂರು ತಾಂತ್ರಿಕ ಮಹಾವಿದ್ಯಾಲಯ

0

 (\mathcal{B})

f

PUBLISHED BY INDIAN SOCIETY FOR TECHNICAL EDUCATION Near Katwaria Sarai, Shasheed Jeet Singh Marg, New Delhi - 110 016

Printed at: Compuprint, Flat C, Aristo, 9, Second Street, Gopalapuram, Chennai 600 086. Phone : +91 44 2811 6768 • www.compuprint.in